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NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE LLC 
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET 

DECEMBER 31, 2010 
(IN THOUSANDS) 

Non- 
Issuer 
	

Guarantor 
	

Guarantor 
(Parent) 
	

(Subsidiaries) 
	

(Subsidiaries) 
	

Eliminations 
	

Consolidated 

21,223 

441,275 

*j9;. 6.13 

Cash and cash equivalents 

.ReStrfotdek:',0 

Accounts receivable, net 

..... 
Mortgage loans held for investment, subject to 
nonrecoursc debt, Legacy Assets, net 

4\./lortg.a6.e:loan .whdld.4or , fince4rii:en• 
:.;ABSilontacourg::detivOr 

Investment in debt securities available 

.tmer.t in sal iciratias 

Receivables from -iffiliates 

'•':•V1;511g1.1gd:4611111.ig);T.W .1. 1,  
Property and equipment, net 

kE0 

Other assets 

........ ............. ...... .......... 
Liabilities and members equity 

Unsecured senior notes 

;Psyitbies:4040 : .atiet:kied:::IliblIfil6gt 

Payables to affiliates 

Derivative financial instruments, subjec 
nonrecourse debt ... .... .. 

:N0nT•0.05tpttsr.,:klebt.4t..46::: ;, 

Af3S nonrecourse debt (at fair value) 

Total members' equity 

5,616 261,304 266,320 

8,993 

29 395 

8.394 

27331 

29,395 

4 

244,061 244,061 

185,531 

18,731 18,781 

497,289 (597) 496,692 

255,301 63,325 96,022 (158,276) 

A0054 ., 

256,372 

.J111 1.P. 9.0t. 44:464): 9.477.4W 
1.06.....■■■■■■■•*04.1••••■ 
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!3/4411/:1(1 
Servicing fee income 

Total fee income, 

Total Revenues 
perizes 

Salaries, N 'ages and benefits 

!:(11en161 161:'andadin,iniStrativ,e 

, , 	 , 	 • : 	 . 	 , 	 . 

',.;0:3:8:::01Aq1c •cloS0t. fe"4 

Occupancy 

1114111,1,11.1 .11.1.1111,0.00,1-1A:1114 
Other income / (expense  

11,1'0.110 

9,445 

111(.011 6< 

Interest expense 
.3oss ,:on,Intle11011,11i4:400P%qp.c 

Fair value changes in ABS securitizations 

Total other income /(expense 
.e.t,Incom,e.v.Ooss 

Other comprehensive income,. net of tax: 

'Reclassification adjustments for gain (loss 
included in earnings 

,r41»0111,h11,1,114.1,1.1,C111111P91.11.010,2ss ,  

(54,075) 

(18165()) 
(55,706) 

(10,136 5) 

(23,031) 

0.110011 ,  

29 ,  
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77.344) 

3,298 

NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE LLC 
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3), 2010 
(IN THOUSANDS) 

Non- 
Issuer 
	

Guarantor 
	

Guarantor 
(Parent) 
	

(Subsidiaries) 
	

(Subsidiaries) 	Eliminations 	Consolidated 
77. 

''Operating4a..CtiVitieS; 

Net income/(loss) 

Share-based compensation 

Provision for loan losses 

fi*41'ose; • t'en :(Ysthte:..afic 

(Gain)/loss on ineffectiveness on interest rate 
swaps and cap 

Loss from subsidiaries 

Change in fair value of mortgage servicing 

6,i-ti7,t:i6i.i:Wdebti:!tliWati ii 

Amortization of premiums/(discounts 

(10,365) $ 
	

5,120 $ 	(23,770) $ 
	

19,101 $ 	(9,914) 

12,856 12,856 

1,558 1,740 

8,872 

6,043 6,043 

Cost of loans sold and principal payments and 
prepayments, and other changes in mortgage 
loans originated as held for sale, net of fees 

es in assets 'iiid !al5j1ii 

Accounts receivable 

2,670,577 
	

(16,634) 
	

2,653,943 

73,124 (31,979) 41,148 

edema 	Tbittl 

(861) Other assets 

opiitTayablp:Riitqcp,rixd)i4bilitties 

Net cash provided by/(used) in operating 
activities 

tiVestilgjaOtiVities . ; ............................... 
Principal payments received and other changes 
on mortgage loans held for investment, subject 
to ABS nonrecourse debt 

di p0sflE . 	. 	 .. 
Purchase of mortgage servicing rights 

Net cash provided by/(used) in investing 
activities 

(127,067) 
	

(70) 
	

25,033 
	

451 
	

(101,653) 

48,838 

(3;936) 

(17.812) 

74:,10 / 

(21,231) 
	

(13) 
	

122,441 
	

101,197 

Transfers to/from restricted cash 
	

(38,617) 
	

4,886 
	

(33,731) 
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Issuer 
(Parent) 

Guarantor 
(Subsidiaries) 

Non- 
Guarantor 

(Subsidiaries) Eliminations Consolidated 

 

  
 

 
 

Tax related share-based settlement of units by 
members 

,Nevo.nh::proVided.by/(us -4(1).: in 

Net increasegdecrease) in cash 

70.7 (1.g 966) 

(20,422) 

(3,396) (3,396) 

eg1.01 

............. 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 	20,904 $ 21,223 

, 

319 $ 

g144Mcg.:10f .:0"*441":e .1K) 
ihtOOf it 

Decrease in notes payable, not 

141.  
Repayment of ABS nonrecourse debt 

(57,972) 

(146) 

•• •,0:-D 

(4,127) 

05,304) 

(102,869) 

'1)43013 

(62,099) 

(45:364) 

(103,466) 

6.11•4SSu 

(451) 

26. Disclosures Related to Transactions with Affiliates of Fortress Investment Group LLC 

In September 2010, Nationstar entered into a niarketing agreem ent with Springleaf Rom c Equity, Inc., formerly known as American 

General Horn e Equity, Inc., Springleaf General Financial Services of Arkansas, Inc., form any known as American General Financial 

Services of Arkansas, Inc. and MorEquity, Inc. (collectively "Springleaf"), each of which are indirectly owned by investment 

funds managed by affiliates of Fortress Investment Group LLC. Pursuant to this agreement, Nationstar markets mortgage 

originations products to customers of Springleaf, and is compensated by the originations fees of loans that Nationstar refinances. 

Additionally, in January 2011, Nationstar entered into three agreements to act as the loan subservicer for Springleaf for a whole 

loan portfolio and two securitized loan portfolios totaling $4.4 billion for whichNationstar receives a monthly per loan 

subservicing fee and other performance incentive fees subject to the agreements with Springleaf. For the year ended December 

31, 2012 and 2011, Nationstar recognized revenue of $9.8 million and $9.9 million, respectively, in additional servicing and 

other performance incentive fees related to these portfolios. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, Nationstar had an outstanding 

receivable from Springleaf of $0.7 million and $0.6 million, respectively, which was included as a component of accounts 

receivable. 

Nationstar is the loan servicer for two securitized loan portfolios managed by Newcastle, which is managed by an affiliate of 

Fortress Investment Group LLC, for which Nationstar receives a monthly net. servicing fee equal to 0.50% per annum on the 

unpaid principal balance of the portfolios, which was $1.0 billion, $1.1 billion and $1.2 billion, as of December 31, 2012, 

2011, and 2010, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, Nationstar received servicing fees and 

other performance incentive fees of $5.2 million, $5.8 million and $6.5 million, respectively. 

Additionally, since December 2011, Nationstar entered into several agreements with Newcastle, where Nationstar sold to 

Newcastle the right to receive a portion of the excess cash flow generated from certain acquired MSRs after receipt of a fixed 

basic servicing fee per loan. Nationstar will retain all ancillary income associated with servicing such MSRs and the remaining 

portion of the excess cash flow after receipt of the fixed basic servicing fee. Nationstar will continue to be the servicer of the 

loans and provide all servicing and advancing functions for the portfolio. Newcastle will not have prior or ongoing obligations 

associated with these MSR portfolios. Furthermore, should Nationstar refinance any loan in such portfolios, subject to certain 

Nationstar will be required to transfer the new loan or a replacement loan of similar economic characteristics into 

the portfolios. The new or replacement loan will be governed by the same terms set forth in the agreements described above. 

In addition, Nationstar has paid $8.8 million to Newcastle for delinquent service fees above the contractual amount. This 

amount will be ultimately netted against, future remittances as related to service fee amounts. This amount is recorded as an 

offset to outstanding excess spread financing in our financial statements. Additionally, Nationstar recorded $1.0 million of 

accounts payable to Newcastle for the legal expenses incurred in connection with the potential ResCap acquisition 

The fair value on the outstanding liability related to these agreements was $288.1 million and $44.6 million at December 31, 

2012 and 2011, respectively. 

122 	 RFJN_EX 29_ 00000134 

1962 



2012 

 

First 
Quarter 

70,512 

Second 
Quarter 

102,345 

Third 
Quarter 

14*:  
139,259 

Fourth 
Quarter 

. .. 

175,048 
yota ekvincome. 

Gain on mortgage loans held for sale 

•1't 	fick :&407 :202p:8g: 18:0 

 

Total expenses and impairments 

Income before taxes 
' 	. 

' Net income 
' s 

: 

96,577 

Eir 

53,331 

50,186 $ 36,275 $ 
	

55,067 $ 
30;00 
63,759 

Basic earnings per share 0.41 0.72 

154,828 

0.040) 

200,268 
(.3i :;430)• 

49,055 
	

79,781 
	

94,416 

27. Related Party Disclosure 

In March 2011, Nationstar acquired a 22% interest in ANC Acquisition LLC (ANC) for an initial investment of $6.6 million. 

ANC is the parent company of National Real Estate Information Services, LP (NREIS), a real estate services company. In 

March 2012, HP contributed its 13% investment in ANC to Nationstar, increasing the overall investment to 35%. As Nationstar 

is able to exercise significant influence, but not control, over the policies and procedures of the entity, and Nationstar owns less 

than 50% of the voting interests, Nationstar applies the equity method of accounting. NREIS, an ancillary real estate services 

and vendor management company, offers comprehensive settlement and property valuation services for both originations and 

default management channels. Direct or indirect product and service offerings include title insurance agency, tax searches, 

flood certification, default valuations, full appraisals and broker price opinions. Nationstar disbursed servicing-related advances 

of $16.9 million and $4.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

Nationstar recorded a net charge to earnings related to its loss on NREIS of $0,1 million for December 31, 2011, which is 

included in the loss on equity method investment line item in Nationstar's consolidated statement of operations. Through the 

third quarter of 2012, Nationstar had recognized its portion of NREIS loss on equity method investment of $1.3 million. 

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the management of NREIS made the decision to wind down its operations due to continuing 

poor financial results. Because of the decision to wind down operations and the financial condition of NREIS, Nationstar 

recorded additional losses amounting to $9.0 million. In addition to its initial investment, Nationstar, during May 2012, 

advanced NREIS $2.0 million for future services. Nationstar determined that these deposits would not be recovered and fully 

impaired this additional deposit. In order to effect an orderly wind down of the operation, Nationstar, together with the majority 

owners of ANC, agreed to fund a portion of the expected wind down costs. As such, Nationstar recorded $2.3 million of losses 

in excess of its investment at December 31, 2012. These losses are expected to be funded in early 2013. 

28. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 

The following is a summary of the quarterly consolidated results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 

and 2010 (dollars in thousands): 
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Third 
Quarter 

Second 
Quarter 

First 
Quarter 

25,836 12,429 

•11 

40,110 Total expenses and impairments 

Net incorn loss (5,815) $ 732 $ 

8:367 

45,999 

(2,326) $ 

2011 

Second 
Quarter 

59108- 

22,822 

82;720  

1,726 

Third 
Quarter 

61441: -  

30,232 

.91073: 

83,194 

AA414 
(3,100) $ 

Fourth 
Quarter 

84980:::; 

35,576 

f8:;:5W 

86,466 

1:74.9g): 

14,892 

Gaiuouniortgage loans held for sale 

. Total expenses and impairments 

.1 at ii other lncontul(e\pmwe 

Net incom e/(lo) 

68,121 
	

68,402 

On-Pings! 	ar"...4hate', 

Basic earnings (loss) per share 
	 (0.04) $ 

	
0.21 

#041:: 	AK2F: 

2010 
Fourth 
Quarter 

25,590 

75,354 

5$4 

(2,505) 

. 	: 

Gain on mortgage loans held foi sale 

•,;1.0.1011,1 .05.  

First 
Quarter 

20,506 

7,369 $ 

are 

per share 

pet 	 • 	• • 

0.01 Basic earnings (los„,• 

:1)rlu4x 404.wtg4; 

(0.03) $ (0.08) S 

During 2012, Nationstar reclassified amounts previously recorded in other income/(expense) during the first three quarters of 

2012 into total fee income. This reclassification was performed to more accurately portray the nature of the services provided 

by Nationstar related to reverse mortgage loans. This reclassification did not have an impact on the Net income/(loss) amounts 

previously reported on SEC Form 10-Q for the impacted periods. 

29. Subsequent Events 

On January 6, 2013, Nationstar entered into a mortgage servicing rights purchase and sale agreement (the Purchase Agreement) 

with a financial institution. Under the Purchase Agreement, the Company agreed to purchase the rights to service 

approximately 1.3 million residential mortgage loans with a total UPB of approximately $215 billion, and approximately $5.8 

billion of related servicing advance receivables. Approximately 47% of these loans (by UPB) are owned, insured or guaranteed 

by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae, and the remaining 53% of these loans are non-conforming loans in private label 

securitizations. 

The aggregate purchase price is approximately $7.1 billion, which is expected to be funded through a combination of cash on 

hand, the proceeds of a co-investment by Newcastle Investment Corp., and certain funds managed by Fortress, the proceeds of 

advance financing facilities, and/or other issuances of debt. On January 31, 2013, Nationstar closed on the MSRs and 

associated servicing advance receivables with respect to those loans owned, insured or guaranteed by Fannie Mae and Freddie 

Mac. On February 1, 2013, Nationstar closed on the MSRs and associated servicing advance receivables with respect to those 

loans owned, insured or guaranteed by Ginnie Mae. Subject to customary closing conditions, the Company expects to close on 

the majority of the remaining MSRs in stages during the second quarter of 2013. The Company expects to have completed the 

boarding on the acquired Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and Ginnie Mae portfolios from February to June 2013, with the remaining 

private label securitization portfolios scheduled to board onto the servicing system through September 2013. 

On January 28, 2013, Nationstar amended the 2011-1 Agency advance financing facility. The amended agreement permits the 

facility to issue additional asset-backed term notes of $300 million, raising the total capacity for this facility to $900 million. 

124 	 RFJN_EX 29_ 00000136 

1964 



The Notes cony a weighted average fixed interest rate of 1.46% and a weighted average term of 3 years. This facility is 

secured by servicing advance receivables and is nonrecourse to Nationstar. 

In January 2013, Nationstar amended the MRA of the $375 million warehouse facility to increase the borrowing capacity from 

$375.0 million to $750.0 million. 

On February 7, 2013, Nationstar completed the offering of $400 million aggregate principal amount of 6.5% senior notes due 

2021 in a private placement transaction. The notes were issued at par and pay interest semi-annually. 

In February 2013, Nationstar amended the $100 million warehouse facility (2009) and Securities repurchase facility (2011) 

extending the maturity dates to March 2013. 

On March 7, 2013,0 purported investor filed a complaint with the Supreme Court of the State of New York (the trial court), 

alleging that Nationstar sold loans for six trusts where Nationstar acts as master servicer, in violation of the underlying pooling 

and servicing agreements. The Supreme Court has temporarily enjoined Nationstar from further sales of loans in response to 

the complaint. Nationstar intends to vigorously defend itself in this action and does not expect this action to have a material 

adverse effect on its financial position or results of operations. 

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

None. 

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness 

of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended 

(Exchange Act), as of December 31, 2012. 

Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of December 31, 2012, our 

disclosure controls and procedures are effective. Disclosure controls and procedures are designed at a reasonable assurance 

level and are effective to provide reasonable assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or 

submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's 

rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief 

Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. 

Management's Report on Internal control over Financial Reporting 
This annual report does not include a report of management's assessment regarding internal control over financial reporting or 

an attestation report of the Company's registered public accounting firm due to a transition period established by rules of the 

Securities and Exchange Commission for newly public companies. 

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 

2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial 

reporting. 

Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls and Procedures 
In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, 

no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. 

Item 911. Other Information 

None. 
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PART III. 

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 

Information required by Item 10 with respect to executive officers is included within Item 1 in Part I of this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K under the caption "Executive Officers of the Registrant" 

Information required by Item 10 for matters other than executive officers is included under the captions "Board of Directors," 
"Election of Directors," "Corporate Governance" and "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" in the 
Company's definitive proxy statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (Proxy Statement), which will be filed 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days of the Company's fiscal year-end 
and is incorporated herein by reference. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation 

Information required by Item 11 is included under the captions "Committees of the Board of Directors", "Executive 
Compensation", and "Compensation Committee Report" in the Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 clays of the Company's fiscal year-end and is incorporated 
herein by reference. 

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters. 

Information required by Item 12 is included under the captions "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and 
Management" and "Equity Compensation Plan Information" in the Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days of the Company's fiscal year-end and is incorporated 
herein by reference. 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence. 

Information required by Item 13 is included under the captions "Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions" and 
"Board of Directors" in the Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to 
Regulation 14A within 120 days of the Company's fiscal year-end and is incorporated herein by reference. 

Item 14. PrincipalAccounting Fees and Services. 

Information required by Item 14 under the caption "Audit Function" in the Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days of the Company's fiscal year-end and is 
incorporated herein by reference. 

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 

Documents filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K: 

I. Financial Statements: 
Our consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2012 and 2011 and for each of the three years in the period 
ended December 31, 2012 and the notes thereto, together with the report of the independent registered public 
accounting firm on those consolidated financial statements are filed within Item 8 in Part II as part of this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K. 

2. Financial Statement Schedules: 
No financial statement schedules are presented since the required information is not present or not present in amounts 
sufficient to require submission of the schedule, or because the information required is included in the financial 
statements and accompanying notes. 
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EXHIBIT INDEX 

Incorporated by Reference 
Filed or  

Exhibit 	 Filing 	Furnished  
Number 	 Description 	 Form 	File No. 	Exhibit 	Date 	Herewith  

Master Pre-IPO Restructuring Agreement, dated as 
of Februaly 17, 2012, by and among FIF HE 

2.1 	Holdings LLC, Nationstar Mortgage Holdings 	S-1/A 	333-174246 	2.1 	2/24/2012 
Inc., Nationstar Mortgage LLC and the other 
parties thereto 

Mortgage Servicing Rights Purchase and Sale 
Agreement, dated as of January 6, 2013, between 

2.2+ 	 8-K 	001-35449 	2.1 	1/10/2013 
Nationstar Mortgage LLC and Bank of America, 
National Association 

Amended and Restated Certificate of 
3.1 	Incorporation of Nationstar Mortgage Holdings 	S-1/A 	333-174246 	3.1 	2/24/2012 

Inc. 

S-1/A 	333-174246 	3.2 	2/24/2012 

4.1 	Form of Stock Certificate 	 S-1/A 	333-174246 	4.8 	2/24/2012 

Stockholders Agreement, dated as of February 17, 
4.2 	2012, between Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. 	S-1/A 	333-174246 	4.1 	2/24/2012 

and FIF HE Holdings LLC 

Indenture, dated as of March 26, 2010, among 
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, Nationstar Capital 
Corporation, the guarantors thereto and Wells 
Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee 

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 31, 
4.4 	2010, between NSM Recovery Services Inc. and 	S-4 	333-171370 	4.2 	12/23/2010 

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee 

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 13, 
4.5 	2010, between NSM Foreclosure Services Inc. and 	S-4 	333-171370 	4.3 	12/23/2010 

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee 

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
December 19, 2011, among Nationstar Mortgage 

4.6 	LLC, Nationstar Capital Corporation, the 	 8-K 	333-171370 	4.1 	12/19/2011 
guarantors thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National 
Association, as trustee 

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
August 9, 2012, among Nationstar Mortgage 

4.7 	Holdings Inc., Nationstar Subl LLC, Nationstar 	8-K 	001-35449 	4.1 	8/9/2012 
Sub2 LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National 
Association, as trustee 

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 
30, 2012, by and among Nationstar Mortgage . 

4.8 	LLC, Nationstar Capital Corporation, the 	 8-K 	001-35449 	4.1 	9/4/2012 
guarantors thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National 
Association, as trustee 

Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
December 10, 2012, between Champion Mortgage 
I.,LC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, 
as trustee 
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3.2 	Mortgage Holdings Inc. 

4.3 S-4 
	

333-171370 
	

4.1 	12/23/2010 
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Incorporated by Reference  

Filed or  
Exhibit 
	

Filing 	Furnished  
Number 
	

Description 
	

Form 	File No, 	Exhibit 	Date 	Herewith  

Indenture, dated as of September 24, 2012, by and 

	

4.10 	among Nationstar Mortgage LLC, Nationstar 8-K 	001-35449 	4.1 	9/24/2012 
Capital Corporation, the guarantors thereto and 
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee 

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
September 28, 2012, by and among Nationstar 

	

4.11 	Mortgage LLC, Nationstar Capital Corporation, 	8-K 	001-35449 	4.2 	9/28/2012 
the guarantors thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, 
National Association, as trustee 

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
December 10, 2012, between Champion Mortgage 
LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, 
as trustee 

Indenture, dated as of April 25, 2012, by and 
among Nationstar Mortgage LLC, Nationstar 
Capital Corporation, the guarantors thereto and 
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee 

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 24, 
2012, by and among Nationstar Mortgage TIC, 

	

4.14 	Nationstar Capital Corporation, the guarantors 	8-K 	001-35449 	4.2 	7/24/2012 
thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National 
Association, as trustee 

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
August 9, 2012, among Nationstar Mortgage 

	

4.15 	Holdings Inc., Nationstar Subl LLC, Nationstar 	8-K 	001-35449 	4.2 	8/9/2012 
Sub2 LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National 
Association, as trustee 

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
December 10, 2012, between Champion Mortgage 
LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, 
as trustee 

4.12 

4.13 8-K 
	

001-35449 
	

4 1 
	

4/25/2012 

X 4.16 

4.17 

4.18+ 

4.19+ 

4.20+ 

4,21+ 

Indenture, dated as of February 7, 2013, by and 
among Nationstar Mortgage LLC, Nationstar 
Capital Corporation, the guarantors thereto and 
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee 

Indenture, dated as of June 12, 2012, between 
Nationstar Agency Advance Funding Trust 2012- 
AW and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, 
as indenture trustee 

Indenture, dated as of June 26, 2012, between 
Nations= Advance Funding Trust 2012-W and 
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as 
indenture trustee 

Indenture, dated as of June 26, 2012, between 
Nationstar Advance Funding Trust 2012-R and 
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as 
indenture trustee 

Indenture, dated as of June 26, 2012, between 
Nationstar Advance Funding Trust 2012-C and 
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as 
indenture trustee 

8-K 	001-35449 	4.1 	2/7/2013 

10-Q 	001-35449 	4.2 	8/14/2012 

	

10-Q 	001-35449 	4.3 	8/14/2012 

	

10-Q 	001-35449 	4.4 	8/14/2012 

	

10-Q 	001-35449 	4.5 	8/14/2012 
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Exhibit  
Number 	 Description  

Am endment No. 1, dated July 18, 2012, to 
Indenture, dated as of June 26, 2012, between 

422* Nationstar Advance Funding Trust 2012-C and 
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as 
indenture trustee 

Amendment No. 2, dated August 24, 2012, to 
Indenture, dated as of June 26, 2012, between 

4.23* Nationstar Advance Funding Trust 2012-C and 
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as 
indenture trustee 

Am endment No. 3, dated November 30, 2012, to 
Indenture, dated as of June 26, 2012, between 

4.24* Nationstar Advance Funding Trust 2012-C and 
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as 
indenture trustee 

Fourth Amended and Restated Indenture, dated 
January 31, 2013, among Nationstar Agency 
Advance Funding Trust, as issuer, The Bank of 
New York Mellon, as indenture trustee, calculation 
agent, paying agent and securities intermediary, 
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as servicer and as 
administrator, and Barclays Bank PLC, as 
administrative agent 

Series 2013-W1 Indenture Supplement to Fourth 
Amended and Restated Indenture, dated January 
31, 2013, among Nationstar Agency Advance 
Funding Trust, as issuer, The Bank of New York 

4.26 	Mellon, as indenture trustee, calculation agent, 
paying agent and securities intermediary, 
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as administrator and as 
sent icer, and Barclays Bank PLC, as 
administrative agent 

Series 2013-T1 Indenture Supplement to Fourth 
Amended and Restated Indenture, dated January 
31, 2013, among Nationstar Agency Advance 
Funding Trust, as issuer, The Bank of New York 

4.27 	Mellon, as indenture trustee, calculation agent, 
paying agent and securities intermediary, 
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as administrator and as 
servicer, and Barclays Bank PLC, as 
administrative agent 

Series 2013-T2 Indenture Supplement to Fourth 
Amended and Restated Indenture, dated January 
31, 2013, among Nationstar Agency Advance 
Funding Trust, as issuer, The Bank of New York 

4.28 	Mellon, as indenture trustee, calculation agent, 
paying agent and securities intermediary, 
Ncitionstar Mortgage LLC, as administrator and as 
servicer, and Barclays Bank PLC, as 
administrative agent 

incorporated by Reference 
Filed or  

Filing 	Furnished  
Form 	File No, 	Exhibit 	Date 

	Herewith  

X 

4.25 

x 

8-K 	001-35449 	10.1 	2/6/2013 

8-K 	001-35449 	10.2 	2/6/2013 

8-K 	001-35449 	103 	2/6/2013 

8-K 	001-35449 	10.4 	216/2013 
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Incorporated by Reference  
Filed or  

Exhibit 	 Filing 	Furnished  
Number 	 Description 	 Form 	File No. 	Exhibit 	Date 	Herewith  

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 
25, 2012, among Nationstar Mortgage LLC, 
Nationstar Capital Corporation, the guarantors 
party thereto, and Credit Suisse Securities (USA) 

	

10.1 	LLC, Barclays Capital Inc., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, 	8-K 	001-35449 	10.1 	4/25/2012 
Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Citigroup Global 
Markets Inc., RBS Securities Inc. and Wells Fargo 
Securities, LLC, as representatives of the several 
initial purchasers 

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of 
July 24, 2012, among Nationstar Mortgage LLC, 
Nationstar Capital Corporation, the guarantors 

	

10.2 	party thereto, and Credit Suisse Securities (USA) 	8-K 	001-35449 	10.1 	7/24/2012 
LLC, RDS Securities Inc. and Wells Fargo 
Securities, LLC, as representatives of the several 
initial purchasers 

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of 
September 24,2012, among the issuers, the 
guarantors party thereto, and Credit Suisse 
Securities (USA) LLC, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, 
Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Barclays Capital 
Inc., RBS Securities Inc. and Wells Fargo 
Securities, LLC, as representatives of the several 
initial purchasers 

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of 
September 28, 2012, among the issuers, the 
guarantors party thereto, and Credit Suisse 
Securities (USA) LLC, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, 
Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Barclays Capital 
Inc., RBS Securities Inc. and Wells Fargo 
Securities, LLC, as representatives of the several 
initial purchasers 

Registration Rights Agreement, dated February 7, 
2013, among the issuers, the guarantors party 
thereto, and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & 

	

10.5 	Smith Incorporated, Credit Suisse Securities 	8-K 	001-35449 	10.1 	2/7/2013 
(USA) LLC, Barclays Capital Inc., Wells Fargo 
Securities, LLC and RIBS Securities Inc., as 
representatives of the several initial purchasers 

Amended and Restated Receivables Pooling 
Agreement, dated January 31, 2013, between 

	

10.6 	Nationstar Agency Advance Funding LLC 	8-K 	001-35449 	10.5 	2/6/2013 
(depositor) and Nationstar Agency Advance 
Funding Trust (issuer) 

Amended and Restated Receivables Sale 
Agreement, dated January 31, 2013, between 

	

10.7 	Nationstar Mortgage LLC (receivables seller and 	8-K 	001-35449 	10.6 	2/6/2013 
servicer) and Nationstar Agency Advance Funding 
LLC (depositor) 

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 13, 
2012, among Nationstar Mortgage LLC and 
Residential Capital, LLC, Residential Funding 

	

10.8 	Company, LLC„ GlvIAC Mortgage, LLC, 	 8-K 	001-35449 	10.1 	5/16/2012 
Executive Trustee Services, LLC, ETS of 
Washington, Inc., EPRE TIC and the additional 
Sellers identified on Schedule A thereto 
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Incorporated by Reference 

Exhibit  
Number  

10.9 

Description  

Amended and Restated Asset Purchase 
Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2012, among 
Nationstar Mortgage LLC and Residential Capital, 
LLC, Residential Funding Company, LLC, 
GMAC Mortgage, LLC, Executive Trustee 
Services LLC, ETS of Washington, Inc., EPRE 
LLC, GMACM Borrower LLC and RFC 
Borrower LLC 

Filed or  
,Filing 	Furnished  

Form 	File No 	Exhibit 	Date 	Herewith  

8-K 	001-35449 	2.1 	7/5/2012 

Addendum to Mortgage Selling and Servicing 
Contract (Early Advance Funding Agreement), 

10,10* dated December 20, 2012, between Fannie Mae 
and Nationstar Mortgage LLC (restates and 
supersedes prior EAF facility) 

First Amendment, dated January 31, 2013, to the 
Addendum to Mortgage Selling and Servicing 

10.11* Contract (Early Advance Funding Agreement), 
dated December 20, 2012, between Fannie Mae 
and Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

Master Repurchase Agreement, dated March 25, 
10.12 2011, between Barclays Bank, PLC and Nationstar 

Mortgage LLC 

Amendment and Waiver, dated February 21, 2012, 
to the Master Repurchase Agreement, dated March 
25, 2011, and the Mortgage Loan Participation 
Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated March 25, 
2011, between Barclays Bank, PLC and Nationstar 
Mortgage LLC 

Am endment Number One, dated February 29, 
2012, to the Master Repurchase Agreement, dated 
March 25, 2011, between Barclays Bank, PLC and 
Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

Amendment Number Two, dated June 28, 2012, to 
the Master Repurchase Agreement; dated March 
25, 2011, between Barclays Bank, PLC and 
Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

Amendment Number Three, datedAugust 28, 
2012, to the Master Repurchase Agreement, dated 

10.16  March 25, 2011, between Barclays Bank, PLC and 
Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

Amendment Number Four, dated December 24, 
2012, to the Master Repurchase Agreement, dated 
March 25, 2011, between Barclays Bank, PLC and 
Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase and Sale 
10.18 Agreement, dated March 25, 2011, between 

Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

Amendment Number One, dated February 29, 
2012, to the Mortgage Loan Participation 

10.19 Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated March 25, 
2011, between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar 
Mortgage LLC 
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10.14 
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10.17 
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X 
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Incorporated by Reference  

 jiig 
Description 	 Form 	File No. 	Exhibit 	Date 

Amendment Number Two, dated August 28, 2012, 
10.20 to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase and 

Sale Agreem ent, dated March 25, 2011, among 
Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

Amendment Number Three, dated December 24, 
2012, to the Mortgage Loan Participation 

10.21 	Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated March 25, 
2012, between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar 
Mortgage LLC 

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 6, 
10.22 2012, among Aurora Bank FSB, Aurora Loan 	8-K 	333-171370 	10.1 	3/6/2012 

Services LLC and Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

Amended and Restated Asset Purchase 

10.23 	Agreement, dated as of June 12, 2012, among 	8-K 	001-35449 	10.1 	6/14/2012 Aurora Bank FSB, Aurora Loan Services LLC and 
Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

First Letter Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2012, 
10.24 among Aurora Bank FSB, Aurora Loan Services 	8-K 	001-35449 	10.1 	6/7/2012 

LLC and Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

Second Letter Agreement, dated as of June 1, 
10.25 2012, among Aurora Bank FSB, Aurora Loan 	8-K 	001-35449 	10.2 	6/7/2012 

Services LLC and Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

Mortgage Selling and Servicing Contract, dated 
10.26 July 31, 1997, between Fannie Mae and Centex 	S-1/A 	333-174246 10.37 1/20/2012 

Home Equity Corp. 

Future Spread Agreement for FNMA Mortgage 
10.27 Loans, dated March 6, 2012, between Nationstar 	8-K 	333-171370 	10.3 	3/6/2012 

Mortgage LLC and NIC MSR II LLC 

Current Excess Servicing Spread Acquisition 
Agreement for FNMA Mortgage Loans, dated as 10.28 	 8-K 	333-171370 	10.2 	3/6/2012 of March 6, 2012, between Nationstar Mortgage 
LLC and NIC MSR II LLC 

Future Spread Agreement for FHLMC Mortgage 
10.29 Loans, dated March 6,2012, between Nationstar 	8-K 	333-171370 	10.5 	3/6/2012 

Mortgage LLC and MC MSR II LLC 

Current Excess Servicing Spread Acquisition 
Agreement for FHLMC Mortgage Loans, dated as 10.30 	 8-K 	333-171370 	10.4 	3/6/2012 of March 6, 2012, between Nationstar Mortgage 
LLC and NIC MSR II LLC 

Future Spread Agreement for Non-Agency 
10.31 	Mortgage Loans, dated March 6,2012, between 	8-K 	333-171370 	10.7 	3/6/2012 

Nationstar Mortgage LLC and MC MSR II LLC 

Current Excess Servicing Spread Acquisition 
10.32 Agreement for Non-Agency Mortgage Loans, 8-K 	333-171370 	10.6 	3/6/2012 dated as of March 6, 2012, between Nationstar 

Mortgage LLC and MC MSR 11 LLC 

Future Spread Agreement for FHLMC Mortgage 
10.33 	Loans, dated May 13, 2012, between Nationstar 	8-K 	001-35449 	10.5 	5/16/2012 

Mortgage LLC and MC MSR IV LLC 

Exhibit  
Number 

Filed or  
Furnished  
Herewith 
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Incorporated by Reference  
Filed or  

Exhibit 
	

Filina 
	Furnished  

Number 
	 Description 

	
Form 	File No. Exhibit 	Date 

	Herewith  
Current Excess Servicing Spread Acquisition 
Agreement for FHLMC Mortgage Loans, dated as 
of May 13, 2012, between Nationstar Mortgage 
LLC and NIC MSR IV LLC 

Amended and Restated Current Excess Servicing 
Spread Acquisition Agreement for FHLMC 

10.35 Mortgage Loans, dated as of June 28, 2012, 
between Nationstar Mortgage LLC and NIC MSR 
IV LLC 

10.34 8-K 	001-35449 	10.4 	5/16/2012 

8-K 	001-35449 	10.2 	7/5/2012 

Future Spread Agreement for FNMA Mortgage 
10.36 Loans, dated May 13, 2012, between Nationstar 	8-K 	001-35449 	10.3 	5/16/2012 

Mortgage LLC and NIC MSR V LLC 

Current Excess Servicing Spread Acquisition 
Agreement for FNMA Mortgage Loans, dated as 10.37 	 8-K 	001-35449 	10.2 	5/16/2012 
of May 13, 2012, between Nationstar Mortgage 
LLC and NIC MSR V LLC 

Amended and Restated Current Excess Servicing 
Spread Acquisition Agreement for FNMA 

10.38 Mortgage Loans, dated as of June 28, 2012, 
between Nationstar Mortgage LLC and MC MSR 
V LLC 

8-K 	001-35449 	10.1 	7/5/2012 

Future Spread Agreement for Non-Agency 
10.39 Mortgage Loans, dated May 13, 2012, between 	8-K 	001-35449 	10.7 	5/16/2012 

Nationstar Mortgage LLC and NIC MSR VI LLC 

Current Excess Servicing Spread Acquisition 
10.40 Agreement for Non-Agency Mortgage Loans, 

dated as of May 13, 2012, between Nationstar 
Mortgage LLC and MC MSR VI LLC 

Amended and Restated Current Excess Servicing 
Spread Acquisition Agreement for Non-Agency 

10.41 

	

	Mortgage Loans, dated as of June 28, 2012, 
between Nationstar Mortgage LLC and NIC MSR 
VI LLC 

Future Spread Agreement for GNMA Mortgage 
10.42 Loans, dated May 13, 2012, between Nationstar 

Mortgage LLC and MC MSR VII LLC 

Current Excess Servicing Spread Acquisition 
Agreement for GNMA Mortgage Loans, dated as 10.43 of May 13, 2012, between Nationstar Mortgage 
LLC and NIC MSR VII LLC 

8-K 	001-35449 	10.6 	5/16/2012 

8-K 	001-35449 	10.3 	7/5/2012 

8-K 	001-35449 	10.9 	5/16/2012 

8-K 	001-35449 	10.8 	5/16/2012 

Amended and Restated Current Excess Servicing 
Spread Acquisition Agreement for GNMA 

10.44 Mortgage Loans, dated as of June 28, 2012, 
between Nationstar Mortgage LLC and MC MSR 
VII LLC 

Future Spread Agreement for Non-Agency 
Mortgage Loans, dated as of January 6, 2013, 
between Nationstar Mortgage LLC and MSR XIII 
LLC 

Current Excess Servicing Spread Acquisition 
Agreement for Non-Agency Mortgage Loans, 
dated as of January 6, 2013, between Nationstar 
Mortgage LLC and MSR XIII LLC 
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10.45 

10.46 

8-K 	001-35449 	10.4 	7/5/2012 
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Incorporated by Reference 
Filed or  

Exhibit 
	

Filing 	Furnished  
Number 	 Description 

	
Form 	File No. 	Exhibit 	Date 	Herewith  

Future Spread Agreement for FHLMC Mortgage 
10.47 Loans, dated as of January 6, 2013, between 

Nationstar Mortgage LLC and MSR IX LLC 

Current Excess Servicing Spread Acquisition 
Agreement for FFILMC Mortgage Loans, dated as 
of January 6, 2013, between Nationstar Mortgage 
LLC and MSR IX LLC 

Future Spread Agreement for FNMA Mortgage 
10.49 Loans, dated as of January 6, 2013, between 

Nationstar Mortgage LLC and MSR X LLC 

Current Excess Servicing Spread Acquisition 
Agreement for FNMA Mortgage Loans, dated as 10.50  of January 6, 2013, between Nationstar Mortgage 
LLC and MSR X LLC 

Future Spread Agreement for GNMA Mortgage 
10,51 Loans, dated as of January 6,2013, between 

Nation,star Mortgage LLC and MSR XI LLC 

Current Excess Servicing Spread Acquisition 
Agreement for GNMA Mortgage Loans, dated as 10.52  of January 6, 2013, between Nationstar Mortgage 
LLC and MSR XI LLC 

Future Spread Agreement for Non-Agency 
Mortgage Loans, dated as of January 6, 2013, 

10.53 between Nationstar Mortgage LLC and MSR XII 
LLC 

Current Excess Servicing Spread Acquisition 
10.54 Agreement for Non-Agency Mortgage Loans, 

dated as of January 6, 2013, between Nationstar 
Mortgage LLC and MSR XII LLC 

Receivables Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 
12, 2012, among Nationstar Agency Advance 

10.55 Funding Trust 2012-AW, Nationstar Agency 
Advance Funding 2012-AW, LLC and Nationstar 
Mortgage LLC 

Receivables Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 
26, 2012, among Nationstar Advance Funding 

10.56 Trust 2012-W, Nationstar Advance Funding 2012- 
W, LLC and Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

Receivables Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 
10,57 26, 2012, among Nationstar Advance Funding 

Trust 2012-R, Nationstar Advance Funding 2012- 
R, LLC and Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

Receivables Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 
26, 2012, among Nationstar Advance Funding 

10.58 Trust 2012-C, Nationstar Advance Funding 2012- 
C, LLC and Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

Amended and Restated Master Repurchase 
Agreement, dated October 21, 2010, between 10.59  Bank of America, N.A. and Nationstar Mortgage 
LLC 

10.48 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

10-Q 	001-35449 	10.19 8/14/2012 

10-Q 	001-35449 	10.22 8/14/2012 

10-Q 	001-35449 	10.21 	8/14/2012 

10-Q 	001-35449 	10.20 8/14/2012 

S-1/A 	333-174246 	10.31 	1/20/2012 
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Incorporated by Reference  

Filed or  
Exhibit 	 Filing 	Furnished  
Number 	 Description 	 Form 	File No, 	Exhibit 	Date 	Herewith  

Amendment and Waiver to the Amended and 
Restated Master Repurchase Agreement and the 

10.60 	Transition Subservicing Agreern ent, dated as of 	S-1/A 	333-174246 	10.50 2/242012 
February 21, 2012, between Nationstar Mortgage 
LLC and Bank of America, N.A. 

Amendment Number One, dated November 24, 
2010, to the Amended and Restated Master 

10.61 	Repurchase Agreement, dated October 21, 2010, 	S-1/A 	333-174246 	10.33 1/20/2012 
between Bank of America, N.A. and Nationstar 
Mortgage LLC 

Amendment Number Two, dated October 20, 
2011, to the Amended and Restated Master 

10.62 Repurchase Agreement, dated October 21, 2010, 	S-1/A 	333-174246 10.34 1/20/2012 
between Bank of America, N.A. and Nationstar 
Mortgage LLC 

Amendment Number Three to the Amended and 
Restated Master Repurchase Agreement, dated 

10.63 	January 17, 2012, between Bank of America, 	S-1/A 	333-174246 10.35 	1/20/2012 
NA., as buyer, and Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as 
seller 

Amendment Number Four to the Am ended and 
10.64 Restated Master Repurchase Agreement, dated 8-K 	001-35449 	10.1 	9/4/2012 June 1, 2012, between Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

and Bank of America, N.A. 

Request for Temporary Increase, dated June 26, 
10.65 2012, between Bank of America, N.A. and 	8-K 	001-35449 	10.2 	9/4/2012 

Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

Am endment Number Five, dated January 30, 
2013, to the Amended and Restated Master 

10.66 Repurchase Agreement, dated October 21, 2010, 
between Bank of America, N.A. and Nationstar 
Mortgage LLC 

Transaction Terms Letter for Amended and 
10.67* Restated Master Repurchase Agreement, dated 

January 30, 2013, between Bank of America, N.A. 
and Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

Am enciment to the Fifth Amended and Restated 
10.68 Master Repurchase Agreement, dated as of 	S-1/A 	333-174246 10.49 2/24/2012 February 21, 2012, between Nationstar Mortgage 

LLC and The Royal Bank of Scotland plc 

Amendment Number Four to Fifth Amended and 
Restated Master Repurchase Agreement, dated as 10.69 	 5-11A 	333-174246 10.58 2/24/2012 of February 25, 2012, between The Royal Bank of 
Scotland plc and Nationstar Mortgage LLC 

Employment Agreement, dated as of January 29, 
10.70** 2008, between Nationstar Mortgage LLC and 	S-4 	333-171370 	10.5 12/23/2010 

Robert L. Appel 

Amendment, dated as of September 17, 2010, to 
10.71** Employment Agreement, dated January 29, 2008, 	S-4 	333-171370 	10.6 12/23/2010 between Nationstar Mortgage LLC and Robert L. 

Appel 

Employment Agreement between David Hisey and 10.72** 	 8-K 	001-35449 	10.1 	2/21/2013 Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. 
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Incorporated by Reference 

Filed or  
Exhibit 	 Filing, 	Furnished  

Number 	 Description 	 Form 	File No. 	Exhibit 	Date 	Herewith  
Employment Agreement between Harold Lewis 10.73 " and Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. 

Employment Agreement between Rani esh 
10.74" Lakshminarayanan and Nationstar Mortgage 

Holdings Inc. 

Nationstar Ivlortgage Holdings Inc. 10.75** 	 3-1/A 	333-174246 10.57 2/24/2012 2012 Incentive Compensation Plan 

Form of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement for 
10.76** Employees (IPO) under the 2012 Incentive 	8-K 	001-35449 	10.1 	11/16/2012 

Compensation Plan 

Form of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement for 
10.77** Employees under the 2012 Incentive 	 8-K 	001-35449 	10.2 11/16/2012 

Compensation Plan 

Form of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement for 
10.78** Non-Employee Directors GPO) under the 2012 	8-K 	001-35449 	10.3 11/16/2012 

Incentive Compensation Plan 

Form of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement for 
10.79** Non-Employee Directors under the 2012 Incentive 	8-K 	001-35449 	10.4 11/16/2012 

Compensation Plan 

10.80** Form of Cash Award Agreement for Employees 
under the 2012 Incentive Compensation Plan 

1 0 81 	Nationstar Mortgage LLC Annual Incentive " Compensation Plan 

10.82** Nationstar Mortgage LLC Management Incentive 
Plan (MIP) 

10.834. *  Nationstar Mortgage LLC Long-Terrn Incentive 
Plan 	 S-4 	333-171370 	10.16 12/23/2010 

Amendment Number Two to Nationstar Mortgage 10.84** LLC Long-Term Incentive Plan 

Form of Indemnification Agreement with directors 

	

10.85 	and officers 

	

21.1 	Subsidiaries of the Registrant 

	

23.1 	Consent of Ernst & Young LLP 

Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant 

	

31.1 	to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Section 302 
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant 
to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the 

	

31.2 	Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Section 302 
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant 

	

32.1 	to 18 LI S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to 
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant 

	

32.2 	to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to 
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
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Incorporated by Reference 

Filed or  
Exhibit 	 Filing 	Furnished  
Number 	 Description 	 Form 	File No. 	Exhibit 	Date 	Herewith  
101.INS XBRL Instance Document 	 X 

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 	 X 

101 CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase 
Document 

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linlcbase 
Document 

X 

X 

1OLLAI3 XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase 
Document X 

101 PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation 
Linkbase Document x 

* Certain portions of this exhibit have been omitted and have been filed separately with the SEC pursuant to a request 
for confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2 as promulgated with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

J.: Certain portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to confidential treatment granted by the SEC under Rule 
24b-2 as promulgated with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

** Managem ent contract, compensatory plan or arrangement. 

+ Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, the registrant hereby undertakes to furnish supplementally a copy of 
any referenced schedule to the SEC upon request. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this 
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. 

By:  isi Jay Bray  
Jay Bray 
Chief Executive Officer 

March 15, 2013 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons 
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

March 15, 2013 Jay Bray 

Jay Bray, Chief Executive Officer and 
Director (Principal Executive Officer) 

Is! David C. Hisey 

David C. Hisey, Executive Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial 
and Accounting Officer) 

/s/ Wesley R. Edens 

Wesley R. Edens, Chairman of the Board of 
Directors 

is/ Robert Gidel 

Robert Gidel, Director 

is/ Roy Guthrie 

Roy Guthrie, Director 

March 15, 2013 

March 15, 2013 

March 15, 2013 

March 15, 2013 

/s/ Brett Hawkins 	 March 15, 2013 
Brett Hawkins, Director 

Is! Michael D. Malone March 15, 2013 

 

Michael D. Malone, Director 
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RECEIVED 	21113 

Kristin A. Schuler-Hintz, Esq., SBN 7171 
McCartay & Holthus, LLP 
9510 W. Sahara Ave., Suite 110 
Las Vegas, NV 89117 
Phone 855-809-3977 
Fax (866) 339-5691 
Email NVJud@McCartliyHolthus.corn 

: Electronically Filed 

04/29/2013 04:35:47 PM 

CLERK OF THE COURT 

TN THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT FOR THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK 
7 

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 	) Case No. A-12-661I79-C 
F/K/A THE BANK OF NEW YORK AS 	) 
TRUSTEE FOR THE HOLDERS OF THE ) Dept. No. XXXI 
.CERTIFICATES,-FIRST HORIZON 	) 
MORTGAGE PASS- 	 ) 
THROUGH CERTIFICATES SERIES 	) MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT 
PRAMS 2005-AA5, BY FIRST HORIZON ) 
HOME LOANS, A DIVISION OF FIRST ) 
TENNESSEE BANK NATIONAL MASTER ) 
SERVICER, IN ITS CAPACITY AS AGENT ) 
FOR THE TRUSTEE UNDER THE ) 
POOLING AND SERVICING GREEMENT, ) 

.) 
Plaintiff; 	 ) 

V. 	 ) 
) 

CATHERINE RODRIGUEZ,; DOES I—X; and ) 
ROES I -10 inclusive, ) 

) 
Defendants. 	) 

) 
	 ) 

COMES NOW Plaintiff, THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON F/K/A THE BANK OF 

NEW YORK AS TRUSTEE FOR THE HOLDERS OF THE CERTIFICATES, FIRST 

HORIZON MORTGAGE PASS-THROUGH CERTIFICATES SERIES FHAMS 2005-AA5, BY 

FIRST HORIZON HOME LOANS, A DIVISION OF FIRST TENNESSEE BANK NATIONAL 

MASTER SERVICER, IN ITS CAPACITY AS AGENT FOR THE TRUSTEE UNDER THE 

POOLING AND SERVICING GREEME.  NT, by and through its attorneys, McCarthy & Holthas, 

LLP, and moves the Court for summary judgment in favor of Plaintiff. This Motion is brought 

pursuant to NRCP 56(b) based upon the assertion that there is no genuine issue of material fact. 
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1 	This Motion is based upon this Notice, the attached Memorandum of Points and 

2 Authorities, and upon all pleadings and documents herein, as well as any argument that may be 

3 presented at the hearing of this, or any other motions/matters; the Court is requested to take 

4 judicial notice as appropriate. 

5 Dated: April 29, 2013 

6 
Christopher M:Hunter (NSB# 8127) 

7 
NOTICE OF BEARING ON MOTION  

8 

9 
	PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned will bring the foregoing Motion for 

10 Summary Judgment on for Hearing' in Department )(XXI on the 	4 	day of 

11 June , 2013 at the hour of  9 am , or as soon thereafter as may be heard. 

     

Dated: April 29, 2013 
Christopher M. Hunter (NSB# 8127) 

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

1. FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

Accompanying the filing of this Motion is an Affidavit signed by Lacy Reasons, Assistant 

Secretary of Nationstar Mortgage LLC, servicer for the Plaintiff; ("Affidavit"). As set forth in the 

Complaint and in the Plaintiff's Affidavit, Plaintiff asserts that the following facts are not in 

dispute: 

1. On or about April 21, 2005 Defendant, Catherine Rodriguez, executed a Note secured by a 

Deed of Trust on the real property 'commonly known as 6845 Sweet Pecan Street, Las Vegas, NV 

89149 ("Subject Property") for a loan currently in favor of Plaintiff. The Deed of Trust was 

recorded on April 27, 2005 in the official records of Clark County as document number 

20050427-0003843. A true and correct copy of the Note and Deed of Trust as attached as 

exhibits to the Plaintiff's Affidavit. 

2. Plaintiff is now, and at all times relevant to this action was the beneficial interest holder 

under the Deed of Trust. Plaintiff is entitled to enforce the Note and Deed of Trust. 
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1 3. 	Plaintiff has defaulted under the terms of the Note and Deed of Trust. The default began 

2 with the failure to make the monthly payments of $1,436.28 commencing on December 1, 2009 

3 and has continued to the present. 

	

4 4. 	The Deed of Trust provides, that, if the Trustor defaults in paying any indebtedness 

5 secured by the Deed of Trust, or in the performance of term of the subject agteement or Deed of 

6 Trust, the entire principal and interest with all advances and fees and costs secured by the Deed of 

7 Trust, will upon notice to the Borrower, become immediately due and payable. 

	

8 5. 	Plaintiff sent an acceleration letter on March 20, 2012 declaring all sums immediately due 

9 and payable and accelerated the loan. 

	

10 6. 	Plaintiff Bled this action on May 3, 2012. Defendant has not raised any material facts 

11 which would preclude entry of summary judgment in favor of Plaintiff. 

	

r ,g 12 7. 	All exhibits referenced herein are attached to this Motion or the Affidavit. Plaintiff 

E-4z14 13 respectfully requests judicial notice of the deed of trust, as well as the other exhibits. NRS 0 vt. 
cA' ,,z4R 0e421v 14 47.130; NRS 47.150; Joy v. Bennight, 91 Nev. 763, 766, 542 P.2d 1400, 1403 (1975). All 

043-5E 15 recorded exhibits beret, should be judicially noticed because they are a public record in the Clark 

T.) 	t 16 County Recorder's office. 
" 

17 IL PLEADING STANDARD 

18 	Summary Judgment is appropriate and is authorized by NRCP 56 when no genuine issue 

19 remaing for tria1. 1  Summary Judgment is available to resolve issue of law where the facts are not 

20 in dispute.2  

21 	Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure 56(a) allows a claimant party to move the Court for 

22 Summary Judgment at any tirne. 3  Summary Judgment is appropriate when the moving Party is 

23 entitled to judgment as a matter of law, and there are no genuine issues remaining for trial. 

24 Shepard v. Harrison, 100 Nev. 178 (1984). The purpose of Summary Judgment is to avoid 

25 unnecessary trials when they would serve no useful purpose, because there is no real dispute 

26 

27 

28 

t  Shepard v. Harrison 100 Nov. 178, 678 P.2d 670 (1984); Pacific Pool Constr. Co. v. McClain 's Concrete,  Too,  101 
Nev. 557, 706 P.2d. 849 (1985). 
"Molina v. Asher 96 Nev. 814,618 Pid 878 (1980), 

3  CWTriMingS v. City of.Ltis Vegas Mun. Corp. 88 Nev. 479,499 P.2d. 650 (1972). 

NV-11-478461-.TUD 
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I about the facts of the case. Short v. Hotel Riviera, Inc., 79 Nev. 94 (1963). The Summary 

2 Judgment procedure is not to decide any issue of fact which may be presented, but to discover if 

3 any real issue of fact exists. Dougherty v. Wabash Life Ins, Co., 87 Nev. 32 (1971). The function 

4 of the Summary Judgment proceeding is not to test the legal sufficiency of the complaint to state a 

5 claim. Force v. Female, 74 Nev. 64, (1958). Rather, it is to pierce the pleadings and to test 

6 whether, under the tmcontroverted facts, one party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. 

7 Nev.R.Civ.P. 56(c). The moving party bears the initial burden of establishing the nonexistence of 

8 any genuine issue of material fact. Pacific Pools Constr. Co. v. McClain 's Concrete, Inc, 101 

9 Nev. 557 (1985). 

10 	Once the moving party has met its burden, an adverse party may not rest upon the mere 

g 11 allegations or denials of the adverse party's pleadings, but the adverse party's response, by 
A  

z/f0 r̂ 12 affidavits or as otherwise provided in this rule, must set forth specific facts demonstrating the 

13 existence of a genuine issue for trial. Nev.R.Civ.P.56(e). When this rule speaks of a "genuine" 

ggil 14 issue of material fact, it does so with the adversary system in mind. The word "genuine" has moral 
is  

overtones; it does not mean a fabricated issue. Aldabe v. Adams, 81 Nev. 280, 402 P.2d 34 

It-41 1 M ei 16 (1965). In addition, the adverse party must co .= forward with documentation admissible in 

17 evidence in the form of specific facts to show the existence Of a genuine issue of material fact; 

18 otherwise the court is required to enter judgment according to the law. Nev.R.Civ.P.56(e); 

19 Posadas V. City of Reno, 109 Nev. 448, 452 (1991). Conclusory statements along with general 

20 allegaiions do not create an issue of material fact, Michaels v. Sudeek 107 Nev.332 (1991). Not 

.21 only must the party opposing the motion set forth specific evidence, that evidence must be 

29 admissible as well. Posadas v. City ofReno, 109 Nev. 448, 452 (1991). The opposing party is not 

23 entitled to build a case on the gossamer threads of whimsy, speculation and conjecture. Collins v. 

24 Union Fed. Say. &Loan Ass'n, 99 Nev. 284, 662 P.2d 610 (1983). 

25 M. LEGAL ARGUMENT 

26 	Plaintiff is the holder of the first mortgage on the property commonly known. as 6845 

27 Sweet Pecan Street, Las Vegas, NV 89149, As alleged in the Complaint, and admitted in the 

28 answer filed by Defendant, Defendant signed a Note in the principal amount of 5269,000.00, 

NV-11-478461-1HD 
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1 which was secured by a Deed of Trust recorded on April 27, 2005. The Note and Deed of Trust 

2 were subsequently assigned to Plaintiff, the party entitled to enforce the Note and Deed of Trust. 

	

3 	Defendant paid the installments of principal and interest which became due under the Note 

4 and Deed of Trust through December 1, 2009. Defendant has not made payments that have come 

5 due on or after December 1,2009:  

The attached payment history is provided to support the assertion that Defendant is in 

7 default under the terms of the Note and Deed of Trust. The payment history shows that no 

8 payments have been made on the property since December 1, 2009. According to the payment 

9 history, Defendant is currently due for all payments commencing December 1, 2009 to the 

10 present. As such, Plaintiff declared all sums under the Note and Deed of Trust immediately due 

and payable and accelerated all sums due in December 1, 2009. 

Under the terms of the Note, admittedly signed by Defendant, if the default is not cured on 

or before' the date specified in the note of acceleration, Lender at its option, may invoke the power. 

of sale, including the right to accelerate full payment of the Note, and any other remedies 

permitted by Applicable Law. Plaintiff therefore seeks a judicial declaration that it is entitled to 

foreclose on its interest in the property. 

The material issue of fact in a foreclosure claim is whether the trustor is in default at the 

time of foreclosure. There cannot be a wrongful foreclosure when the borrower is in default and 

19 the foreclosing party is entitled to enforce the Note and Deed of Trust as is Plaintiff herein. An 

20 action for the tort of wrongful foreclosure will only lie if the trustor or mortgagor can establish 

21 that at the time the power of sale was exercised or the foreclosure occurred, no breach of 

22 condition or failure of performance existed on the mortgagor's or trustor's part which would have 

23 authorized the foreclosure or exercise of the power of sale. Collins v. Union Federal Savings and 

24 Loan Assn, 662 P.2d 610, 99 Nev. 284 (Nev. 1983). As Defendant is in default at the current 

25 time, Plaintiff is entitled to a judgment allowing it to exercise the power of sale under the terms of 

26 the Deed of Trust. 

	

27 	 CONCLUSION  

	

28 	There are no genuine issues of fact in dispute. As such Plaintiff respectfully requests: 

NV-11-478461-.TUD 
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1 
	

1. Plaintiff shall receive an Order and Judgment against Defendant Catherine Rodriguez, 

	

2 
	

for the minimum sum of $269,000.00, plus all post-filing costs and attorney's fees, and 

	

3 
	

interest from December 1, 2009, until paid in full, plus post-judgment interest on costs 

	

4 	and attorney's fees from the date each was due until paid in fun, for its costs incurred 

	

5 
	

herein, including post-judgment costs, for its attorney's fees, including post-judgment 

	

6 	attorney's fees, pursuant to the terms of the Note and Deed of Trust. 

	

7 
	

2. Plaintiff shall receive an Order and Judgment that the Deed of Trust be foreclosed and 

	

8 
	

directing a sale of the encumbered property and application of the proceeds of sale as 

provided in NRS 40.462 in satisfaction of the judgment herein; 

	

10 
	

3. For immediate possession of the property following the sale; 

	

11 
	

4. That the sums prayed for and alleged to be 'secured by the Property are secured and 

	

12 
	

thut the Deed of Trust is a valid lien on the Property described in the Complaint and on 

	

13 	the whole thereof, and on the rents, issues, and profits of the Property, and all 

	

14 
	

buildings and improvement thereon and fixtures attached thereto as used in connection 

	

15 	with the Property; 

	

16 
	

5. That the Deed of Trust be declared superior to any right, title, interest, lien, equity or 

	

17 	estate of the Defendants; 

	

18 
	

6. That the Defendants, and all persons claiming by, through or under them, or any of 

	

19 
	

them, be foreclosed of and forever barred from any and all right, title, claim, interest, 

	

20 	or lien in or to the Property or with respect thereto except such rights of redemption as 

	

21 
	

they may have by law; 

	

22 
	

7. That Plaintiff is granted any further relief in satisfaction of the judgment as may be 

	

23 	permitted under Nevada law; 

	

24 
	

8. That Plaintiff is entitled at its discretion to the appointment of a receiver to protect the 

	

?5 	Property from neglect and waste during the pendency of this action and to collect any 

	

26 	rents to which any Defendants would be entitled; 

27 

28 
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9„ That if the proceeds of the sale do not satisfy Plaintiffs' judgment in full, the Plaintiff 

2 	may amend its complaint to include a deficiency judgment against Defendant, 

3 	Catherine Rodriguez for the remaining sums due and; 

4 	10. For such other and further relief as the court deems just and appropriate in the 

5 	circumstances. 

6 Dated: April 29, 2013 	 McCarthy & Holthus, LLP 

7 
By: 

Christopher M. Huittier(NSB# 8127) 

CERTIFICATE'OF SERVICE 

On April 30, 2013 I served the foregoing documents described as MOTION FOR 

SUMMARY JUDGMENT, on the following individuals by depositing true copies thereof in the 

United States mail at Las Vegas, Nevada, enclosed in a sealed envelope, with postage paid, 

addressed as follows: 
Via US Mail 

Tara Newberry Esq. 
7854 W. Sahara Ave 
Las Vegas, NV 89117 
Attorney for defendant Catherine Rodriguez' 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America 
that the foregoing is true and correct 

/s/Christina Reeve.s. 

An Employee of McCarthy & 
Holthus, LLP 

NV-41-478461-.IUD 

RFJN_EX 9_000007 

1987 



1 	 AFFIDAVIT OF CATHERINE RODRIGUEZ 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

STATE OF NEVADA 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF CLARK 

CATHERINE RODRIGUEZ, being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 

1. I have personal knowledge of and am competent to testify as to the facts stated 

herein. 

2. I obtained a mortgage from First Horizon Home Loan Corporation on April 22, 

2005 to purchase my home at 6845 Sweet Pecan Street, Las Vegas, Nevada 89149. 

3. I filed a Chapter 7 bankruptcy in the District of Nevada (Las Vegas) on May 20, 

2008. 

4. I listed First Horizon Home Loan Corporation as a Creditor Holding Secured Claim 
13 
14 and noticed First Horizon of the bankruptcy. 

15 
	5. 	I was discharged from the bankruptcy on December 1, 2008. 

16 	6. 	Due to the economy, my income was significantly reduced and I was struggling to 

17 make ends meet. I contacted First Horizon Home Loans in 2009 on several occasions to see if I 

18 qualified for a loan modification, I sent in worksheets, bank statements, paystubs and tax returns 

19 
on several occasions to try and get a loan modification, but the bank refused to work with me and 

20 
never responded to my requests. 

21 

22 
	7. 	I received a Notice of Breach and Default and of Election to Cause Sale of Real 

23 Property sometime after March 18, 2010. The Notice listed Mortgage Electronic Registration 

24 Systems, Inc (hereinafter, "MERS") as Nominee for First Horizon Home Loan Corporation as 

25 owner of the loan. 

26 	
8. 	I elected to participate in the Nevada Foreclosure Mediation Program on April 13, 

27 
2010. 

28 
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1 	9. 	I reviewed an Assignment of the Deed of Trust pertaining to my property that was 

2 recorded with the Clark County Recorder's Office on June 16, 2010, by MERS and was provided 

3 
to me during the mediation process. The Assignment was dated and notarized May 24, 2010. The 

4 
document assigned 141 beneficial interest under that certain Deed of Trust" to The Bank of New 

5 
York Mellon from MERS. 

6 

7 
	10. 	The mediation took place on July 17, 2010, and at the time the servicer of my loan 

8 was Metlife. The mediator determined that Metlife did not provide the required documents 

9 according to the rules, and issued a mediator's statement reflecting the deficiencies. 

10 	11. 	On August 3, 2010, I was sent a letter from First Horizon Home Loans indicating 

11 
that they could offer a trial modification, but offered a payment that was higher than what I had 

12 
previously paid, and confuse me because at mediation Met Life Home Loans claimed to own the 

13 

14 
loan. The document only gave me until August 15, 2010 to accept the trial modification. 

15 
	12. 	On August 11, 2010, before the deadline to accept the trial modification had 

16 expired, Metlife Home Loans filed a Petition for Judicial Review Case No. A-10-622878-J 

17 requesting a certificate of completion to foreclose on my property. 

18 	13. 	Judge Moseley denied Metlife's request and found in my favor at a hearing on 
19 

September 16, 2010. I was present at the hearing and heard the judge say that Metlife had acted in 
20 

bad faith and ordered that the Letter of Certification would not issue. 
21 

22 
	14. 	Sometime after March 21, 2011 another Breach and Election to sell was posted on 

23 my property and I again elected to participate in the Foreclosure Mediation Program. 

24 
	

15. 	Another Nevada Foreclosure Mediation was held on October 6,2011. 

25 	16. 	At mediation, an attorney representing Nationstar appeared and said the loan had 

26 
been sold from Met Life to Nationstar. The attorney gave me a copy of the Note at this mediation. 

27 
Exhibit XX is the Note that was provided at mediation, and the endorsement states, "Pay to the 

28 
Order of Nationstar Mortgage LLC. 

1989 



20 

21 

24 

SUBS Ut,IT'D and 'WORN, to before me 
this 716/Q Cday of Mai). 20413 

26 

2. 7 
NOTA 
fot said 9ounty and State 

25 

28 

NOTARY P1)01.4 
STATE OF NEVADA 

County of Clark 

ri 	 Got 9f1-2289,1 	ERI ROBINSON 
Lix±ppoinlinartt prpkas April 19, 2014 

1 	I 7. 	1 have no idea who owned my loan at the time I filed for Bankruptcy. but had been 

making payments to First Horizon. and I have never been provided with an explanation of who 

owns or who has owned my loan since that time. 

18, 	I have not been able to conduct discovery in this matter. and investigate through my 

attorneys who owned my note at the. time of the bankruptcy ease. and whether it was sold or 

transferred thereafter. 

19. In order to properly respond to Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment. I believe 

I should be afforded the opportunity to take depositions, have answers to interrogatories and 

responses to requests for production of documents to fully develop a defense in this action. 

20. I do not believe I owe any money to Bank of New York Mellon, nor do I believe 

they have standing to foreclose, but I need to conduct discovery to obtain documents in their 

possession. First Horizons possession. Met Life's possession and Natimistar's possession in Order 

to have evidence to present to the court. 

Based on recent case law. I believe the note was discharged in bankruptcy and the 

deed of trust therefore satisfied. it is my understanding that there is a case pending in bankruptcy 

court certifying this issue to the Supreme Court of the State of Nevada, and the outcome of this 

case could have an impact on this matter. 

8 

9 
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Electronically Filed 
05/17/2013 09:45:00 AM 

OMSJ 
Venicia Considine, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No: 11544 
LEGAL AID CENTER OF 
SOUTHERN NEVADA, INC. 
800 S. Eighth Street 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 
Telephone: (702) 386-1070 x 159 
Facsimile: (702) 388-1642 
vconsidine(Eidacsmorg  

Tara D. Newberry 
Nevada Bar No.: 10696 
CONNAGHAN NEWBERRY LAW FIRM 
7854 West Sahara Avenue 
Las Vegas, NV 89117 
Telephone: (702) 608-4232 
Facsimile: (702) 946-1380 
th ewberrv(dcn1aw1vconi 
Attorneys for Defendant Catherine Rodriguez 

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MEI.,LON 
F/KIA THE BANK OF NEW YORK AS 
TRUSTEE FOR THE HOLDERS OF THE 
CERTIFICATES, FIRST HORIZON 
MORTGAGE PASS-THROUGH 
CERTIFICATES SERIES FHAMS 2005-AA5, 
BY FIRST HORIZON HOME LOANS, A 
DIVISION OF FIRST TENNESSEE BANK 
NATIONAL MASTER SERVICER, IN ITS 
CAPACITY AS AGENT FOR THE 
TRUSTEE UNDER THE POOLING AND 
SERVICING AGREEMENT, 

Plaintiff, 
VS. 

CATHERINE RODRICTUEZ, REPUBLIC 
SERVICES; CITY OF LAS VEGAS; DOES I- 
X, and ROES 1-X, inclusive. 

28 	 Defendants. 
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CLERK OF THE COURT 

Case No.: A-12-661179-C 
Dept No.: XXXI 

DEFENDANT'S OPPOSITION 
TO PLAINTIFF'S  
MOTION FOR  
SUMMARY JUDGMENT 

Hearing Date: June 4, 2013 
Hearing Time: 9:00 am 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
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DEFENDANT'S OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S 
MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT  

2 
COMES NOW Defendant, CATHERINE RODRIGUEZ, (hereinafter "the Defendant") 

3 
4 by and through her undersigned counsel Venicia. G. Considine, Esq., of the LEGAL AIL 

5 CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, INC, and Tara D. Newberry of CONNAGHAIN 

6 NEWBERR.Y LAW FIRM, and submits this Opposition to Defendant's Motion for Summan 

7 Judgment (hereinafter, the "Opposition"). Plaintiff's Opposition is made pursuant to NRCP 56 

8 
NRCP 11, the Memorandum of Points and Authorities outlined below, as well as the Exhibit! 

9 

10 attached hereto. 

11 
	

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

12 	 I. 	INTRODUCTION 

13 

14 
	Plaintiff, THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON F/K/A THE BANK OF NEW YORK 

15 AS TRUSTEE FOR THE HOLDERS OF THE CERTIFICATES, FIRST HORIZON 

16 MORTGAGE PASS-THROUGH CERTIFICATES SERIES FHAMS 2005-AA5, BY FIRST 

17 
HORIZON HOME LOANS, A DIVISION OF FIRST TENNESSEE BANK NATIONAL 

18 
19 MASTER SERVICER, IN ITS CAPACITY AS AGENT FOR THE TRUSTEE UNDER THE 

POOLING AND SERVICING AGREEMENT (hereinafter, "Plaintiff'), has filed a Motion fot 

21 Summary Judgment (hereinafter, the "Motion") alleging that "there is no genuine issue of 

22 material fact." 111  In her Opposition, Defendant will demonstrate that there are genuine issues of 

23 
material fact as to (1) whether Plaintiff is entitled to enforce the Note and Deed of Trust and (2) 

24 

25 whether Plaintiff has a valid security interest. 

26 IL 	DEFENDANT'S STATEMENT OF UNDISPUTED AND DISPUTED FACTS 

97 Defendant provides the following response to Plaintiff's "I. Factual Background" 

28 	See Plaintiff's Motion, Pg. 1, line 27, filed herein on April 29, 2013, 

RFJN_EX 47_00002 
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1 
commencing on page 2 of Plaintiffs Motion: 

1, Partially admitted in that Defendant executed a Note and Deed of Trust for the 684. 

Sweet Pecan Street, Las Vegas, NV 89149 property (hereinafter, "Subject Property") an 
3 	partially controverted by Defendant's Statement of Facts 11 1 (No true and correct copic 

4 
	of the Note). 

5 	2. Controverted by the Defendant's Statement of Facts Tif 2-4. (Plaintiff was not beneficial 

interest holder at the time of the bankruptcy) 

3. It is not possible for this to be an undisputed fact, as Plaintiff appears to misstate it 
argument. However, if Plaintiff intended to claim Defendant defaulted, this i 

controverted by the Defendant's Statement of Facts 1111 2-4. (Plaintiff did not default a 

unsecured debt was discharged in bankruptcy) 

4. Partially admitted in that those were the terms of the Deed of Trust and controverted in 

Defendant's Statement of Facts '111I 2-4. (Debt was discharged in bankruptcy) 

5. Admitted. 

6. Partially admitted in that Plaintiff tiled original Complaint in May 2012 and controverted 

in Defendant's Statement of Facts 11112. (Defendant raised material facts at issue.) 

7. Controverted by the Defendant's Statement of Facts 11111-12. (Endorsements are no 

recorded, etc...) 

111. 	STATEMENT OF FACTS 

1. Defendant, Catherine Rodriguez, obtained a mortgage from First Horizon Home Loan 

Corporation on April 22, 2005 to purchase her home at 6845 Sweet Pecan Street, Las Vegas, 

Nevada 89149. Defendant signed an Adjustable Rate Note, Interest Only Addendum to 

Adjustable Rate Note, and Deed of Trust to lender First Horizon Home Loan Corporation. See 

Plaintiff's Amended Complaint, Exhibit 1. 

2, Defendant filed a Chapter 7 bankruptcy in the District of Nevada (Las Vegas) on May 20, 

2008. See Exhibit A. 

3. Defendant listed First Horizon Home Loan Corporation as a Creditor Holding Secured 

Claim and noticed First Horizon of the bankruptcy. See Exhibit B. Defendant also indicated in 

3 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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4 

I her Statement of Intention that the property was claimed as exempt and the lien was to be 

2 avoided. See Exhibit C. 

	

3 
	

4. Defendant was discharged from the bankruptcy on December I, 2008. See Exhibit. D. 

	

4 	
5. A Notice of Breach and Default and of Election to Cause Sale of Real Property Under 

Deed of Trust was recorded with the Clark County Recorder's Office on March 18, 2010. See 
6 

7 Exhibit E. The Notice lists Mortgage Electronic Registration Systems, Inc (hereinafter, 

8 "MERS") as Nominee for First Horizon Home Loan Corporation as holder of the obligation, id. 

	

9 
	

6. Defendant elected to participate in the Nevada Foreclosure Mediation Program in on 

10 April 13, 2010. See Exhibit. F. 
11 

	

12 
	7. On June 16, 2010, MERS recorded an Assignment of the Deed of Trust with the Clark 

13 County Recorder's Office, See Exhibit G. The Assignment was dated. and notarized May 24, 

14 2010. Id. The document assigns lain beneficial interest under that certain Deed of Trust" to 

15 The Bank of New York Mellon from MERS. Id, 

16 
8. The mediation took place on July 17, 2010, and at the time the servicer of my loan was 

17 
18 MetLife. The mediator determined that MetLife did not provide the required documents 

	

19 
	according to the rules, and issued a mediator's statement reflecting the deficiencies. 	See 

20 Exhibit H I  

	

21 	9. On August 3, 2010, Defendant was sent a letter from First Horizon Home Loans 

22 
indicating that they could offer a trial modification, but offered a payment that was higher than 

23 
what Defendant had previously paid. See Exhibit I. The document only gave Defendant until 

95 August 15, 2010 to accept the trial modification. Id, The correspondence confused Defendant 

because at mediation Met Life Home Loans claimed to own the loan. See Exhibit J. 

! Mediator's Statement was attached as Exhibit 4 to Petition ibr Judicial Review filed by MetLife in Case No. A-10- 

6228784 in the Eighth Judicial, District Court County of Clark State of Nevada. 
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1 
	

.10. On August 11, 2010, before the deadline to accept the trial modification had expired, 

2 MetLife Home Loans filed a Petition for Judicial Review Case No, A-10-622878-J, requesting 

3 certificate of completion to foreclose on Defendant's property. See Exhibit K. 

	

4 	
11. Judge Moseley denied MetLife's request and found in Defendant's favor at a hearing on 

5 
September 16, 2010, See Exhibit L. Defendant was present at the hearing when the Honorable 

6 

7 Judge Donald Mosley determined that MetLife had acted in bad faith and ordered that the Lotto; 

8 of Certification would not issue. See Exhibit J and Exhibit L. 

	

9 	12. Sometime after March 21, 2011 another Breach and Election to sell was posted on 

10 Defendant's property and she again elected to participate in the Foreclosure Mediation Program 

11 
12 Another Nevada Foreclosure Mediation was held on October 6, 2011, See Exhibit J. 

	

13 
	13. A copy of the Note with a copy of an undated endorsement was supplied at YU 

14 mediation. See Exhibit M. The endorsement states, "Pay to the Order of Nationstar Mortgage 

15 LLC. Id. 

16 
14, The Amended Complaint in this filing includes a copy of the Note with a copy of ar 

17 
18 undated endorsement, See Plaintiff's Amended Complaint, Exhibit. 1. 

	

19 
	

15_ This version of the endorsement is exactly the same except the endorsement is now it 

20 blank; "Nationstar Mortgage LLC" is missing. Id. 

16. Defendant filed her Answer to Plaintiff's Amended Complaint on February 15, 2013 

22 
asserting various denials and defenses, raising material issues of fact to be determined by th( 

24 trier of fact in this case, a Nevad.a jury. 

	

25 
	 IV. STANDARD OF REVIEW 

	

26 
	

Regarding a Motion for Summary Judgment, NR.CP 56(c) states in relevant part, "Whe 

27 judgment sought shall be rendered forthwith if the pleadings, depositions, answers tc 

28 

5  
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interrogatories, and admissions on 'file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is n 

genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as 

matter of law." (Emphasis added), "Summary judgment is only appropriate if the pleadings an 

other evidence on file, viewed in a light most favorable to the nonmoving party, demonstrate tha 

no genuine issue of material fact remains in dispute and the moving party is entitled. to judgment 

as a matter of law." Schmidt v. Washoe County, 123 Nev. Adv. Rep. 16, 159 P.3d 1099, 1103 

(2007) (citing Woody. Safeway, Inc., 121 Nev. 724, 729, 121 P.3d 1026, 1029 (2005); overrule 

on other grounds by Buzz Stew, LLC v. City of N. Las Vegas, 124 Nev. Adv, Rep. 21 181 P.3 

670, 672 (2008)). 

"Summary judgment is appropriate if after viewing the record before the [court] in the light 

most favorable to th.e nonmoving party, 'no genuine issue of material fact exists, and. the moving 

party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law.' Whether an issue of fact is material is 

controlled by the substantive law at issue in the case, and a factual dispute is genuine if 'the 

evidence is such that a rational trier of fact could return a verdict for the nonmoving 

party." Maven Management v. Mt. Falls Acquisition Corp. 124 Nev. Adv. Rep. 67, 191 P.3d 

- 1189, 1192(2008) (citing Wood v. Safeway, Inc. 121 Nev. 724, 729, 121 P.3d 1026, 1029 

(2005)). "A party is entitled to a trial when there is the slightest doubt as to any material facts." 

Dennison v. Allen Group Leasing Corp., 110 Nev. 181, 184, 871 P.2d 288, 290 (1994) (citing 

Walker v. American Bankers Ins., 108 Nev, 533, 536, 836 P.2d 59, 61 (1992)). 

To prevail on its Motion for Summary judgment, Plaintiff must demonstrate that there is n 

genuine issue of material fact, even if all the pleadings and evidence on file are viewed in th 

light most favorable to Defendant. Plaintiff has failed to meet this burden, and the court should 

deny the instant motion or in the alternative stay this court's ruling until the Nevada Suprem 
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1 Court issues a ruling in the question certified by the Honorable Bruce A. Markel] In re Bryce L. 

2 Montierth and Maile L, Montierth, BK-S-11-27788-BAM, and until Defendant has had an 

3 opportunity to conduct discovery, as set. forth below. 

	

4 	 V. 	ARGUMENT 

5 
Due to the severe inconsistencies between Plaintiffs list of "Undisputed Facts" and 

6 
7 Defendant's evidence attached hereto, there are genuine issues of material fact in this case. 

	

8 
	

Defendant filed bankruptcy in 2008. At that point, MERS was the beneficiary of the Deed of 

9 Trust. Due to the inconsistent and undated endorsement stamps, it is unclear who held the Note. 

10 MERS did not assign the Deed of Trust until May 2010, nearly two years after the bankruptcy 

11 
discharge. 

	

13 
	The Nevada Supreme Court has held that when "MERS is the named. beneficiary and a 

14 different entity holds the promissory note, the note and the deed of trust arc split." Edelstein v. 

15 Bank of New York Mellon, 286 P.3d 249, 252 (Nev. 2012). Defendant argues the Note and Deed 

16 
of Trust were split at the time of the bankruptcy filing because MERS was the named beneficiary 

17 
18 to the Deed of Trust and a separate entity held the promissory note. The attempt to reunify the 

19 Note with the Deed of Trust occurred after the discharge of the bankruptcy. Bank of New York 

20 Mellon did not hold a security interest at the time of the bankruptcy. The holder of Note at the 

21 time of the bankruptcy held an unsecured obligation, which was then discharged. 

22 

	

23 
	The Bank of New York Mellon cannot foreclose because the obligation under the note was 

24 unsecured at the time of the bankruptcy filing. The deed of trust was held by a separate entity. 

25 The note was discharged and the deed of trust was satisfied. 

	

26 
	

The Court further concluded, "such separation is not irreparable or fatal to either tho 

promissmy note or the deed. of trust, but it does prevent enforcement of the deed of trust througl 

7 

28 
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foreclosure unless the two documents are ultimately held by the same party." Id at 260, qu.otingi 

Cervantes v. Countrywide Borne Loans, Inc., 656 F.3d. 1034, 1039 (9 th  Cir, 2011), In thi: 

situation, the note and deed of trust cannot be reunified because note was discharged with othe 

unsecured debt and the deed of trust was satisfied. The documents cannot be held by the sana 

party and. therefore foreclosure is not an option. 

Further, this question was certified to the Supreme Court by Bankruptcy Court Judge Brue< 

Markell on March 1, 2013. in re Bryce L. Montierth and Maile L. Montierth, BK-S-I1-27788 

BMA, See Exhibit N. Judge Markell requested the Nevada Supreme Court to answer wha 

happens when the note and deed of trust remains split at the time of foreclosure. Id at 1. In In r< 

Montierth, the debtors signed a promissory note and deed of trust in 2005. Id at 1.2 The dee( 

of trust names MERS as the beneficiary. Id at 2, The Note was later negotiated to Deutsch( 

Bank National Trust Company as Trustee for a mortgage pool trust. Id. The Montierths electec 

to participate in the Nevada Foreclosure Mediation Program after Deutsche Bank initiate( 

foreclosure. Two mediations followed with no resolution 2  and the Montierths filed a Chapter 1: 

bankruptcy. Id. When the bankruptcy was filed, Deutsche Bank held the note and MERS wa; 

the beneficiary of the deed of trust. Id. An assignment from MERS to Deutsche Bank occurrec 

after the filing of the bankruptcy. Id. The Nevada Supreme Court then published its Edelsteit 

decision. Judge Markell points out the issue of whether and how a creditor can reunify a deed of 

trust and. a promissory note. Id at 7. In re Montierth speaks to an issue during the pendency ei 

the bankruptcy. Defendant's situation is slightly different. 

Defendant signed a note and deed of trust which were then split, the note going to at 

unknown entity and the MERS becoming the beneficiary of the deed of trust. In 2008 

2  At a subsequent Petition for Judicial Review, the court found that Deutsche Bank has not acted in good faith at the 

mediation. Id at 2. 
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1 Defendant filed bankruptcy, listing the mortgage debt. Defendant was discharged. Defendant 

2 elected to participate in the Nevada Foreclosure Mediation program, After foreclosure was 

3 initiated and after Defendant elected mediation, MFRS assigned the Deed of Trust to Bank of 

4 New York Mellon. Multiple non-judicial foreclosure attempts initiated by different servicers and 

5 
6 resulting mediations deemed unsuccessful with regard to Defendant's loan pre-date this mattei l . 

7 Now, Bank of New York Melton is attempting to judicially foreclose on Defendant. because it 

8 has been unable to receive a certificate of completion from the Foreclosure Mediation Program 

9 as a direct result of an inability to show a proper chain of title, and an enforceable security 

10 interest. Plaintiff is attempting to circumvent the pivotal foundation of litigation: standing. 
11 

12 
	Currently, there is no answer from the Supreme Court on the question of reunification of the 

13 note and deed of trust post bankruptcy filing. Until the Nevada Supreme Court responds to 

14 Judge Marko11's certified question, this court must stay any ruling on this matter, as the outcome 

15 of the case may have a direct impact Defendant's property rights. 

16 
Furthermore, Defendant has presented sufficient evidence to demonstrate that there is a 

17 
18 genuine issue of material fact as to who is actually entitled to enforce the alleged note and 

19 security interest, despite the outcome of Tn re Montierth. Tn repeated non-judicial foreclosure 

20 attempts, various entities have claimed, to be the holder of the note and the true party in interest. 

21 The Petition for Judicial review referenced herein named "MetLife Home Loans" as the true 

22 
23 party in interest, the Note produced at the October 2011 mediation alleges that Nationstar is the 

')4 true party in interest and Plaintiff in this case claims it is the true party in interest attaching yet 

25 another variation of the note to an Amended Complaint and this motion. The various "copies" of 

26 the original note are inconsistent and unreliable. 

27 

28 
	

3  There were document deficiencies at each of:the mediations. 
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Should the Court be inclined to grant Plaintiffs Motion for Summary Judgment, Defendant 

would request a stay on ruling until discovery is conducted in this matter pursuant to NRCP 

560). While Defendant believes the foregoing sufficiently warrants a denial of Plaintiff's 

motion for summary judgment, in the alterative, would ask the court to continue its ruling on the 

motion until discovery has been conducted., Specifically, Defendant would need. the opportunity 

to depose the person most knowledgeable for Plaintiff, as well as individuals identified in 

Plaintiffs exhibits, including Lacy Reasons who provided an Affidavit in Support of Plaintiffs 

Motion. Defendant should also be permitted to receive responses to requests for production of 

documents and answers to interrogatories regarding the issue of standing and ownership of the 

note. 

As stated. by Plaintiff in her Affidavit attached hereto as Exhibit J, without conducting 

discovery in this case, Plaintiff cannot present. by affidavit or produce evidence as to certain facts 

essential to justify, at least in part, an opposition to summary judgment regarding Plaintiffs 

alleged right to enforce the security instrument. Those facts, among others, are: 

(a) Who owned the note at the time the Bankruptcy Case was filed 

(b) Why there appears to be variations of endorsement on the note produced to date 

(c) Among other facts that may arise in the course of discovery to shed light on the legal 

questions in this matter. 

See (Plaintiffs Affidavit: Exhibit J) 

"Where a party had not been dilatory in pursuing discovery and. has demonstrated its 

25 diligence by requesting additional time to obtain depositions, it was an abuse of discretion to 

26 deny their request at such an early stage in the proceedings." Ameritrade, Inc. v. First Interstate 

27 Bank, 105 Nev. 696, 782 P.2d. 1318 (1989). Discovery has not even begun in this matter, in fact 

28 
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1 1 

1 
	Plaintiff has yet to file a notice of 16.1 conference pursuant to NRCP 16.1(b)(1 ) or participate it 

2 discovery. Defense counsel has contacted Plaintiff's counsel regarding this issue and received 

3 response "consider this (email} our 16.1" on May 3, 2013 Exhibit 0. No ICCR has been filed 

4 and Plaintiff has not provided Initial 16.1 disclosures. 

5 

6 
	Thus, there have been no opportunities for Defendant to depose witnesses or parties, or to 

7 propound discovery and even if the court is inclined to grant Plaintiff's motion, any ruling on the 

8 motion should be stayed until Defendant has the opportunity to conduct basic discovery that 

would further support Defendant's opposition to this motion and. would. be  likely to lead to 

discoverable evidence for Defendant's use at trial. Most of the documents at issue in this matte 

are in the exclusive control of Plaintiff, and without discovery, Defendant is substantially 

prejudiced in presenting an adequate defense to Plaintiffs Complaint. 

VI. CONCLUSION 

Defendant has shown genuine issues of material facts through the use of Plaintiff's own 

conflicting documents. This is true in that: 

1. Defendant has brought to light numerous facts demonstrating that Plaintiff did not take 

timely steps to reunify the mortgage documents prior to or during the Defendant's 

bankruptcy; 

2. Defendant has brought to light. the issue presented to the Nevada Supreme Court.; when a 

note and deed of trust are split at the time of the bankruptcy filing, the note is then 

unsecured. and. in accordance with bankruptcy code, thereby discharged. 

3. If the bankruptcy is discharged, does the discharge bar reunification of the note and deed 

of trust? 

4. Even if a secure interest survived the bankruptcy matter, who is actually the true party ih 
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interest and demonstrable right to foreclose'? 

Based on the above, Defendant has met her burden to set forth specific facts that demonstrat< 

the existence of a genuine factual issue. At a minimum, Defendant requests this case to bc 

stayed pending the decision of the Nevada Supreme Court on the question presented by tit( 

Honorable Bruce Markel' and. until Defendant has had an opportunity to conduct discovery 

Further, Defendant is asking for leave to file an amended Answer in order to include all relevan 

facts and new counter claims based upon the evidence brought to light through Plaintiff's Motior 

for Summary Judgment. 

DATED this 16th 	day of May 2013. 

Respectfully Submitted: 

CONNAGHAN NEWBERRY 

/s/Tara D. Newberry 	 
TARA D. NEWBERRY, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 10696 
7854 W. Sahara Ave. 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89117 
Attorney for Defendants 
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CERTIV1ICATE OF SERVICE. 

I FIF:R12.BY CTRITEY rh:it.ort 	&fay of...Ma\,„ 2013. I setcv.od true and correeI „ 
1 
copy of the foregoiatig DEE E NDANT'S OPPO$ ITIONTO PLAINI1FF'S OT ION FOR 

,,SI:111%0 MARY ;# OPQN,IENT pursuant u,.1 1\1: RCP 	hy depositing for J.-haling ha the United 

Sl.:Itos NUL witla pozawge 1111.1y prepaid an eltvelope cohlainjFig the nh 	identi lied -doetiinQnt 

Les Vegas. Nevoida. fficiressed to the following; 

13 I 

1MeCARTIEY 	 . 1.  
Icrmal n A . 

• • 	 • 

19 4110 	&ham 	Suite 110. 
1 Las Vevas-, NV 89117 
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Case 08-15209-liar Doc 6 Entered 05/21108 09:58:18 Page 1 of 3 

tidal Form 9A1 (ChanterIndividual Joint Debtor No A 	 0 

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT District of Nevada 

Notice of 
Chapter 7 Bankruptcy Case, Meeting of Creditors, & Deadlines 

A chapter 7 bankruptcy case concerning the debtor(s) listed below was tiled on 5/20/08. 

You may be a creditor of the debtor. This notice lists important deadlines. You may want to consult an attorney to protect your Rights. 

All documents filed in the ease may be inspected at the bankruptcy clerk's office at the address listed below. NOTE: The staff of the 

bankruptcy clerk's office cannot give legal advice. Case documents may be viewed at www.nvb,useourts.gov . 

Importont Notice to Individual Debtors: Debtors who are individuals must provide government—issued photo identification and proof of 

social securit 	number at the meetin of creditors. Failure to do so ma 	result in dismissal of their case. 

See Additional Pages Reverse Side For Important Explanations and Notices 
Debtor(s)(name(s) used by the debtor(s) in the last 8 years, including married, maiden, trade, and address): 

CATHERINE ANN RODRIGUEZ 
6845 SWEET PECAN STREET 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89149 

Case Number; 
08-15209—lbr 
Judge: LINDA B. RIEGLE 

Social Security/Taxpayer ID/Employer ID/Other Nos.: 
xxx—xx-9204 

Attorney for Debtor(s) (name and address): 
DONALD B. RANDLES 
8610 S.EASTERN AVE. SUITE 19 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89123 
Tele Ip_uujaaf 	j_iber -iin 3szzau.s l_._g f1'ele 

Bankruptcy Trustee (name and address): 
YVE I 1E WEINS1 EN 
6450 SPRING MTh RD #14 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89146 

hone number: 	702 364-8919  

Meeting of Creditors 
Date: June 23,20011 	 Time: 01:00 PM 

Location: 300 Las Vegas Blvd., South, Room 1500, Las Vegas, NV 89101 

Presumption of Abuse under 11 U.S.C. § 707(1)) 
See "Presumption ofAbuse on reverse side. 

The presumption of abuse does not arise. 

Deadlines: 
Papers must be received by the bankruptcy clerk's office by the following deadlines: 

Deadline to File a Complaint Objeetng to Discharge of the Debtor or to Determine Dischargeribility of Certain Debts: 8122/08 

Deadline to Object to Exemptions: 
Thirty (30) days after the conclusion of the meeting of creditors. 

Creditors May Not Take Certain Actions: 
In most instances, the filing of the bankruptcy ease automatically stays certain collection and other actions against the debtor and the 
debtor's property. Under certain circumstances, the stay may be limited to 30 days or not exist at all, although the debtor can request the 

court to extend or impose a stay. If you attempt to collect a debt or take other action in violation of the Bankruptcy Code, you may be 

penalized. Consult a lawyer to determine your rights in this case. 

Please Do Not File a Proof of Claim Unless You Receive a Notice To Do So. 

Creditor -with a Foreign Address: 
A creditor to whom this notice is sent at a foreign address should read the information under "Do Not File a Proof of Claim at This Time" 

on the reverse side. 

Address of the Bankruptcy Clerk's Office: 
300 Las Vegas Blvd., South 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 

number: (702)388-6257 

/
Telephone 

For the Court: 
Clerk of the Bankruptcy Court: 

if 

Mary A. Schott 

Hours Open: Monday — Friday 9:00 AM —4:00 PM Date: 5/21/08 

RNN_EX 10_0000015 

2005 
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Case 08-15209-lbr Doc 6 Entered 05/21108 09:58:18 Page 2 of 3 

Piling of Chapter? 	A bankruptcy case under Chapter 7 of the Bankruptcy Code (title 1 I. United States Code) has been filed in this court 
Bankruptcy Case 	by or against the debtor(s) listed on the front side, and an order for relief has been entered. 

Legal Advice 	The staff of the bankruptcy clerk's office cannot give legal advice. Consult a lawyer to determine your rights in 
this case. 

Creditors Generally 	Prohibited collection actions are listed in Bankruptcy Code §362. Common examples of prohibited actions include 
May Not Take Certain contacting the debtor by telephone, mail or otherwise to demand repayment; taking actions to collect money or 
Actions 	 obtain property from the debtor, repossessing the debtor's property; starting or continuing lawsuits or foreclosures; 

and garnishing or deducting from the debtor's wages. Under certain circumstances, the stay may be limited to 30 
days or not exist at all, although the debtor can request the court to extend or impose a stay. 

Presumption of Abuse If the presumption of abuse arises, creditors may have the right to file a motion to dismiss the ease under § 707(b) of 
the Bankruptcy Code, The debtor may rebut the presumption by showing special circumstances. 

Meeting of Creditors 	A meeting of creditors is scheduled for the date, time and location listed on the front side. The debtor (both spouses 

in a joint case) must be present at the meeting to be questioned under oath by the trustee and by creditors. Creditors 
are welcome to attend, but are not required to do so. The meeting may be continued and concluded at a later date 
without further notice. 

Do Not File a Proof of There does not appear to be any property available to the trustee to pay creditors. You therefore should not file a 

Claim at This Time 	proof ofclaim at this time. Wit later appears that assets are available topay creditors, you will be sent another notice 
telling you that you may file a proof of claim, and telling you the deadline for filing your proof of claim. If this 
notice is mailed to a creditor at a foreign address, the creditor may file a motion requesting the court to extend the 
deadline. 

Discharge of Debts 	The debtor is seeking a discharge of most debts, which may include your debt A discharge means that you may 
never try to collect the debt from the debtor. If you believe that the debtor is not entitled to receive a discharge under 
Bankruptcy Code §727(a) or that a debt owed to you is not dischargeable under Bankruptcy Code §523(aX2), (4), or 
(6), you must start a lawsuit by tiling a complaint in the bankruptcy clerk's office by the "Deadline to Pile a 
Complaint Objecting to Discharge of the Debtor or to Determine Dischargeability of Certain Debts" listed on the 
front side. The bankruptcy aeries office must receive the complaint and any required filing fee by that Deadline. 

Exempt Property 	The debtor is permitted by law to keep certain property as exempt. Exempt property will not be sold and distributed 
to creditors. The debtor must file a list of all property claimed as exempt You may inspect that list at the bankruptcy 
clerk's office. If you believe that an exemption claimed by the debtor is not authorized by law, you may file an 
objection to that exemption. The bankruptcy clerk's office must receive the objections by the "Deadline to Object to 
Exemptions" listed on the front side. 

Bankruptcy Clerk's 	Any paper that you file in this bankruptcy case should be filed at the bankruptcy clerk's office at the address listed 

Office 	 on the front side. You may inspect all papers filed, including the list of the debtor's property and debts and the list of 
the property claimed as exempt, at the bankruptcy clerk's office or at vvww.nvb.uscourts.gov . 

Creditor with a 	Consult a lawyer familiar with United States bankruptcy law if you have any questions regarding your rights in this 

Foreign Address 	case. 

RF,114_0", 10_0000016 

2006 
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EXPLANATIONS 
(CONTINUED) 	 ((Ifilrinl Form QA)  

Trustee Information The United States Trustee has appointed the herein named person as interim trustee effective the date of filing as 
shown on page I of this form. The case is covered by a trustee's blanket bond, the original of which is on file with 
the court. 

The trustee may abandon property of the estate that is burdensome or is or inconsequential value and benefit to the 
estate without further notice of abandonment, pursuant to ii U.S.C. Section 554(a). Further notice will be provided 
upon request only. Any non—exempt property scheduled, but not administered at the time of closing of a ea sv will be 
deemed abandoned pursuant to II U.S.C. Section 554(c). 

Please note that the trustee may use, sell or lease all non—exempt property of the estate which has an aggregate value 
of less than $2,500 WITHOUT FURTHER NOTICE TO CREDITORS. Pursuant to Federal Bankruptcy Rule 
6004(4) any objection to the sale of estate property may be filed and served by a party in interest within 25 days of 
the mailing of this Notice of Commencement of Case. 

Refer to Other Side for Important Deadlines and Notices 
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Case 08 - 15209 -lbr Doc 1 Entered 05/20/08 21:52:28 Page 15 of 39 

5360 (0 Disk! Form EIS) (12107) 

In re 	Catherine Ann Rodriguez 
	

Case N. 	  

Debtor 

SCHEDULE D - CREDITORS HOLDING SECURED CLAIMS 

Stale the name, mailing, address, including gip code, and last foul digits of any account number of all entities bolding claims scanned by property of the debtor ON of 

the date ef filing of the petition. The complete account number of any account the debter has with the creditor Is undid to the trustee and the creditor and may be provided 
if the debtor chooses to do 50. List creditors holding all types of secured interests such as judgment liens, garnishments, statutory liens. mortgages, deeds of trust, and 
ether security interests. 

List creditors in alphabetical order to the extent practicable. !fa mina child Is n aerator, the child's initials and the name and address of the Child's parent or 
guardian, such as "A.B., a minor elsild, by John Dee, guardian." Do not disclose the chiltfs name. Sea, I U,S,C, §I12 and Fed. 11,11ankr, P. 1087(m) Welt secured 
creditors will not lit on this page, use the continuation sheet provided. 

If any entity other non espouse in a joint ease may be Jointly liable on a Claim, place an "X" hi the column labeled Codebtor ,include Me entity on the appnoprieto 
schedule of creditors, and complete Schedule H - Codebtors. lie Joint petition is filed, Stab whether the husband, wife, born or thorn, or tire marital comm u nity may  ti c 

liable on each claim by Placing an it', W', "3", or 	ic to column Inhaled "Host:end, Wife, Joint, or Community", 
if the claim is contingent, place en "X' its the column labeled "ContingenC. If Me claim is nuliquidausd, place an 'X" in hie column Inhaled "Uttliquidutar. tithe 

claim is disputed, place an "X' in the column labeled 'Disputed". (yea may need to place en 'X' in more than one of these throe columes,) 
Total ttte columns leaded "Amount of Claim Without Deducting Value of Colletenar and 'Unsecured Portion, if Any" in the boxes labeled "Total(s)" on time last 

sheet of the completed schedule. Report the total Rom the column labeled "Amount *Catlin" also on the Stuntnery of Schedules and, if the debtor in on Individual with 
primarily consumadebts, report the total front the culture labeled "Unsecured Portion on the Statistical Santini's)? of Certain Liabilities and Related Data, 

Ci Check this box If debtor has rat creditors holding secured claims to report an this Schedule!). 

CREDITOR'S NAME 
AND MAILING ADDRESS 

INCLUDING ZIP CODE, 
AND ACCOUNT NUMBER 

(Sec instructions above.) 

g 
0  e 
a 
T 
o 
a 

H 
w 
J 
c 

Husband lane, Jo5b, OPCOMMurIlly U 
0 N 
N 	L 
y 	t 
I 	Q N U 
c 	i 
e 0 no 	A 
T 	T 

a 
0 

D 
1 
S 
V 
U T 
E 
e 

AMOUNT OF 
CLAIM 

WITHOUT 
DEDUCTING 
VALUE OF 

COLLATERAL 

UNSECURED 
PORTION, IF 

ANY 

DATE CLAIM WAS itklOURRED, 
NATURE OF LIEN, AND 

DESCRIPTION AND VALUE 
OF PROPERTY 

SURIF.CT TO LIEN 

Account No. xxxxxxxxx4520 

. 

HOME MORTGAGE 

REAL ESTATE 

269,000.03 Unknown 

FIRST HORIZON 
PO EIOX 630'140 
Irving, TX 75063 

I 
Value It 	 Unknown 

Account No. 

VOID S 

Account No. 

Value S 

Account No. 

.01....MMIMMIRIM■••■••■••••••••■••••••■••■■■•••■•••■ A■■•■■■■■•■•.1/0 

0 	continuation sheets attached 
- 

Value S 
S ubtotal  

Crotal of Otis page) 

Total 

(Report on Summary orScItedules) 

269,000.00 0.00 

269,000.00 0.00 

Caprighl to) 10082008 -Om, 0550 S01011005 Evs551.00 IL. tame 452E7037 
	 Bast Case Bankruptcy 

FUJN_EA 10_0000019 
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Case 08-15209-11)r Doc 1 Entered 05120/08 21:52:28 Page 34 of 39 

Ft)11118 
t I 010Si 

United States Bankruptcy Court 
District of Nevada 

In iv Catherine Ann Rectriguez 

 

Case No. 

Chanter 	7 

  
 

bebtor(s)—  

CHAPTER 7 INDIVIDUAL DEBTOR'S STATEMENT OF INTENTION 

III 	I haw filed a schedule °Cassels and liabilities which includes debts secured by property of the estate. 

CI 	I have filed a schedule of executory contracts and unexpired teases which includes personal properly subject to an unexpired lease. 

• 	I intend to do the following with respect to property of the estate which secures those debts or is subject to a lease: 

, Description of Secured Property Creditor's Kum 
Proprily will be 
Surrendered 

Property 
is claimed 
asexamat 

Properly will be 
redeemed 
pursuant to 
ii U.S.C. § 722 

Debt will be 
reaffirmed 
pursuant to 
II U.S.C. ti 524(e) 

REAL ESTATE FIRST HORIZON X 
(avoid lien) 

Lease will In 
assumed pursuant 

Description of Leased 
	 to 11 U.S.C. 

ProperlY 
	

Lessor's Name 
	

362(11)(  I Xit)  

-NONE- 

Date  May 20, 2008 
	

Signature /et Catherine Ann Rodriguez 
Catherine Ann Rodriguez 
Debtor 

soware Copripftt In 1993. NCO Post Cast) Sduiionn - EvanIton, IL- 000) 40240131 
	 130 el et1001:113111ctuptcy 

F2F,1N_E>1 10_0000021 
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Case 08-15209-lbr Doc 26 Entered 12/01108 15:2719 Page 1 of 2 

818 (Official Form 18) (1210'7) 

United States Bankruptcy Court 

District of Nevada 
Case No. 48-15209—lbr 

Chapter 7 

In re: Debtor(s) (name(s) used by the debtor(s) in the last 8 years, including married, maiden, trade, and address): 

CATHERINE ANN RODRIGUEZ 
6845 SWEET PECAN STREET 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89149 

Social Security No.: 
xxx—xx-9204 

Employer's Tax I.D. No.: 

DISCHARGE OF DEBTOR 

It appearing that the debtor is entitled to a discharge, 

IT IS ORDERED: 

The debtor is granted a discharge under section 727 of title 11, United States Code, (the Bankruptcy Code). 

Dated: 12/1/08 
	

BY THE COURT 

stat 
Maly A. Schott 
Clerk of the Bankruptcy Court 

SEE THE BACK OF THIS ORDER FOR IMPORTANT INFORMATION. 

111,11,12,X 100000023 

2013 
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Case 08-15209-lbr Doe 26 Entered 12/01/08 15:27:19 Page 2 of 2 

818 (Official Form 18) (12/07)— Cont. 

EXPLANATION OF BANKRUPTCY DISCHARGE 
IN A CHAPTER '7 CASE 

This court order grants a discharge to the person named as the debtor. It is not a dismissal of the case and it 

does not determine how much money, if any, the trustee will pay to creditors. 

Collection of Discharged Debts Prohibited 

The discharge prohibits any attempt to collect from the debtor a debt that has been discharged. For example, a 

creditor is not permitted to contact a debtor by mail, phone, or otherwise, to file or continue a lawsuit, to attach wages 

or other property, or to take any other action to collect a discharged debt from the debtor, an a case involving 

community property: There are also special rules that protect certain community property owned by the debtor's 

spouse, even if that spouse did not file a bankruptcy case] A creditor who violates this order can be required to pay 

damages and attorney's fees to the debtor. 

However, a creditor may have the right to enforce a valid lien, such as a mortgage or security interest, against 

the debtor's property after the bankruptcy, if that lien was not avoided or eliminated in the bankruptcy case. Also, a 

debtor may voluntarily pay any debt that has been discharged. 

Debts That are Discharged 

The chapter 7 discharge order eliminates a debtor's legal obligation to pay a debt that is discharged. Most, but 

not all, types of debts are discharged if the debt existed on the date the bankruptcy case was filed. (If this case was 

begun under a different chapter of the Bankruptcy Code and converted to chapter 7, the discharge applies to debts 

owed when the bankruptcy case was converted.) 

Debts That are Not Discharged.  

Some of the common types of debts which are not discharged in a chapter 7 bankruptcy case are: 

a_ Debts for most taxes; 

b. Debts incurred to pay nondischargeable taxes; 

c. Debts that are domestic support obligations; 

d. Debts for most student loans; 

e, Debts for most fines, penalties, forfeitures, or criminal restitution obligations; 

f. Debts for personal injuries or death caused by the debtor's operation of a motor vehicle, vessel, or aircraft 
while intoxicated; 

g. Some debts which were not properly listed by the debtor; 

h. Debts that the bankruptcy court specifically has decided or will decide in this bankruptcy case are not 

discharged; 

I. Debts for which the debtor has given up the discharge protections by signing a reaffirmation agreement in 

compliance with the Bankruptcy Code requirements for reaffirmation of debts; and 

j. Debts owed to certain pension, profit sharing, stock bonus, other retirement plans, or to the Thrift Savings 

Plan for federal employees for certain types of loans from these plans. 

This information is only a general summary of the bankruptcy discharge. There are exceptions to these 

general rules. Because the law is complicated, you may want to consult an attorney to determine the exact 

effect of the discharge in this case. 

RFJ1,1_0: 10_0000024 
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LM181 900 

ppinRsif 
A.,Ai HORIZON. 

HOME LOANS 

Ent Hodson 
Honac Lou CorptnNtion 

4000 HorizorMety 
hying, Texas 7500 

wielv,fhhtc.com  

August 03, 2010 

Catherine Rodriguez 
6845 Sweet Pecan St 
Lae Vegas, NV 89149-1040 

Dear Catherine Rodriguez : 

We have good newa about providing you a more affordable mort
gage. 

You are eligible for the Trial Period Modification. 

Please carefully read the enclosed Trial Period Agreement, The 

monthly trial period payments are based on the income information 

that you previously provided, These payments are an estimate of what 

your payment.(a) will be IF we are able to modify your loan under the 

terms of the program. Defaulting on this Trial Period Modification 

eliminates the opportunity for a modification of your loan terms. 
Please read all enclosed documents provided and make sure you 

understand the statements met forth in the plan. 

Step 1 - Accept the Trial Period Plan Offer 

To accept this offer and enter into the Trial Period Modification, 

all borrowers must sign both copies of the enclosed Trial Period 

Plan. You must then return BOTH signed copies to ua - along with your 

first trial period payment in the amount of $ 1,460.
00 - no later than 

08/15/10. 

Step 2 - Make Your Trial Period Payments On Time 

Your remaining trial period payments in the amotnt of 1,460.00 will 

be due on or before 09/15/10. Your trial period payments should be 

sent instead of - NOT IN ADDITION TO - your normal, monthly mortgage 

payments. 

By no later than 08/15/10, please mail two signed copies off the Trial 

Period Plan and your first trial period payment to: 

First Horizon Home Loans 
cc 6207 
4000 Horizon Way Sta. 100 
Irving, TX 75063 

EXHIBIT ^4 " 

RFJN_EX 10_0000030 

2020 



31 

ipp FIRST 
HORTZ0 
HOtaLOANG 

Prat Horizon 
Home Low Corporation 

Ancto Horizon 'WAY 
trving Te 	75o6 

www,ftthlc.corn 

Page 2 

Step 3 - Contact Us 
Once your final payment has been submitted, contact us for a re-

review of your modification. 

If you have any questions, please contact us at (800) 364 - 7662 

Respectfully, 

to Mitigation Specialist 

LM181-003 TWX 

RFJN_EX 1Q0000031 

2021 
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01 FIRST 
if.Ai HORIZON. 

Home Loom 

Find Horizon 
Horne Loan Corpotarioa 

400.0 Horlzon Way 
Irving,Texas non 

wwiefhillecom 

Page 3 

TRIAL PERIOD PLAN/MODIFICATION AGREEMENT. The Trial Period Plan is 

the first step. If/Once we are able to final
ize your modified loan 

terms; we will send you a loan modification 
agreement (Hmodification 

Agreement"), which will reflect the terms of 
your modified loan. 

In addition to successfully completing the tr
ial period, you will 

need to sign and promptly return to us both 
copies of the 

Modification Agreement or your loan will not
 be modified. 

NEW PRINCIPAL BAIANCE. Any past due amounts 
as of the end of the 

trial peried, including unpaid interest, rea
l estate taxes, insurance 

premiums and certain assessments paid on your 
behalf to a third 

party, will be added to your mortgage loan b
alance (the "Pest Due 

Arrearage Amount). 

FEES AND COSTS. Should a modification of y
our loan be approved; 

outetanding fees and costs will be assessed. 
The total outstanding 

amount of these costs will be required to be included upfront in 

order to complete the modification process.
 

EAT1MATED MONTHLY PAYMENT. At this time, we are not able to 

calculate precisely the Past Due Arrearage 
Amount or the amount of 

the modified loan payment that will be due a
fter successful 

completion of the trial period. However, 
based on information we 

currently have, your trial period payment ma
y be close to your 

modified loan payment. As we near the end 
of the trial period, we 

will calculate any past due amount to 
determine your new permanent 

monthly payment and other modified loan term
s. 

ESCROW ACCOUNT. The terms of your Trial Peri
od Plan and your 

Modification Agreement may require the servi
cer to set aside a 

portion of your new monthly payment in an 
escrow account for payment 

of your property taxes, insurance premiums an
d other required fees. 

Your current loan may also require escrows. 
If it does not, the 

previous waiver of escrowe is cancelled under
 your Trial Period Plan, 

First Horizon Home Loans will draw on this a
ccount to pay your real 

estate taxes and insurance premiUMs as they c
iaMe due. Please note 

that your escrow payment amount will adj
uat if your taxes, ineurance 

premiums and/or assessment amounts change, s
o the amount of your 

monthly payment that the servicer must plac
e in escrow will also 

adjust as permitted by law. This means that 
your monthly payment may 

change. Your monthly escrow payment of $ 246
.6B is included 

in your trial payment amount. 

CREDIT COUNSELING_ If you have very high levels of debt, you w
ill be 

required to obtain credit counseling 
and provide the NOD completed 

certification letter prior to the completion
 of your trial period 

agreement. 

REJN_D 0.,0000022 
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FIRST 
rre.di HORIZON 

HOMU LOANS 

First Hortzott 
}tome raul Corporation 

4060 Horizon Way 
lrvthaTams 7300 

horny. flittc.com  

Page 4 

CREDIT REPORTINO, During the trial period, we will report your loan 

as delinquent to the credit reporting agencies even if you make your 
trial period paymenta on time. However, after your loan is modified, 

we will only report the loan as delinquent if the modified payment is 

not received in a timely manner. 

LM182-005 TWX 

RFJN_EX 10_0000033 
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Catherine Rodriguez 
Loan Number 0051334520 
August 03, 2010 
Page Three 

FORBEARANCE AGREEMENT: 

PLAN DATg 
	AMT 
	 PLAN DATE 
	AMT 

01 	08/15/10 
	

1,460.00 
	02 	09/15/10 
	

1,460.00 

03 	10/15/10 
	1,460.00 
	04 	11/15/10 
	

13,938.03 

Understand and aCknowledge tha terms of this agre
ement executed 

by my/our hand(a) this 	 day of 	 , 20 

Return to: 
Firet Horizon Home Loans 
Attention: COLLF:CTIONS 
4000 Horizon Way, Suite 100 
Irving, TX 15063 

Catnerine Rodriguez 

Accepted by First Horizon Home Loans 

Loan Counaelor's Signature 
	 Date 

LMOOG-005 TWX 

RFJN_E>; 10 0000034 
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MI MST 
HORIZON. 
HoMB LOANS 

Fint Horizon 
Homo Loan Corporation 

4000 Horizon Way 
Irifing, Texan 75083 

wwwItiMcmim 

Frequently Asked Questions; 

Q. what if my trial period payment is less than the payme
nt 

currently owe on my loan? 

ge will add the difference between the monthly payment th
at you 

currently owe on your loan and the trial period paymen
t to your 

loan balance and allow you to pay it over the remainder of 
the 

modified loan term. 

Q. will a foreclosure occur if X participate in the Trial Period 

Modification? 

As long as you comply with the terms of the Trial Period Plan,
 we 

will not start foreclosure proceedings or conduct a foreclo
sure 

sale if foreclosure proceedings have started. If you fai
l to 

comply with the terms of the Trial Period Plan, your lo
an will be 

enforced according to its original terms, which could inc
lude 

foreclosure. 

Q. What happens to my trial period payments if I do 
not comply with 

the terms of the Trial Period Plan? 

Your trial. period payments will be applied to your exis
ting loan 

according to the terms of your loan documents. 

Q. f I get a Trial Period Modification, can my modified 
loan terms 

ever revert to the original terms? 

No. This is one of the advantages of the Trial Period Mod
ification. 

Once your loan is modified, the new terms stay 
in place for the 

remainder of your loan. 

Q. Do all borrowers have to sign the Trial Period Plan and other 

documents? 

Unless a borrower or co-borrower is deceased, a
ll borrowers who 

signed the original loan documents or their duly authorized
 

representative(s) must sign the Trial Period Plan, the Modi
fication 

Agreement and all other required modification documents,
 Contact 

your servicer if it would be difficult or impossib
le for you to 

comply with this requirement. 

Q. Could my trial period payment be more than my current 
payment? 

Yes. For example, if your current payment does not inclu
de an 

escrow payment and you are new required to make monthly 
escrow 

payments, your 	pra=lod rmtyment could be higher than your 

current payment. Note, however, that the increase in your payment 

under these circumstances would be offset by other
 tax and 

insurance bills you would nn longer have to pay directly 
as we will 

pay those for you out of your escrow account, 

LM183-004 TWX 

RFJ5J_E>5 10_0000035 
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LMt107 
Addendum to Special Forbearance Plan 

You have agreed to enter into a Lose Mitigation Special 

Forbearance Type II Plan. Compliance with this plan will give 

you the opportunity to save your home. 

As per our discussion as of the date of this agreement, you 
will 

comply with all terms set forth in the Forbearance Type II 

agreement. Should you comply with the scheduled payments, F
irst 

Horizon will re-consider you for further options prior to
 the 

lest salloon payment scheduled. We will convert the Special 
Forbearance Type II Plan to one of the following optiens: 

I. Mortgage Modification: If you can make the payments on yo
ur 

loan, but you do not have enough money to bring your accoun
t 

current, First Horizon may be able to change one or more 

terms of your original loan to make the payments more 

affordable. 

2. Partial Claim Advance: If your mortgage is HUD insured, y
ou 

may qualify for an interest-free loan to bring your account
 

current. The repayment of this loan may be delayed for 

several years. 

While complying with the Loss Mitigation Special Forbearanc
e 

Type IT Plan, late fees will not be assessed. Sheuld you be
 

offered one of the above options, please be advised that an
y 

foreclosure cost and fees will be collected as part of the 

agreement. The options available to you will be reviewed in
 the 

ordered mentioned above. 

Should you fail to comply: As we discussed, ehould you not b
e 

able to meet the requirements of the Special Forbearance Typ
e II 

Plan, the following options are available to avoid foreclosu
res 

1. Sale: If you can no longer afford your home, First
 Horizon 

will work with you allow time to find a purchaser and pay 

off the total amount owed. You will be expected to obtain 

the services of a real estate professional who can 
aggressively market the property. Thie is subject to 

foreclosure timeframes and action. 

2. Pre-Foreclosure Sale or Short Payoff: If the property's s
ales 

value is net enough to pay the loan in full, First Horizon 

may be able to accept less than the full amount owed. This 

option can also include a period of time to allow your real
 

estate agent to market the property and find a qualified 

buyer. Monetary help may also be available to pay other lie
n 

holders and/or help toward paying your moving costs. 

3, Deed-in-lieu: First Horizon may agree to allow you to 

voluntarily "give beekir your property and forgive the debt. 

Although this option sounds like the easiest way out for you, 

generally, you must attempt to sell the home for its fair 

market value for at least 90 days before First Horizon wil
l 

consider this option. Also, this option may not be available
 

if you have liens such as judgments of other creditors, 

second mortgages, and IRS or State Tax liens. 

RF.PLEX 10_00M01;6 
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MY/OUR SIGNATURE (S) BELOW ACKNOWLEGES THAT I/WE HAVE READ AND 
AGREE WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED IN THIS AGREEMENT, 

I/WE HAVE RECEIVED HOMEOWNERSHIP COUNSELING FROM FIRST HORIZON 

HOME LOANS OR PROM A HOUSING AGENCY OF OUR CHOICE. //WE FURTHER 

UNDERSTAND THAT WE MUST RE-QUALIFY FOR THE OPTIONS LISTED ABOVE 

UPON OUR COMPLIANCE WITH THE HOD SPECIAL FORBEARANCE TYPE II 

PLAN, 

I/WE AGREE TO ABIDE BY THE AGREEMENT SET FORTH. 

Mortgagor 

 

Date 

Co-Mortgagor 

 

Date 

Co-Mortgagor 

 

Date 

Co -Mortgagor Date 

Please sign, date and return the original agreeMent. Retain a 
copy for your records. The original agreement must be returned 
to the address below. It is recommended that you fax a copy 
first to 214-441-7390. 

First Horizon Home Loans 
Attn: Loss Mitigation Dept - CC 6207 
4000 Horizon way, Suite 100 
Irving, Texas 75063 

Accepted by First Horizon Home Loans 

Loss Mitigation Specialist's Signature 
	

Date 

LM007 -008 TWX 
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AFFIDAVIT OF CATHERINE RODRIGUEZ 

STATE OF NEVADA 
) ss- 

COUNTY OF CLARK 
	

) 

CATHERINE RODRIGUEZ, being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 

1. I have personal knowledge of and am competent to testify as to the facts stated 

herein. 

2. I obtained a mortgage from First Horizon Home Loan Corporation on April 22, 

2005 to purchase my home at 6845 Sweet Pecan Street, Las Vegas, Nevada 89149. 

3. I filed a Chapter 7 bankruptcy in the District of Nevada (Las Vegas) on May 20 3  

2008. 

4. I listed First Horizon Home Loan Corporation as a Creditor Holding Secured Claim 

and noticed First Horizon of the bankruptcy. 

5. I was discharged from the bankruptcy on December 1, 2008. 

6. Due to the economy, my income was significantly reduced and I was struggling to 

make ends meet. I contacted First Horizon Home Loans in 2009 on several occasions to see if 1 

qualified for a loan modification, I sent in worksheets, bank statements, paystubs and tax returns 

on several occasions to try and get a loan modification, but the bank refused to work with me and 

never responded to my requests. 

7. I received a Notice of Breach and Default and of Election to Came Sale of Real 

Property sometime after March 18, 2010. The Notice listed Mortgage Electronic Registration 

Systems, Inc (hereinafter, "MERS") as Nominee for First Horizon Home Loan Corporation as 

owner of the loan. 

8. I elected to participate in the Nevada Foreclosure Mediation Program on April 13, 

2010. 
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9. I reviewed an Assignment of the Deed of Trust pertaining to my property that was 

recorded with the Clark County Recorder's Office on June 16, 2010, by MERS and was provided 

to me during the mediation process. The Assignment was dated and notarized May 24, 2010. The 

document assigned "WI beneficial interest under that certain Deed of Trust" to The Bank of New 

York Mellon from MERS. 

10. The mediation took place on July 17, 2010, and at the time the servieer of my loan 

was Metlife. The mediator determined that Metlife did not provide the required documents 

according to the rules, and issued a mediator's statement reflecting the deficiencies. 

11. On August 3, 2010, I was sent a letter from First Horizon Home Loans indicating 

that they could offer a trial modification, but offered a payment that was higher than what I had 

previously paid, and confuse me because at mediation Met Life Home Loans claimed to own the 

loan. The document only gave me until August 15, 2010 to accept the trial modification. 

12. On August 11, 2010, before the deadline to accept the trial modification had 

expired, Medife Home Loans filed a Petition for Judicial Review Case No, A-1 0-622878-J 

requesting a certificate of completion to foreclose on my property. 

13. Judge Moseley denied Metlife's request and found in my favor at a hearing on 

September 16, 2010. I was present at the hearing and heard the judge say that Metlife had acted in 

bad faith and ordered that the Letter of Certification would not issue. 

14. Sometime after March 21, 2011 another Breach and Election to sell was posted on 

my property and I again elected to participate in the Foreclosure Mediation Program. 

15. Another Nevada Foreclosure Mediation was held on October 6,2011. 

16. At mediation, an attorney representing Nationstar appeared and said the loan had 

been sold from Met Life to Nationstar. The attorney gave rne a copy of the Note at this mediation. 

Exhibit XX is the Note that was provided at mediation, and the endorsement states, "Pay to the 

Order of Nationstar Mortgage LLC. 

REJN_EX 100009040 
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NOTARY PUOLIC 
STATE OF NEVADA 

County of Cfark 
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17. 	I have no idea who owned my loan at the time I filed for Bankruptcy. but had been 

making payments to First Horizon. and I have never been provided with an .explanation of who 

owns or who has owned my loan since that time. 

18. 	I have not been able to conduct discovery in this matter. and invesligate through my 

6 
attorneys who owned my note at he time of the bankruptcy case. and whether it was sold or 

7 transferred thereafter. 

19. 	In order to properly respond to Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment. I believe 

I should be afforded the opportunity to take depositions, have answers to interrogatories and 

responses to requests for production of documents to fully develop a defense in this action. 

20 I do not believe I owe any money to Bank of New York 'Mellon. nor do I believe 

they have standing to foreclose. but I need to conduct discovery to obtain documents in their 

possession, First Horizon's possession. Met Life's possession and Nationstar's possession in order 

to have evidence to present to the court. 

2 1. 	Based on recent case law. I believe the note was discharged in bankruptcy and the 

deed of trust therefore satisfied, it is my understanding that there is a case pending in bankruptcy 

court certifying this issue to the Supreme Court of the State of Nevada, and the outcome of this 

case could have an impact on this matter. 

Further, your Aftiant spte-th-rutuktht 

C T 1ERINE RODRIOUEZ 

fiFJNI_EX 10...CM:4741 
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%C„, a oeatoge-- 

Honorable Bruce A, Markel! 
United States Bankruptcy Judge 

2 

3 Entered on Docket 
March 01, 2013 

Case 11-27788-bam Doc 63 Entered 03/01/13 14:45:23 Page 1 of 8 

96 

) 
) 
) Chapter 13 
) 
) 

  ) 
) Hearing Date: January 15, 2013 

Hearing Time: 3:00 p.m. 

Case No.: BK-S-I I -27788-BAM 

ORDER CERTIFYING QUESTION OF LAW TO THE NEVADA SUPREME COURT 

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 

DISTRICT OF NEVADA 

5 

6 

7 

8 
	

In re: 

Debtors. 
1 

9 BRYCE L MONTIERTH and MAILE L. 
MONTIERTH, 

10 

1 

12 

13 

14 

15 	I. 	Question of Law Certified — NEV. R. APP. P. 5(c)(1) 

In Eclelstehr v. lianIc of New York Mellon, 2861).3d 249, 262 n.14 (Ncv. 2012), the Nevada 

17 	Supreme Court IA open the question of "what occurs when the promissory note and deed of trust 

13 	remain split at the time of foreelasure." As shown below, this court requires an answer to that 

19 	question to resolve the particular dispute in this case, and in many similar cases currently pending 

20 	in this court Depending on the response to this question, this court may also require guidance as 

21 	to the legal efEct of the recordation of an assignment ofa beneficial interest in a deed of trust As 

22 	answers to these questions arc necessary to resolve these cases, this court believes that the 

23 	standard for Ride 5 certifications sot forth in Volvo Carr of North AM erica, Inc. v_ Ricci, 122 Nev. 

24 	746, 137 P.3d 1161 (2006), has been met. 

25 	II. 	Statement of Facts Nev. R. APP. P. 5(0(2) 

26 	In June 2005, Bryce and Maile Montierth (the "Debtors") signed a promissory note (the 

RFJN_EX 16_0000046 
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Case 11-27788-barn Doc 63 Entered 03101/13 14;45:23 Page 2 of 8 

	

1 	"Note") with 1st National Lending Services in the amount of $170,400. The Note was secured by 

	

2 	a deed of trust (the "Deed of Trust") on property located in Log,andale, Nevada (the "Property"). 

	

3 	The Deed of Trust named Mortgage Electronic Registration System (`MERS") as the beneficiary. 

	

4 	At some point after the loan was made but before June 2009, the Note appears to have 

	

5 	been negotiated to Deutsche Bank National Trust Company, as Trustee of the IndyMac INDX 

	

6 	Mortgage Loan Trust 2005-AR31, Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2005 ,AR31 under 

	

7 	the Pooling and Servicing Agreement dated November 1, 2005 ("Deutsche Bank")) OneWcst 

	

8 	Bank, FSB, along with its subsidiary IndyMac Mort gft Services, serviced the Note as Deutsche 

	

9 	Bank's agents, and were Deutsche Bank's points of contact with the Debtors. 

	

10 	Debtors last made a payment on the Note in June 2009. In October 2009, Deutsche Bank 

	

11 	initiated Zreclosure by recording a notice of default. Debtors then elected to enter the 

	

12 	Foreclosure Mediation Progam per Nevada Revised Statutes, Section 107. 

	

13 	After two unsuccessful attempts at mediation, Debtors petitioned for judicial review and a 

	

14 	Nevada district court fOund that Deutsche Bank had not acted in good faith during the mediation 

	

15 	Moniierth v. One Wen Bank, No. A-09-609899-J (Nev. Dist, Ct., March 19, 2012), Deutsche 

	

16 	Bank then filed another notice o f default. Debtors again elected to mediate, and a mediation date 

	

17 	was set for November 29, 2011. Debtors, however, filed k.r Chapter 13 bankruptcy on November 

	

18 	15, 2011, and thus the mediation never occurred. The Debtors confirtned their Chapter 13 plan on 

	

19 	September 21, 2012. 

	

20 	As set fbrth in note 1., no one disputes that, when the Debtors filed their bankruptcy =se, 

	

21 	Deutsche Bank was the Note's holder and MERS was the beneficiary under the Deed ofTnast. 

	

22 	MERS, however, purported to assign its interest in the Deed of Trust on November 25, 2011, 

23 

	

24 	
'The parties have not disputed that Deutsche Bank possesses the original Note, properly 

	

25 
	endorsed to it, and thus is the Note's holder. Nev. Ray. STAT. §§ 104.3201, 104.3204 (2011), 

References in this certification to Deutsche Bank are intended to be references to its agents, 

	

26 
	

OneWcst Bank and IndylViac Mortgage Services, as appropriate, 

2 
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1 	some ten days after the Debtors filed their Chapter 13 bankruptcy (the "Assitannent"). The 

	

2 	Assignment was not recorded until December 23, 2011, when it was filed in the. office of thc 

	

3 	Clark County Recorder. This was more than a month after the Debtors filed their bankruptcy 

	

4 	case. Before the Assignment was recorded, Deutsche Bank had filed its proof of claim in the 

	

5 	Debtors' bankruptcy case under II U.S.C. § 501, stating that it was a secured creditor of Debtors' 

	

6 	bankruptcy estate. 

On September 5, 2012, alleging that Debtors had not made sufficient payments 

	

8 	postpetition, Deutsche Bank moved for relief from the automatic stay under 11 U.S.C. § 362 to 

	

9 	enable it to foreclose on the Property. Later that month, the Nevada Supreme Court published 

	

10 	Edelstein. The Debtors then promptly objected to Deutsche Bank's standing to bring a motion for 

	

11 	relief from stay as a secured creditor, and objected to Deutsche Bank's proof ofclaim to the 

	

12 	extent that the claim was asserted as secured. In both pleadings, the Debtors contended that the 

	

13 	Note and Deed of T11.1St were split as of the date of their banktuptcy filing, and that the automatic 

	

14 	stay tendered void any attempts to reuni6 ,  them, including the purported postpdition assignment 

	

15 	of the Deed of Trust to Deutsche Bank, In their view, Deutsche Bank held, at most, an unsecured 

	

16 	claim against the Debtors. 

	

17 	This court consolidated the claim objection with the request for relief from stay and held 

	

18 	hearings on January 15,2013. For the reasons stated below, this court cannot decide either matter 

	

19 	without a definitive ruling from the Nevada Supreme Court on the question left open in footnote 

	

20 	14 ofEdelstein. 

	

21 	W. 	Nature of Controversy and Need for Decision— NE's). R. APP. P. 5(0(3) 

	

22 	Under the Bankruptcy Code, once an objection to a claim is made, 

	

23 	the court, after notice and a hearing, shall determine the amount of such claim in 
lawful currency of the United States as of the date of the filing of the petition, and 

	

24 	shall allow such claim in such amount, except to the extent that: 
(1) such claim is unenforceable against the debtor and 

	

25 	 property of the debtor, under .. applicable law , 

	

26 	11 U.S.C. § 502(b) (2011) (emphasis supplied). 

3 
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1 	 The italicized language is the root of the issue. Section 502(b) requires determination of 

	

2 	the claim as of the date ofthe petition, here November 15, 2011. But the beneficial interest in the 

	

3 	Deed of Trust was not filrmally assigned to Deutsche Bank until over a month later, on December 

	

4 	23,2011. 

	

5 	Under Edelstein, the use of MER.S as the initial beneficiary of the Deed of Trust splits the 

	

6 	note and deed of trust, subject to a later reunification, 286 P.3d at 252. In Edelstein, the 

	

7 	reunification had occurred before the initiation of foreclosure, so the Nevada Supreme Court did 

	

8 	not have to address the issue of what would have happened ifreunification had not occurred. As 

	

9 	it said in footnote 14: 

	

10 	 Because it is not at issue in this ease, we need not address what occurs when the 

promissory note and the deed of trust remain split at the time of the foreclosure. 

	

11 	 See, e.g., U.S. flank Nat'l Assn v. lbane2, 458 Mass. 637, 652, 941 N.E. 2d 40, 

53-54 (2011) (discussing what occurs in instances "where a note has been 

	

12 	 [transferred] but there is no written assignment of the [deed] underlying the note'), 

	

13 	Edelstein, 286 P.3d at 262 n.14. 

	

14 	Under Section 502(b), as set F3rth above, the status of the claim as secured or unsecured is 

	

15 	viewed as o fthe time of the filing Ef there are infirmities in the legal claim oldie creditor as of 

	

16 	the date of the filing, the creditor may nor correct them.' 11 U.S.C. § 362(a)(3)-(6) (2011), 

	

17 	 If footnote 14 is read to require unification of the note and deed of trust as a condition of 

	

18 	secured status, and correlatively as a condition of being able to foreelose, then Debtors' objections 

	

19 	to Deutsche Bank's standing and its secured status are valid. See Edelstein, 286 P.3d at 262 n.14; 

	

20 	see also Leyva v, Nat'l Default Servicing Corp., 255 P.3c11275, 1279-80 (Nev. 2011) 

	

21 	(recognizing that the note and the deed of trust must be held by the same person to foreclose 

	

22 	under NRS Chapter 107). 

23 

2Althoup,h there are some exceptions, none cover the activities in this case. See. e.g., II. 

U.S.C. § 362(b)(3) (2011) (allowing mechanics' liens claimants to file postpetition notices as 

contemplated by 11 U.S.C. § 546(b) and allowing postpetition perfection ofpurchase money liens 

as contemplated by II U.S.C. § 547(e)(2XA)), 

4 

49 

24 

25 

26 
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1 	Another possible reading oflhotnotc 14, however, is that the Nevada Supreme Court 

2 	could rule that a %roelosum corrunenced with split documents should be dismissed without 

3 	prejudice, thus giving the emlitor a chance to retaii6 ,  the instruments and restart the foreclosure 

4 	process. This would be consistent with the thread of Edelstein holding that splitting the note and 

5 	deed oftrust is not irrevocable. 

6 	This option, however, would not satisfactorily resolve the issues before the bankruptcy 

7 	court. The Bankruptcy Code's automatic stay provision, found in 11 U.S.C. § 362(a), actively 

8 	prevents creditors, once a petition is filed, from improving their legal position against debtors and 

their estates. Among other things, the automatic stay prevents creditors from perflortning: 

(3) any act to obtain possession of property of the estate or of property from 
the estate or to exercise control over property of the estate; 

(4) any act to create, perfect, or enforce any lien against property ofthe 
estate; 

(5) any act to create, perfect, or enforce against property of the debtor any 
lien to the extent that such lien secures a claim that arose before the 
commencement of the ease under this title; [and] 

(6) any act to collect, assess, or recover a claim against the debtor that arose 
before the commencement of the ease under this title[.) 

II U.S.C. § 362(a) (2011). 

As a result, any transkr of a property interest that betters the creditor's position, such as 

by perfecting its interest, is prohibited. id § 362(a)(4), Moreover, at least in the Ninth Circuit, 

actions taken in violation of the stay are void. Schwartz v, U.S (hi re Schwartz), 954 F.2d 569, 

571 (9th Cir. 1992) (citing Williams v. United Inv. Carp. (In re Williams), 124 13.R. 311,316 

(Bankr. C.D. Cal. 1991) Mho Ninth Circuit adheres to the general rule that actions taken in 

violationofthe automatic stay are void and without effect.")). Thus, if the stay applied to the 

December 23 Assignment, and if that Assignment or its recordation fell within the prohbition of 

Section 362(a), Deutsche Bank cannot rely on the Assignment to reunify the Note and Deed or 

Trust. 

The automatic stay does not, however, preclude creditors from performing certain 

"ministeriar acts. McCarthy, Johnson & Miller v. N. Bay Plumbing, Inc, (In re Pettit), 217 F.3d 

5 

50 
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1 	1072, 1080 (9th Gir, 2000); Scares v, Brockton Credit Union (fare Soares), 107 F.3d 969, 974 

	

2 	(1st Cir, 1997), "A ministerial act is one that is essentially clerical in nature .. . when an 

	

3 	official's duty is delineated by .. a law or a judicial decree with such crystalline clarity that 

	

4 	nothing is lett to the exercise oft° official's discretion or judgrnent[1" hi re Soarer, 107 F.3d at 

	

5 	973-74 (citing U.S. ex rel. McLennan v. Wilbur, 283 U.S. 414, 420 (1931); BLACK'S LAW 

	

6 	DICTIONARY 996 (Brian A. Gamer 	6th ed. 1990)). The current version of Black's Law 

	

7 	Dictionary similarly defines a ministerial act as la)n act performed without the independent 

	

8 	exercise Of diSeretiorI or judgment." BLACK'S LAW DICTIONARY 28 (Brian A. Gamer ed., 9th ccl. 

	

9 	2009). Ilterefom, if recording the Assignment was a ministerial act, then Deutsche Bank did not 

	

10 	violate the automatic stay and conk! have continued with the foreclosure notwithstanding the 

	

1.1 	norainification of the Note and Deed of Trust on the date the Debtors filed bankruptcy. 

	

12 	The characterization of the effect of the Assignment is, at heart, a determination of Nevada 

	

13 	state property law. To the extent that the Nevada Supreme Gout confirms that recording an 

	

14 	assignment o f a deed of trust is the transfer ofa property intemst — a conclusion ineshadowed in 

	

15 	large part by the change in Nevada law in 2011 to require that "any assignment of the beneficial 

	

16 	interest under a deed of trust must be recorded," NEV. REV. STAT. *106,210 (2011) (amended by 

	

17 	2011 Nev. Stat., ch. 81, § 1, at 327 1) — then the Assignment is void as against the Debtors under 

	

18 	bankruptcy law.' 

	

19 	There are thus potentially two issues that must be answered, The first is whether and how 

	

20 	a creditor can reunify a deed of trust and a promissory note. If initiating foreclosure with split 

21 

22 

6 

51 

3Tlic date of the Assignment is after the effective date of*  106.210, 

"The contractual assignment between MERS and Deutsche Bank would appear to involve 
a transaction between two non-debtors, and thus not subject to the automatic stay. This 
certification thus buses on the recordation of the Assignment as the transfer of some interest 
the Property that might violate the automatic stay in the sense that recordation gives a creditor 

25 

	

	better rights against the Debtors than it bekl before the recordation. Even if this court's 
interpretation is incorrect about thc contractual assignment on November 25, that date is still after 

26 	the date of the co mincncernent of Debtors' bankruptcy case. 

23 

24 
	in 
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instruments creates an irrevocable split, then under federal bankruptcy law there would be no 

"cause" to lit the automatic stay to allow Ppreelost= because reunification would not be possible 

	

3 	and the creditor could never have standing to foreclose. 11 U.S.C. § 362(d)(I) (2011). 

	

4 	1fthe foreclosure would simply be dismissed without prejudice, or there would be some 

	

5 	other nonfirtal consequence of premature initiation, and reunifcation is possible, the second issue 

	

6 	is the nature of the assignment of a deed of trust that efitctuates the reunification. Ifrecording 

	

7 	such an assignment is a purely ministerial act, then it would not violate the automatic stay. 

	

8 	Alternatively, if such assignments alter the substantive rights ofthe debtor or the bankruptcy 

	

9 	estate, then they could only validly occur if the bankruptcy court grunted relief from the automatic 

	

10 	stay, 

	

11 	If the Nevada Supremo Court determines that the recordation of the Assignment is 

	

12 	ministerial in nature, Deutsche Bank's postpetition actions may have sufficed to reunify the Note 

	

13 	and Deed of Mist and Deutsche Bank would thus have "cause" for relief from the automatic stay. 

	

14 	Any other result would !cave the Note unsecured and thus dischargeable on the completion of 

	

15 	Debtors' plan payments. 

	

16 	IV. 	Names of the Parties — NEV. IL  APP. P. 5(c)(3) 

	

17 	The parties are Bryce and Mak Montierth, the Chapter 13 Debtors, and Deutsche Bank, 

	

18 	the creditor. 

	

19 	V. 	Names and Addresses of Counsel-- NEv. IL APP. P. 5(0(5) 

	

20 	Counsel for Deutsche Bank: 
GregoryG Wilde, Esq. 

	

21 	Matthew K. Scluiever, Esq. 
Tiffany and Bosco, P.A. 

	

22 	212 S. Jones Blvd. 
Las Vegas, NV 89107 

23 
Counsel thr Debtors -, 

	

24 	David Crosby, Esq. 
Troy Pox, Esq, 

25 Crosby and Fox, [IC 
711 S. Eighth St 

	

26 	Las Vcgts, NV 89101 

7 
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I 	VI. 	Costs of Certification 

	

2 	Because the bankruptcy estate is insolvent and given the importance of this issue, this 

	

3 	court respectfully asks the Supmtre Court to waive the costs of certification 

	

4 	VII. Order Regarding Certification 

	

5 	Having complied with the provisions ofNev. R. App. P. 5(c), 

	

6 	IT IS ORDERED that upon entry, the Clerk ofColut shall thrward this Order to the 

	

7 	Supreme Court of the State o f Nevada, Capital Complex, 201 South Carson St, Carson City, 

	

8 	Nevada 89701, under seal of the Clerk o f this court; and 

	

9 	IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that upon receipt ofthe opinion attic Nevada Supreme 

	

10 	Court, this matter shall be transferred to the Bankruptcy Cotut for further proceedings consistent 

	

11 	with the opinion of the Nevada Supreme Coutt. 

12  

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 
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T Newbe 
141111111011111 

From: 

Sent 
To: 

Cc: 
Subject: 

Christopher Hunter <chunter@McCarthyHolthus.com › 

Friday, May 03, 2013 8:54 AM 

T Newberry 
IDSMH 
Nationstar v Rodriguez/NV-11-478461-JUD 

Ms. Newberry: I received your phone call regarding my summary judgment motion. There is nothing to be puzzled 
about. Under the rules I can move for summary judgment at any time. I have a complete, comprehensive package to 

present to the court and your client hasn't made a payment in three and one half years. Your client already had one 

chance to step up in mediation and wasn't interested. 

Regarding discovery, consider this our 16.1 meeting if you like. If you want discovery you can prepare a JCCR, standard 

180 days to discovery bar date, plug in the other dates, disclosures within 10 days and send to me to sign. Thanks. 

Regards, 

Chris Hunter 

9510 West Sahara, Suite 110 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89117 
Phone: (702) 685-0329 Ext. 3748 

Fax: (866) 339-5691 
chunter@mccarthvholthus.com   
www,mccarthy-holthus.com   

Service second to none 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This e-mail m essage is a confidential communication and the 
information contained herein may be privileged and protected by the attorney/client and/or other 
privilege. It is confidential in nature and intended for use by the intended addressee only. If you are not 

the intended recipient, you are hereby expressly prohibited from dissemination distribution, copy or any 
use whatsoever of this transmission and its contents.. If you have received this message in error, or are 
not the named or intended recipient(s), please immediately notify the sender at 702-685-0329 and delete 
this e-mail message and any attachments from your workstation or network mail system. If necessary 
arrangements will be made to retrieve the originals from you at no charge. 

Federal law requires us to advise you that communication with our office could be interpreted as an attempt 

to collect a debt and that any information obtained will be used for that purpose. 

REJN EY, 10_0V)0055 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA 

MICHEAL L. JONES 
	 CIVIL ACTION 

VERSUS 
	 NO. 12-1362 

WELLS FARGO HOME MORTGAGE, 	 SECTION "B" 

INC. 

OPINION  

Before the Court is Appellant Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.'s Appeal 

from a decision of the United States Bankruptcy Court for the 

Eastern District of Louisiana Adversary Case No. 06-1093 (Adv. R. 

Does. 470 and 471). (Rec. Doc. No. 11). Appellee Michael L. Jones 

filed a response brief. (Rec. Doc. No. 12). Appellant filed a reply 

brief thereto. (Rec. Doc. No. 13). 

Appellant, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 	("Wells Fargo") has 

submitted the following Statement of Issues on Appeal from the 

Judgment of the Bankruptcy Judge entered on April 5, 2012. (Adv. 

R. Does. 470 and 471): 

(1) Whether the Bankruptcy Court erred in awarding punitive 

damages in light of Jones' failure to appeal the 

Bankruptcy Court's initial August 29, 2007 judgment 

denying punitive damages. (Rec. Doc. No. 1-3, at 2). 

(2) Whether the Bankruptcy Court erred in failing to afford 

Wells Fargo due process, including: 

1 
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(a) imposing punitive damages and contempt sanctions 

for alleged conduct that occurred not only in this 

case but also in other cases after the Bankruptcy 

court's August 29, 2007 judgment (Id.); 

(b) imposing punitive damages and contempt sanctions 

without (i) notice to Wells Fargo that the Court 

was contemplating contempt sanctions and (ii) Wells 

Fargo both being apprised of all the evidence upon 

which the Court would rest its adjudication and 

having an opportunity for a hearing appropriate to 

the nature of the case and the damages and 

sanctions the Court contemplated imposing (Id.); 

and 

(c) refusing Wells Fargo's request that the Bankruptcy 

Court take judicial notice of Wells Fargo's post-

judgment efforts to comply not only with the 

Bankruptcy Court's administrative order that 

resulted from its ruling in Jones, but also with 

the injunctions in this case and the Stewart case 

during the existence of those injunctions? (Id.). 

(3) Whether the Bankruptcy Court erred: 

(a) in awarding any punitive damages and, even if 

punitive damages were awardable, in setting the 

amount of those damages (Id.); and 

2 
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(b) in imposing any contempt sanction and, even if the 

Court had the authority to impose such a sanction 

and the sanction was justified, in setting the 

amount of that sanction. (Id.). 

Appellant only substantively addresses issues 1, 2(a), and 3 

in its briefs. Thus, the Court will only address those issues. 

Accordingly, and for the reasons articulated below, IT IS ORDERED 

that the opinion of the Bankruptcy Court is AFFIRMED. 

Cause of Action and Facts of the Case:  

This matter was on remand to the United States Bankruptcy 

Court in the Eastern District of Louisiana from the Fifth Circuit 

and the District Court. (Rec. Doc. No. 1-2, at 1). The mandate 

required reconsideration of monetary sanctions in light of In re 

Stewart, 647 F. 3d 553 (5th Cir. 2011). 

This adversary proceeding was originally filed by Michael L. 

Jones, debtor ("Jones" or "Debtor") in an effort to recoup 

overpayments made to Wells Fargo on his home mortgage loan. (Rec. 

Doc. No. 1-2, at 2). The complaint requested return of the 

overpayments, reimbursement of actual damages, and punitive damages 

for violation of the automatic stay. (Id.). At trial, the parties 

severed Debtor's request for compensatory and punitive damages from 

the merits of Debtor's claim for return of overpayments. (Id., at 

3). 

3 
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On April 13, 2007, the Bankruptcy Court entered an Opinion and 

Partial Judgment awarding Jones $24,441.65, plus legal interest for 

amounts overcharged by Wells Fargo. (Id.). Additionally, the 

Opinion found Wells Fargo to be in violation of the automatic stay 

because it applied post-petition payments made by Jones and his 

trustee to undisclosed post-petition fees and costs not authorized 

by the Court, noticed to Debtor or his trustee, and in 

contravention of Debtor's confirmed plan of reorganization and the 

Confirmation Order. (Id.). Wells Fargo was found to be willful and 

egregious in its conduct. (Id.). 

A second hearing on sanctions, damages, and punitive relief 

was held on May 29,- 2007. (Id.). At the hearing, Wells Fargo 

offered to implement several remedial measures designed to correct 

systemic problems with its accounting of home mortgage loans 

("Accounting Procedures"). The new Accounting Procedures were 

negotiated between the Bankruptcy Court and Wells Fargo's 

representative. (Id.). They were embodied in a subsequent 

Supplemental Memorandum Opinion, Amended Judgment, and 

Administrative Order 2008-1. (Id., at 3-4). The Amended Judgment 

also awarded Jones $67,202.45 in compensatory sanctions for 

attorney's fees and costs. (Id., at 4). It also ordered that the 

agreed upon new Accounting Procedures be instituted in lieu of 

punitive damages. (See Jones v. Wells Fargo, CV 09-07635, Rec. Doc. 

No. 11, at 2). Following the agreement and issuance of a judgment 

4 

RFJN_EX 22_ 000004 

2049 



Case 2:12-cv-01362-ILRL-JCW Document 16 Filed 03/19113 Page 5 of 21 

and order, Wells Fargo reversed its legal position and appealed the 

Amended Judgment to the District Court. (Id.). On appeal, the 

District Court affirmed the findings of the bankruptcy court and, 

increased the compensatory civil award to $170,824,96. (Td.). 

However, because Wells Fargo withdrew its consent to the 

nonmonetary relief ordered, the issue of punitive damages was 

remanded for further findings and consideration. (Id.). Wells Fargo 

appealed the District Court remand, but the Fifth Circuit dismissed 

the appeal for lack of jurisdiction. (Id.). 

On October 1, 2009, the Bankruptcy Court imposed the original 

sanctions ordered (the Accounting Procedures) in lieu of punitive 

damages. Jones v. Wells Fargo Home Mortgage, Inc., 418 B.R. 607 

(Bankr. E.D.La. 2009). Based on the findings of the District Court, 

the Bankruptcy Court also entertained Jones' request for an 

increase in compensatory sanctions. (Id.). Wells Fargo opposed the 

request, but settled the matter for an undisclosed stipulated 

amount. (Id.). Jones appealed the denial of punitive damages. 

(Id.). On August 24, 2010, the District Court affirmed the Partial 

Judgment on Remand. (Id., at 5). Again, Jones appealed the denial 

of punitive relief to the Fifth Circuit. (Id.). 

The Stewart Case: On August 23, 2007, more than four months 

after the Bankruptcy Court entered its initial opinion in the Jones 

case, Ms. Dorothy Stewart filed an Objection to the Proof of Claim 

of Wells Fargo in her (separate) bankruptcy case also pending in 

5 
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this district. (Id.). The Objection alleged in part that the amount 

claimed by Wells Fargo in its proof of claim was incorrect because 

prepetition payments had been improperly applied. (Id.). The 

Memorandum Opinion issued in the Stewart case found that Wells 

Fargo misapplied her payments in a fashion identical to Jones. See 

In re Stewart, 391 B.R. 327 (Bankr. E.D.La. 2008). As with the 

("ones decision, Wells Fargo's actions resulted in an incorrect 

amortization of Ms.Stewart's debt and the imposition of 

unauthorized or unwarranted fees and costs. (Rec. Doc. No. 1-2, at 

5). Because Wells Fargo's failure was a breach of its obligations 

under the Partial judgment on Remand, it was ordered to audit every 

borrower with a case pending in this district for compliance with 

the Accounting Procedures. (Id.). The Stewart judgment was affirmed 

by the District Court. after Wells Fargo appealed. Wells Fargo then 

appealed the Stewart judgment to the Fifth Circuit. (Id.). The 

Fifth Circuit affirmed the findings and compensatory award 

contained in the Stewart Judgment. In re Stewart, 647 F.3d 553 (5th 

Cir. 2011). However, the Fifth Circuit also found that the order 

requiring audits of debtor accounts was beyond the Bankruptcy 

Court's jurisdiction. (Rec. Doc. No. 1-2, at 5). As a result, that 

portion of the relief was vacated. (Id.). The Stewart appeal 

preceded hearing on the Jones appeal. (Id.). In light of Stewart, 

the Fifth Circuit remanded the Partial Judgment on Remand for 

consideration of alternative, punitive monetary sanctions. (Id.). 

6 
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In the 2012 Bankruptcy court judgment appealed from here ( 

Jones v. Wells Fargo Home Mortg., Inc., 06-1094 (Banks. E.D.La. 

Apr.5, 2012)), found that Wells Fargo willfully violated the 

automatic stay imposed by 11 U.S.C. § 362 when it: 

charged Debtor's account with unreasonable fees and 
costs; failed to notify Debtor that any of these post-
petition chargers were being added to his account; failed 
to seek Court approval for same; and paid itself out of 
estate funds delivered to it for payment of other debt. 

(Rec. Doc. No. 1-2, at 6). 

The Bankruptcy Court imposed $3,171,154.00 in punitive damages 

on Wells Fargo in connection with its violation of the automatic 

stay in Jones' bankruptcy case. (Rec. Doc. No.1-2, at 21). The 

issues in this appeal concern only the propriety of the $3.171 

million punitive damage award in Jones VIII. 

Law and Analysis  

A. Standard of Review 

"A bankruptcy court's findings of fact are subject to clearly 

erroneous review, while its conclusions of law are reviewed de 

novo." Pro-Snax Distributors, Inc. v, Family Snacks, Inc., 157 F.3d 

414, 420 (5th Cir. 1998). 

B. Jones Did Not Waive His Claim for Punitive Damages and thus, the 

Claim is not Barred 

The waiver doctrine arises as a result of a party's inaction. 

It holds that "an issue that could have been but was not raised on 

7 
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appeal" is prevented from being considered on a second appeal. 

Lindquist v. City of Pasadena Texas, 669 F.3d 225, 239 (5th Cir. 

2012). "The doctrine promotes procedural efficiency and prevents 

the bizarre result that a party who has chosen not to argue a point 

on a first appeal should stand better as regards the law of the 

case than one who had argued and lost." Id., at 239-240 (internal 

citation omitted). However, an issue is not waived if there was no 

reason to raise it on first appeal or if it could not have been 

raised on first appeal. U.S. v. Lee, 358 F.3d 315, 323-24 (5th Cir. 

2004). 

This case fits under Lee's articulation of a situation in 

which there was no reason to raise the issue on first appeal. 

Before the issuance of the Jones II decision (Jones v. Wells Fargo 

Home Mortgage, Inc., 2007 WL 2480494 (Bankr.E.D.La. 2007), Wells 

Fargo offered to implement several remedial measures designed to 

correct systemic problems with its accounting of home mortgage 

loans. (Rec. Doc. No. 1-2, at 3). The new Accounting Procedures 

were negotiated between the bankruptcy court and Wells Fargo's 

representative and were embodied in the Jones II opinion. (Id.). 

Following the issuance of that opinion, Wells Fargo reversed its 

legal position and appealed the Judgment to the District Court. 

(Id.). On appeal, the District court held that because Wells Fargo 

withdrew its consent to the nonmonetary relief ordered, the issue 

of what remedy should be imposed was remanded for further findings 
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and consideration. (Id.). Thus, as Appellee Jones has pointed out, 

the District Court order in Jones III (Jones v. Wells Fargo Home 

Mortgage, Inc., 319 P.R. 577 (E.D.La. 2008)) nullified the earlier 

ruling on punitive damages. In this matter, the district court 

specifically ordered that a remedy be reconsidered because of the 

particular circumstances that Wells Fargo itself created. There was 

no reason for Jones to appeal a ruling that was subsequently 

nullified. Thus, the Bankruptcy Court was correct in considering 

Jones' claim for punitive damages. INTesizated-the.•inclinatIon=i 

consf.derWI: 3  2argals=ration.aIe:Jie .re:••as S tr volous - obstructIon 

:thatneedd ,es:say:delays. :and::shockingly -haresses. : .th-ends .of4u 

C. The Bankruptcy Court Did Not Err in Awarding and Calculating 
Punitive Damages  

The Bankruptcy Court's finding that Wells Fargo willfully 

violated the automatic stay imposed by 11 U.S.C. 5 362 is not at 

issue. (Rec. Doc. No. 1-2, at 10). Section 362 allows for the award 

of actual damages, including costs and attorneys' fees, as a reSult 

of a stay violation, and punitive damages "in appropriate 

circumstances." 11 U.S.C. § 362(k). Cases interpreting the standard 

for "appropriate circumstances" have indicated that punitive 

damages can be supported when the conduct at issue is intentional 

and egregious, In re Ketelsen, 880 F.2d 990, 993 (8th Cir. 1989), 

or when the defendant acted in "bad faith," or with actual 
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knowledge that he was violating the federally protected right or 

with reckless disregard of whether he was doing so." In re Sanchez, 

372 B.R. 289, 315 (Bankr. S.D. Tex. 2007). 

We accept the Bankruptcy Court's findings of fact as true and 

substantially supported by the record. Wells Fargo knew of Debtor's 

pending bankruptcy and Wells Fargo is a sophisticated lender with 

thousands of claims in bankruptcy cases pending throughout the 

country. It is familiar with the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, 

particularly those regarding automatic stay. (Rec. Doc. No. 1-2, at 

11). Wells Fargo assessed postpetition charges on this loan while 

in bankruptcy. (Id.). Despite assessing postpetition charges, Wells 

Fargo withheld this fact from its borrower and diverted payments 

made by the trustee and Debtor to satisfy claims not authorized by 

the plan or Court. (Id.). Wells Fargo admitted that these actions 

were part of its normal course of conduct, practiced in perhaps 

thousands of cases. (Id.). Considering these facts, the Bankruptcy 

Court found that Wells Fargo's conduct was willful, egregious and 

exhibited a reckless disregard for the stay it violated. (Id.). 

Punitive damages serve a function broader than compensatory 

damages - "they are aimed at deterrence and retribution." State 

Farm Mut. Auto. Ins. Co. v. Campbell, 538 U.S. 408, 416 (2003) 

(citing Cooper Industries, Inc. v. Leatherman Tool Group, Inc., 532 

U.S. 424, 432 (2001)). "Punitive damages may properly be imposed 

to further a State's legitimate interests in punishing unlawful 

10 

RFJN_EX 22_ 0000010 

2055 



Case 2:12-cv-01362-ILRL-JCW Document 16 Filed 03/19/13 Page 11 of 21 

conduct and deterring its repetition." BMW of North America, Inc. 

v. Gore, 517 U.S. 559, 568 (1996). However, although the State 

possesses "discretion over the imposition of punitive damages, it 

is well established that there are procedural and substantive 

constitutional limitations on these awards." State Farm, 538 U.S., 

at 416. "The Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment 

prohibits imposition of grossly excessive or arbitrary punishments 

on a tortfeasor." Id. In light of these concerns, the Supreme Court 

has established three factors for courts to consider when reviewing 

punitive damages: (1) the degree of reprehensibility of the 

defendant's misconduct; (2) the disparity between the actual or 

potential harm suffered by the plaintiff and the punitive damages 

award; and (3) the difference between the punitive damages awarded 

by the jury and the civil penalties authorized or imposed in 

comparable cases. Id., at 418 (citing Gore, 517 U.S., at 575). 

(i) Degree of reprehensibility 

The Supreme Court has stated that "the most important indicum 

of the reasonableness of a punitive damages award is the degree of 

reprehensibility of the defendant's conduct." State Farm, 538 U.S., 

at 419 (quoting Gore, 517 U.S., at 575). "[I]nfliction of economic 

injury, especially when done intentionally through affirmative acts 

of misconduct, or when the target is financially vulnerable, can 

warrant a substantial penalty." Gore, 517 U.S., at 576. The Court 
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in Gore further stated that: 

"evidence that a defendant has repeatedly engaged in 
prohibited conduct while knowing or suspecting that it was 
unlawful would provide relevant support for an argument that 
strong medicine is required to cure the defendant's disrespect 
for the law. Our holdings that a recidivist may be punished 
more severely than a first offender recognize that repeated 
misconduct is more reprehensible than an individual instance 
of malfeasance." 

Id., at 576-77. 

In Philip Morris USA v. Williams, 549 U.S. 346, 355 (2007), 

the Supreme Court clarified that evidence of harm to non-parties to 

the litigation is relevant to the reprehensibility factor in 

assessing punitive damages. Further, "heavier punitive awards have 

been thought to be justifiable when wrongdoing is hard to detect 

(increased chances of getting away with it), or when the value of 

the injury and the corresponding compensatory award are small 

(providing low incentives to sue)." Exxon Shipping Co. v. Baker, 

554 U.S. 471, 494 (2008). 

Appellant Wells Fargo argues that the Bankruptcy Court's 

Punitive damages award in Jones VIII was made regarding conduct 

that was dissimilar to and independent ofthe Jones stay violation 

and that under Philip Morris, punitive damages may not be imposed 

for harm to third parties. (Rec. Doc. No. 11, at 39). However, as 

noted earlier, the Supreme Court has said that damage to third 

parties may be taken into consideration in an assessment of 

reprehensibility. The Bankruptcy Court decision below considered 
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Wells Fargo's practice of violating 362(k) stays, assessing fees 

against debtors without notice and the difficulty of any one debtor 

uncovering Wells Fargo's actions. The Bankruptcy Court made the 

following findings of fact and assessments regarding the degree of 

reprehensibility of Wells Fargo's Actions: 

Wells Fargo did not adjust Jones' loan as current on the 
petition date and instead continued to carry the past due 
amounts contained in the its proof of claim in Jones' 
balance. It also misapplied funds regardless of source or 
intended application, to pre and post-petition charges, 
interest and non-interest bearing debt in contravention 
of the note, mortgage, plan, and confirmation order. 
Wells Fargo assessed and paid itself post-petition fees 
and charges without approval from the Court or notice to 
Jones. The net effect of Wells Fargo's actions was an 
overcharge in excess of $24,000. When Jones questioned 
the amounts owed, Wells Fargo refused to explain its 
calculations or provide an amortization schedule. When 
Jones sued Wells Fargo, it again failed to properly 
account for its calculations. After judgment was awarded, 
Wells Fargo fought the compensatory portion of the award 
despite never challenging the calculations of the 
overpayment. In fact, Wells Fargo's initial legal 
position both before this Court and in its first appeal 
denied any responsibility to refused payments demanded in 
error. The cost to Jones was hundreds of thousands of 
dollars in legal fees and five years of litigation. 

(Rec. Doc. No. 1-2, at 13). 

Wells Fargo has taken the position that every debtor in 
the district should be made to challenge, by separate 
suit, the proofs of claim or motions for relief from the 
automatic stay it files. It has steadfastly refused to 
audit its pleadings or proofs of claim for errors and has 
refused to voluntarily correct any errors that come to 
light except through threat of litigation. Although its  
own representatives have admitted that it routinely 
misapplied payments on loans and improperly charged fees,  
they have refused to correct past errors. They stubbornly 
insist on limiting any change in their conduct 
prospectively, even as they seek to collect on loans in 
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other cases for amounts owed in error. Wells Fargo's 
conduct is clandestine. Rather than provide Jones with a 
complete history of his debt on an ongoing basis, Wells 
Fargo simply stopped communicating with Jones once it 
deemed him in default. At that point, in time, fees and 
costs were assessed against his account and satisfied 
with post-petition payments intended for other debt 
without notice. Only through litigation was this practice 
discovered. Wells Fargo admitted to the same practices 
for all other loans in bankruptcy or default. 

(Id., at 15-16)(emphasis added). 

Over eighty percent of chapter 13 debtors in this 
district have incomes of less than $40,000 per year. The 
burden of extensive discovery and delay is particularly 
overwhelming. In [the Bankruptcy Court's] experience, it 
takes 4 to 6 months for Wells Fargo to produce a simple 
accounting of a loan's history and over 4 court hearings. 
Most debtors simply do not have the personal resources to 
demand the production of a simple accounting for their 
loans, much less verify its accuracy, through a 
litigation process. Well Fargo has taken advantage of 
borrowers who rely on it to accurately apply payments and 
calculate the amounts owed...[it relies] on the ignorance 
of borrowers or their inability to fund a challenge to 
its demands, rather than voluntarily relinquish gains 
obtained through improper accounting methods...[W]hen 
exposed, it revealed its true corporate character by 
denying any obligation to correct its past transgressions 
and mounting a legal assault to ensure it never had to. 
Society requires that those in business conduct 
themselves with honestly and fair dealing. Thus, there is 
a strong societal interest in deterring such future 
conduct through the imposition of punitive relief. 

(Id., at 16). 

Based upon the factual record before it, the Bankruptcy Court 

was correct in deeming Wells Fargo's behavior reprehensible and 

finding that an award of punitive damages was appropriate. 

(ii) The ratio between the punitive damages and the actual harm 
inflicted on the plaintiff was not excessive. 
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Exemplary damages must bear a "reasonable relationship" to 

compensatory damages. Gore, 517 U.S., at 580. The proper inquiry 

for this factor is "whether there is a reasonable relationship 

between the punitive damages award and the harm likely to result 

from the defendant's conduct as well as the harm that actually has 

occurred." Id., at 581 (internal citation omitted). The Supreme 

Court has reiterated that it has "consistently rejected the notion 

that the constitutional line [between acceptable and unacceptable 

punitive damages] is marked by a simple mathematical formula, even 

one that compares actual and potential damages to the punitive 

award." Id. Low awards of compensatory damages may support a higher 

ratio than high compensatory awards, if, for example, a 

particularly egregious act has resulted in only a small amount of 

economic damages. Id. Higher ratios may also be justified in cases 

in which the injury is hard to detect. Id., at 582. 

The Fifth.Circui.thas 	interpreted iloretosuggested 	bha 	"a 

court should 	aqqregat .... 	 bai rn 	.... 

Watson v. Johnson Mobile Homes, et al., 284 F.3d 568, 573 (5th Cir. 

2002). Furthermore, the Supreme Court has stated that "[l]t is 

appropriate to consider the magnitude of the potential harm that 

the defendant's conduct would have caused to its intended victim if 

the wrongful plan had succeeded, as well as the possible harm to 

other victims that might have resulted if similar future behavior 
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were not deterred." TKO Production Corp. v. Alliance Resources 

Corp., 509 U.S. 443, 460 (1993). 

Additionally, the Fifth Circuit has noted that the size of a 

corporation is a factor that is indicative of the reasonableness of 

a damages award. Eichenseer v. Reserve Life Ins. Co., 934 F.2d 

1377, 1383 (5th Cir. 1991). In that case, the Fifth Circuit held 

that an award that was close in proportion with the plaintiff's 

compensatory damages would have had little deterrent effect against 

a massive corporation. Id. As one of the fundamental purposes of 

punitive damages is to deter a wrongdoer from future misconduct, it 

is proper to consider the deterrent effect of an award. Id., at 

1384. 

The Supreme Court has deemed a variety of ratios between 

compensatory and punitive damages permissible, demonstrating that 

there is no absolute rule on the proper ratio to apply. See TKO, 

509 U.S., at 443 (the relevant ratio was not more than 10 to 1); 

Pacific Mutual Life Ins. Co. v. Easlip, 499 U.S. 1, 23-24 (1991) (4 

times the amount of compensatory damages might be "close to the 

line" but did not "cross the line into the area of constitutional 

impropriety"); Gore, 517 U.S., at 583 (a ratio of punitive damages 

that was over 500 times the amount of actual harm as determined by 

a jury justified the "rais[ing of] a judicial eyebrow"). Thus, the 

Bankruptcy Court was not required to maintain a strict ceiling on 

the ratio of compensatory to punitive damages. 
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The Bankruptcy Court considered the following in making its 

determination on punitive damages: 

Norwest Mortgage, Inc., n/k/a Wells Fargo was assessed 
$2,000,000 in exemplary damages for charging postpetition 
attorneys fees to debtors accounts without disclosing 
the fees to anyone. Slick v. Nerwest Mortgage, Inc., 2002 
Banks. Lexis 722 (Bankr.S.D.Ala.2002). Four years after 
the ruling in Slick, Jones found that Wells Fargo 
continued to charge undisclosed postpetition fees despite 
that multi-million dollar damage assessment. Following 
:Jones, Wells Fargo was involved in at least two 
additional challenges to the calculation of its claims in 
[Bankruptcy] court. In both cases, the evidence revealed 
that Wells Fargo continued to improperly amortize loans 
by employing the same practices prohibited by Jones. (See 
In re Stewart, 391 B.R. 327 (Bankr.E.D.La. 2008); In re 
Fitch, 390 B.R. 834 (Bankr. B.D.La. 2008)). In short, 
Wells Fargo has shown no inclination to change its 
conduct. 

When necessary to deter reprehensible conduct, courts 
often award punitive damages in an amount multiple times 
greater than actual damages....Wells Fargo is the second 
largest loan servicer in the United States...Previous 
sanctions in Slick, Stewart, Fitch and even this case 
have not deterred Wells Fargo. As recognized in 
Eichenseer, if previous awards do not deter sanctionable 
conduct, larger awards may be necessary. 

(Rec. Doc. No. 1-2, at 18-19). 

Under the circumstances, a ratio of 1:10 - compensatory to 

punitive damages is reasonable to deter reprehensible conduct. 

(iii) The Bankruptcy's Court calculation of the base amount of 
damages was acceptable and Wells Fargo was sufficiently on notice 
that a severe punishment could be imposed to warrant the Bankruptcy 
Court's assessment of punitive damages. 

Wells Fargo argues that in Jones II, the court awarded Jones 
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and his counsel a total of $91,665.67 in actual damage, for pursing 

Wells Fargo's violation of the automatic stay. This award, they 

assert, was composed of compensatory damages, amounts that were 

voluntarily returned pre-judgment, sanctions, attorneys' fees and 

court costs, and interest on the voluntarily repaid sums. (Rec. 

Doc. No. 11, at 42). Wells Fargo argues that the $91,665.67 in 

actual damages, established in August 2007 before any appeals were 

taken or litigated, is the proper maximum "base" amount for any 

punitive damages award. (Id.). Instead, the Bankruptcy Court 

granted an additional. $224,449.73 in attorneys' fees Crones incurred 

after the Jones II judgment - resulting in a base amount of $317, 

115.40. Wells Fargo argues that the effect of including those fees 

as part of the baseline to which the punitive ratio was applied was 

to punish Wells Fargo for appealing. (Rec. Doc. No. 13, at 27). 

Wells Fargo submits that adding the appellate attorneys' fees to 

the baseline in calculating punitive damages punished Wells Fargo 

for exercising its First Amendment right to appeals. (Id., at 29). 

Wells Fargo submits that the "Ninth Circuit ruled in Landsberg v. 

Scrabble Crossword Game Players, Inc., 802 F.2d 1193, 1199 (9th 

Cir. 1986) that punitive damages may not be doubled on remand on 

account of intervening appellate litigation and that the Court held 

that increasing punitive damages after a party successfully 

appealed the prior judgment posed a 'chilling impediment to the 

right to appeal' and it vacated the punitive damages award on that 
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ground. (Id., at 43). 

In Landsberg, however, the defendants were not challenging the 

district court's award of attorney's fees for work done upon 

remand, they were challenging the direct doubling of a punitive 

award. 802 F. 2d, at 1199. In fact, the Court in that case concluded 

that "the [district] court did not abuse its discretion in awarding 

fees for the work upon remand." Id. The Landsberg Court did not 

discuss whether the award of attorney's fees affected the award of 

punitive damages. Additionally, in Landsberg, the district court 

had already issued a decision on punitive damages and then 

increased those damages on remand. In this case, the bankruptcy 

court issued a decision on punitive damages for the first time in 

the appealed decision at issue here. Furthermore, various courts 

have held that "the costs of litigation to vindicate rights is an 

appropriate element to consider in justifying a punitive damages 

award." Continental Trend Resources, Inc. v. OX)! USA, Inc., 101 

F.3d 634, 642 (10th Cir. 1996). This is particularly relevant in 

light of the fact that "[a] rich defendant may act oppressively and 

force or prolong litigation simply because it can afford to do so 

and a plaintiff may not be able to bear the costs and delay." Id. 

Thus, the Bankruptcy Court's calculation of the base award was 

reasonable. 

As the Bankruptcy Court noted, fairness requires that a person 

receive "fair notice not only of the conduct that will subject him 
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to punishment, but also the severity of the penalty." Gore, 517 

U.S., at 574. This implicates comparisons between the punitive 

damages awarded and the civil penalties authorized in comparable 

cases. In bankruptcy cases, this comparison can be difficult. 

"[Tihere is not a complex statutory scheme designed to respond to 

violations of the automatic stay other than the Bankruptcy code 

itself. Significantly, § 362(h) (now 362 (k))specifically provides 

for the award of punitive damages. Thus, creditors must be presumed 

to be on notice that if they violate the automatic stay, they will 

be liable for punitive damages." In re Johnson, Bankr. No. 06- 

02537-BGC-13, 2007 WL 2274715, *15 (Bankr.N.D.Ala. 2007)(citing In 

re Ocasio, 272 B.R. 815,827 (1 at Cir. 9AP 2002)). "Bankruptcy 

court decisions are far from uniform with respect to when and under 

what circumstances punitive damages are awarded." Id. "How a stay 

violator is treated in bankruptcy cases varies because of the many 

different circumstances that can arise." In re Johnson, 2007 WL 

2274715, *16. 

In this case, the Bankruptcy Court reasoned that: 

Wells Fargo is a sophisticated lender and a regular 
participant in bankruptcy proceedings throughout the 
country. It is represented by able counsel and well-
versed in the Bankruptcy Code and the provisions of 
automatic stay. Wells Fargo was on notice by the language 
of 362(k) that it could be subject to punitive damages, 
and it was on notice through jurisprudence that those 
damages could be severe." 

(Rec. Doc. No. 1-2, 20), see also In re Swilling, Adv. No. 08- 
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1016-WRS, 2008 WL 4999090, at *3 (Bankr. M.D.Ala 2008). 

Furthermore, other courts have reasoned that "sophisticated 

commercial enterprises have a clear obligation to adjust their 

programming and procedures.. .to handle complex matters correctly." 

In re McCormack, 203 B.R. 521, 525 (Bankr. N.H. 1996). 

Thus, Wells Fargo was on notice that its actions were 

impermissible and could incur significant penalties and assessing 

punitive damages at ten times the amount of compensatory damages is 

within the constitutional limits. 

Accordingly, for the reasons articulated above, IT IS 

ORDERED that the Bankruptcy .  Court's opinion is AFFIRMED. 

New Orleans, Louisiana, this 18 th  day of March, 2013. 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE 

RFJN_EX 22_ 0000021 
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COMES NOW Plaintiff, by and through its counsel of record, Christopher M. Hunter, 

Esq.; ofMcCarthy & Holthus, LLP, and files this Reply to the Opposition to the Motion for 

Summary Judgtnent filed by Defendant, Catherine Rodriguez ("Defendant"). 

This Reply is based upon this Notice, the attached Memorandum of Points and 

Authorities, and upon all pleadings and 4documents herein, as well as any argument that may 
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1 	 MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

2 

	

3 
	A. Plaintiff's motion is procedurally proper and supported by ample evidence 

	

4 
	Defendant alleges that Plaintiff has not provided any evidence to support the Motion. 

5 Accompanying the Motion for Summary Judgment is an Affidavit signed by an officer of 

6 the servicer of the loan on behalf of Plaintiff. Paragraphs 1 and 4 of the Affidavit allege that 

affiant is authorized to make the Affidavit and that Plaintiff is the owner and holder of the 
7 

note and the beneficiary of the deed of trust. A pay history is included, a summary of the 
8 

accounting on the loan is included and the acceleration letter is included. None of this is 

9 disputed by Defendant who is now three and one half years in default on the loan. 
10 

The chain of title on the loan is also included. The promissory note is endorsed by 

11 the original lender in blank. Plaintiff now has  possession of the note and may enforece the 

12 note. An endorsement in blank becomes payable to bearer and may be negotiated by transfer 

13 of possession alone. MRS 104.3205. The holder of an instrument is the person entitled to 

14 enforce the instrument. NRS 104.3301. 

	

15 	The chain of title also includes an assigtunent of record of the deed of trust showing 

16 transfer of the deed of trust to Plaintiff This is sufficient to satisfy the requirements of Leyva 

17 v. National Default Sveg. Corp., 127 Nev. Advance Opinion 40 (July 7, 2011) and Edelstein 

18 v. Bank of New York Mellon, 286 P.34 249, 128 Nev. Adv. Rep. 48 (Nev, 2012). This 

19 presentation is more than sufficient evidence under NRCP 56 to support the granting of 

20 summary judgment, particularly given that Defendants have provided absolutely no evidence 

21 to the contrary. 

22 

	

23 
	B. Defendant's reference to a mediation is improper 

	

24 
	

One of the two bases Defendant raises in her Opposition is a variety of documentation 

25 and information relating to her prior mediations. Nevada Mediation Rule 19 provides as 

26 follows: 

27 
1. All documents and discussions presented during the mediation shall be 

	

28 	deemed confidential aud inadmissible in any subsequent actions or 
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proceedings, except in an action for judicial review according to these rules. 
In that case, non-privileged evidence submitted for mediation is discoverable 
to the extent that it is relevant to a determination of bad faith, enforceability of 
agreements made between parties within the Program, including temporary 
agreements, and appropriate sanctions pursuant to NRS Chapter 107, as 
amended...  

All of this documentation and discussion is confidential and inadmissible because this is not 

an action for judicial review. As a result, under no circumstances can Defendant statements 

or arguments concerning mediation be considered here. 

Further, the suggestion that Plaintiff is usurping the Nevada Mediation Program has 

no merit whatsoever. The Nevada Supreme Court has ruled that if a non-judicial foreclosure 

and resulting mediation result in the non-issuance of a mediation certificate the lender is 

always free to initiate a new foreclosure. Holt v. Reel Serv. Corp., 266 P.3d 602, 127 

Nev. Adv. Rep. 80 (2011). Secondly, a lender is free to use its absolute discretion in 

initiating either a judicial or non-judicial foreclosure. See Edelstein v. Bank of New York 

Mellon, 286 P.3d 249, 128 Nev. Adv. Rep. 48 (Nev. 2012). Thus, Plaintiff is acting entirely 

'within its rights in prosecuting this judicial foreclosure. 

C. Defendant cites no support for her bankruptcy issues 

Defendant asks this Court to allow Defendant, who already has lived aeul free for 
- 

three and one half years, to continue doing so for an unlimited and undeterminable period of 

time until the Nevada Supreme Court makes a ruling on a certified question from Judge 

Marken. This is merely a question raised by the bankruptcy court and is not authority which 

this Court can use to make a determination that Plaintiff has no standing to foreclose. 

Further, the question of the security interest held by Plaintiff is something that should have 

been raised four years ago when Defendant filed her bankruptcy not now. 
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1 	 CONCLUSION 

2 	Plaintiff has proper standing to foreclose and has provided ample evidence of same. 

3 Defendant has offered nothing to counter the fact that she has been in default for three and 
4 
5 one half years. All references to mediation are inadmissible For the reasons set forth in this 

6 memorandum, Plaintiff respectfully requests that the Court grant the Motion for Summary 

7 Judgment. 

DATED: May 23, 2013 

McCarthy & Holthus, LLP 

By: 
Christopher M. Hunter, Esq. 
Attorneys for Defendant 

CEMIFICATE OF MAILING  

I hereby certify that on the 23d day of May, 2013, a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing Reply to Opposition to Motion for Summary Judgment was forwarded by United 

States-Mail postage prepaid to the addresses listed below. 

Tara Newberry Esq. 
22 	7854 FV. Sahara Ave 

Las Vegas, NV 89117 
Attorney for defendant Catherine Rodriguez 

/s/Christina Reeves  
An employee of McCarthy & Holthus, LLP 
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2. Significant Accounting Policies 

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States (GAAP). The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying 
notes. Actual results could differ from these estimates due to factors such as adverse changes in the economy, increases in 
interest rates, changes in prepayment assumptions, declines in home prices or discrete events adversely affecting specific 
borrowers, and such differences could be material. 

Reclassification Adjustments 
Certain prior -period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current -period presentation. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include unrestricted cash on hand and other highly liquid investments having an original maturity of 
less than three months. 

Restricted Cash 
Restricted cash consists of certain custodial accounts related to Nationstar's portfolio securitizations or to collections on certain 
mortgage loans and mortgage loan advances that have been pledged to various advance financing facilities under master 
repurchase agreements. Restricted cash also includes certain fees collected on mortgage loan payments that are required to be 
remitted to a GSE to settle outstanding guarantee fee requirements. 

Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable consists primarily of accrued interest receivable on mortgage loans and securitizations, collateral deposits 
on surety bonds and advances made to nonconsolidated securitization trusts, as required under various servicing agreements 
related to delinquent loans, which are ultimately repaid from the securitization trusts. 

When Nationstar has determined that, based on all available information, it is probable that a loss has been incurred, and that 
all contractual amounts due will not be recovered, an impairment is recognized through the recording of a valuation allowance. 
Any changes to the valuation allowance are recorded through general and administrative expenses. 

Occasionally, Nationstar may acquire servicer advances in conjunction with the acquisition of mortgage servicing rights. 
Acquired servicer advances are recorded at their relative fair value amounts on the acquisition date, and any recorded discounts 
are accreted into interest income on a cost recovery method as the related servicer advances are recovered either through 
repayment from the borrower, liquidation of the underlying mortgage loans, or through a modification and recovery of the 
outstanding servicer advance balance from the securitization trust. 

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale 
Nationstar maintains a strategy of originating mortgage loan products primarily for tile purpose of selling to GSEs or other third 
party investors in the secondary market. Generally, all newly originated mortgage loans held for sale are delivered to third party 
purchasers or securitized within three months after origination. 

Nationstar has elected to measure newly originated prime residential mortgage loans held for sale at fair value, as permitted 
under Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 825, Financial Instruments. 
Nationstar estimates fair value by evaluating a variety of market indicators, including recent trades and outstanding 
commitments, calculated on an aggregate basis (see Note 17 — Fair Value Measurements). In connection with Nationstar's 
election to measure mortgage loans held for sale at fair value, Nationstar is not permitted to defer the loan originations fees, net 
of direct loan originations costs associated with these loans. 

Mortgage Loans Held for Investment, Subject to Nonrecourse Debt — Legacy Assets, Net 
Mortgage loans held for investment, subject to nonrecourse debt — Legacy Assets principally consist of nonconforming or 
subprinie mortgage loans securitized which serve as collateral for the issued debt. These loans were transferred in 2009 from 
mortgage loans held for sale at fair value on the transfer date, as determined by the present value of expected future cash flows, 
with no valuation allowance recorded. The difference between the undiscounted cash flows expected and the investment in the 
loan is recognized as interest income on a level-yield method over the life of the loan. Contractually required paym cots for 
interest and principal that exceed the undiscounted cash flows expected at transfer are not recognized as a yield adjustment or 
as a loss accrual or a valuation allowance. Increases in expected cash flows subsequent to the transfer are recognized 
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prospectively through adjustment of the yield on the loans over the remaining life, Decreases in expected cash flows 
subsequent to transfer are recognized as a valuation allowance. 

Allowance for Loan Losses on Mortgage Loans Held for Investment 
An allowance for loan losses is established by recording a provision for loan losses in the consolidated statement of operations 
when management. believes a loss has occurred on a loan held for investment. When management determines that a loan held 
for investment is partially or fully uncollectible, the estimated loss is charged against the allowance for loan losses. Recoveries 
on losses previously charged to the allowance are credited to the allowance at the time the recovery is collected. 

Nationstar accounts for the loans that were transferred to held for investment from held for sale during 2009 in a manner 
similar to ASC 310 -30, Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated credit Quality. At the date of transfer, 
management evaluated such loans to determine whether there was evidence of deterioration of credit quality since acquisition 
and if it was probable that Nationstar would be unable to collect all amounts due according to the loan's contractual terms. The 
transferred loans were aggregated into separate pools of loans based on common risk characteristics (loan delinquency). 
Nationstar considers expected prepayments, and estimates the amount and timing of undiscounted expected principal, interest, 
and other cash flows for each aggregated pool of loans. The determination of expected cash flows utilizes internal inputs such 
as prepayment speeds and credit losses. These internal inputs require the use of judgment and can have a significant impact on 
the accretion of income and/or valuation allowance. Nationstar determines the excess of the pool's scheduled contractual 
principal and contractual interest payments over all cash flows expected as of the transfer date as an amount that should not be 
accreted (nonaccretable difference). The remaining amount is accreted into interest income over the remaining life of the pool 
of loans (accretable yield). 

Over the life of the transferred loans, management continues to estimate cash flows expected to be collected. Nationstar 
evaluates at the balance sheet date whether the present value of the loans determined using the effective interest rates has 
decreased, and if so, records an allowance for loan loss. The present value of any subsequent increase in the transferred loans 
cash flows expected to be collected is used first to reverse any existing allowance for loan loss related to such loans. Any 
remaining increase in cash flows expected to be collected is used to adjust the amount of accretable yield recognized on a 
prospective basis over the remaining life of the loans. 

Nationstar accounts for its allowance for loan losses for all other mortgage loans held for investment in accordance with ASC 
450-20, Loss' Contingencies. The allowance for loan losses represents management's best estimate of probable losses inherent 
in the loans held for investment portfolio. The mortgage loans held for invpstment portfolio is comprised prim arily of large 
groups of homogeneous residential mortgage loans. These loans are evaluated based on the loan's present delinquency status. 
The estimate of probable losses on these loans considers the rate of default of the loans and the amount of loss in the event of 
default. The rate of default is based on historical experience related to the migration of these from each delinquency category to 
default over a twelve month period The entire allowance is available to absorb probable credit losses from the entire held for 
investment portfolio. 

Mortgage Loans Held for Investment, Subject to ABS Non recourse Debt, Net 
Effective January 1, 2010, new accounting guidance eliminated the concept of a Qualifying Special Purpose Entity (QSPE) and 
all existing securitization trusts are considered VIEs and are subject to consolidation guidance provided in ASC 810. Upon 
consolidation of any VIEs, Nationstar recognized the securitized mortgage loans related to these securitization trusts as 
mortgage loans held for investment, subject to ABS nonrecourse debt (see Note 3 — Variable Interest Entities and 
Securitizations). Additionally, Nationstar elected the fair value option provided for by ASC 825-10. 

In December 2011, Nationstar sold its remaining variable interest in a securitization trust that has been a consolidated VIE 
since January 1, 2010 and deconsolidated the VIE. Upon deconsolidation of this VIE, Nationstar derecognized the securitized 
mortgage loans held for investment, subject to ABS nonrecourse debt, the related ABS nonrecourse debt, as well as certain 
other assets and liabilities of the securitization trust, and recognized any mortgage servicing rights on the consolidated balance 
sheet. 

Reverse Mortgage Interests 
Reverse mortgages (known as Home Equity Conversion Mortgages or HECMs) provide seniors (62 and older) with a loan 
secured by their home. During 2012, Nationstar acquired reverse mortgage servicing rights and funded but unsecuritized 
advances from third-parties. NationsInr recorded the assets acquired and obligations assumed at relative fair value on the 
acquisition date, which included the funded advances and a servicing asset or liability, net of cash paid or received, Any 
premium or discount associated with the recording of the funded advances is accreted into interest income as the underlying 
HECMs are liquidated. 
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As part of the acquisition of the reverse mortgage servicing rights, Nationstar is obligated in its capacity as servicer to fund 

future borrower advances, which include fees paid to taxing authorities for borrowers' unpaid taxes and insurance, mortgage 

insurance premiums and payments made to borrowers for line of credit draws on reverse mortgages. In addition, Nationstar 

capitalizes the servicing fees it earns for servicing the reverse mortgage interests. All advances funded by Nationstar and the 

acquired funded advances are recorded as reverse mortgage interests on the Company's consolidated balance sheet. Nationstar 

includes the cash outflow from funding these advances as operating activities and the securitization cash inflow as a financing 

activity in the consolidated statement of cash flows. 

Nationstar periodically securitizes certain of these funded advances through issuance of Home Equity Conversion Mortgage 

Backed Securities (FIMBS) to third-party security holders which are guaranteed by certain GSEs. These transfers of funded 

advances into IIMBS are accounted for as secured borrowings with the HMBS presented as participating interest financing on 

the Company's consolidated balance sheet. 

Nationstar receives a monthly servicing fee, which is recorded as either interest income or servicing fee income on the 

consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss) based upon if the related advance was either funded by 

or acquired by Nationstar. Interest income is accrued monthly based upon the borrower interest rate applied to the HECM 

outstanding principal balance of reverse mortgage interests. Interest income and other unpaid taxes and fees are capitalized as 

part of the outstanding principal balance. Interest expense on the participating interest financing is accrued monthly based upon 

the underlying TIMBS rates and is recorded to interest expense in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive 

income (loss). 

When Nationstar determines that a loss on the advance balance is probable and that the carrying balance may be partially or 

fully uncollectible, an allowance for loan loss is established by recording a provision for loan losses in the consolidated 

statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss). 

Receivables ,froin Affiliates 
Nationstar engages in periodic transactions with Nationstar Regular Holdings, Ltd., a subsidiary of F1F. These transactions 

typically involve the monthly payment of principal and interest advances that are required to be remitted to the securitization 

trusts as required under various Pooling and Servicing Agreements. These amounts are later repaid to Nationstar when principal 

and interest advances are recovered from the respective borrowers. 

Mortgage Servicing Rights. (MSRs) 

Nationstar recognizes MSRs related to all existing residential mortgage loans transferred to a third party in a transfer that meets 

the requirements for sale accounting and for which the servicing rights are retained. Additionally, Nationstu may acquire the 

rights to service residential mortgage loans that do not relate to assets transferred by Nationstar through the purchase of these 

rights from third parties. 

Nationstar identifies MSRs related to all existing forward residential mortgage loans transferred to a third party in a transfer 

that meets the requirements for sale accounting or through the acquisition of rights to service forward residential mortgage 

loans that do not relate to assets transferred by Nationstar through the purchase of these rights from third parties as a class of 

MSR. Nationstar applies fair value accounting to this class of MSRs, with all changes in fair value recorded as charges or 

credits to servicing fee income in accordance with ASC 860-50, Servicing Assets and Liabilities, 

Additionally in 2012, Nationstar acquired servicing rights for reverse mortgage loans. For this class of servicing rights, 

Nationstar applies the amortization method (i.e., lower of cost or market) with the capitalized cost of the MSRs amortized in 

proportion and over the period of the estimated net future servicing income and recognized as an adjustment to servicing fee 

income. The expected period of the estimated net servicing income is based, in part, on the expected prepayment period of the 

underlying reverse mortgages. This class of MSRs is periodically evaluated for impairment. For purposes of measuring 

impairment, MSRs will be stratified based on predominant risk characteristics of the underlying serviced loans. These risk 

characteristics include loan type (fixed or adjustable rate), term and interest rate. Impairment, if any, represents the excess of 

amortized cost of an individual stratum over its estimated fair value and is recognized through a valuation allowance. 

Property and Equipment, Net 
Property and equipment, net is comprised of land, building, furniture, fixtures, leasehold improvements, computer software, 

and computer hardware. These assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Repairs and maintenance are expensed as 

incurred. Depreciation, which includes depreciation and amortization on capital leases, is recorded using the straight-line 

method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Cost and accumulated depreciation applicable to assets retired or 

sold are eliminated from the accounts, and any resulting gains or losses are recognized at such time through a charge or credit 

to general and administrative expenses. 
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Real Estate Owned (REO), Net 
Nationstar holds REO as a result of foreclosures on delinquent mortgage loans. REO is recorded at estimated fair value less 

costs to sell at the date of foreclosure. Any subsequent declines in fair value are credited to a valuation allowance and charged 

to operations as incurred. 

Variable Interest Entities (VIE) 
Nationstar has been the transferor in connection with a number of securitizations or asset-backed financing arrangements, from 

which Nationstar has continuing involvement with the underlying transferred financial assets. Nationstar aggregates these 

securitizations or asset-backed financing arrangements into two groups: I) securitizations of residential mortgage loans that 

were accounted for as sales and 2) financings accounted for as secured borrowings. 

On securitizations of residential mortgage loans, Nationstar's continuing involvement typically includes acting as servicer for 

the mortgage loans held by the trust and holding beneficial interests in the trust. Nationstar's responsibilities as servicer 

include, among other things, collecting monthly payments, maintaining escrow accounts, providing periodic reports and 

managing insurance in exchange for a contractually specified servicing fee. The beneficial interests held consist of both 

subordinate and residual securities that were retained at the time of the securitization. Prior to January 1, 2010, each of these 

securitization trusts was considered QSPEs, and these trusts were excluded from Nationstar's consolidated financial statements. 

Nationstar also maintains various agreements with special purpose entities (SPEs), under which Nationstar transfers mortgage 

loans and/or advances on residential mortgage loans in exchange for cash, These SPEs issue debt supported by collections on 

the transferred mortgage loans and/or advances. These transfers do not qualify for sale treatment because Nationstar continues 

to retain control over the transferred assets. As a result, Nationstar accounts for these transfers as financings and continues to 

carry the transferred assets and recognizes the related liabilities on Nationstar's consolidated balance sheets. Collections on the 

mortgage loans and/or advances pledged to the SPEs are used to repay principal and interest and to pay the expenses of the 

entity. The holders of these beneficial interests issued by these SPEs do not have recourse to Nationstar and can only look to the 

assets of the SPEs themselves for satisfaction of the debt. 

Effective January 1, 2010, accounting guidance eliminated the concept of a QSPE and all existing SPEs were subject to 

consolidation guidance. Upon adoption of this accounting guidance, Nationstar identified certain securitization trusts where 

Nationstar, or through its affiliates, continued to hold beneficial interests in these trusts. These retained beneficial interests 

obligate Nationstar to absorb losses of the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE, or affords Nationstar the right to 

receive benefits from the VIE that could potentially be significant. In addition, Nationstar as Master Servicer on the related 

mortgage loans, retains the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the economic performance of 

the VIE. When it is determined that Nationstar has both the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the 

VIE's economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be 

significant to the VIE, the assets and liabilities of these VIEs are included in Nationstar's consolidated Financial statements. 

Upon consolidation of these VIEs, Nationstar derecognized all previously recognized beneficial interests obtained as part of the 

securitization, including any retained investment in debt securities, mortgage servicing rights, and any remaining residual 

interests. In addition, Nationstar recognized the securitized mortgage loans as mortgage loans held for investment, subject to 

.ABS nonrecourse debt, and the related asset-backed certificates (ABS nonrecourse debt) acquired by third parties as ABS 

nonrecourse debt on Nationstar's consolidated balance sheet. 

As a result of market conditions and deteriorating credit performance on these consolidated VIEs, Nationstar expected minimal 

to no future cash flows on the economic residual. Under existing GAAP, Nationstar would be required to provide for additional 

allowances for loan losses on the securitization collateral as credit performance deteriorated, with no offsetting reduction in the 

securitization's debt balances, even though any nonperformance of the assets would ultimately pass through as a reduction of 

amounts owed to the debt holders, once they were extinguished. Therefore, Nationstar would be required to record accounting 

losses beyond its economic exposure. 

Nationstar elected the fair value option provided for by ASC 825-10, Financial Instruments-Overall. This option was applied 

to all eligible items within the VIE, including mortgage loans held for investment, subject to ABS nonrecourse debt, and the 

related ABS nonrecourse debt 

Subsequent to this fair value election, Nationstar does not record an allowance for loan loss on mortgage loans held for 

investment, subject to ABS nonrecourse debt. Nationstar records interest income in Nationstar's consolidated statement of 

operations on these fair value elected loans until they are placed on a nonaccrual status when they are 90 days or more past due. 

The fair value adjustment recorded for the mortgage loans held for investment is classified within fair value changes of ABS 

securitizations in Nationstar's consolidated statement of operations. 
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Subsequent to the fair value election for ABS nonrecourse debt, Nati onstar records interest expense in Nationstar's 

consolidated statement of operations on the fair value elected ABS nonrecourse debt. The fair value adjustment recorded for the 

ABS nonrecourse debt is classified within fair value changes of ABS securitizations in Nationstar's consolidated statement of 

operations. 

Under the existing pooling and servicing agreements of these securitization trusts, the principal and interest cash flows on the 

underlying securitized loans are used to service the asset-backed certificates. Accordingly, the timing of the principal payments 

on this nonrecourse debt is dependent on the payments received on the underlying mortgage loans and liquidation of REQ. 

Nationstar consolidates the SPEs created for the purpose of issuing debt supported by collections on loans and advances that 

have been transferred to it as VIEs, and Nationstar is the primary beneficiary of these VIEs. Nationstar consolidates the assets 

and liabilities of the VIEs onto its consolidated financial statements. 

In December 2011, Nationstar sold its remaining variable interest in a securitization trust that had been a consolidated VIE 

since January 1, 2010 and deconsolidated the VIE. In accordance with ASC 810, Consolidation, Nationstar evaluated this 

securitization trust and determined that Nationstar no longer had both the power to direct the activities that most significantly 

impact the VIE's economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could 

potentially be significant to the VIE. Consequently, this securitization trust was derecognized as of December 31, 2011. Upon 

deconsolidation of this VIE, Nationstar derecognized the securitized mortgage loans held for investment, subject to ABS 

nonrecourse debt, the related ABS nonrecourse debt, as well as certain other assets and liabilities of the securitization trust, and 

recognized any mortgage servicing rights on the consolidated balance sheet The impact of this derecognition on Nationstar's 

consolidated statement of operations was recognized in 2011 in the fair value changes in ABS securitizations line item. 

Derivative Financial Instruments 
Nationstar enters into interest rate lock commitments (IRLCs) with prospective borrowers. These commitments are carried at 

fair value in accordance with ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging. ASC 815 clarifies that the expected net future cash flows 

related to the associated servicing of a loan should be included in the measurement of all written loan commitments that are 

accounted for at fair value through earnings. The estimated fair values of IRLCs are based on the fair value of the related 

mortgage loans which is based on observable market data and is recorded in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets. The 

initial and subsequent changes in the value of IRLCs are a component of gain on mortgage loans held for sale. 

Nationstar actively manages the risk profiles of its IRLCs and mortgage loans held for sale on a daily basis. To manage the 

price risk associated with IRLCs, Nationstar enters into forward sales of MBS in an amount equal to the portion of the IRLC 

expected to close, assuming no change in mortgage interest rates. In addition, to manage the interest rate risk associated with 

mortgage loans held for sale, Nationstar enters into forward sales of M13S to deliver mortgage loan inventory to investors. The 

estimated fair values of forward sales of MBS and forward sale commitments are based on exchange prices or the dealer 

market price and are recorded as a component of other assets and mortgage loans held for sale, respectively, in the consolidated 

balance sheets. The initial and subsequent changes in value on forward sales of IVIES and forward sale commitments are a 

component of gain on mortgage loans held for sale. 

Nationstar may occasionally enter into contracts with other mortgage lenders to purchase residential mortgage loans at a future 

date, which is referred to as Loan Purchase Commitments (LPCs). LPCs are accounted for as derivatives under ASC 815, and 

recorded at fair value in other assets on Nationstar's balance sheet, Subsequent changes in LPCs are recorded as a charge or 

credit to gain on mortgage loans held for sale. 

Periodically, Nationstar has entered into interest rate swap agreements to hedge the interest payment on the warehouse debt and 

securitization of its mortgage loans held for sale. These interest. rate swap agreements generally require Nationstar to pay a 

fixed interest rate and receive a variable interest rate based on LIBOR. Unless designated as an accounting hedge, Nationstar 

records gains and losses on interest rate swaps as a component of gain/( loss) on interest rate swaps and caps in Nationstar's 

consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income. Unrealized losses on undesignated interest rate derivatives 

are separately disclosed under operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows. 

On October I, 2010, the Company designated an existing interest rate swap as a cash flow hedge against outstanding floating 

rate financing associated with the Nationstar Mortgage Advance Receivables Trust 2009-ABS financing. This interest rate swap 

was a cash flow hedge under ASC 815 and was recorded at fair value on the Company's consolidated balance sheet, with any 

changes in fair value being recorded as an adjustment to other comprehensive income. To qualify as a cash flow hedge, the 

hedge must be highly effective at reducing the risk associated with the exposure being hedged and must be formally designated 

at hedge inception. Nationstar considers a hedge to be highly effective if the change in fair value of the derivative hedging 

instrument is within 80% to 125% of the opposite change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. 
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Ineffective portions of the cash flow hedge are reflected in earnings as they occur as a component of interest expense. In 

conjunction with the October 2011 amendment to the 2010-ABS Advance Financing Facility, Nationstar paid off its 2009-ABS 

Advance Financing Facility and transferred the related collateral to the 2010-ABS Advance Financing Facility. Concurrently 

with the repayment of 2009-ABS Advance Financing Facility Nationstar de-designated the underlying interest rate swap on the 

2009-A13S Advance Financing Facility. The interest rate swap associated with the 2010-ABS Advance Financing Facility 

served as an economic hedge for the remainder of 2011. 

During 2008, Nationstar entered into interest rate cap agreements to hedge the interest payment on the servicing advance 

facility. These interest rate cap agreements generally require an upfront payment and receive cash flow only when a variable 

rate based on LIBOR exceeds a defined interest rate. These interest rate cap agreements are not designated as hedging 

instruments, and unrealized gains and losses are recorded in loss on interest rate swaps and caps in Nationstar's consolidated 

statements of operations. 

Excess Spread Financing 

In conjunction with Nationstar's acquisition of certain mortgage servicing rights on various pools of residential mortgage loans 

(the Portfolios), Nationstax has entered into sale and assignment agreements which are treated as financings. Under these 

agreements, Nationstar sold to Newcastle Investment Corporation and related wholly owned subsidiaries (Newcastle) the right 

to receive a. portion of the excess cash flow generated from the Portfolios after receipt of a fixed basic servicing fee per loan. 

Nationstar accounts for the excess spread financing arrangements as financings as required under ASC 470, Debt. 

Nationstar has elected to measure the outstanding financings related to the excess spread financing agreements at fair value, as 

permitted under ASC 825, Financial Instruments, with all changes in fair value recorded as a charge or credit to servicing fee 

income in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss). The fair value on excess spread financing 

is based on the present value of future expected discounted cash flows with the discount rate approximating current market 

value for similar financial instruments. 

Interest Income 
Interest income is recognized using the interest method. Revenue accruals for individual loans are suspended and accrued 

amounts reversed when the mortgage loan becomes contractually delinquent for 90 days or more. Delinquency payment status 

is based on the most recently received payment from the borrower. The accrual is resumed when the individual mortgage loan 

becomes less than 90 days contractually delinquent. For individual loans that have been modified, a period of six timely 

payments is required before the loan is returned to an accrual basis. Interest income also includes (1) interest earned on 

custodial cash deposits associated with the mortgage loans serviced; (2) deferred originations income, net of deferred 

originations costs and other revenues derived from the origination of mortgage loans, which is deferred and recognized over the 

life of a mortgage loan or recognized when the related loan is sold to a third party purchaser; and (3) amounts recognized from 

accretion of discounts on acquired servicer advances as the related servicer advances are recovered. 

Servicing Fee Income 
Servicing fees include contractually specified servicing fees, late charges, prepayment penalties and other ancillary charges. 

Servicing encompasses, among other activities, the following processes: billing, collection of payments, movement of cash to 

the payment clearing bank accounts, investor reporting, customer service, recovery of delinquent payments, instituting 

foreclosure, and liquidation of the underlying collateral. 

Nationstar recognizes servicing and ancillary fees as they are earned, which is generally upon collection of the payments from 

the borrower. In addition, Nationstar also receives various fees in the course of providing servicing on its various portfolios. 

These fees include modification fees for modifications performed outside of government programs, modification fees for 

modifications pursuant to various government programs, and incentive fees for servicing performance on specific GSE 

portfolios. 

Fees recorded on modifications of mortgage loans held for investment performed outside of government programs are deferred 

and recognized as an adjustment to the loans held for investment. These fees are accreted into interest income as an adjustment 

to the loan yield over the life of the loan. Fees recorded on modifications of mortgage loans serviced by Nationstar for others 

are recognized on collection and are recorded as a component of service fee income. Fees recorded on modifications pursuant 

to various government programs are recognized when Nationstar has completed all necessary steps and the loans have 

performed for the minimum required time frame to establish eligibility for the fee. Revenue earned on modifications pursuant 

to various government programs is included as a component of service fee income. Incentive fees for servicing performance on 

specific GSE portfolios are recognized as various incentive standards are achieved and are recorded as a component of service 

fee income. 
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Sale of Mortgage Loans 
Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over 

transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (i) the assets have been isolated from Nationstar, (ii) the transferee has the 

right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and 

(iii)Nationstar does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through either (a) an agreement that entitles and 

obligates Nationstar to repurchase or redeem them before their maturity or (b) the ability to unilaterally cause the holder to 

return specific assets. 

Loan securitizations structured as sales, as well as whole loan sales, are accounted for in accordance with ASC 860, Transfers 

and Servicing, and the resulting gains on such sales, net of any accrual for recourse obligations, are reported in operating results 

during the period in which the securitization closes or the sale occurs. 

Share-Based Compensation Expense 
Share-based compensation is recognized in accordance with ASC 718, Compensailon—Stock Compensation. This guidance 

requires all share-based payments to employees to be recognized as an expense in the consolidated statements of operations, 

based on their fair values. The amount of compensation is measured at the fair value of the awards when granted and this cost is 

expensed over the required service period, which is normally the vesting period of the award. 

Advertising Costs 
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are included as part of general and administrative expenses. 

Income Taxes 
Deferred taxes are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement 

carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured 

using enacted tax rates that will apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be 

recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized as income or expense 

in the period that includes the enactment date. 

The Company regularly reviews the carrying amount of its deferred tax assets to determine if the establishment of valuation 

allowance is necessary. If based on the available evidence, it is more likely than not that all or a portion of the Company's 

deferred tax assets will not be realized in future periods, a deferred tax valuation allowance would be established. 

Consideration is given to various positive and. negative factors that could affect the realization of the deferred tax assets. 

In evaluating this available evidence, management considers, among other things, historical financial performance, expectation 

of future earnings, the ability to carry back losses to recoup taxes previously paid, length of statutory carryforward periods, 

experience with operating loss and tax credit carryforwards not expiring unused, tax planning strategies and timing of reversals 

of temporary differences. The Company's evaluation is based on current tax laws as well as management's expectations of 

future performance. 

The Company is subject to the income tax laws of the U.S., its states and municipalities. These tax laws are complex and 

subject to different interpretations by the taxpayer and the relevant governmental taxing authorities. The Company adopted 

accounting guidance related to uncertainty in income taxes. The guidance prescribes a comprehensive model for how 

companies should recognize, measure, present, and disclose in their financial statements uncertain tax positions taken or 

expected to be taken on a tax return. Under the guidance, tax positions shall initially be recognized in the financial statements 

when it is more likely than not the position will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities. Such tax positions shall 

initially and subsequently be in easured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized 

upon ultimate settlem ent with the tax authority assuming full knowledge of the position and all relevant facts. The guidance 

also revises disclosure requirements to include an annual tabular roll forward of unrecognized tax benefits. In establishing a 

provision for income tax expense, the Company must make judgments and interpretations about the application of these 

inherently complex tax laws within the framework of existing GAAP. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to 

uncertain tax positions in general and administrative expenses. 

Earnings Per Share 

Net income per share is computed under the provisions of ASC 260, Earnings Per Share. Basic net income per share is 

computed based on the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per 

share is computed based on the weighted-average number of common shares plus the effect of dilutive potential common 

shares outstanding during the period using the treasury stock method. Dilutive potential common shares represent outstanding 

restricted stock. 
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Our initial public offering and restructuring in 2012 were accounted for as a business combination under common control as 

permitted under ASC 805, Business Combinations. As a result of the Company's 2012 restructuring, Nationstar Inc. affected a 

70,000 to 1 stock split. The Company's basic and diluted earnings per share amounts presented on the face of the consolidated 

statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss) and in Note 19 - Earnings per Share have been retrospectively 

adjusted for all prior periods presented as required under ASC 260. 

Recent Accounting Developments 

Accounting Standards Update No 2011-08, intangibles - Goodwill and Other: Testing Goodwill for Impairment was created in 

order to reduce costs and complexity of testing assets with indefinite lives for impainn ant. The prior accounting standard 

outlined a process in which an entity must test all intangible assets for impairment on at least an annual basis. This update 

allows entities to bypass impairment testing on intangible assets if it is more likely than not (more than 50%), based on 
qualitative factors, that the asset will not be impaired. The amendments in this update are effective for annual and interim 

impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012. The adoption of update 2011-08 did not have a 

material impact on our financial condition, liquidity or results of operations. 

Accounting Standards Update No 2013-01, Balance Sheet: Clarifj7ing the Scope of Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and 

Liabilities was created to address issues caused when putting Accounting Standard Update 2011-11 into place and eliminate 

diversity in practice. The update clarifies that Accounting Standard Update 2011-11 applies to entities that are accounting for 

derivatives under Topic 815 including bifurcated embedded derivatives, repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase 

agreements, and securities borrowing and securities lending transactions that are offset under Section 210-20-45 or Section 

815-10-45, an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement. This update will become effective for fiscal years 

beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The adoption of update 2013-01 will not have a material impact on our financial 

condition, liquidity or results of operations. 

Accounting Standards Update No 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive 
Income was issued to improve reporting of reclassification of items out of accumulated other comprehensive income by 

requiring entities to report the effect of any significant reclassifications on the respective line items on the income statement 

when the amount is required to be reclassified in its entirety in the same reporting period. Additionally, for items that are not 

required to be reclassified completely to net income, the entity will be required to cross reference other disclosures that provide 

additional information about the amounts. The information provided about amounts that are reclassified out of accumulated 

other comprehensive income must be reported by component. The amendments of this update are effective beginning 

December 15, 2012. The adoption of update 2013-02 did not have a material impact on our financial condition, liquidity or 

results of operations. 

3. Variable Interest Entities and Sec uritizations 

A VIE is an entity that has either a total equity investment that is insufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities without 

additional subordinated financial support or whose equity investors lack the characteristics of a controlling financial interest. A 

VIE is consolidated by its primary beneficiary, which is the entity that, through its variable interests has both the power to 

direct the activities of a VIE that most significantly impact the VIE's economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses 

of the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE or the right to receive benefits from the VIE that could potentially be 

significant to the VIE. 

Effective January 1, 2010, new accounting guidance eliminated the concept of a QSPE. All existing SPEs are subject to new 

consolidation guidance. Upon adoption of this new accounting guidance, Nationstar identified certain loan securitization trusts 

where Nationstar had both the power to direct the activities that most significantly impacted the VIE's economic performance 

and the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be significant to the VIE. The assets 

and liabilities of these VIEs were included in Nationstar's consolidated financial statements. The net effect of the accounting 

change on January 1, 2010 member's equity was an $8.1 million charge to members' equity. 

In December 2011, Nationstar sold its remaining variable interest in a loan securitization trust that had been a consolidated VIE 

since January 1, 2010 and &consolidated the VIE. In accordance with ASC 810 Nationstar has evaluated this securitization 

trust and determined that Nationstar no longer has both the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the 
VIE's economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be 

significant to the VIE, and this securitization trust was &recognized as of December 31, 2011. Upon deconsolidation of this 

VIE, Nationstar clerecognized the securitized mortgage loans held for investment, subject to ABS nonrecourse debt, the related 

ABS nonrecourse debt, as well as certain other assets and liabilities of the securitization trust, and recognized any MSks on the 

consolidated balance sheet. The impact of this derecognition on the Company's consolidated statement of operations was 

recognized in the fourth quarter of 2011 in the fair value changes in ABS securitizations line item. 
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i4;.1:34*3 
4,136,316 
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4,582,598 

Principal 
Amount 
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Due 	Losses 

Principal 
Amount of 

Loans 
60 Days or 
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Due 
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A summary of the assets and liabilities of Nationstar's transactions with VIEs included in the Company's consolidated financial 

statements as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 is presented in the followin g  tables (in thousands): 

December 31,2012  December 31, 2011  
Transfers 	Transfers 

Accounted for as 	Accounted for as 
Secured 	 Secured 

Borrowings 	Borrowings 	 

A summary  of the outstanding collateral and certificate balances for securitization trusts, including an y  retained beneficial 

interests and MSRs, that were not consolidated by Nationstar for the periods indicated are as follows (in thousands): 

Total certificate balances 

Nationstar has not retained any variable interests in the unconsolidated securitization trusts that were outstanding as of 

December 31, 2012 or 2011, and therefore does not have a si gnificant maximum exposure to loss related to these 

unconsolidated VIEs. A summary of mortgage loans transferred to unconsolidated securitization trusts that are 60 days or more 

past due and the credit losses incurred in the unconsolidated securitization trusts are presented below (in thousands): 

For the year ended, 	 December 31,2012 
	

December 31, 2011 
	

December 31, 2010 

::TOtal:sect ititiiationOusts . 1 •10• 1 . 	, 273.81 l'•4066,1 
' 

& :8'30;953 
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Reverse mortgage other 

Other 

December 31, 2012 

244. 0A9 
90,231 

28,448 

81,407 
3'043'606 

December 31,2011 

20,865 

23,534 

Certain cash flows received from securitization trusts related to the transfer of mortgage loans accounted for as sales for the 

dates indicated were as follows (in thousands): 

For the year ended, 	December 31,2012 
	

December 31, 2011 
	

December 31, 2010 

Servicing 
Fees 

Received 
Loan 

Repurchases 

Servicing 
Fees 

Received 
Loan 

Repurchases 

Servicing 
Fees 

Received  
Loan 

Repurchases 

.T.60.sect4I't 
	

21049:.  

4. Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows-Supplemental Disclosure 

Total interest paid for the year ended December 31, 2012,   2011, and 2010 was approximately $154.9 million, $90.8 million 

and $91.8 million, respectively. Income taxes paid for the year ended December 31, 2012 were $42.6 million. There were no 

income taxes paid for the years ended December 31, 2011 or 2010. 

5. Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable consist of the following (in thousands): 

In conjunction with Nationstar's June 2012 acquisition of mortgage servicing rights from Aurora, the Company acquired 

approximately $1.7 billion of servicer advances. Based on the acquisition date relative fair values of these acquired servicer 

advances, Nationstar recorded an $81.8 million purchase discount. Nationstar accretes this purchase discount into interest 

income as the related servicer advances are recovered. During 2012, the Company accreted $11.3 million of initial purchase 

discount from recovered servicer advances. 
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2012 

54,355 

. December 3. 1, 

Mark-to-market adjustment 

ots'l mortgagt. loans hi Id  for sak 1080;5Y.7.: 

December 31, 2011 2012 

Transfer discount 

Auxota 
Non-a ccret abl e 

AlloWauce:tor loan.tosse 

Total mortgage loans held for investment, subject to nonrecourse debt-legacy assets, net 238,907 $ 
	

243,480 

6. Mortgage Loans Held for Sale and Investment 

Mortgage loans held for sale 

Mortgage loans held for sale consist of the following (in thousands): 

Mortgage loans held for sale on a nonaccrual status are presented in the following table for the periods indicated (in thousands): 

December 31, 	 2012 
	

2011 
	

2010 

, :Orfii.lg:: 19(.tri.: 1-141 14 i 
	

No 

A reconciliation of the changes in mortgage loans held for sale to the amounts presented in the consolidated statements of cash 

flows for the dates indicated is presented in the following table (in thousands) : 

2012 	 

7,964,052 

37,205 

2011 For the year ended December 31, 

Mortgage loans originated and purchnsecl, not of fees 

of Jediot sOlif ::net.of:f6e; • 
Principal payments received on mortgage loans held for sale and other changes 

dit(.. 	Nul.,rupte., 
. 

.. Transfer or mortgage lo aacid for sale to IlE0 
4.10j 2;:b4.1 

3,412,185 

19,668 

(2,692) 
(288) 

Mortgage loans heldfor investmen4 subject to nonrecourse debt- Legacy Assets, net 

Mortgage loans held for investment, subject to nonrecourse debt- Legacy Assets, net as of the dates indicated include (in 

thousands): 
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Reclassifications from nonaceretable discount 

Balance at the end of the period 

Provision for loan losses 

Charge-offs 

12 ii iflcc at
• 	• . ••:.•:•...-...• • 	.• ••: 	• 	• •• 	• •• 

Ending UPB — Collectively evaluated for impamnent 

Non- 
Performing 	Performing 

	
Total 

(534) 	(477) 	(1 : 011) 

1611 	41 8  
283,770 $ 	91,950 $ 	375,720  

The changes in accretable yield on loans transferred to mortgage loans held for investment, subject to nonrecourse debt-
Legacy Assets were as follows (in thousands): 

Year ended 	Year ended 
December 31, December 31, 

2012 	2011 

Nationstar may periodically modify the terms of any outstanding mortgage loans held for investment, subject to nonrecourse 
debt-legacy assets, net for loans that are either in default or in imminent default. Modifications often involve reduced payments 
by borrowers, modification of the original terms of the mortgage loans, forgiveness of debt and/or increased servicing 
advances. As a result of the volume of modification agreements entered into, the estimated average outstanding life in this pool 
of mortgage loans has been extended. Nationstar records interest income on the transferred loans on a level-yield method. To 
maintain a level-yield on these transferred loans over the estimated extended life, Nationstar reclassified approximately $0.9 
million, and $1.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, from nonaccretable difference. 
Furthermore, Nationstar considers the decrease in principal, interest, and other cash flows expected to be collected arising from 
the transferred loans as an impairment. Nationstar recorded provisions for loan losses of $1.9 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2012, and $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 on the transferred loans to reflect this impairment. 

Nationstar collectively evaluates all mortgage loans held for investment, subject to nonrecourse debt-legacy assets for 
impairment. The changes in the allowance for loan losses on mortgage loans held for investment, subject to nonrecourse debt-
legacy assets, net were as follows (in thousands) for the dates indicated: 

Year ended December 31,2012 
Non- 

Performing 
	

Performing 
	

Total 

Provision for loan losses 

Charge-offs 

l3aJmc at this trid of the puo' 
Ending UPB — Collectively evaluated for impairment 260,219 $ 

	
93,935 $ 
	

354,154 

Year ended December 31, 2011 
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December 31, December 31, 
2012 	2011 

283,770 

:91.,950 

354,154 $ 
	

375,720 

Performing 

Total 

42,438 

25,190 

Less than 60 39,436 $ 

20,890 

32,570 33,708 

354,154 $ 
	

375,720 

(in thousands 

2012 
	

2011 

42,037 

208,699 

750,273 $ 

Year ended December 31, 2010 
Non- 

Performing 
	Performing 
	Total 

alnce at: the .:b40)iiUria:: .6f the.:Tleti 

Provision for loan losses 

,ReCOvcri .es on In in priouJ 

Charge-offs 

a sncc. it thc i,nd::oEtho.'periq: 

Ending balance -- Collectively evaluated for impairment 310,730 $ 
	

101,148 $ 
	

411,878 

Loan delinquency and Loan-to-Value Ratio (LTV) are common credit quality indicators that Nationstar monitors and utilizes in 

its evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, of which the primary indicator of credit quality is loan 

delinquency. LTV refers to the ratio of comparing the loan's unpaid principal balance to the property's collateral value. Loan 

delinquencies and unpaid principal balances are updated monthly based upon collection activity. Collateral values are updated 

from third party providers on a periodic basis. The collateral values used to derive the LTV's shown below were obtained at 

various dates, but the majority were within the last twenty-four months. For an event requiring a decision based at least in part 

on the collateral value, the Company takes its last known value provided by a third party and then adjusts the value based on 

the applicable home price index. 

The following table provides the outstanding unpaid principal balance of Nationstar's mortgage loans held for investment by 

credit quality indicators for the dates indicated. 

Performing loans refer to loans that are less than 90 days delinquent. Non-performing loans refer to loans that are contractually 

greater than 90 days delinquent. 

Reverse mortgage interests 

Reverse mortgage interests as of the dates indicated include (in thousands): 

December 31, 

UP13 of advances unsecuriti zed 

4'0 	0)1):?:ktt: 

Total reverse mortgage interests 

bOutiotistar.: 
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Credit Sensitive MSRs 

Total prepayment speeds 

December 31,2012 
1.1.34:1% 

det.0 ye:41.74; 

Credit losses 
. linel7est  

Discount rite 

Expected weighted-average life 

24.68% 

10.62% 
ON; 

5.19 years 

35.42% 

1 0. 46% 

5.04 years 

December 31, 2011  
5 71 

15.80% 

Nationstar collectively evaluates all reverse mortgage interest assets for impairment. During 2012, Nationstar recorded a 

provision for loan losses related to its reverse mortgage interests of $0.5 million, At December 31, 2012, the valuation 

allowance amounted to $0,5 million. There was no allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 2011. 

7. Mortgage Servicing Rights (MSRs) 

MSRs at fair value 

MSRs arise from contractual agreements between Nationstar and investors in mortgage securities and mortgage loans. 

Nationstar records MSR. assets when it sells loans on a servicing-retained basis, at the time of securitization or through the 

acquisition or assumption of the right to service a financial asset. Under these contracts, Nationstar performs loan servicing 

functions in exchange for fees and other remuneration. 

The fair value of the MSRs is based upon the present value of the expected future cash flows related to servicing these loans. 

Nationstar receives a base servicing fee ranging from 0.25% to 0.50% annually on the remaining outstanding principal balances 

of the loans. The servicing fees are collected from investors. Nationstar determines the fair value of the MSRs by the use of a 

discounted cash flow model that incorporates prepayment speeds, discount rate, credit losses and other assumptions (including 

servicing costs) that management believes are consistent with the assumptions other major market participants use in valuing 

the MSRs. The nature of the forward loans underlying the MSRs affects the assumptions that management believes other major 

market participants use in valuing the MSRs. Nationstar obtains third-party valuations for a large portion of its MSRs to assess 

the reasonableness of the fair value calculated by the cash flow model. 

Certain of the forward loans underlying the MSRs carried at fair value that are owned by Nationstar are credit sensitive in 

nature and the value of these MSRs are more likely to be affected from changes in credit losses than from interest rate 

movement The remaining forward loans underlying Nationstar's MSRs held at fair value are prime agency and government 

conform ing residential mortgage loans for which the value of these MSRs are more likely to be affected from interest rate 

movement than changes in credit losses. 

Nat onstar used the following weighted average assumptions in estimating the fair value of MSRs for the dates indicated: 
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Chmiges in fair value: 

ui .to t.hingei .to  aIatioyi  
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The activity of MSRs carried at fair value is as follows for the dates indicated (in thousands): 

Year ended 
	

Year ended 
December 31,2012 December 31,2011 

•2,51C,05Q 
	

45,66 

Additions: 

Recognition of servicing assets from derecognition of variable interest 
entities 

The following table shows the hypothetical effect on the fair value of the MSRs using various unfavorable variations of the 
expected levels of certain key assumptions used in valuing these assets at December 31, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands): 

:•

DeevinbEr 
••••••••••••••••••., 	 •• Mortgage servicing rights $ (17,060) $ (34,419) $ (66,037) $ (124,995) $ (77,072) $ (157,433) . 	. 	. . 	... 

Mortgage servicing rights 	$ 	(6,640) $ (12,929) $ (13,281) $ (25,215) $ 	(5,081) $ (10,944) 

These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be evaluated with care. The effect on fair value of a 10% variation in 
assumptions generally cannot be determined because the relationship of the change in assumptions to the fair value may not be 
linear. Additionally, the impact of a variation in a particular assumption on the fair value is calculated while holding other 
assumptions constant. In reality, changes in one factor may lead to changes in other factors (e.g., a decrease in total prepayment 
speeds may result in an increase in credit losses), which could impact the above hypothetical effects. 

ilISRs at amortized cost 

As of December 31, 2012, Nationstar OWIIS the right to service certain reverse mortgage MSRs with an unpaid principal 
balance of $28.4 billion. The initial carrying amount of these MSRs is based on the relative fair value of the purchased assets 
and liabilities including reverse mortgage interests, These MSRs are subsequently accounted for using the amortization method. 
Amortization / accretion is recorded as service fee income on the statement of operations and comprehensive income. 
Nationstar utilizes a variety of assumptions in assessing the fair value of its servicing assets or liabilities, with the primary 
assumptions including discount rates, prepayment speeds and the expected weighted average life. At December 31, 2012, no 
impairment was identified. Interest and servicing fees collected on reverse mortgage interests are included as a component of 
either interest or service fee income. 
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The activity of MSRs carried at amortized cost is as follows for the date indicated (in thousands): 

Year Ended 
December 31, 2012 

Assets 
	

Liabilities 

Subsen,iced loans 

In addition to the two classes of 1VISRs that Nationstar services for others, Nationstar also subservices loans on behalf of owners 
of MSRs or loans for a fee. Nationstar has no recorded value for its subserv icing arrangements. At December 31, 2012 and 
December 31, 2011, the unpaid principal balances under subservicing arrangements were $45.7 billion and $53.7 billion, 
respectively. 

Total servicing and ancillary fees from Nationstar's servicing portfolio of residential mortgage loans are presented in the 
following table for the periods indicated (in thousands): 

For the years ended December 31, 
2012 
	

2011 
	

2010 

Ancillary fees 	 123,318 
	

82,099 
	

70,130 

21333  

8. Property and Equipment, Net 

Property and equipment, net (in thousands), and the corresponding ranges of estimated useful lives were as follows. 

Range of 

	

December 31, December 31, 	Estimated 
2012 	2011 	Useful Life 

Nationstar has entered into various lease agreements for computer equipment which are classified as capital leases. All of the 
capital leases expire over the next five years. A majority of these lease agreements contain bargain purchase options. 
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72,156 
	

35,735 
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Equity m ethod investment (see Note 27 

. 	 . 	 . 	 .... .......... 	 . 	 .. 	 . 

Deposits pending on mortsige servicing rights acquisitions 

Total other assets 322,051 $ 
	

106,181 

As of December 31, 2012, future minimum payments for Nationstar's capital leases is presented in table below: 

Future Minimum Lease Payments 

Thereafter 

'Iota! hitti t le 	paymefitS 
	

".;i1 : 1.:2 :  

Less: Imputed interest 
	

917) 

46ttapitalitas(AIONN 

9. Other Assets 

Other assets consisted of the following (in thousands): 

For certain loans sold to GNMA (Ginnie Mae), Nationstar as the servicer has the unilateral right to repurchase without Ginnie 

Mae's prior authorization any individual loan in a Ginnie Mae securitization pool if that loan meets certain criteria, including 

being delinquent greater than 90 days. Once Nationstar has the unilateral right to repurchase a delinquent loan, Nationstar has 

effectively regained control over the loan, and under GAAP, must re-recognize the loan on its balance sheet and establish a 

corresponding repurchase liability regardless of Nationstar's intention to repurchase the loan. Nationstar's re-recognized loans 

included in other assets and the corresponding liability in payables and accrued liabilities was $72.2 million at December 31, 

2012 and $35.7 million at December 31, 2011. 

Deposits pending on mortgage servicing rights acquisitions primarily consist of amounts transferred to third parties for the 

future acquisition of mortgage servicing rights. In December 2011, Nationstar entered into an agreement with a financial 

institution to acquire the rights to service reverse mortgages with an unpaid principal balance of approximately $9.5 billion, of 

which the underlying reverse mortgages are currently owned by an unaffiliated GSE. The purchase of these servicing rights was 

completed upon the approval of the GSE which was received in June 2012 . Upon execution of the purchase, Nationstar 

assumed responsibility for advance obligations on the underlying reverse mortgage loans. Nationstar paid $9.0 million for the 

purchase of these servicing rights which had previously been deposited with the financial institution, Also, as of December 31, 

2011, Nationstar had placed in escrow $17.9 million relating to the purchase of the mortgage servicing rights and related 

outstanding advance balances with the same financial institution. Such purchase was completed in January 2012 and these 

escrow amounts were released. In addition, Nationstar has entered into separate agreements to purchase forward mortgage 

servicing rights. These amounts are carried as deposits on acquired servicing rights acquisitions until the underlying forward 

residential mortgage loan balances are transferred to Nationstar. Nationstar has deposits with a counterparty for servicing rights 

on forward mortgages for $2.0 million as of December 31, 2012 that are substantially expected to be originated and transferred 

to Nationstar during the first half of fiscal year 2013, and $2.0 million as of December 31, 2011 that were originated and 

transferred to Nations:tar during the first quarter of 2012. 
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December 31,2012 December 31,2011 

Lease payables 

Uov ernm ent-sponsored entities 

;Rik15:00 ias'ereAd,  

MSR purchases payable including advances 

Cancelled lease reserves 

:'Other 

2,856 29,553 

27,801 

1 0 02.6 

8,204 

27,071 

9,160 7,188 

19,308 77,967 

35,735 72,156 

154 50,908 

Mortgage insurance premiums and reserves 

Loans subject to repurchase from Ginnie Mae 

Current taxes 

on bo. 
Interest Rate Swap 

Interest Rate Swap 

Interest Rate Swap 

Of eni1tr 31 

(1,071) Interest Expense 

1,071 Interest Expense $ 

interest Expense i nterest  Expense $ 

165 Interest Expense 

— Interest Expense $ 

2,030  

930 

10. Payables and Accrued Liabilities 

Payables and accrued liabilities consist of the following (in thousands): 

Total payables and accrued liabilities 
	 631,431 $ 

	
183,789 

11. Derivative Financial Instruments 

The following table shows the effect of derivative financial instruments that were designated as accounting hedges for the years 

ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010. 

The Effect of Derivative Instruments on the Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) 
(in thousands) 

Derivatives in ASC 815 Cash 
Flow Hedging Relationships 

Amount of 
Gain (Loss) 
Recognized 
In OCI on 
Derivative 
(Effective 
Portion) 

Location of Gain 
(Loss) 

Reclassified 
from 

Accumulated 
OCI into Income 

(Effective 
Portion) 

Amount of 
Gain (Loss) 
Reclassified 

from 
Accumulated 

OCI into 
Income 

(Effective 
Portion) 

Location of Gain 
(Loss) 

Recognized 
In Income on 

Derivative 
(Ineffective 
Portion and 

Amount 
Excluded 

from 
Effectiveness 

Testing) 

Amount of 
Gain (Loss) 

Recognized in 
Income on 
Derivative 
(Ineffective 

Portion) 

In conjunction with the Reorganization, FIE contributed outstanding interest rate swaps in March 2012 to Nationstar. These 

interest rate swaps on ABS debt generally require Nationstar to pay a fixed interest rate and receive a variable interest rate 

based on LIBOR. The outstanding interest rate swaps have not been designated as accounting hedges during the year ended 
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Recorded 
Expiration Outstanding 

	
Fair 
	

Gains / 
Dates 	Notional 
	

Value 	(Losses) 
. .. 

..... . 
MORTGAGE LOANS HP1,6 FOR SALE 

... 
OTHER ASSETS 

()I3 
2013 888 Forward MFU trades 

90 

977,900 
.. . . 
112;6Z4 

LIABILITIES 

• laiterestlate -swaps •Inci•:•caps 

Interest rate swaps on ABS debt u 

LPCs 

2013-2017 

61.3 
2013 

654,192 

78,839 

01 
1,846 (1,414) 

6,144): 
(86) 86 

For the year ending December 31 2011 

(44 

Interest rate swap, subject to ABS nonrecourse debt (2) 
	

(8,058) 

Loan sale commitments 

N.114 	2k: 

JARIJ:44 

Interest rate swaps and caps 

OIW,IRI M. 

28,047 $ 

736,377 

193,500 

11,11/I71211,  

634 $ 

11,302 

6,540 

592 2012 

2012 

1,261 2012-2015 

December 31, 2012. Any changes in fair value are recorded as a component of gains or losses on interest rate swaps and caps in 

the Company's consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income. 

Associated with the Company's derivatives is $10.9 million in margin call deposits recorded in other assets on the Company's 

balance sheet as of December 31, 2012. 

The following tables provide the outstanding notional balances and fair values of outstanding positions for the dates indicated, 

and recorded gains/(losses) during the periods indicated (in thousands): 

In March 2012, Nationstar received interest rate swaps from FIE as a part of the Reorganization. 
In December 2011, Nationstar sold its remaining variable interest in a securitization trust that had been a consolidated 
VIE since January 1, 2010 and deconsolidated the VIE. Upon deconsolidation of this VIE, Nationstar derecognized the 

relatecIABS nonrecourse debt and therefore the underlying interest rate swap, subject to ABS nonrecourse debt. 
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12. Indebtedness 

Notes Payable  

A summary of the balances of notes payable for the dates indicated is presented below (in thousands). 

December 31, 2012 
Collateral 

Outstanding 	Pledged 

December 31,2011 
Collateral 

Outstanding 	Pledged 

MBS advance financing facility 

2010-ABS advance financing facility 

MSR note 

2012-C ABS advance financing facility 

2012-W ABS advance financing facility 

lmn'Micin fact it t 

MBS advance financing facility (2012) 

$375 million warehouse facility 

$250 million warehouse facility (2011) 

$ 1(0 million worellon o facility (20(19 

ASAP+ facility 

4,627 

. , 4464:4W 
657,027 

492,235 . . ...... 

185,817 $ 

11'774.  

206,622 S 

55,603 
233,208 

549 128  
12,328 

742,238 

566,332 
2878 

179,904 182,096 

55',.601 

Servicing Segment Notes Payable 

MBS advance financing facility - Nationstar has a one-year committed facility agreement with a USE, under which Nationstar 
may transfer to the GSE certain servicing advance receivables against the transfer of funds by the USE. This facility has the 
capacity to purchase up to $325.0 million in eligible servicing advance receivables. The interest rate is based on LIBOR plus a 
spread of 2.50% to 4.00%. The maturity date of this facility is December 2013. 

Securities repurchase facility (2011) - In December 2011, Nationstar entered into a securities repurchase facility with a 
financial services company that was amended to extend the expiration to March 2013. The master repurchase agreement 
(MRA) states that Nationstar may from time to time transfer to the financial services company eligible securities against the 
transfer of funds by the financial services company, with a simultaneous agreement by the financial services company to 
transfer such securities to Nationstar at a certain date, or on demand by Nationstar, against the transfer of funds from 
Nationstar. Additionally, the financial services company may elect to extend the transfer date for an additional 90 days at 
mutually agreed upon terms. The interest rate is based on LIBOR plus a margin of 3,50%. As of December 31, 2012, Nationstar 
has pledged the Company's $55.6 million outstanding retained interest in the outstanding Nonrecourse debt—Legacy Assets 
securitization, which was structured as a financing. 

2010-ABS advance financing facility - In December 2010, Nationstar executed the 2010-ABS Advance Financing Facility with 
a financial institution. This facility has the capacity to borrow up to $300.0 million of advance receivables and the interest rate 
is based on LIBOR plus a spread of 3.00%. This facility matures in May 2014. This debt is nonrecourse to Nationstar. 

2011-1 Agency advance financing facility - In October 2011, Nationstar executed the 2011-1 Agency Advance Financing 
Facility with a financial institution. This facility has the capacity to boirow up to $600.0 million and the interest rate is based on 
LIBOR plus a spread of 2.50% to 6.50% depending upon class of the note. The maturity date of this facility is October 2013. 
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This facility is secured by servicing advance receivables and is nonrecourse to Nationstar. In January 2013, Nationstar 

amended this facility and issued an additional $300 million in asset backed term notes with a weighted average fixed interest 

rate of 1.46% and a weighted average terra of 3 years. (See Note 29 - Subsequent Events). 

MSR note - In connection with an October 2009 MSR acquisition, Nationstar executed a four-year note agreement with a GSE. 

As collateral for this note, Nationstar has pledged Nationstar's rights, title, and interest in the acquired servicing portfolio. The 

interest rate is based on LIBOR plus 2.50%. The in aturity date of this facility is October 2013. 

2012-AW agency advance financing facility - In June 2012, Nationstar executed the 2012-AW Agency Advance Financing 

Facility with a financial institution. This facility has the capacity to borrow up to $100.0 million and the interest rate is based on 

LIBOR plus a spread of 2.50%. The maturity date of this facility is June 2013. This facility is secured by servicing advance 

receivables and is nonrecourse to Nationstar. On January 31,2013, Nationstar terminated this revolving financing receivable 

and repaid all outstanding balances as of the termination date. 

20/2-CABS advance financing facility - In June 2012, Nationstar executed the 2012-C ABS Advance Financing Facility with a 

financial institution. This facility, amended in November 2012, has the capacity to borrow up to $700.0 million and the interest 

rate is based on LIBOR plus a spread of 3.25% to 4.25%. The maturity date of this facility is November 2013. This facility is 

secured by servicing advance receivables and is nonrecourse to Nationstar. 

2012-R ABS advance financing facility - In June 2012, Nationstar executed the 2012-R ABS Advance Financing Facility with a 

financial institution. This facility, amended in December 2012, has a borrowing capacity of up to $400.0 million and the 

interest rate is based on LIBOR plus a spread of 3.37% to 8.00%. The maturity date of this facility is June 2014. This facility is 

secured by servicing advance receivables and is nonrecourse to Nationstar. 

2012-W ABS advance financing facility - In June 2012, Nationstar executed the 2012-W ABS Advance Financing Facility with 

a financial institution. This facility, amended in December 2012, has the capacity to borrow up to $500.0 million and the 

interest rate is based on LIBOR plus a spread of 3.75%. The maturity date of this facility is June 2013. This facility is secured 

by servicing advance receivables and is nonrecouthe to Nationstar. 

Reverse participations and max claim buyouts financing facility - In June 2012, Nationstar executed a reverse participations 

and max claim buyouts financing facility with a financial institution. This facility has capacity to borrow up to $150.0 million 

and the interest rate is based on LIBOR plus a spread of 4.00%. The maturity date of this facility is June 2014. This facility is 

partially secured by reverse mortgage loans. 

MBS advance financing facility (2012) - In December 2012, Nationstar executed a MBS Advance Financing Facility with a 

financial institution. This facility has the capacity to borrow up to $125.0 million through April 14, 2013, $100.0 million for 

the periodApril 15, 2013 through July 14, 2013 and $50.0 million for any date thereafter. The interest rate is LIBOR plus a 

spread of 3,50%. The maturity date of this facility is January 2014. This facility is secured by servicing advance receivables 

and is nonrecourse to Nationstar. 

Originations Segment Notes Payable  

$375 million warehouse facility - In February 2010, Nationstar executed a MRA with a financial institution which will expire in 

January 2014. The MRA states that from time to time Nationstar may enter into transactions, for an aggregate amount of $375.0 

million, in which Nationstar agrees to transfer to the same financial institution certain mortgage loans against the transfer of 

funds by the same financial institution, with a simultaneous agreement by the same financial institution to transfer such 

mortgage loans to Nationstar at a date certain, or on demand by Nationstar, against the transfer of funds from Nationstar. In 

January 2013, Nationstar amended the agreement to increase the borrowing capacity from $375.0 million to $750.0 million. 

The interest rate is based on LIBOR plus a spread ranging from 1.75% to 2.50%. See Note 29 - Subsequent Events. 

$150 million warehouse facility - Nationstar has a MRA with a financial services company, which was amended in February 

2012 to expire in August 2013 and reduce the committed amount from $300.0 million to $150.0 million. The facility also has 

an uncommitted amount of $150 million that can be granted at the discretion of the financial institution. The MRA states that 

from time to time Nationstar may enter into transactions in which Nationstar agrees to transfer to the financial services 

company certain mortgage loans or MBS against the transfer of funds by the financial services company, with a simultaneous 

agreement by the financial services company to transfer such mortgage loans or MBS to Nationstar at a certain date, or on 

demand by Nationstar, against the transfer of funds from Nationstar, The interest rate is based on LIBOR plus a spread of 

3.25%. 

$250 million warehouse facility (2011) - In March 2011, Nationstar executed an MRA with a financial institution, under which 

Nationstar may enter into transactions, for an aggregate amount of $750.0 million in which Nationstar agrees to transfer to the 
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2015 

2017 - 

••••• , : fr• '''' '' ' 

Total 1,060,000 

2013 

same financial institution certain mortgage loans and certain securities against the transfer of funds by the same financial 

institution, with a simultaneous agreement by the same financial institution to transfer such mortgage loans and securities to 

Nationstar at a date certain, or on demand by Nationstar, against the transfer of funds from Nationstar. The maturity is August 

2013 with the interest rate based on LIBOR plus a spread of 2.25% to 3.00%, which varies based on the underlying transferred 

collateral, 

$100 million warehouse facility (2009) - in October 2009, Nationstar executed a MRA with a financial institution. This MRA 

states that from time to time Nationstar may enter into transactions, for an aggregate amount of $100.0 million, in which 

Nationstar agrees to transfer to the financial institution certain mortgage loans against the transfer of funds by the financial 

institution, with a simultaneous agreement by the financial institution to transfer such mortgage loans to Nationstar at a certain 

date, or on demand by Nationstar, against the transfer of funds from Nationstar. The interest rate is based on LIBOR. plus a 

spread of 3.25%. The maturity date of this MR.A with the financial institution was extended to March 2013. 

ASAP + facility - During 2009, Nationstar began executing As Soon As Pooled Plus agreements with a GSE, under which 

Nationstar transfers to the GSE eligible mortgage loans that are to be pooled into the GSE MBS against the transfer of funds by 

the GSE. The interest rate is based on LIBOR plus a spread of 1.50%. These agreements typically have a maturity of up to 45 

days. 

Unsecured Senior Notes 

A summary of the balances of unsecured senior notes is presented below (in thousands): 

$285 million face value, 10.875% interest rate 
payable semi-annually, due April 2015 

$400 million face value, 7.875% interest rate 
payable semi-annually, due October 2020 

151Ota 

281,676 $ 
	

280,199 

400,727 $ 

635 

The indentures for the unsecured senior notes contain various covenants and restrictions that limit the Company's, Nationstar's, 

or certain of its subsidiaries', ability to incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends, make certain investments, create liens, 

consolidate, merge or sell substantially all of their assets, or enter into certain transactions with affiliates. 

The expected maturities of Nationstar's senior unsecured notes based on contractual maturities are as follows (in thousands). 

LeRacv Asset and Other FinancinR 

Nonrecourse Debt-Le ag Assets. 

In November 2009, Nationstar completed the securitization of approximately $222.0 million of ABS, which was structured as a 

secured borrowing. This structure resulted in Nationstar carrying the securitized loans as mortgages on Nationstar's 

consolidated balance sheet and recognizing the asset-backed certificates acquired by third parties as nonrecourse debt, totaling 

approximately $100.6 million and $112.5 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The principal and interest on 

these notes are paid using the cash flows from the underlying mortgage loans, which serve as collateral for the debt. The 

interest rate paid on the outstanding securities is 7.50%, which is subject to an available funds cap. The total outstanding 

principal balance on the underlying mortgage loans serving as collateral for the debt was approximately $336.9 million and 
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2 0 % 
Adverse 
Change 

10% 
Adverse 
Change 

DiitRitë 

$373.1 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Accordingly, the timing of the principal payments on this 

nonrecourse debt is dependent on the payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. The unpaid principal balance on the 

outstanding notes was $117.1 million and $130.8 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

Excess Spread Financing Debt at Fair Value  

In conjunction with Nationstar's acquisitions of certain mortgage servicing rights on various pools of residential mortgage loans 

(the Portfolios), Nationstar has entered into sale and assignment agreements which are treated as financings with certain entities 

formed by Newcastle, in which Newcastle and/or certain funds managed by Fortress own an interest. Nationstar, in transactions 

accounted for as financing an - angements, sold to such entities the right to receive a specified percentage of the excess cash flow 

generated from the Portfolios after receipt of a fixed basic servicing fee per loan. 

Nationstar retains all ancillary income associated with servicing the Portfolios and the remaining portion of the excess cash 

flow after receipt of the fixed basic servicing fee. Nationstar continues to be the servicer of the Portfolios and provides all 

servicing and advancing functions. Such entities have no prior or ongoing obligations associated with the Portfolios. 

Contemporaneous with the above, Nationstar entered into refinanced loan agreements with such entities. ShouldNationstar 

refinance any loan in the Portfolios, subject to certain limitations, Nationstar will be required to transfer the new loan or a 

replacement loan of similar economic characteristics into the Portfolios. The new or replacement loan will be governed by the 

same terms set forth in the sale and assignment agreement described above. 

Nationstar has elected fair value accounting for these financing agreements. The total carrying amount of the outstanding 

excess spread financing agreements was $288.1 million and $44.6 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

The following table shows the hypothetical effect on the fair value of excess spread financing using various unfavorable 

variations of the expected levels of certain key assumptions used in valuing these liabilities at December 31, 2012 (in 

thousands): 

100 bps 
Adverse 
Change 

200 bps 
Adverse 
Change 

10% 
Adverse 
Change 

„...... 	. 	. 
Excess spread financing 7,978 $ 16,404 $ 	10,654 $ 22,240 $ 	5,538 $ 	11,075 

As the fair value on the outstanding excess spread financing is linked to the future economic performance of certain acquired 

MSRs, any adverse changes in the acquired MSRs would inherently benefit the net carrying amount of the excess spread 

financing, while any beneficial changes in certain key assumptions used in valuing the acquired MSRs would negatively impact 

the net carrying amount of the excess spread financing. 

These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be evaluated with care. The effect on fair value of a 10% variation in 

assumptions generally cannot be determined because the relationship of the change in assumptions to the fair value may not be 

linear. Additionally, the impact of a variation in a particular assumption on the fair value is calculated while holding other 

assumptions constant. In reality, changes in one factor may lead to changes in other factors (e.g., a decrease in total prepayment 

speeds may result in an increase in credit losses), which could impact the above hypothetical effects, 

Participatin2 Interest Financn 

Participating interest financing represent the issuance of pools of Home Equity Conversion Mortgage Backed Securities 

(IIMBS) to third-party security holders which are guaranteed by certain GSEs. Nationstar has accounted for the transfer of 

these advances in the related Home Equity Conversion Mortgages (HECM) loans as secured borrowings, retaining the initial 

reverse mortgage interests on its consolidated balance sheet, and recording the pooled HMBS as participating interest financing 

liabilities on the Company's consolidated balance sheet. Monthly cash flows generated from the HECM loans are used to 

service the FIMBS. The interest rate is based on the underlying HIvIBS rate with orange of 0,53% to 7.17%. The participating 

interest financing was $580.8 million at December 31, 2012, There was none outstanding at December 31, 2011. 

Financial Covenants 

As of December 31, 2012, Nationstar was in compliance with its covenants on its borrowing arrangements and credit facilities. 

These covenants generally relate to Nation,star's tangible net worth, liquidity reserves, and leverage requirements. 
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Additions 

Chug o 

Repurchase reserves, end of period 

4,649 

976) 
7,321 10,026 $ 

'of paid 

2012 
	

2011 
	

2010 

Total general and administrative expenses 
	 $ 	201,587 $ 

	
82,183 $ 
	

58,913 

Legal and professional fces 

Outsourcing 
2,117 9,620 4 ,0 (-) .3 Depreciation and amortization 

8,014 

7,522 4 114 

2,347 6,700 3,832 

Travel 

Dues and tees 

felecommunications and technology 

3,388 

5. 9.78 

5,588 
.. 

4,559 4,723 5,300 
. ..31.atrorimy 	tice:suppli 

Advertising 

13. Repurchase Reserves 

Certain whole loan sale contracts include provisions requiring Nationstar to repurchase a loan if a borrower fails to make 

certain initial loan payments due to the acquirer or if the accompanying mortgage loan fails to meet customary representations 

and warranties. These representations and warranties are made to the loan purchasers about various characteristics of the loans, 

such as manner of origination, the nature and extent of underwriting standards applied and the types of documentation being 

provided and typically are in place for the life of the loan. In the event of a breach of the representations and warranties, the 

Company may be required to either repurchase the loan or indemnify the purchaser for losses it sustains on the loan. In 

addition, an investor may request that Nationstar refund a portion of the premium paid on the sale of in ortgage loans if a loan is 

prepaid within a certain amount of time from the date of sale. Nationstar records a provision for estimated repurchases and 

premium recapture on loans sold, which is charged to gain on mortgage loans held for sale. The reserve for repurchases is 

included as a component of payables and accrued liabilities. The current unpaid principal balance of loans sold by Nationstar 

represents the maximum potential exposure to repurchases related to representations and warranties. Reserve levels are a 

function of expected losses based on actual pending and expected claims, repurchase requests, historical experience, and loan 

volume. While the amount of repurchases and premium recapture is uncertain, Nationstar considers the liability to be 

appropriate. 

The activity of the outstanding repurchase reserves were as follows (in thousands): 

December 31, 
2012 
	

2011 
	

2010 

14. General and Administrative Expenses 

General and administrative expenses consist of the following for the dates indicated (in thousands): 

For the year ended December 31, 
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15. Income Taxes 

The consolidated financial statements through December 31, 2011 and for the period January 1, 2012 up to the Reorganization 

date (March 7, 2012) do not include incom e tax expense or benefit or any deferred tax assets or liabilities. Nationstar Inc.'s 

corporate subsidiaries were subject to income taxes prior to the Reorganization, however, income tax expense (primarily state) 

and related tax liabilities were not material for presentation purposes. As a result of the Reorganization, Nationstar Inc. and its 

subsidiaries, including Nationstar, became a new corporate consolidated group for income tax purposes. As a result of the 

change in income tax status, the Company recorded deferred taxes on the difference between book and tax bases in assets and 

liabilities as of the Reorganization date. The net deferred tax asset or liability is recorded through the consolidated statement of 

operations and comprehensive income as a component of income tax expense. As of the Reorganization date, the Company 

recorded a deferred tax asset for net operating and other loss carryforwards inherited as a result of the Reorganization, a 

deferred tax liability related to basis differences in Nationstes assets and liabilities and a valuation allowance for deferred tax 

assets that management concluded would likely not be realized. 

The components of income tax expense (benefit) on continuing operations were as follows (in thousands): 

For the year ended 
December 31, 2012 

Income tax expense differs from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. Federal corporate tax rate of 35% as follows for 

the period indicated (dollars in thousands): 

For the year ended 
December 31, 2012 

Effect of: 

State taxes, net of federal benefit 

Release of valuation aliowance 
• 

net 

Total income tax expense 	 71,296 
	

25.8 Vo 

Deferred income tax amounts at December 31, 2012, reflect the effect of basis differences in assets and liabilities for financial 

reporting and income tax purposes and tax attribute carryforwards. 
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December 31, 
2012 

Loss earryforwards (federal, state Se; capital) 
	

74,335 

61,831 

Reverse marl gage premiums 

LEdS4ite0f:0§•: 

Rent expense 

Restricted share based compensation 

Imptunirent 

Other, net 

15,248 

10,2,56 

4,206 

. 	. ...,............. 
3,401 

275 

Deferred Tax Assets 

Originated MSR gain on sale 

Depreciation and amortization, net 

Prepaid assets 

(67,975) 

26436j ;  

(10,018) 

1222) 

(106,577) 

Temporary differences and carryforwards that give rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following (in 

thousands): 

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 

00.0g401064.  

Net Deferred Tax Asset 23,737 

The federal net operating loss eanyforwards (NOL) amount to approximately $200.1 million at December 31, 2012. It is 

expected that these NOL's will begin to expire in 2027, if unused. The Company also has net capital loss and state NOL 

canyforwards of approximately $4.7 million and $102.1 million that begin to expire in 2015 and 2013, respectively. 

The Company regularly reviews the carrying amount of its deferred tax assets to determine if a valuation allowance is 

necessary. If based on the available evidence, it is more likely than not that all or a portion of the Company's deferred tax 

assets will not be realized in future periods, a valuation allowance is established. Consideration is given to all positive and 

negative evidence related to the realization of the deferred tax assets. 

Management considers all available evidence in evaluating the need for a valuation allowance. Significant judgment is 

required in assessing future earning trends and the timing of reversals of temporary differences. The Company's evaluation is 

based on current tax laws as well as management's expectations of future performance. Furthermore, in conjunction with the 

Reorganization, the Company incurred a change in control within the meaning of Section 382 and 383 of the Internal Revenue 

Code. As a result, federal tax law places an annual limitation on the amount of the Company's federal net operating loss 

carryfonvard that may be used. 

In particular, additional scrutiny must be given to deferred tax assets of an entity that has incurred pre-tax losses during the 

three most recent years because it is significant negative evidence that is objective and verifiable and therefore difficult to 

overcome. The Company had significant pre-tax losses for 2009 and 2010, and at the Reorganization date, the Company's 

management considered this factor in its analysis of deferred tax assets. Considering the Company's 2011 pre-tax income, the 

Company had a significant three year cumulative pre-tax loss. Additionally, the Company incurred significant losses for the 

periods 2006 through 2008. 
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Average 
Shares 

	

Net Income 	Outstanding 
ifahai6Wd,OK4450§1:i40:iiiiii06:ff 

	

205,287 	85,328 $ 
	

2.41 Net income attributable to Nationstar Inc. — basic 

Earnings Per 
Share 

Effect of dilutive stock awards 196 

Net income attributable to Nationstar Inc. — diluted 205,287 
	

85,524 $ 
	

2.40 

).p.1;1840. 

20,887 70,00 .0 $ Net income attributable to Nationstar Inc. 	basic 0,30 

Effect of dilutive stock awards 

Net income attributable to Nationstar Inc. — diluted 20,887 
	

70,000 $ 
	

0.30 

In conjunction with the Company's initial public offering and Reorganization, the Company became a taxable entity, inherited 

certain tax attributes, including net operating losses, and recorded the effects of the Company's temporary differences. At the 
Reorganization date, the Company recorded a net deferred tax asset which was primarily caused by the net operating loss 

carryforward. Simultaneously, the Company recorded a valuation allowance against the net deferred tax asset. The principle 

reason for the valuation allowance was the cumulative losses for the 2009. 2011 period and the Company's overall history of 

losses. Although the Company was profitable in 2011, as of the Reorganization date management concluded it would be 

inappropriate to rely on future income projections to conclude the net deferred tax asset would be realized. 

The Company generated significantly increased revenues in 2012, adding approximately $100 billion in LTPB to its mortgage 

servicing portfolio, more than doubling its mortgage loan originations and recognizing significant pre-tax income. 

Management believes that the increase in the size of the Company will continue in the near term. The Company expects to add 

approximately $215 billion in LIPB to its mortgage servicing portfolio in 2013 (see Note 29 - Subsequent Events). Because of 

the increase in the size of the Company, management has forecasted significant earnings for the foreseeable future. 

The Company's NOL is limited by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. Because of this limitation, the Company will to 

utilize the NOL over a 19 year period. Earnings during this extended period are difficult to forecast with any certainty. These 

factors, among others, caused management to release a portion of the valuation allowance at year end 2012. However, because 

forecasted income generally becomes less reliable over time, a full release of the valuation allowance was not determined to be 

appropriate at year end. 

16. Earnings Per Share 

The computation of basic and diluted net income (loss) attributable to Nationstar Inc. is as follows: 

Average 
Shares 	Earnings Per 

Net Income 	Outstanding 	Share 
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Average 
Shares 

Outstanding  
Earnings Per 

Share Net Loss 

tliousiine s....exceptsbare amounts) 

(9,914) 	70,000 $ 	(0.14) Net loss attributable to Nationstar Inc. 	basic 

Net loss attributable to Nationstar Inc. — diluted (9,914) 70,000 $ (0.14) 

Effect of dilutive stock awards 

H ended Dtenthei 31, 2010 

17. Fair Value Measurements 

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (4SC 820), provides a definition of fair value, establishes a framework for 

measuring fair value, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. The standard applies when GAM' 

requires or allows assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value and, therefore, does not expand the use of fair value in any 

new circumstance. 

ASC 820 emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. Therefore, a fair value 

measurement should be determined based on the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. 

As a basis for considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements, ASC 820 establishes a three-tiered fair 

value hierarchy based on the level of observable inputs used in the measurement of fair value (e.g., Level 1 representing quoted 

prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active market; Level 2 representing values using observable inputs other than 

quoted prices included within Level 1; and Level 3 representing estimated values based on significant unobservable inputs). In 

addition, ASC 820 requires an entity to consider all aspects of nonperformance risk, including its own credit standing, when 

measuring the fair value of a liability. Under ASC 820, related disclosures are segregated for assets and liabilities measured at 

fair value based on the level used within the hierarchy to determine their fair values. 

The following describes the methods and assumptions used by Nationstar in estimating fair values: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash The carrying amount reported in the consolidated balance sheets 

approximates fair value. 

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale – Nationstar originates mortgage loans in the U.S. that it intends to sell to Fannie Mae, Freddie 

Mac, and Ginnie Mae. Additionally, Nationstar holds mortgage loans that it intends to sell into the secondary markets via whole 

loan sales or securitizations. Nationstar measures newly originated prime residential mortgage loans held for sale at fair value. 

Mortgage loans held for sale are valued using a market approach by utilizing either: (i) the fair value of securities backed by 

similar mortgage loans, adjusted for certain factors to approximate the fair value of a whole mortgage loan, including the value 

attributable to mortgage servicing and credit risk, (ii) current commitments to purchase loans or (iii) recent observable market 

trades for similar loans, adjusted for credit risk and other individual loan characteristics. Nationstar classifies these valuations 

as Level 2 in the fair value disclosures. 

Mortgage Loans Held for Investment, subject to nonrecourse debt – Legacy Assets – Nationstar determines the fair value 

of loans held for investment, subject to nonrecourse debt – Legacy Assets using internally developed valuation models. These 

valuation models estim ate the exit price Nationstar expects to receive in the loan's principal market. Although Nationstar 

utilizes and gives priority to observable market inputs such as interest rates and market spreads within these models, Nationstar 

typically is required to utilize internal inputs, such as prepayment speeds, credit losses, and discount rates. These internal inputs 

require the use of judgment by Nationstar and can have a significant impact on the determination of the loan's fair value. As 

these prices are derived from a combination of internally developed valuation models and quoted market prices, Nationstar 

classifies these valuations as Level 3 in the fair value disclosures. 

Mortgage Servicing Rights – Fair Value – Nationstar recognizes MSRs related to all existing residential mortgage loans 

transferred to a third party in a transfer that meets the requirements for sale accounting and for which the servicing rights are 

retained. Additionally, Nationstar may acquire the rights to service forward residential mortgage loans that do not relate to 

assets transferred by Nationstar through the purchase of these rights from third parties. Nationstar estimates the fair value of its 

forward MSRs using a process that combines the use of a discounted cash flow model and analysis of current market data to 

arrive at an estimate of fair value. The cash flow assumptions and prepayment assumptions used in the model are based on 

various factors, with the key assumptions being mortgage prepayment speeds, discount rates, and credit losses. These 
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Excess Spread financing 

Loir.  
High 

Prepayment 
Speeds  

22.4% 

Average Life (years) 	Discount Rate 

4.5 years 
	

15.5% 

assumptions are generated and applied based on collateral stratifications including product type, remittance type, geography, 

delinquency and coupon dispersion. These assumptions require the use of judgment by Nationstar and can have a significant 

impact on the determination of the MSR's fair value. Periodically, management obtains third party valuations of a portion of the 

portfolio to assess the reasonableness of the fair value calculations provided by the cash flow model. Because of the nature of 

the valuation inputs, Nationstar classifies these valuations as Level 3 in the fair value disclosures. 

Reverse Mortgage Interests — Nationstar's reverse mortgage interests consist of fees paid to taxing authorities for borrowers' 

unpaid taxes and insurance, and payments made to borrowers for line of credit draws on reverse mortgages. These advances 

include due and payable advances, which are recovered upon the foreclosure and sale of the subject property, and defaulted 

advances that can be securitized. Nationstar estimates the fair value using a market approach by utilizing the fair value of 

securities backed by similar advances on reverse mortgage loans, adjusted for certain factors. Nationstar classifies these 

valuations as Level 2 in the fair value disclosures. 

REO — Nationstar determines the fair value of REO properties through the use of third-party appraisals and broker price 

opinions, adjusted for estimated selling costs. Such estimated selling costs include realtor fees and other anticipated closing 

costs. These values are adjusted to take into account factors that could cause the actual liquidation value of foreclosed 

properties to be different than the appraised values. This valuation adjustment is based upon Nationstar's historical experience 

with REQ. REO is classified as Level 3 in the fair value disclosures. 

Derivative Instruments — Nationstar enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments as part of its hedging strategy. 

The majority of these derivatives are exchange-traded or traded within highly active dealer markets. In order to determine the 

fair value of these instruments, Nationstar utilizes the exchange price or dealer market price for the particular derivative 

contract; therefore, these contracts are classified as Level 2. In addition Nationstar enters into IRLCs and LPCs with 

prospective borrowers and other loan originators. These commitments are carried at fair value based on the fair value of related 

mortgage loans which are based on observable market data. Nationstar adjusts the outstanding IRLCs with prospective 

borrowers based on an expectation that it will be exercised and the loan will be funded. IRLCs and LPCs are recorded in other 

assets or derivative financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheets. These commitments are classified as Level 2 in the 

fair value disclosures. 

Notes Payable — Notes payable consists of outstanding borrowings on Nationstar's warehouse and advance financing facilities. 

As the underlying warehouse and advance finance facilities bear interest at a rate that is periodically adjusted based on a market 

index, the carrying amount reported on the consolidated balance sheet approximates fair value. Nationstar classifies these 

valuations as Level 3 in the fair value disclosures, 

Unsecured SenMr Notes — The fair value of unsecured senior notes is based on quoted market prices and is considered Level 1 

from the market observable inputs used to determine fair value. 

Nonrecourse Debt — Legacy Assets —Nationstar estimates fair value based on the present value of future expected discounted 

cash flows with the discount rate approximating current market value for similar financial instruments. These prices are derived 

from a combination of internally developed valuation models and quoted market prices, and are classified as Level 3. 

Excess Spread Financing — Nationstar estimates fair value based on the present value of future expected discounted cash 

flows with the discount rate approximating current market value for similar financial instruments. The cash flow assumptions 

and prepayment assumptions used in the model are based on various factors, with the key assumptions at December 31, 2012 

being mortgage prepayment speeds of 14.0%, average life of 4.2 years, and discount rate of 15.0%. Changes in fair value to the 

excess spread financing are recorded as a component of service fee income in Nationstar's consolidated statement of operations 

and comprehensive income. As these prices are derived from a combination of internally developed valuation models and 

quoted market prices based on the value of the underlying MSRs, Nationstar classifies these valuations as Level 3 in the fair 

value disclosures. 

The range of various assumptions used in Nationstar's valuation of Excess Spread financing were as follows: 

Participating Interest, Financing — Nationstar estimates the fair value using a market approach by utilizing the fair value of 

securities backed by similar participating interests in reverse mortgage loans. Nationstar classifies these valuations as Level 2 

In the fair value disclosures. 
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;Agk-.7-t 
.Mortgage loans held for sale 

Other assets: 

1,480,537 1,480,537 
635 860 

Forward MBS trades 

Total assets 
;WA 

1,632,726 S 635,860 2,268,586 $ 

Derivative financial instruments 

Interest rate swaps on ABS debt 

LPCs 

,kt;144.A&i:la 

Total liabilities 

1,846 
I ,974 

86 
288,080 

308,115 $ 
	

20,026 S 
	

288,089 

Total Fair Value 	Level 1 
ASSETS 
Niortgag oaris:belai0f1 

Mortgage servicing rights -- fair value 

.1:EL,Cs 

Level 2 
	

Level 3 

:ota 
LIMILL  

m',Crunmn ts nimen 

interest rate swaps and caps 

Excess spread financing at tai value 

The estimated carrying amount and fair value of Nationstar's financial instruments and other assets and liabilities measured at 

fair value on a recurring basis is as follows for the dates indicated (in thousands): 

December 31, 2012  
Recurring Fair Value Measurements  

Total Fair Value 
	

Level 1 	Level 2 	Level 3 

December 31, 2011 
Recurring Fair Value Measurements 

(1) 
	

Based on the nature and risks of these assets and liabilities, the Company has determined that presenting them as a 

single class is appropriate. 
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ASSETS 
	

LIABILITIES 

Mortgage 	Excess spread 
servicing rights 	financing For the year ended December 31, 2012 

$ 	251,050 $ 44,595 Beginning balance 

Transfers out or Level 

included in earnings 

Purchases, issuances, sales and settlements 

Issuances 

Settlem ents (39,$65} 

8 K98P..  

ASSETS 
Mortgage 

servicing rights 

145,062 $ 

(39,000) 

LIABILITIES 
Excess spread 

financing 

'3,060 

For the year ending December 31,2011 
Beginning balance 

Transfers out of Level 3 

' 
Included in earnings 

Purchases, iSSII211CC, snli7s and sealeincrits 

Issuances 

(2,207) 5,714 Settlements 

The table below presents a reconciliation for all of Nationstar's Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a 

recurring basis for the dates indicated (in thousands): 
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Assets 
• 

Total assets 10,467 $ 

1:0467. 

10,467 $ 

Assets 
121Wn: '1.668 

Total assets 	 3,668 
	

3,668 $ 
	

(6,833) 

The table below presents the items which Nationstar measures at fair value on a nonrecurring basis (in thousands). 

	  Total Estimated 	(Loss) Included 
Nonrecurring Fair Value 

Measurements 
	 Total Gain 

Level I 	Level 2 	Level 3 	Fair Value 	in Earnings 

(1) 
	

Based on the nature and risks of these assets and liabilities, the Company has determined that presenting them as a 

single class is appropriate. 

102 	 RFIN_EX 29_ 00000114 

1942 



December 31, 2012 

Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value 
Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 

Cash and cash equivalents 

he.00.0. 
1,480,537 

750,273 805,650 

Mortgage loans held for sale 

Reverse mortgage. interests 
.. ..... ...... 

601$ 

458,626 

22b:,g§0 

1 1,302 

873,179 173, 179 

12,370 

44,595 

Mortgage loans held for sale 

no1utAotSrs0 clohi '- It g SC)' 11 ..t5 .... 

Derivative instrunients 

Notes payable 

Derivative financial instruments 

.................. 
Excess spread financing 

458,626 

11302 

12,370 

1 1 2. 490 

44,595 

T..Tnsecured senior notes 
. . .. 

Nonmeourse debt - 'Legacy assets 

spreadflniulclng 

Participating interest financing 

1,062,635 

2.fl fig 

100,620 

84ii 

580,836 

Carrying 
Amount 

1,151,997 

593,741 

December 31,2011 
Fair Value 

Level 1 
	Level 2 Level 3 

102,492 

ariPlatAssPt 
Cash and cash equivalents 

f4estricted:cas 

62,445 62,445 $ 

71:49 

The table below presents a summary of the estimated carrying amount and fair value of Nationstar's financial instruments (in 

thousands). 

Financial liabilities: 

18. Employee Benefits 

Nationstar holds a contributory defined contribution plan (401(k) plan) that covers substantially all full-time employees. 

Nationstar matches 50% of participant contributions, up to 6% of each participant's total eligible annual base compensation. 

Matching contributions totaled approximately $3.7 million, $2.3 million, and $1.5 million for the years ended December 31, 

2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. 
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Rem aining 
Grant Date 
	Contractual 

Shares 	Fair Value 	Term 

Restricted Stock unvested and expected to vest 
	

1,283 

eSttteted:Stbdki.vos td:::and;payableklt mho 

Granted in March 2012 

Forfeited 
. 	. 

11 I:December , •• , 	. , 

:17..g.4111 ‘ 11) 111::41c. 

19. Share-Based Compensation 

Nationstar Inc. has adopted the 2012 Incentive Compensation Plan (2012 Plan), that offers equity-based awards to certain key 

employees of Nationstar, consultants, and non-employee directors. In connection with the initial public offering, on March 7, 

2012, Nationstar Inc. made grants of restricted stock to management of 1,191,117 shares and also to non-employee directors of 

85,716 shares. 

The following table summarizes information about the restricted stock as of December 31, 2012 under the 2012 Plan (shares in 

thousands): 

The following table summarizes the vesting schedule of the restricted stock grants: 

Restricted Stock expected to vest 
	 425,560 

	
426,836 

In addition to the 2012 Plan, Nationstar management also had interests in certain of the predecessor parent company FIF's 

restricted preferred units which fully vested on June 30, 2012. The weighted average grant date fair value of these units was 

$4.23. In conjunction with the final vesting under this plan, certain participants remitted a portion of their Nationstar Inc. 

common stock to Nationstar in payment of a portion of their federal tax withholdings on their vested shares. The participants 

paid the remainder of their required tax payments with cash. As a result of the above activity, Nationstar holds 212,156 shares 

of Nationstar Inc. common shares at their cost of $4.6 million. These shares are reflected in Nationstar's consolidated balance 

sheet as common shares held by subsidiary, a contra equity account. The shares are expected to be held by Nationstar until they 

can be distributed to Nationstar Inc. 

A total of 100,887 Class A Units were granted to certain management members on the date of Nationstar's acquisition by FIR No 

consideration was paid for the Class AUnits, and these units vest in accordance with the Vesting Schedule per the FIF HE Holding 

LLC Amended and Restated Limited Liability Agreement, generally in years three through five after grant date. All of these 

outstanding units were completely vested as of July 11, 2011. 

Effective September 17, 2010, FIF HE Holdings LLC executed the FIF HE Holdings LLC Fifth Amended and Restated Limited 

Liability Company Agreement (the Fifth Agreement). This Fifth Agreement provided for a total of 457,526 Class A Units to be 

granted to certain management members. No consideration was paid for the granted units, and the units vest in accordance with 

the Vesting Schedule per the Fifth Agreement 

Simultaneously with the execution of the Fifth Agreement, FIF HE Holdings LLC executed several Restricted Series I Preferred 

Stock Unit Award Agreements (PRSU Agreements). These Agreements provided for a total of 3,304,000 Class C Units and 

3,348,000 Class D Units to be granted to certain management members. No consideration was paid for the granted units, and the 

units vest in accordance with the Vesting Schedule per the PRSU Agreements. 

Total share-based compensation expense, net of forfeitures, for both the 2012 Plan and the predecessor plan recognized for the 

year ended December 31, 2012 was $13.3 million. Total share-based compensation expense, net of forfeitures, for the 

predecessor plan for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, was $14.8 million and $12.9 million, respectively. 

Nationstar expects to recognize $6.9 million of compensation expense in 2013, $2.8 million in 2014, and $0.5 million in 2015 

in conjunction with its 2012 Plan. 
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20. Capital Requirements 

Certain of Nationstar's secondary market investors require various capital adequacy requirements, as specified in the respective 

selling and servicing agreements. To the extent that these mandatory, imposed capital requirements are not met, Nationstar's 

secondary market investors may ultimately terminate Nationstar's selling and servicing agreements, which would prohibit 

Nationstar from further originating or securitizi.ng these specific types of mortgage loans. In addition, these secondary market 

investors may impose additional net worth or financial condition requirements based on an assessment of market conditions or 

other relevant factors. 

Among Nationstar's various capital requirements related to its outstanding selling and servicing agreements, the m ost 

restrictive of these requires Nationstar to maintain a minimum adjusted net worth balance of $426.1 million. As of 

December 31, 2012, Nationstar was in compliance with all of its selling and servicing capital requirements. 

Additionally, Nationstar is required to maintain a minimum tangible net worth of at least $350.0 million as of each quarter-end 

related to its outstanding Master Repurchase Agreements on its outstanding repurchase facilities. As of December 31, 2012, 

Nationstar was in compliance with these minimum tangible net worth requirements. 

21. Commitments and Contingencies 

Litgi ation and  
In the ordinary course of business, Nationstar Inc. and its subsidiaries are routinely named as defendants in or parties to many 

pending and threatened legal actions and proceedings, including putative class actions and other litigation. These actions and 

proceedings are generally based on alleged violations of consumer protection, securities, employment, contract and other laws. 

The certification of any putative class action could substantially increase our exposure to damages. These actions and 

proceedings are generally based on alleged violations of consumer protection, securities, employment, contract and other laws, 

including the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act. Additionally, along with others in our industry, we are subject to repurchase 

claims and may continue to receive claims in the future, including through securitization vehicles and master servicing 

arrangements that we have acquired and from our Legacy Portfolio. Certain of the actual or threatened legal actions include 

claims for substantial compensatoty, punitive and/or, statutory damages or claims for an indeterminate amount of damages. 

Further, in the ordinary course of business the Company and its subsidiaries can be or are involved in governmental and 

regulatory examinations, information gathering requests, investigations and proceedings (both formal and informal), regarding 

the Company's business, certain of which may result in adverse judgments, settlements, fines, penalties, injunctions or other 

relief. Such inquiries may include those into servicer foreclosure processes and procedures and lender-placed insurance. In 

particular, ongoing and other legal proceedings brought under state consumer protection statues may result in a separate fine for 

each violation of the statute, which, particularly in the case of class action lawsuits, could result in damages substantially in 

excess of the amounts we earned form the underlying activities and that could have a material adverse effect on our liquidity 

and financial position. 

The Company seeks to resolve all litigation and regulatory matters in the manner management believes is in the best interest of 

the Company and contests liability, allegations of wrongdoing and, where applicable, the amount of damages or scope of any 

penalties or other relief sought as appropriate in each pending matter. On at least a quarterly basis, the Company assesses its 

liabilities and contingencies in connection with outstanding legal and regulatory proceedings utilizing the latest information 

available. Where available information indicates that it is probable a liability has been incurred and the Company can 

reasonably estimate the amount of that loss an accrued liability is established. The actual costs of resolving these proceedings 

may be substantially higher or lower than the amounts accrued 

When a loss contingency is not both probable and estimable, the Company does not establish an accrued liability. As a 

litigation or regulatory matter develops, the Company, in conjunction with any outside counsel handling the matter, evaluates 

on an ongoing basis whether such matter presents a loss contingency that is probable and estimable. If, at the time of 

evaluation, the loss contingency is not both probable and estimable, the matter will continue to be monitored for further 

developments that would make such loss contingency both probable and estimable. Once the matter is deemed to be both 

probable and estimable, the Company will establish an accrued liability and record a corresponding amount to litigation related 

expense. The Company will continue to monitor the matter for further developments that could affect the amount of the accrued 

liability that has been previously established. Litigation related expense, which includes the fees paid to external legal service 

providers, of $15.0 million, $9.3 million, and $9.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 respectively, 

were included in general and administrative expense on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income 

(loss). 

For a number of matters for which a loss is probable or reasonably possible in future periods, whether in excess of a related 

accrued liability or where there is no accrued liability, the Company may he able to estimate a range of possible loss. In 
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determining whether it is possible to provide an estimate of loss or range of possible loss, the Company reviews and evaluates 

its material litigation and regulatory matters on an ongoing basis, in conjunction with any outside counsel handling the matter. 

For those matters for which an estimate is possible, management currently believes the aggregate range of reasonably possible 

loss is $1.0 million to $4.8 million in excess of the accrued liability (if any) related to those matters. This estimated range of 

possible loss is based upon currently available information and is subject to significant judgment, numerous assumptions and 

known and unknown uncertainties. The matters underlying the estimated range will change from time to time, and actual 

results may vary substantially from the current estimate. Those matters for which an estimate is not possible are not included 

within the estimated range. Therefore, this estimated range of possible loss represents what management believes to be an 
estimate of possible loss only for certain matters meeting these criteria. It does not represent the Company's maximum loss 

exposure. 

Based on current knowledge, and after consultation with counsel, management believes that the current legal accrued liability is 

appropriate, and the amount of any incremental liability arising from these matters is not expected to have a material adverse 

effect on the consolidated financial condition of the Company, although the outcome of such proceedings could be material to 

the Company's operating results and cash flows for a particular period depending, on among other things, the level of the 

Company's revenues or income for such period. However, in the event of significant developm ents on existing cases, it is 

possible that the ultimate resolution, if unfavorable, may be material to the Company's consolidated financial statements. 

Operating Lease Commitments 
Nationstar leases various office facilities under non-cancelable lease agreements with primary terms extending through 2019. 

These lease agreements generally provide for market-rate renewal options, and may provide for escalations in minimum rentals 

over the lease term (see Note 22 - Restructuring Charges). Minimum annual rental commitments for office leases with 

unrelated parties and with initial or remaining tenns of one year or more, net of sublease payments, are presented below (in 

thousands), 

Loan and Other Commitments  
Nationstar enters into IRLCs with prospective borrowers whereby the Company commits to lend a certain loan amount under 

specific terms and interest rates to the borrower, In addition, Nationstar began entering into LPCs with prospective sellers in 
November 2012. These loan commitments are treated as derivatives and are carried at fair value (See Note 11-Derivative 

Financial Instruni ants). 

In 2012, Nationstar completed its acquisitions of certain MSRs related to approximately $28.4 billion of unpaid principal 

balance in reverse mortgage loans from financial services companies. As servicer for these reverse mortgage loans, among 

other things, the Company is obligated to make advances to the loan customers as required. At December 31, 2012, the 

Company's maximum unfunded advance obligation related to these MSRs was approximately $4.7 billion. Upon funding any 

portion of these advances, the Company expects to securitize and sell the advances in transactions that will be accounted for as 

financing arrangements. 

Other Contingencies 
In June 2011, Nationstar entered into an agreement to subserv ice loans for a financial services company. Nationstar began to 

subserv ice these loans in July and August 2011, This subservicing agreement included, among other things, a loss incentive and 

sharing arrangement. Under this arrangement, Nationstar can earn incentive fees of up to $2.5 million for successfully 

mitigating losses within a specific subserviced population of loans. This incentive fee would be recognized when earned. For 

this same population of loans, Nationstar is subject to loss sharing under certain conditions. Should losses in this population of 

loans exceed a specified level, Nationstar would be required to share a portion of the losses on such loans up to a maximum of 

$10.0 million, Losses under this arrangement would be recognized at the point at which Nationstar determines that a liability is 
expected to be incurred. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, Nationstar has estimated no liability under this agreement. 
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During December 2009, Nationstar entered into a strategic relationship with a major mortgage market participant, which 

contemplates, among other things, significant mortgage servicing rights and subserv icing transfers to Nationstar upon terms to 

be determined. Under this arrangement, if certain delivery thresholds have been met, the market paiticipant may require 

Nationstar to establish an operating division or newly created subsidiary with separate, dedicated employees within a specified 

timeline to service such mortgage servicing rights and subserv icing. After a specified time period, this market participant may 

purchase the subsidiary at an agreed upon price. Since December 2010, all of the required delivery thresholds with this market 

participant have been met, but the market participant has not required the Company to establish an operating division or newly 

created subsidiary with separate, dedicated employees. 

22. Restructuring Charges 

To respond to the decreased demand in the home equity mortgage market and other market conditions, Nationstar initiated a 

program to reduce costs and improve operating effectiveness in 2007. This program included the closing of several offices and 

the tennination of a large portion of Nationstar's workforce. As part of this plan, Nafionstar expected to incur lease and other 

contract termination costs. 

Nationstar recorded restructuring charges totaling $0.5 million, $1.1 million, and $2.3 million for the years ended December 31, 

2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, related to cancelled lease expenses that are reflected in general and administrative expenses. 

The following table summarizes, by category, the Company's restructuring charge activity for the periods noted below. 

Liability 
Balance at Restructuring Restructuring 
January 1 	Adjustments 	Settlements 

Liability 
Balance at 

December 31 

:).'6e0i10400.0Mbur 	2.914: 

Restructuriiig charges: 

Total 

VecUOI: 

Restructuring charges: 

TO tal 
jeikUT)ecember 31 20: 

Restructuring charges: 

aseEtern).M. i0jUmi: • 
Total 8,460 $ 	500 $ 

7;186 
(1,774) ,  $ 7,186 
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...•.,., ..•. 44i.81.4 
47,751 14.2% 13.2% 54,199 

	

December 31, 2012 
	

December 31,2011 
Unpaid 
	

% of 
	

Unpaid 
	

% of 
Principal 
	

Total 
	

Principal 
	

Total 
State 
	 Balance 

	Outstanding 
	Balance 
	Outstanding 

Florida 

....................... 
Pennsylvania 18,670 5.2% 18,471 4.8% 

0(16 

$ 360,785 
	

100.0% $ 382,880 
	

100.0% 

65,354 $ 
	

89,738 

Amortizing Adjustable Rate Mortgages (ARMs): 

201 

5,046 

20“:  

8993 

6,402 

• 43 

23. Concentrations of Credit Risk 

Properties collateralizing mortgage loans held for investment and EEC were geographically disbursed throughout the United 

States (measured by principal balance and expressed as a percent of the total outstanding mortgage loans held for investment and 

REO). 

The following table details the geographical concentration of mortgage loans held for investment and REO by state for the dates 

indicated (in thousands). 

(1)  No other state contains more than 5.0% of the total outstanding. 

Additionally, within mortgage loans held for investment, certain loan products' contractual terms may give rise to a concentration 

of credit risk and increase Nationstar's exposure to risk of nonpayment or realization. 

24, Business Segment Reporting 

Nationstar currently conducts business in two separate operating segments: Servicing and Originations. The Servicing segment 

provides loan servicing on Nationstar's total servicing portfolio, including the collection of principal and interest payments and 

the assessment of ancillary fees related to the servicing of mortgage loans. The Originations segment involves the origination, 

packaging, and sale of agency mortgage loans into the secondary markets via whole loan sales or securitizations. Nationstar 

reports the activity not related to either operating segment in the Legacy Portfolio and Other column. The Legacy Portfolio and 

Other column includes primarily all subprime mortgage loans originated in the latter portion of 2006 and during 2007 or 

acquired from Nationstar's predecessor and consolidated VIEs which were consolidated pursuant to the adoption of new 

consolidation guidance related to VIEs adopted on January 1, 2010. 

Nationstar's segments are based upon Nationstar's organizational structure which focuses primarily on the services offered. The 

accounting policies of each reportable segment are the same as those of Nationstar except for 1) expenses for consolidated 

back-office operations and general overhead-type expenses such as executive administration and accounting, 2) revenues 

generated on inter-segment services performed, and 3) interest expense on unsecured senior notes. Expenses are allocated to 

individual segments based on the estimated value of services performed, including estimated utilization of square footage and 

corporate personnel as well as the equity invested in each segment. Revenues generated on inter-segment services performed 

are valued based on similar services provided to external parties. 

To reconcile to Nationstar's consolidated results, certain inter-segment revenues and expenses are eliminated in the 

"Elimination" column in the following tables. 
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The following tables are a presentation of financial information by segment for the periods indicated (in thousands): 

Year ended December 31,2012 
Legacy 

Servicing 	Originations 	Operating 	Portfolio 	Eliminations 	Consolidated 
Segments 	and Other 

RPM 
Servicing fee income 

:1:0.11 4;01- ..e .:1P(3011"T' 
Total fee income 

Gam/(1o') 01).  moIgagc loans hold tor sa 

Total revenues 

$ 462,001 5 

34 $42 
496,843 

983,985 

	

2,287 5 	(1,793) $ 462,495 

4,656 

	

2,101 
	

(1,793) 	497,151 

	

2,101 
	

(1,771) 
	

984,315 

462,001 $ 

497,134 

497,134 

(291) 

486,851 
582,045  24,145 

Other income (expense): 

1.-i#00ari68'i0;E 

Interest expense 

'14,43 (4'9 1 ■ 

(14,639) 182,647) (25,830) (156,817) (197,308) 

(14,571) 
• 	•• 

(125,68'7) 

76i$8;1.,.  

9,620 

i,oss on equity method investment (14,571) (14,571) 

Total other income (expense; 

Depreciation and amortization 

1,771 1,561 

2,754 $ 	8,880 $ 	740 $ 

,84591 	6,184,30 	3411M 

(123,615) (5,404) 	(129,019) 

07066 S (20,483) )  15 '162': 

6,126 5 

Servicing fee income 

*is 
Total fee income 

Tool revenues 

Other income (expense): 

Tige.re#Ei.1 .1:00:11 
Interest expense 

S on equity niothod investment 

Loss on interest rate swaps 

$ 238,394 $ 238,394 $ 1,972 $ 	(6,955) $ 233,411 

114 2P 

255,583 14,109 

'IMO] 

269,692 5,968 (6,955) 	268,705 

255,583 
.... 	... . 

123, 540 	379,123 5,968 (7,250) 	377,841 

0.6;•38,3 

58,024) 

298 

•••4••:866.•::: 

(10,955) 	(68,979) 	(36,396) 

6p:.„ 

(105,375) 

298 

6,955 1 ; 763 

.... . •:.20 6.96 

2j'i845) 

(50,771) 

887: 

.(1:2•389)::" 

(53,807) 	(3,919) Total other income (expense 

Income (loss) befort staXes 

(55,570) 

4,063 668 $ 

7  854 
.1,306 $ 	3.„.395 $ 

787:91 
Depreciation and amortization. 

••••• 	• 	••••••••••--- 
gOtiil.a§s'et'g 

s; 

909,992.. 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

Operating 
Servicing 	Originations 	Segments 

Legacy 
Portfolio 

and Other 	Eliminations 	Consolidated 
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Year ended December 31,2010 

Operating 
Servicing 	Originations 	Segments 

Legacy 
Portfolio 
and Other 	Eliminations Consolidated 

121W.1NIIVS'r. 
Servicing fee income 

Total fee income 

XT:atti? 
'total revenues 

Other income (expense): 

Interest expense 

Fair value changes - ABS securitizations 
.AE.Other,.:10.00ie (expense 

Income (loss) before taxes 

'Total assets 

182,842 189,884 3,463 

182,842 267,382 

 

3,463 

6•1029 

    

$ 14,230 $ 	662 $ 14,892 $ (24,806) $ $ 	(9,914) 
1Z::; 

— 	1,947,181 689,923 	402,627 	1,092,550 	854,631 
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Assets 

id anli$h.:d 

Restricted cash 

Mortgage loans held for sale 

Ast 	,t 

Natlonstar Inc. 	Issuer 

:IA2:"248 

145,657 

1,480,537 

Guarantor 
(Subsidiaries) 

401: 

Non- 
Guarantor 

(Subsidiaries) 	Eliminations 	Consolidated 

393,190 

1,480,537 

Participating interest 
mortgages 

conmal es4ohygt g 

Mortgage servicing rights -- fair 

II reverse 

604 
635,860 

Mortgage servicing rights -- amortized 
cost 

Pteprttymnd ' 

EEO, net 

10,973 
'' 	. 	. . .. 

8,428 

10,973 

10,467 

tisse 322",  

750,273 

757,682 $6,766,458 $ 
	

97,267 $ 2,460,734 5 (2,955,998) 57,126,143  

StOi,j2k: li61416HE! 

7,966 

Notes payable 

0.tU 

Payables and accrued liabilities 
• • 	• 

Derivative financial instruments 

— $ 2,295,029 $ — $1,306,557 

1, 062,o3 

640,369 

.2 . 063 76"4 

12,060 

$3,601,586 

62;6'S.$ 
(14,136) 631,431 

06316 

3238 

Nonrecourse, debt–Legacy Assets 

Participating interest financing 

Total stockholders' equity 

'lot ti liabih1iu,... mind tocLholdr 
I. ijiiit 

757,682 

i$000 
580,836 

728,908 95,452 
	

53,736 

100,620 

(2 ,977,9.02 

(878,096) 	757,682 

100,620 

2.88,00 
580,836 

757,682 $066; ,08 
• ••••:„._••••••• „.• 

974267: 
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25. Guarantor Financial Statement Information 

As of December 31, 2012, Nationstar and Nationstar Capital Corporation have issued $1.1 billion in aggregate principal 

amount of unsecured senior notes which mature on various dates through October 1, 2020. The notes are jointly and severally 

guaranteed on an unsecured senior basis by all of Nationstar's existing and future domestic subsidiaries, other than its 

securitization and certain finance subsidiaries, certain other restricted subsidiaries and subsidiaries that in the future Nationstar 

designates as excluded restricted and unrestricted subsidiaries. All guarantor subsidiaries are 100% owned by Nationstar. 

Effective June 30, 2012, Nationstar Inc. and its two direct wholly-owned subsidiaries became guarantors of the unsecured 

senior notes as well. Presented below are consolidating financial statements of Nationstar Inc., Nationstar and the guarantor 

subsidiaries for the periods indicated. 

NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE HOLDINGS INC. 
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET 

DECEMBER 31, 2012 
(IN THOUSANDS) 

Total assets 

1951 



Servicing  fee income 

Total fee income 

Total Revenues 

Salaries, wages and benefits 

Provision for loan losses 

(1,793) 

(1,793) $ 462,495 
• H• 34656: 

497,151 

87 164 

462,980 $ 

•]-(3•95 

462,585 

.487 16 

349,012 9,443 358,455 

01;587 . , 
2,353 

276,583 
	

23,771 

Nationstar Inc. Issuer 
Guarantor 

(Subsidiaries )  

Non- 
Guarantor 

(Subsidiaries) Eliminations Consolidated 

468 35,891 

Occupancy  
. 	....... 

Other  income (expense): 

eii:Cine'oiue. ., 

triter est. expense 

Loss on equity method mv es trn ents 

l'.z•.At 

Gain/(loss) from subsidiaries 

Income before taxes 

064. : 

16,786 

:563 ,6607.: 
••• ' " 

1.2;120:: 582045. 

, 

(14,571) (14,571) 

994) 

179,359 

179,359 

5PM 

(22,789) (156,570) 

	

443763)  	 

	

(46,560) 	(156,570) 276,583 
2; .'6A71. 

(1,793) 	984,315 949,749 

179,359  

NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE HOLDINGS INC. 
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 
(IN THOUSANDS) 

Net income/(loss) 
	

$ 205,287 $ 179,359  $ 	23,771 $ (46,560) $ (156,570) $ 205,287 
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Non- 
Guarantor 	Guarantor 

(Subsidiaries) (Subsidiaries) 	Eliminations 	Consolidated 
=.77. 

Nationstar 
Inc. 	Issuer 

deratAng-::50tiVitleS; 
. ........ 

Net inconie/(loss) 

am)/loss from subsidiaries 

am on mortgage loans held for sale 

$ 205,287 $ 179,359 $ 	23,771 $ (46,560) $ (156,570) $ 205,287 

(179,359) 

(487,164) 

22,789 

Net tax effect of stock grants 
issued 

Other assets 

(2,846) 

608.085y 

(34,306) 
... 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating 
activities (145,254) 157 	(1,813,019) 

9 

(1,958,116) 

14,136 (28,774) (17,895) (1,773) 

NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE HOLDINGS INC. 
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 
(IN THOUSANDS) 

00.3iptiOrri-W-6440;; 

Loss (gain) on foreclosed real estate 
and other 

os na quitit rnthodAriNT,Ar.) .0 
(Gain)/loss on ineffectiveness on 
interest rate swaps and cap 

fin incin 

Depreciation and amortization 

Accretion of mortgage servicing 
liability 

Am ortizatioil of pr era i um s/(discounts 

0:)6411.4 
purOisød. Pet: 

Cost of loans sold and principal 
payments and prepayments, and other 
changes in mortgage loans originated 
as held for sale, net of fees 

1,890  

(1,497) 4,361 2,864 

— 	7,185,335 	 •■•••■ 
	 12,387 
	— 	7,197,722 

Accomas receivable (.1,030,084) (1,819) 	279,396 (752,507) 
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24,329)' 24'329y 

679 

" 	• 	.'" 	:••• 

. : ...................... 	. . .... .. 
Proceeds from sales of REO 

207.03751 

(884) 

.l pràViddl1V/(iI5d.ü, 

Fhinci 	activities: 
2 1157, 9g),  

Repayment of excess servicing 
spread financing (39,865) (39,865) 

Distribution to subsidiaries 

Debt financing costs 

Na.eaSh,.0Fov.ided:.1 

Net increase/(decrease 

ol 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of 
period 

05i61 

in cash 90,204 157 

(23,213) 

2,39.44$.4: 

90,047 

(23,213) 

246,700 (246,700) 

$ 152,248 $ 	401 $ 
	

$ 152,649 

2,050,455 

582,897 

677,952 

,846 

. . : 	. . 
Transfers to/trom restricted cash (321,691) (225,214) 

Issuance of participating interest 
financing 

nonoidg 
Increase (decrease) in notes 
payable, net 

Lessc assets 
— 

582,897 

2,728,407 

40M-:$1 

7(099 

46 760:': 
sano of corn ía on Oci 

• 

Non- 
Guarantor 	Guarantor 

Nation star Inc. 	Issuer 	(Subsidiaries) 
	

(Subsidiaries) 	Eliminations 	Consolidated 

Property and equipment additions, 
net of disposals (25,356) (25,356) 

Deposit on reverse mortgage 
servicing rights, net 

(37,911) 
	 (37,911) 
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Cash and cash equivalents 

aeStri4„*V0-  

Accounts receivable, net 

ortgog Ic.0riMiel Cpt.:...m 

Mortgage loans held for investment, subject to 
nonrecourse debt-Legacy Asset, net 

„ 

Mortgage servicing rights fair value 

	

: 	....•••:•.•••••••••••,•:",-; 
 inient in JAN, 

	

•••••••••''' 	: 
Property and equipment, net 
•-••••••••• 

1013:•('4;1'..,ii1e; 

Other assets 

Liabilities an .d members'eguity 

Unsecured senior notes 

. liabih ises.  
Payables to affiliates 

Derivative financial instrimients, subject to ABS 
nonrecourse clt.bt 

Excess gpread financing fair value 

62,445 $ 62,201 $ 244 

: 
499 

281,782 
' 458.: 62 , 	, 

280,511 562,300 

5,984 

41 061 

251,050 

40 

23,238 

106,181 

X35 

237,496 
107;8931 

R80' 

243,480 

251,050 

24,073 
4•668:Ci 

106,181 

4,66g 

2418,7,73) 

280,199 

OAS 

::373 179 ,•; 

280,199 

107,893 

•:. 	• 

(107,893) 

44,595 

ttO 

Total liabilities 

Total liabilities and members' equity 71,630 $ 

(1(7,893) 

543,991 $ (248,773) $ 1,787,931  

1,139,774 474,741 1,506,622 

NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE LLC 
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET 

DECEMBER 31,2011 
(IN THOUSANDS) 

Issuer 
	

Guarantor 	Non-Guarantor 
(Parent) 
	

(Subsidiaries) 	(Subsidiaries) 
	

Eliminations 
	

Consolidated 
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NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE LLC 
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 
(IN THOUSANDS) 

Servicing fee income 

Other te•Oafidoble: 

Total fee income 

Total Revenues 

enses  mid imp urmcnl.s 

Salaries.. W‘•-1e3 and benefits 

	

— 	. . . 
:..G6.f.lef ..... 6 m d.  
Provision for loan losses 

Occupancy 

	

lot ii >p' n', 	iiid imp ilrnicnts 

Other income (expense):  

:iittiOrn 

Interest expense 

tou inytmen 

Fair value cshinges in ABS securitizations 

Total other income (expense 

. .. .............................. 	, 

(50,771) 

i:1,071) 

. . 
:-..fridtidat•!:ifi::61:irriiiit. 65,::—... • • 

go 43! 

116 
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39,000 

Amortisation of prem ium si (discounts) (5,042) 

• •••''' 

Cost of loans sold and principal payments and 
prepayments, and other changes in mortgage 
loans originated as held for sale, net of fees 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Receivables froingpayables to) affiliates 

foi - ittf.sziW 

3,376,778 
	

26,659 
	

3,403,437 

... 
(227,455) (8,407) 240,246 

6,1 06) 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

FI:,"bir 
IV It 1:C.S 

Ito) operatin 
4F, 910) , 

NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE LLC 
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 
(IN THOUSANDS) 

Issuer 
(Parent) 

Guarantor 
(Subsidiaries) 

Non 
Guarantor 

(Subsidiaries) Eliminations Consolidated 

8,342 $ 	(26,152) $ Net income/(loss) 

net .ash piovidd 
, 	• • • 

Loss from subsidiaries 

(Gain)/loss n mortgage loans held for sale 

Loss on foreclosed real estate and other 

(Gain)/loss on ineffectiveness on interest rate 
swaps and cap 

Fair value changes in excess spread financing 

..... . • 	. 	.. 

Change in fair value of mortgage servicing 
rights 

3,060 	 ..■■■ 3,060 
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Location 

TOOi***0 

Owned / 
Leased 

Square 
Footage 

244,886 

177,225 

53,258 

Lewisville, Texas -- Corpor2te Headquarters 

Le,,visv die-, Texas 

I. 

scoNshi, ft q'obraska, 

Hcmst on, Tex 

Leased 

Owned 

Leased 

their officers, directors or employees acquire knowledge of a potential transaction that could be a corporate opportunity, they 

have no duty, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to offer such corporate opportunity to us, our stockholders or our affiliates. 

In the event that any of our directors and officers who is also a director, officer or employee of any of the Fortress Stockholders 

acquires knowledge of a corporate opportunity or is offered a corporate opportunity, provided that this knowledge was not 

acquired solely in such person's capacity as our director or officer and such person acts in good faith, then to the fullest extent 

permitted by law such person is deemed to have fully satisfied such person's fiduciary duties owed to us and is not liable to us, 

if the Fortress Stockholder pursues or acquires the corporate opportunity or if the Fortress Stockholder does not present the 

corporate opportunity to us. 

Additionally, we may make co-investments with Fortress and their affiliates in transactions in the future to deploy our capital 

light approach to acquiring excess MSRs. 

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments 

None. 

Item 2. Properties 

The following table sets forth information relating to our primary facilities at December 31, 2012. In addition to the facilities 

listed in the table below, we also lease small offices throughout the United States, 

Item 3. Legal Proceedings 

From time to time, we are party to various legal proceedings that have arisen in the normal course of conducting business, 

including putative class actions and other litigation. These actions and proceedings are generally based on alleged violations of 

consumer protection, securities, employment, contract and other laws, including the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 

Additionally, along with others in our industry, we are subject to repurchase claims and may continue to receive claims in the 

future, including through securitization vehicles and master servicing arrangements that we have acquired and from our Legacy 

Portfolio. Furthermore, the certification of any putative class action could substantially increase our exposure to damages. 

Although the outcome of these proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, management does not currently expect any of 

the proceedings pending against us, individually or in the aggregate, to have a material effect on our business, financial 

condition and results of operations (see Note 21 - Commitments and Contingencies). On March 7, 2013, a purported investor 

filed a complaint with the Supreme Court of the State of New York (the trial court), alleging that Nationstar sold loans for six 

trusts where Nationstar acts as master servicer, in violation of the underlying pooling and servicing agreements. The Supreme 

Court has temporarily enjoined Nationstar from further sales of loans in response to the complaint. Nationstar intends to 

vigorously defend itself in this action and does not expect this action to have a material adverse effect on its financial position 

or results of operations. 

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures 

Not applicable. 
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PART IL 

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 

Market Information and Stockholders 

Our common stock has been traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "NSM" since March 8, 2012. Our 

initial public offering was priced at $14.00 per share on March 7, 2012. The following table sets forth for the quarters indicated 
the high and low sales prices of our common stock, as reported in the consolidated transaction reporting system. 

Prices 

Quarter ended 	 High 
	

Low 

March 31, 2012 (from March 8,2012) 	$ 	14.94 
	

13.02 

June 30, 2012 	 $ 	21.64 
	

13.00 

September 30, 2012 	 $ 34.90 
	

20.90 

December 31, 2012 	 $ 37.20 
	

23.53 

On February 28, 2013, there were 90,449,140 shares outstanding and 128 stockholders of record of Nationstar Inc. common 

stock. A substantially greater number of holders of our common stock are "street name" or beneficial holders, whose shares are 

held by banks, brokers and other financial institutions. 

Dividends 

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock and we currently do not expect to declare or pay any cash 

dividends in the foreseeable future. The timing and amount of any future dividends will be determined by our Board of 

Directors and will depend, among other factors, upon our earnings, financial condition, cash requirements, the capital 

requirements of subsidiaries and investment opportunities at the time any such payment is considered. The indentures 

governing our senior notes restrict our ability to pay cash dividends on our common stock. Our other finance arrangements may 
also, under certain circumstances, restrict our ability to pay cash dividends. In addition, we may also enter into credit 

agreements or other borrowing arrangements in the future that restrict or limit our ability to pay cash dividends on our common 

stock. 
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rq 
	t'71; 

1:q 

Pellbrinance Graph 

The following graph shows a comparison of the cumulative total stockholder return for our common stock, S&P North 

American Financial Services Sector Index and S&P 500 Index from Match 8, 2012 (the date our common stock began trading 

on the NYSE) through December 31, 2012. This data assumes an investment of $100 on March 8, 2012. 

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return (IN arch 8, 2012 to December 31, 2012) 

	 Nationgar Mott .g2ge 

—1Y—  S&P North American Firiaaciat Servico Sector Index 

S&P 500 Index 

Item 6. Selected Financial Data 

The following financial data should be read in conjunction with Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial 

Condition and Results of Operations" and Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplemental) ,  Data." The table below presents, 

as of and for the dates indicated, selected historical financial information for us (in thousands, except for earnings per share 
amounts). Note that the selected consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 

2012 and the selected consolidated balance sheet data at December 31, 2011 and 2012 have been derived from our audited 
financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report. The selected consolidated statement. of operations data and other 

data for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2009 and the selected consolidated balance sheet data at December 31, 2008, 

2009 and 2010 have been derived from Nationstar's audited consolidated financial statements that are not included in this 

Annual Report. 
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2012 2011 	2010 

ntliditsaridS ; •••eXOC P1 .: e'arii 

2009 	2008 

Reclassification of loss of investment in 
debt securities due to other than 
temporary impairments 

ff6*:.  

Comprehensive income (loss) 
. 	 ::::: iiriungs(loss);pe) stiare••:datc.i!, 

Basic earnings (loss) per share 

).1.1utive:Oarnintts :(losi:3):per,sbarei 

Net cash provided by / 

:)pet a 1i1)v..adthr..i0 

Investing activities 

Adjusted EBITDA(i)  (non-
GAAP measure) 

0f> 11u195  crmcrits 
Interest expense from unsecured 
notes 

r:V ilue of Morigiig„ 
•••• 	• 

Depreciation and am ort i zat i on 

nsed in): 

3,903 

205,287 (8,843) $ 	(80,877) $ 	(153,707) 

(0.14) $ (1.16) $ (2. 25) 

.• 0,3 0: , 

(2,157,292) 

42{1612 

(;2:&'903) •:••••;••::•:•:::••••• 
(81,879) 

152 0)4 

"••••••••••• 

101,197 29,983 (34,043) 

456,439 
	

135,968 
	

65,306 
	

46,422 
	

21,634 

68,242 39.000 

8,880 

14,045.. 

3,395 

14,764 

1,172 

1,033 : 

63,879 30,464 ')4,628 

Year ended December 31, 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Mortgage loans held for sale 

Total assets 

Unsecured senior notes 

• P.Pr,Q.OP•1":dcbtt ,egacy:::assets:•••::: 

Excess spread financing (at fair value 

Total liabilities 

. 	. 

otxsohdafr.d . Stal:euvents .  41'0310i 0.w.bal. 

Total revenues 

Total other (expense) income 

Total income tax expense 

152,649 $ 

1,480,537 

7,126,143 

3 601,86 

1,062,635 

.. ................. 

288,089 

. 02,445 . 

562:300••• 

458,626 

•• 

1,787,931 

'73 176  

280,199 
.1400 

44,595  

21,223 $ 

369,617 

1115.062 

1,941,181 

• 241,061 

:?..:49,6•692 • : 

1,690,809 

S6 372 

261,428 $ 

2n 076 

(50,366)  

41,645 

:51'3,939 

203,131 

114:605 

1,280,185 

1,01.6,362 

203 S'1 
; . 

78,869 

(17,379) 

(80877) 

9,357 

560,354 

1,122,001 

866,079 

') 5".):;9"" .) . 

(12,656) 

2,823 

57610) 

984,315 $ 	377,841 

582 -045"30u 1h3 

(125,687) 	(50,771) 

276,583 

71,296 

( 1) 

	

Adjusted EBITDA is a key performance measure used by management in evaluating the performance of our segments. 

Adjusted EBITDA represents our Operating Segments' income, and excludes income and expenses that relate to the 

financing of the unsecured senior notes, depreciable (or amortizable) asset base of the business, income taxes, exit 

costs from our 2007 restructuring and certain non-cash items. Adjusted EBITDA also excludes results from our legacy 
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asset portfolio and certain securitization trusts that were consolidated upon adoption of the accounting guidance 

eliminating the concept of a QSPE. 

Adjusted EBITDA 

Adjusted EBITDA provides us with a key measure of our Operating Segments' performance as it assists us in comparing our 

Operating Segments' performance on a consistent basis. Management believes Adjusted EBITDA is useful in assessing the 

profitability of our core business and uses Adjusted EBITDA in evaluating our operating performance as follows: 

Financing arrangein ants for our Operating Segments are secured by assets that are allocated to these segments. Interest 

expense that relates to the financing of our unsecured senior notes is not considered in evaluating our operating 

performance because this obligation is serviced by the excess earnings from our Operating Segments after the debt 

obligations that are secured by their assets. 

To monitor operating costs of each Operating Segment excluding the impact from depreciation, amortization and fair 

value change of the asset base, exit costs from our restructuring and non-cash operating expense, such as share-based 

compensation. Operating costs are analyzed to manage costs per our operating plan and to assess staffing levels, 

implementation of technology based solutions, rent and other general and administrative costs. 

Management does not assess the growth prospects and the profitability of our legacy asset portfolio and certain securitization 

trusts that were consolidated upon adoption of the new accounting guidance, except to the extent necessary to assess whether 

cash flows from the assets in the legacy asset portfolio are sufficient to service its debt obligations. 

We also use Adjusted EBITDA (with additional adjustments) to measure our compliance with covenants such as leverage 

coverage ratios for our unsecured senior notes. 

Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool and should not be considered in isolation, or as a substitute for analysis 

of our results as reported under GAAP. Some of these limitations are: 

• Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect our cash expenditures or future requirements for capital expenditures or contractual 

commitments; 

• Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital needs; 

• Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the cash requirements necessary to service principal payments related to the 

financing of the business; 

• Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the interest expense or the cash requirements necessary to service interest or 

principal payments on our corporate debt; 

although depreciation and amortization and changes in fair value of MSRs are non-cash charges, the assets being 

depreciated and amortized will often have to be replaced in the future and Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect any cash 

requirements for such replacements; and 

other companies in our industry may calculate Adjusted EBITDA differently than we do, limiting its usefulness as a 

comparative measure. 

Because of these and other limitations, Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered as a measure of discretionary cash available 

to us to invest in the growth of our business. Adjusted EBITDA is presented to provide additional information about our 

operations. Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure and should be considered in addition to, but not as a substitute for or 

superior to, operating income, net income, operating cash flow and other measures of financial performance prepared in 

accordance with GAAP. We compensate for these limitations by relying primarily on our GAAP results and using Adjusted 

EBITDA only supplem entally. 
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63 

8,880 1,873 3,395 

9.501 

OW, 
456,439 $ 	135,968 $ 	65,306  

For the year ended December 31, 
Net Income/(Loss) from Operating Segments to Adjusted 
EBITDA Reconciliation (dollars in thousands): 

Net :icOie/(loss 

Plus: 

2012 
	

2011 
	

2010 

Depreciation and amortization 

Amortization of mortgage servicing rights/obligations - at amortized 
cost 

Share-based compensition 

amv.altio::ehatigoz.:onexcestrs Ivw,finnoiti 

Fair value changes on interest rate swap U) 

0#eet.tve.: ::portrprOe90:9.11..9 

Adjusted EBITDA 

Income Tax Expense 

Inu cnmeArkrin::Opetatirit 

Adjust for: 

N'et hiv 	 • ol.i.o..aird:Othei. • 
2483; 
71,296 
01:06'6' 

(5,120) 

(1) Relates to an interest rate swap agreement which was treated as an economic hedge under ASC 815. 

(2) Exit costs for the year ended December 31, 2011, are primarily due to reserves on future lease payments related to a 

restructuring program initiated in November 2011, which included closing several offices and the termination of a 

portion of our workforce. 

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

General 

Our Business 

We are a real estate services company engaged primarily in the servicing of residential loans for others and the origination and 

selling or securitization of single-family conforming mortgage loans to GSEs or other third-party investors in the secondary 
market. Nationstar, our principal operating subsidiary, is a leading high touch non-bank residential mortgage servicer with a 

broad array of servicing capabilities across the residential mortgage product spectrum. We have been the fastest growing 

mortgage servicer since 2007 as measured by annual percentage growth in UPB, having grown 74.9% annually on a 

compounded basis. As of December 31, 2012, we serviced over 1.1 in illion residential mortgage loans with an aggregate UPB 

of $207.8 billion, making us the largest non-bank servicer in the United States as of December 31, 2012. 

We service loans as the owner of the MSRs, which we refer to as "primary servicing," and we also service loans on behalf of 
other MSR or mortgage owners, which we refer to as "subservicing." We acquire IvISRs on a standalone basis and have also 

developed an innovative model for investing on a capital light basis by co-investing with financial partners in "excess MSRs." 

Subservicing represents another capital light means of growing our servicing business, as subservicing contracts are typically 

awarded on a no-cost basis and do not require substantial capital. As of December 31, 2012, our primary servicing and 

subservicing, represented 64.7% and 21.6%, respectively of our total servicing portfolio, with 13.7% of our outstanding 

servicing portfolio consisting of reverse residential mortgage loans. In addition, we operate several adjacent real estate services 

businesses designed to meet the changing needs of the mortgage industry which we have named Solutionstar. These businesses 

offer an array of ancillary services, including providing services for delinquent loans, managing loans in the foreclosure/REO 

(real-estate owned) process and providing title insurance agency, loan settlement and valuation services on newly originated 

and re-originated loans. 

We operate a fully integrated loan originations platform to complement and enhance our servicing business. We originate 

primarily conventional agency (GSE) and government-insured residential mortgage loans and, to mitigate risk, typically sell 

these loans within 30 days while retaining the associated servicing rights. Our originations efforts are primarily focused on "re- 
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origination," which involves actively working with existing borrowers to refinance their mortgage loans. By re-originating 
loans for existing borrowers, we retain the servicing rights, thereby extending the longevity of the servicing cash flows, which 

we refer to as "recapture." 

We also have a legacy asset portfolio, which consists primarily of non-prime and nonconforming residential mortgage loans, 

most of which we originated from April to July 2007, In November 2009, we engaged in a transaction through which we term - 

financed our legacy assets with a nonrecourse loan that requires no additional capital or equity contributions. Additionally, we 

consolidated certain securitization trusts where it was determined that we had both the power to direct the activities that most 

significantly impact the variable interest entities' (VIE) economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses or the right 

to receive benefits that could potentially be significant to the VIE pursuant to consolidation accounting guidance related to 

ViEs adopted on January 1, 2010. 

The analysis of our financial condition and results of operations as discussed herein is primarily focused on the combined 

results of our two Operating Segments: the Servicing Segment and the Originations Segment, 

Critical Accounting Policies 

Various elements of our accounting policies, by their nature, are inherently subject to estimation techniques, valuation 

assumptions and other subjective assessments. In particular, we have identified four policies that, due to the judgment, 

estimates and assumptions inherent in those policies, are critical to an understanding of our consolidated financial statements. 

These policies relate to: (a) fair value measurements (b) sale of mortgage loans (c) accounting for mortgage loans held for 
investment, subject to nonrecourse debt and (d) valuation of deferred tax asset. We believe that the judgment, estimates and 

assumptions used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements are appropriate given the factual circumstances at 

the time. However, given the sensitivity of our consolidated financial statements to these critical accounting policies, the use of 

other judgments, estimates and assumptions could result in material differences in our results of operations or financial 

condition. Fair value measurements include (i) the valuation of mortgage loans held for sale, (ii) the valuation of mortgage 
loans held for investment, subject to ABS nonrecourse debt, (iii) the valuation of MSRs, (iv) the valuation of derivative 

instruments, (v) the valuation of ABS nonrecourse debt, and (vi) the valuation of excess spread financing. 

Fair Value Aleasurements 

Mortgage Loans Heklfor Sale — We have elected to measure newly originated conventional residential mortgage loans 

held for sale at fair value. We estimate fair value by evaluating a variety of market indicators including recent trades and 

outstanding commitments to purchase loans, calculated on an aggregate basis. 

(0) Mortgage Loans Heldfor Investment, Subject to ABS Nonrecourse Debt — We determine the fair value on loans held for 

investment, subject to ABS nonrecourse debt using internally developed valuation models. These valuation models 

estimate the exit price we expect to receive in the loan's principal market. Although we utilize and give priority to 

observable market inputs, such as interest rates and market spreads within these models, we typically are required to utilize 

internal inputs, such as prepayment speeds, credit losses and discount rates. These internal inputs require the use of our 
judgment and can have a significant impact on the determination of the loan's fair value. In December 2011, we sold our 

remaining variable interest in a securitization trust that had been a consolidated VIE since January 1, 2010 and 

deconsolidated the VIE. Upon deconsolidation.  of this VIE, we derecognized the securitized mortgage loans held for 

investment, subject to ABS nonrecourse debt, 

IviSR,s at Fair Value — We recognize MSRs related to all existing forward residential mortgage loans transferred to a third 

party in a transfer that meets the requirements for sale accounting. Additionally, we may acquire the rights to service 

forward residential mortgage loans through the purchase of these rights from third parties. We apply fair value accounting 

to this class of MSRs, with all changes in fair value recorded as a charge or credit to servicing fee income in the 

consolidated statement of operations. We estimate the fair value of these /vISRs using a process that combines the use of a 

discounted cash flow in odd l and analysis of current M arket data to arrive at an estimate of fair value. The cash flow 

assumptions and prepayment assumptions used in the model are based on various factors, with the key assumptions being 

mortgage prepayment speeds, discount rates and credit losses. 

We use internal financial models that use, wherever possible, market participant data to value these MSRs. These models 

are complex and use asset-specific collateral data and market inputs for interest and discount rates. In addition, the 

modeling requirements of MSRs are complex because of the high number of variables that drive cash flows associated 

with IvISRs. Even if the general accuracy of our valuation models is validated, valuations are highly dependent upon the 
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reasonableness of our assumptions and the predictability of the relationships that drive the results of the models. On a 

periodic basis, a majority of these MSRs are reviewed by an outside valuation expert, 

(iv) Derivative Financial Instruments We utilize certain derivative instruments in the ordinary course of our business to 

manage our exposure to changes in interest rates. These derivative instruments include forward sales of MBS, forward loan 

sale commitments and interest rate swaps and caps. We also issue interest rate lock commitments (IRLCs) to borrowers in 

connection with single family mortgage loan originations we intend to sell. We recognize all derivative instruments on our 

consolidated statement of financial position at fair value. The estimated fair values of forward sales of MBS and interest 

rate swaps and caps are based on the exchange price or dealer market price and are recorded as other assets or derivative 

financial instruments liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. The initial and subsequent changes in value on forward 

sales of MBS are a component of gain on mortgage loans held for sale in the consolidated statement of operations and 

comprehensive income. The estimated fair values of IRLCs, loan purchase commitments (.PCs), and forward sale 

commitments are based on the fair value of related mortgage loans which is based on observable market date. Fair value 

amounts of IRLCs are adjusted for expected execution of outstanding loan commitments. IRLCs and LPC's are recorded in 

other assets and forward sale commitments are recorded as a component of mortgage loans held for sale in the consolidated 

balance sheet. The initial and subsequent changes in value of IRLCs, LPCs, and forward sale commitments are a 

component of gain on mortgage loans held for sale in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income. 

(v) ABS Nonrecourse Debt — Effective 'January 1, 2010, accounting guidance related to VIEs eliminated the concept of a 

qualifying special purpose entity (QSPE), and all existing special purpose entities (SPEs) are subject to the new 

consolidation guidance. Upon adoption of this new accounting guidance, we identified certain securitization trusts where 

we, through our affiliates, continued to hold beneficial interests in these trusts. These retained beneficial interests obligate 

us to absorb losses of the VIE that could potentially be significant to the 'VIE or the right to receive benefits from the VIE 

that could potentially be significant. In addition, as master servicer on the related mortgage loans, we retain the power to 

direct the activities of the 'VIE that most significantly impact the economic performance of the VIE. When it is determined 

that we have both the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the V1E's economic performance and the 

obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be significant to the VIE, the assets and 

liabilities of these VIEs are included in our consolidated financial statements. Upon consolidation of these VIEs, we 

derecognized all previously recognized beneficial interests obtained as part of the securitization, including any retained 

investment in debt securities, and any remaining residual interests. In addition, we recognized the securitized mortgage 

loans as mortgage loans held for investment, subject to ABS nonrecourse debt, and the related asset-backed certificates 

acquired by third parties as ABS nonrecourse debt on our consolidated balance sheet. 

We estimate the fair value of ABS nonrecourse debt based on the present value of future expected discounted cash flows 

with the discount rate approximating current market value for similar Financial instruments. In December 2011, we sold 

our remaining variable interest in a securitization trust that had been a consolidated VIE since January 1, 2010 and 

deconsolidated the variable interest. Upon deconsolidation of this VIE in 2011, we &recognized the related ABS 

nonrecourse debt. 

(vi) Excess Spread Financing — In conjunction with the acquisition of certain of our MSRs, we enter into a sale and assignment 

agreements, which we treat as a financing with an affiliated entity of Fortress Investment Group, whereby we sell the right 

to receive a portion of the excess cash flow generated from a certain underlying MSR portfolio after receipt of a fixed basic 

servicing fee per loan. We retain all ancillary income associated with servicing the portfolio and the rein aining portion of 

the excess cash flow after receipt of the fixed basic servicing fee. We measure this financing arrangement at fair value to 

more accurately represent the future economic performance of the acquired MSRs and related excess servicing financing. 

We estimate the fair value of this financing using a process that combines the use of a discounted cash flow model and 

analysis of current market data based on the value of the underlying MSRs. 

Sale ofMortgage Loans 

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered by us. Control over 

transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (i) the assets have been isolated from us, (ii) the transferee has the right 

(free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and 

(iii) we do not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through either (a) an agreement that entitles and obligates 

us to repurchase or redeem them before their maturity or (b) the ability to unilaterally cause the holder to return specific assets. 

Loan securitizations structured as sales as well as whole loan sales are accounted for as sales of mortgage loans and the 

resulting gains or losses on such sales, net of any accrual for standard representations and warranties, are reported in operating 

results as a component of gain on mortgage loans held for sale in the consolidated statement of operations during the period in 

which the securitization closes or the sale occurs. 
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Mortgage Loans Held for Investment, Subject to Nonrecourse Debt 

We account for the loans that were transferred to held for investment from held for sale during October 2009 in a manner that is 

required by ASC 310 -30, Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality At the date of transfer, we 

evaluated such loans to determine whether there was evidence of deterioration of credit quality since acquisition and if it was 

probable that we would be unable to collect all amounts due according to the loan's contractual terms. The transferred loans 

were aggregated into separate pools of loans based on common risk characteristics (loan delinquency). We consider expected 

prepayments, and estimate the amount and timing of undiscounted expected principal, interest, and other cash flows for each 

aggregated pool of loans. The determination of expected cash flows utilizes internal inputs such as prepayment speeds and 

credit losses. These internal inputs require the use of judgment and can have a significant impact on the accretion of income 

and/or valuation allowance. We determine the excess of the pool's scheduled contractual principal and contractual interest 

payments over all cash flows expected as of the transfer date as an amount that should not be accreted (nonaccretable 

difference). The remaining amount is accreted into interest income over the remaining life of the pool of loans (aceretable 

yield). The difference between the undiscounted cash flows expected and the investment in the loan is recognized as interest 

income on a level-yield method over the life of the loan. Increases in expected cash flows subsequent to the transfer are 

recognized prospectively through an adjustment of the yield on the loans over the remaining life. Decreases in expected cash 

flows subsequent to transfer are recognized as a valuation allowance. 

Valuation of Deferred Tax Asset 

Our provision for income taxes is calculated using the liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred income 

taxes. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes and certain changes in the valuation 

allowance. We provide a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets if, based on available evidence, it is more likely than 

not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. In determining the adequacy of the valuation 

allowance, we consider all forms of evidence, including: (1) historic earnings or losses; (2) the ability to realize deferred tax 

assets through carry back to prior periods; (3) anticipated taxable income resulting from the reversal of taxable temporary 

differences; (4) tax planning strategies; and (5) anticipated future earnings exclusive of the reversal of taxable temporary 

differences. 

Results of Operations 

Below is a summarization of our consolidated operating results for the periods indicated. We provide further discussion of our 

results of operations for each of our reportable segments under "Segment Results" below. Certain income and expenses not 

allocated to our reportable segments are presented under "Legacy Portfolio and Other" below and discussed in Note 24 - 

Business Segment Reporting in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Salaries, wages and benefits 
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2,353 

16,786 
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268,705 184,084 
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377,841 
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Servicing fee income 

Total fee income 

' hckl tor sak. 

Total revenues 

497,151 

984,315 

The following table summarizes our consolidated operating results for the periods indicated (in thousands, except per share 

am ounts). 

For the year ended December 31, 
2012 	2011 	2010 

Comparison of Consolidated Results for the Years' Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 

Revenues increased $606.5 million from $377.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 to $984.3 million for the year 

ended December 31, 2012, due to increases in both our total fee income and our gain on mortgage loans held for sale offset by 

MSR fair value adjustments amounting to $68.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to $39.0 million 

for the comparable 2011 period, The increase in our total fee income was primarily the result of our higher average forward 

servicing portfolio balance of $136.4 billion for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $81.5 billion for the year 

ended December 31, 2011, and an increase in modification fees earned from RAMP and other non-HAMP modifications. Also 

included in our 2012 results was $40.4 million in reverse mortgage service fee income. There was no reverse mortgage service 

fee income in 2011 and 2010. The increase in the gain on loans held for sale was a result of the $4.5 billion, or 132.4%, 

increase in the amount of loans originated during the 2012 period compared to the 2011 period and higher margins earned on 

the sale of residential mortgage loans during the period, 
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Expenses and impairments increased $275.8 million from $306.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 to $582.0 
million for the year ended December 31, 2012, primarily due to the increase in compensation expenses related to increased 

staffing levels in order to accommodate our larger servicing portfolio and originations volumes as well as other related 

increases in general and administrative expenses. 

Other expense increased $74.9 million from $50.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 to $125.7 million for the year 

ended December 31, 2012, primarily due to a decrease in our net interest margin resulting from higher average outstanding 

balances on our outstanding warehouse and advance facilities and the interest expense related to the increase in our unsecured 

senior notes during 2012. Additionally, we recognized a loss on equity investment of $14.6 million during 2012 compared to 
$0.1 million in 2011. The increase in the loss relates to the decision to wind down the operation of the underlying entity. (see 

Note 27 - Related Party Disclosure). These amounts were partially offset by our recording of a $15.6 million contract 

termination fee related to a potential acquisition of certain assets of a financial services company in banIcruptcy. Because we 

were not the highest bidder in the bankruptcy auction, we earned a break-up fee. We recorded this fee net of the amount we 

paid our co-investment partner in the potential acquisition. 

Income tax expense amounted to $71.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 with no corresponding amount for the 

year ended December 31, 2011. We became a taxable entity during 2012 in conjunction with our initial public offering and 

reorganization (see Note 15 - Income Taxes). 

Comparison of ConsoliclatedResul t for the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

Revenues increased $116.4 million from $261.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 to $377.8 million for the year 

ended December 31, 2011, due to increases in both our total fee income and our gain on mortgage loans held for sale offset by 

MSR fair value adjustments amounting to $39.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to $16.0 million 

for the comparable 2010 period. The increase in our total fee income was primarily the result of our higher average servicing 

portfolio balance of $81.5 billion for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $38.7 billion for the year ended 

December 31, 2010, and an increase in modification fees earned from HAMP and other non-RAMP modifications. The 

increase in the gain on loans held for sale was a result of the $0.6 billion, or 21.4%, increase in the amount of loans originated 

during the 2011 period compared to the 2010 period and higher margins earned on the sale of residential mortgage loans during 

the period. 

Expenses and impairments increased $85.2 million from $221.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 to $306.2 

million for the year ended December 31, 2011, primarily due to the increase in compensation expenses related to increased 

staffing levels in order to accommodate our larger servicing portfolio and originations volumes as well as other related 

increases in general and administrative expenses. 

Other expense increased $0.4 million from $50.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 to $50.8 million for the year 

ended December 31, 2011, primarily due to a decrease in our net interest margin resulting from higher average outstanding 

balances on our outstanding warehouse and advance facilities. This amount was partially offset by the impact of our fair value 

mark-to-market losses that were realized on our 2009-ADS interest rate swap for $9.8 million for the year ended December 31, 

2010, compared to a $0.3 million gain recognized for the year ended December 31, 2011. 

Segment Results 

Our primary business strategy is to generate recurring, stable income from managing and vowing our servicing portfolio. We 

operate through two business segments: the Servicing Segment and the Originations Segment, which we refer to collectively as 

our Operating Segments. We report the activity not related to either operating segment in Legacy Portfolio and Other. Legacy 

Portfolio and Other includes primarily all subprime mortgage loans (i) originated mostly from April to July 2007 or 

(ii) acquired from CHEC, and VIEs which were consolidated pursuant to the January 1, 2010 adoption of consolidation 
guidance related to VIEs. As of December 31, 2011 and thereafter, we had no consolidated VIEs. 

The accounting policies of each reportable segment are the same as those of the consolidated financial statements except for 

(i) expenses for consolidated back-office operations and general overhead expenses such as executive administration and 

accounting, (ii) revenues generated on inter-segment services performed, and (iii) interest expense on unsecured senior notes. 

Expenses are allocated to individual segments based on the estimated value of services performed, including total revenue 

contributions, personnel headcount, and the equity invested in each segment. Revenues generated or inter-segment services 

performed are valued based on similar services provided to external parties. 

All tables in this section are presented in thousands unless otherwise indicated. 
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Servicing Segment 

The Servicing Segment provides loan servicing on our primary and subserv icing portfolios, including the collection of principal 

and interest payments and the generation of ancillary fees related to the servicing of mortgage loans. 

The following table SWIM arizes our consolidated pre-tax operating results for the periods indicated. 

Year ended December 31, 

Increase in aggregate UPB of our servicing portfolio primarily governs the increase in revenues, expenses and other income 

(expense) of our Servicing Segment. 

The table below provides detail of the characteristics of our servicing portfolio at the periods indicated. 

December 31, 

2012 
	

2011 
	

2010 

Servicing Portfolio (S in millions) 
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ind v,.., ,PANgloirvvoLE109.  
Average unpaid principal balance 

oan:amertint 

Average coupon 

60+ delinquent (% of loans 

136,371 

5.34% 

14.1% 14.7% 17.0% 
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376,497 $ 	207,102 Servicing fee income  	... 	. .... 

Modification fees 

280,454 

5,120 

.. 
462,001 $ 	238,394 

Late fees and other ancillary charges 

.... ... 
Total servicing fee income before MSR fair value adjustments 

Reverse mortgage servicing amortization/accretion 
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Total servicing fee income 

The table below provides detail of the characteristics and key performance metrics of our forward servicing portfolio 

(excluding loans serviced by others and predecessors) for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010. 

Year ended December 31, 

2012 
	

2011 
	

2010 

($ in millions, except for average loan amount) 

Loan count-servicing 
	 979,414 	596,011 	389,172 

(1) Loan delinquency is based on the current contractual due date of the loan. In the case of a completed loan modification, 

delinquency is based on the modified due date of the loan. 

The table below provides detail of the characteristics and key performance metrics of our reverse servicing portfolio at 

December 31, 2012. We had no reverse servicing portfolio prior to 2012. 

December 31, 

($ in millions, exceptfor average loan amoun( 

Loan count 

F 

Aver age loan ani ount 

jyjciggjjçjjt  the Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011 

Servicing fee income consists of the following for the periods indicated (in thousands), 

Year ended December 31, 
2012 
	

2011 
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2012 
	

2011 

06.:AtIO 00,  

Servicing Fee Income 

Primary servicing 

Reverse servicing 
........................ 
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(in thousands) 
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44,528: 	. 11.6,358 
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134,511 $ 
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28,382 
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Reverse servicing 

45,817 

1)184 $ 	9680,51:, 

The following tables provide servicing fee income and UPB by primary servicing, subservicing and reverse servicing for and at 

the periods indicated. 

Year ended December 31, 

Servicing fee income was $462.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $238.4 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2011, an increase of $223.6 million, or 93.8%, primarily due to the net effect of the following: 

• Increase of $169.4 million due to higher average UPB of $136.4 billion in 2012 compared to $81.5 billion in 2011. 

The increase in our servicing portfolio was primarily driven by an increase in average UPB for loans serviced for 
GSEs and other subserv icing contracts for third party investors to $89.8 billion in the year ended December 31, 2012 

from $61.0 billion in the comparable 2011 period. In addition, we also experienced an increase in average UPB for our 

private asset-backed securitizations portfolio, which increased to $36.1 billion in the year ended December 31, 2012 

compared to $13.0 billion in the comparable 2011 period. 

• Increase of $40.5 million from fees earned from our reverse mortgage portfolio for which we began servicing in 

January 2012. 

• Increase of $15.9 million due to higher modification fees earned from HAMP and non-HAMP modifications. 

• Increase of $13.1 million due to higher loss mitigation and performance-based incentive fees earned from a GSE. 

• Increase of $8.2 million from increased collections from late fees and other ancillary charges. 

Increase of $8.2 million in other servicing fee income due to our June 2012 Aurora servicing portfolio acquisition. In 

conjunction with this acquisition, we acquired a master servicing portfolio of over $4.9 billion. Revenues related to 

the master servicing portfolio are included in other servicing fee income. 

Decrease of $29.2 million from change in fair value on MSRs which was recognized in servicing fee income. The fair 
value of our MSRs is based upon the present value of the expected future cash flows related to servicing these loans. 

The revenue components of the cash flows are servicing fees, interest earned on custodial accounts, and other ancillary 

income. The expense components include operating costs related to servicing the loans (including delinquency and 

foreclosure costs) and interest expenses on servicing advances. The expected future cash flows are primarily impacted 

by prepayment estimates, delinquencies, and market discount rates. Generally, the value of MSRs increases when 

interest rates increase and decreases when interest rates decline due to the effect those changes in interest rates have on 

prepayment estimates. Other factors affecting the M.SR value includes the estimated effects of loan modifications on 

expected cash flows. Such modifications tend to positively impact cash flows by extending the expected life of the 

affected MSR and potentially producing additional revenue opportunities depending on the type of modification. In 

valuing the MSRs, we believe our assumptions are consistent with the assumptions other major market participants 

use. These assumptions include a level of future modification, activity that we believe major market participants would 

use in their valuation of MSRs. Internally, we have modification goals that exceed the assumptions utilized in our 
valuation model. Nevertheless, were we to apply an assumption of a level of future modifications consistent with our 
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internal goals to our MSR valuation, we do not believe the resulting increase in value would be material. Additionally, 
several state Attorneys General have requested that certain mortgage servicers, including us, suspend foreclosure 
proceedings pending internal review to ensure compliance with applicable law, and we received requests from four 

such state Attorneys General. Although we have resumed those previously delayed proceedings, changes in the 
foreclosure process that may be required by government or regulatory bodies could increase the cost of servicing and 

diminish the value of our MSRs. We utilize assumptions of servicing costs that include delinquency and foreclosure 

costs that we believe major market participants would use to value their MSRs. We periodically compare our internal 

MSR. valuation to third party valuation of our MSRs to help substantiate our market assumptions. We have considered 

the costs related to the delayed proceedings in our assumptions and we do not believe that any resulting decrease in the 

MSR was material given the expected short-term nature of the issue. 

Increase of $5.1 million from the net impact of accretion/amortization on our in ortgage servicing rights related to 
acquisitions of reverse mortgage portfolios during 2012 with no comparable accretion/amortization recorded during 

the twelve months ended December 31, 2011. 

Decrease of $7.6 million from the change in fair value of our excess spread financing arrangements. In conjunction 

with various MSR acquisitions, we have entered into sale and assignment agreements, which we treated as financings. 

Within these agreements, we sell the right to receive a portion of the excess cash flow generated from certain 
underlying MSR portfolios after receipt of a fixed basic servicing fee per loan. We measure these financing 

arrangements at fair value. 

Other fee income was $35.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $17.2 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2011, an increase of $17.9 million, or 104.1% due to higher commissions earned on lender placed insurance and 

higher REO sales commissions. 

The following table provides other fee income by primary servicing, subservicing and adjacent businesses for the periods 

indicated (in thousands). 

Year ended December 31, 

Expenses and impairments were $338.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $177.9 million for the year 

ended December 31, 2011, an increase of $160.3 or 90.1%, primarily due to the increase of $71.7 million in salaries, wages and 

benefits expense resulting primarily from an increase in average headcount from 1,966 in 2011 to 2,400 in 2012 and an increase 

of $82.1 million in general and administrative expenses associated with increased headcount and growth in the servicing 
portfolio. In addition, occupancy expense increased from $5.7 million in 2011 to $11.5 million in 2012. This increase was due 

to the expense related to the additional locations required to house our growing servicing headcount due to the increase in the 

DIM of loans that we service. 

The following table provides primary servicing, subservicing, reverse servicing, adjacent businesses and other Servicing 

Segment expenses for the periods indicated (in thousands). 

Year ended December 31, 
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Total other income (expense) was $(123.6) million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $(55.6) million for the 
year ended December 31, 2011, an increase in expense, net of income, of $68.0 million, or 122.3%, primarily due to the net 
effect of the following: 

• Interest expense was $156.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $58.0 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2011, an increase of $98.8 million, or 170.3%, primarily due to higher average outstanding debt 
(excluding unsecured senior notes) of $1,334.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $642.9 
million in the comparable 2011 period. Interest expense from the unsecured senior notes was $57.7 million and $30.3 
million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. In 2011, interest expense also includes gains 
for the ineffective portion of cash flow hedge of $2.0 million. 

• Interest income was $30.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $2.3 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2011, an increase of $28.6 million, due in part to interest earned on our participating interests in reverse 
mortgages combined with accretion recognized related to discounts recorded on acquired servicer advances. During 
2012, in conjunction with an MSR. acquisition, we allocated a discount to the related servicer advances. This discount 
is realized as the underlying servicer advances are collected. We recognized $11.3 million of the discount in 2012 
related to collections on the serv icor advances. 

We recorded $15.6 million of contract termination fees for the year ended December 31, 2012. During 2012, we 
pursued a potential acquisition of the mortgage servicing rights and other assets of a financial services company in 
bankruptcy and received the right to receive a breakup fee in the event that we did not win the bankruptcy auction for 
these assets. We were not the highest bidder in the auction and subsequently received the breakup fee which was 
recorded in contract termination fees, net of the portion payable to Nationstar's co-investment partner in the potential 
acquisition. We did not recognize any contract termination fees in 2011 or 2010. 

We recognized a loss on equity investment of $14.6 million during 2012 compared to $0.1 million in 2011. The large 
increase in the loss relates to the decision to wind down the operation of the underlying entity (see Note 27- Related 
Party Disclosure). 

Servicing Segment for  the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

Servicing fee income consists of the following for the periods indicated (in thousands). 

Year ended December 31, 

Loss mitigation and perform ance-haven incentive fees 

odthcalion 

Late fees and other ancillary charges 

Total servicing ice inconi e before MSR fair value austments 
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Fair value adjustments on NiSik 

2011 2010 
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(39,000) 
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IJPB (in niillions) 
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Subserv icing 

2011 
	

2010 

Servicing fee income was $238.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $175.6 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2010, an increase of $62.8 million, or 35.8%, primarily due to the net effect of the following: 

(a) Increase of $88.7 million due to higher average UPB of $81.5 billion in the 2011 period compared to $38.7 billion in the 
comparable 2010 period. The increase in our servicing portfolio was primarily driven by an increase in average UPB for 
loans serviced for GSEs and other subservicing contracts for third party investors of $61.0 billion in the 2011 period 
compared to $28.0 billion in the comparable 2010 period. In addition, we also experienced an increase in average UPB 
for our private asset-backed securitizations portfolio, which increased to $13.0 billion in the year ended December 31, 
2011 compared to $7.4 billion in the comparable 2010 period. 

(b) Increase of $10.8 million due to higher modification fees earned from HAMP and non-HAMP modifications 

(c) Decrease of $0.9 million due to decreased loss mitigation and performance-based incentive fees earned from a GSE. 

(d) Decrease of $33.0 million from change in fair value on MSRs which was recognized in servicing fee income. The fair 
value of our MSRs is based upon the present value of the expected future cash flows related to servicing these loans. The 
revenue components of the cash flows are servicing fees, interest earned on custodial accounts, and other ancillary 
income. The expense components include operating costs related to servicing the loans (including delinquency and 
foreclosure costs) and interest expenses on servicing advances. The expected future cash flows are primarily impacted by 
prepayment estimates, delinquencies, and market discount rates. Generally, the value of 1VISRs increases when interest 
rates increase and decreases when interest rates decline due to the effect those changes in interest rates have on 
prepayment estimates. Other factors affecting the MSR value includes the estimated effects of loan modifications on 
expected cash flows. Such modifications tend to positively impact cash flows by extending the expected life of the 
affected MSR and potentially producing additional revenue opportunities depending on the type of modification. In 
valuing the MSRs, we believe our assumptions are consistent with the assumptions other major market participants use. 
These assumptions include a level of future modification activity that we believe major market. participants would use in 
their valuation of IvISRs. Internally, we have modification goals that exceed the assumptions utilized in our valuation 
model. Nevertheless, were we to apply an assumption of a level of future modifications consistent with our internal goals 
to our MSR valuation, we do not believe the resulting increase in value would be material. Additionally, several state 
Attorneys General have requested that certain mortgage servicers, including us, suspend foreclosure proceedings pending 
internal review to ensure compliance with applicable law, and we received requests from four such state Attorneys 
General. Although we have resumed those previously delayed proceedings, changes in the foreclosure process that may 
be required by government or regulatory bodies could increase the cost of servicing and diminish the value of our MSR.s. 
We utilize assumptions of servicing costs that include delinquency and foreclosure costs that we believe major market 
participants would use to value their MSRs. We periodically compare our internal MSR valuation to third party valuation 
of our MSRs to help substantiate our market assumptions. We have considered the costs related to the delayed 
proceedings in our assumptions and we do not believe that any resulting decrease in the MSR was material given the 
expected short-term nature of the issue. 

Other fee income was $17.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $7.3 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2010, an increase of $9.9 million, or 135.6%, due to higher corn missions earned on lender placed insurance and 
higher RHO sales commissions from the gowth of the servicing portfolio. 
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Year ended December 31, 

Subservicing 
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The following table provides other fee income by primary servicing, subserv icing and adjacent businesses for the periods 

indicated (in thousands). 

Other Fee Income 
Year ended December 31, 

&Ibsen/icing 

Adj:44iiitiWiFf6; 

Total other fee income 

2011 
	

2010 

17,189 $ 
	

7,273 

Expenses and impairments were $177.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $107.3 million for the year 

ended December 31, 2010, an increase of $70.6 million, or 65.8%, primarily due to the increase of $45.4 million in salaries, 

wages and benefits expense resulting primarily from an increase in average headcount from 1,178 in 2010 to 1,966 in 2011 and 

an increase of $25.2 million in general and administrative and occupancy-related expenses associated with increased headcount 

and growth in the servicing portfolio. Our 2011 operating results include an $8.2 million increase in share-based compensation 

expense from revised compensation arrangements executed with certain members of our executive team during the third 

quarter of 2010. 

The following table provides key primary servicing, subservicing, adjacent businesses and other Servicing Segment expenses 

for the periods indicated (in thousands). 

Other Servicing Segment expenses primarily include share-based compensation expenses. 

Total other income (expense) was $(55.6) million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $(61.3) million for the 

year ended December 31, 2010, a decrease in expense, net of income, of $5.7 million, or 9.3%, primarily due to the net effect 

of the following: 

• Interest income was $2.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $0.3 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2010, an increase of $2.0 million, due to higher average outstanding custodial cash deposit balances on 

custodial cash accounts as a result of the growth in our servicing portfolio. 

• Interest expense was $58.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $51.8 million for the year 

ended December 31, 2010, an increase of $6.2 million, or 12.0%, primarily due to higher average outstanding debt of 

$642.9 million in the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $638.6 million in the comparable 2010 period. The 

impact of the higher debt balances is partially offset by lower interest rates due to declines in the base LIBOR and 

decreases in the overall index margin on outstanding servicer advance facilities. Interest expense from the senior notes 

was $30.3 million and $22.1 million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. Interest expense 

also includes gains for the ineffective portion of cash flow hedge of $2.0 million and $0.9 million, respectively, for the 

years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. 

• Loss on interest rate swaps and caps was $9.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to a $0.3 

million gain for the year ended December 31, 2011. Effective October I, 2010, we designated an existing interest rate 

swap as a cash flow hedge against outstanding floating rate financing associated with one of our outstanding servicer 

advance facilities. This interest rate swap is recorded at fair value, with any changes in fair value related to the 

effective portion of the hedge being recorded as an adjustment to other comprehensive income. Prior to this 

designation, any changes in fair value were recorded as a loss on interest rate swaps and caps on our statement of 
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operations. In conjunction with our October 2011 amendment to our 2010-ABS Advance Financing Facility, we paid 

off our 2009-ABS Advance Financing Facility and transferred the related collateral to the 2010-ABS Advance 
Financing Facility. Concurrently with the repayment of the 2009-ABS Advance Financing Facility, we de-designated 

the underlying interest rate swap on our 2009-ABS Advance Financing Facility. Our outstanding 2010-ABS interest 

rate swap served as an economic hedge during the period it was outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2011. 

Originations Segment 

The Originations Segment involves the origination, packaging, and sale of GSE mortgage loans into the secondaxy markets via 

whole loan sales or securitizations. 

The following table suinmarizes our consolidated pre-tax operating results for the periods indicated (in thousands). 

Year ended December 31, 
2012 
	

2011 
	

2010 

Revenues: 

Increase in originations volume is a primary driver of the increase in revenues, expenses and other income (expense) of our 
Originations Segment. The table below provides detail of the loan characteristics of loans originated for the periods indicated. 

Year ended December 31, 
Originations Volume (in millions): 	 2012 

	
2011 
	

2010 

Originations Segment for the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011  

Total revenues were $486.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $123.5 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2011, an increase of $363.4 million, or 294.3%, primarily due to the net effect of the following: 

Other fee income (expense) was $(0.3) million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $14.1 million for the 
year ended December 31, 2011, a decrease of $14.4 million, or (102,1)%, primarily due to lower points and fees collected 

as a result of product mix changes in originations from 2011 to 2012, combined with an increase in fees paid to third party 

mortgage brokers. 
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Gain on mortgage loans held for sale consists of the following for the periods indicated (in thousands). 

Year ended December 31, 

Provision for repurchases 

Fair value in 	adjustments 
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$ 	487,142 $ 
	

109,431 

Gain on mortgage loans held for sale was $487.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $109.4 million 
for the year ended December 31, 2011, an increase of $377.7 million, or 345,2%, primarily due to the net effect of the 
following: 

• Increase of $220.2 million from larger volume of originations, which increased from $3.4 billion in 2011 to $7.9 billion in 
2012, and higher margins earned on the sale of residential mortgage loans during the period. 

• Increase of $135.7 million from change in unrealized gains/losses on derivative financial instruments. These include 
IRLCs, LPCs, and forward sales of MBS, 

• Increase of $22.1 million from capitalized MSRs due to the larger volume of originations and subsequent retention of 
MSRs. 

• Increase of $7.2 million resulting from the change in fair value on newly-originated loans. 
• Decrease of $7.6 million from a larger provision for repurchases as a result of the increase in our loan sale volume, 

Expenses and impairments were $219.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $101.6 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2011, an increase of $118.1 million, or 116.2%, primarily due to the net effect of the following: 

• Increase of $80.6 million in salaries, wages and benefits expense from increase in average headcount of 988 in 2011 to 
1,157 in 2012 and increases in performance-based compensation due to the large increase in originations volume. 

• Increase of $37.6 million in general and administrative and occupancy expense primarily due to an increase in our 
overhead expenses from the higher originations volume in the 2012 period. 

Total other income (expense) was $(5.4) million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $1.8 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2011, a decrease in income, net of expense, of $7.2 million, or 400.0%, primarily due to the net effect of 
the following: 

Interest income was $20.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $12.7 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2011, an increase of $7.7 million, or 60.6%, representing interest earned from originated loans prior to sale 
or securitization. The increase is primarily due to the increase in the volume of originations. Loans are typically sold within 
30 days of origination 

Interest expense was $25.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $11.0 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2011, an increase of $14.8 million, or 134.5%, primarily due to an increase in originations volume in 2012 
and associated financing required to originate these loans, including interest expense attributable to the originations 
segment on our unsecured senior notes, combined with $6.2 million of interest expense on senior unsecured notes. During 
2012, we allocated a portion of our interest expense from these unsecured notes to our Originations segment to in atch the 
benefit this segment will receive from future portfolio acquisitions due to the ability to recapture portfolio runoff 

Originations Segment for the Years Ended December 31, 2011 anc12010 

Total revenues were $123.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $84.5 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2010, an increase of $39.0 million, or 46.2%, primarily due to the net effect of the following: 

Other fee income was $14.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $7.0 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2010, an increase of $7.1 million, or 101.4%, primarily due to higher points and fees collected as a result of 
the $620.6 million increase in loan originations volume, combined with a decrease in fees paid to third party mortgage 
brokers. 
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Gain on mortgage loans held for sale consists of the following for the periods indicated (in thousands). 

Year ended December 31, 
in dn sale. 

Provision for repurchases 

Fair value mark-to-market adjustments 

otal gain on mortgage loans held for sale 77,498 

Gain on mortgage loans held for sale was $109.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $77.5 million for 
the year ended December 31, 2010, an increase of $31.9 million, or 41.2%, primarily due to the net effect of the following: 

• Increase of $16.8 million from larger volume of originations, which increased from $2.8 billion in 2010 to $3.4 billion in 
2011, and higher margins earned on the sale of residential mortgage loans during the period. 

• Increase of $10.2 million from capitalized MSRs due to the larger volume of originations and subsequent retention of 
MSRs. 

• Increase of $8.9 million resulting from the change in fair value on newly-originated loans. 

• Decrease of $3.0 million from change in unrealized gains/losses on derivative financial instruments. These include IRLCs 
and forward sales of MBS. 

Decrease of $0.9 million from an increase in our provision for repurchases as a result of the increase in our loan sale 
volume. 

Expenses and impairments were $101.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $86.9 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2010, an increase of $14.7 million, or 16.9%, primarily due to the net effect of the following: 

Increase of $13.8 million in salaries, wages and benefits expense from increase in average headcount of 688 in 2010 to 
988 in 2011 and increases in performance-based compensation due to increases in originations volume. 

Increase of $0.8 million in general and administrative and occupancy expense primarily due to an increase in our 
overhead expenses from the higher originations volume in the 2011 period. Additionally we recorded total charges in 
November 2011 of $1.8 million related to our strategic decision to refocus our strategy with respect to our originations 
platform. 

Total other income (expense) was $1.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $3.0 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2010, an increase in income, net of expense, of $1.2 million, or 40.0%, primarily due to the net effect of 
the following: 

Interest income was $12.7 in illion for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $11.8 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2010, an increase of $0.9 million, or 7.6%, representing interest earned from originated loans prior to sale or 
securitization. The increase is primarily due to the increase in the volume of originations. Loans are typically sold within 30 
days of origination. 

Interest expense was $11.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $8.8 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2010, an increase of $2.2 million, or 25.0%, primarily due to an increase in originations volume in 2011 
and associated financing required to originate these loans, combined with a slight increase in outstanding average days 
in warehouse on newly originated loans. 

Legacy Portfolio and Other 

Through December 2009, our Legacy Portfolio and Other consisted primarily of non-prime and nonconforming residential 
mortgage loans that we primarily originated from April to July 2007. Revenues and expenses are primarily a result of mortgage 
loans transferred to securitization trusts that were structured as secured borrowings, resulting in carrying the securitized loans 
as mortgage loans on our consolidated balance sheets and recognizing the asset-backed certificates as nonrecourse debt. Prior 
to September 2009, these residential mortgage loans were classified as mortgage loans held for sale on our consolidated 
balance sheet and carried at the lower of cost or fair value and financed through a combination of our existing warehouse 
facilities and our corporate note. These loans were transferred on October 1, 2009, from mortgage loans held for sale to a held- 
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for-investment classification at fair value on the transfer date. Subsequent to the transfer date, we completed the securitization 

of the mortgage loans, which was structured as a secured borrowing. This structure resulted in carrying the securitized loans as 

mortgages on our consolidated balance sheet and recognizing the asset-backed certificates acquired by third parties as 

nonrecourse debt. 

Effective January 1, 2010, accounting guidance eliminated the concept of a QSPE. Consequently, all existing securitization 

trusts are considered VIEs and are now subject to the new consolidation guidance. Upon consolidation of certain of these VIEs, 

we recognized the securitized mortgage loans related to these securitization trusts as mortgage loans held for investment, 

subject to ABS nonrecourse debt. See Note 3 — Variable Interest Entities and Securitizations to our Consolidated Financial 

Statements. Additionally, we elected the fair value option provided for by ASC 825-10, Financial Instruments-Overall. Assets 

and liabilities related to these VIEs are included in Legacy Assets and Other in our segmented results. 

In December 2011, we sold our remaining variable interest in a securitization trust that had been a consolidated VIE since 

January 1, 2010 and deconsolidated the variable interest. Upon deconsolidation of this VIE, we derecognized the related 

mortgage loans held for investment subject to ABS nonrecourse debt and the ABS nonrecourse debt. 

The following table summarizes our consolidated pre-tax operating results for the periods indicated. 

Year ended December 31, 
2012 
	

2011 
	

2010 

Revenues: 

The table below provides detail of the characteristics of our securitization trusts included in Legacy Portfolio and other for the 

periods indicated (in thousands). 

Year ended December 31, 
2012 	2011 
	

2010 ( 

(1) Amounts include one previously off-balance sheet securitization which was consolidated upon adoption of ASC 810, 

Consolidation, related to consolidation of certain VIEs. 
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Legacy Portfolio and Other Segmentfor the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011  

Total revenues were $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $6.0 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2011, a decrease of $3.9 million. This decrease was primarily a result of lower ancillary income on our legacy 

portfolio. 

Total expenses and impairments decreased by $2.8 million to $24.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to 

$26.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. This decrease was primarily the result of decreases in loss on sale of 

foreclosed real estate and occupancy partially offset by increases in salaries, wages and benefits and general and administrative 

expenses. Also, in December 2011, we deconsolidated VIEs in which we were no longer the primary beneficiary of any 

variable interests associated with the consolidated trusts. 

Interest income, net of interest expense, decreased to $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to $8.5 

million for the year ended December 31, 2011. The decrease in net interest income was primarily due to the effects of the 

derecognition of a previously consolidated VIE as of July 1, 2010. 

There were no fair value changes in ABS securitizations for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to a $12,4 million 

decrease for the year ended December 31, 2011. Fair value changes in ABS securitizations is the net result of the reductions in 

the fair value of the assets (Mortgage loans held for investment, and REO) and the reductions in the fair value of the liabilities 

(ABS nonrecourse debt). 

Legacy Portfolio  and Other Segment for the Years Ended December 31, 2011  and 2010 

Total revenues were $6.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $3.5 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2010, an increase of $2.5 million. This increase was primarily a result of higher ancillary income on our legacy 

portfolio. 

Interest income, net of interest expense, decreased to $8.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to $21.9 

million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The decrease in net interest income was primarily clue to the effects of the 

derecognition of a previously consolidated VIE as of July 1, 2010. 

Fair value changes in ABS securitizations were $12.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to a $23.3 

million decrease for the year ended December 31, 2010. Fair value changes in ABS securitizations is the net result of the 

reductions in the fair value of the assets (Mortgage loans held for investment and REO) and the reductions in the fair value of 

the liabilities (ABS nonrecourse debt). 
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Analysis of Items on Consolidated Balance Sheet 

The following table presents our consolidated balance sheet for the periods indicated (in thousands). 

December 31, December 31, 
2012 	2011 

Mortgage loans held for investment, subject to nonrecourse debt - Legacy Assets, net of 
allowance for loan losses of $4,390 and $5,824 

Receivables from affiliates 
. 	. 	. 

.Mortgagc servicing rights amortized cost 

1460..ortY.'aitiTaliiiiiiii0fiti::.lid: ,4'acoumulatodklepree—ialton.d.::$418.;S(16..and::$.' -;.'-)fi 
trespectively " 	• " ' " " 

Real estate owned (REO), net 

•10ther.:!aSSet0 	
. . 	. 

Total assets 7,126,143 $ 	1,787,931 

Deriva t iv e financial instrum nta 

;.;..iNikiagage a er y witrglat 11 ( 114% 

Nome cours use debt - Leone Assets 

Liabilities and equity 

able  
Unsecured senior notes 

Participating interest financing 

0141k6.10k " 

, 

100,620 

.. 
580,836 

1,062,635 

631 ,43 t  

20,026 

4r.); 
280,199 

12,370 

112,490 

:595 

SU( 

Assets 

Restricted cash consists of certain custodial accounts related to collections on certain mortgage loans and mortgage loan 
advances that have been pledged to debt counterparties under various master repurchase agreements (MR_As). Restricted cash 
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was $393.2 million at December 31, 2012, an increase of $321.7 million from December 31, 2011, primarily a result of 

increased servicer advance reimbursement amounts driven primarily by the significant increase in our servicing portfolio 

during 2012. 

Accounts receivable consists primarily of accrued interest receivable on mortgage loans and securitizations, collateral deposits 

on surety bonds and advances made to nonconsolidatal securitization trusts, as required under various servicing agreements 

related to delinquent loans, which are ultimately paid back to us from the securitization trusts. Accounts receivable increased 

$2,481.3 million to $3,043.6 million at December 31, 2012, primarily due to our significantly larger outstanding servicing 

portfolio, which resulted in a $2,289.0 million increase in net servicer advances. 

Mortgage loans held for sale are carried at fair value. We estimate fair value by evaluating a variety of market indicators 

including recent trades and outstanding commitments. Mortgage loans held for sale were $1,480.5 million at December 31, 

2012, an increase of $1,021.9 million from December 31, 2011, primarily due to $6.9 billion in mortgage loan sales offset by 

$7.9 billion in loan originations during the year ended December 31, 2012. Our origination volume more than doubled in 2012 

as compared to 2011. 

Mortgage loans held for investment, subject to nonrecourse debt — Legacy Assets consist of nonconforming or subprirne 

mortgage loans securitized which serve as collateral for the nonrecourse debt. Mortgage loans held for investment, subject to 

nonrecourse debt — Legacy Assets was $238.9 million at December 31, 2012, a decrease of $4.6 million from December 31, 

2011. 

In 2012, we purchased the servicing rights to certain reverse mortgages. As servicer of these reverse mortgages, we are 

required to fund certain amounts related to the underlying loans. Reverse mortgage interests consists of scheduled and 

unscheduled draws on reverse residential mortgage loans, capitalized interest and servicing fees, and fees paid to taxing 

authorities to cover unpaid taxes and insurance. Reverse mortgage interests were $750.3 million at December 31, 2012, with no 

corresponding balance at December 31, 2011. 

Receivables from affiliates consist of periodic transactions with Nationstar Regular Holdings, Ltd., a subsidiary of PIP. These 

transactions typically involve the monthly payment of principal and interest advances that are required to be remitted to 

securitization trusts as required under various Pooling and Servicing Agreements. These amounts are later repaid to us when 

principal and interest advances are recovered from the respective borrowers. Receivables from affiliates were $12.6 million at 

December 31, 2012, an increase of $8.0 million from December 31, 2011. Prior to our March 2012 restructuring in conjunction 

with our initial public offering, FIF contributed a portion of the outstanding balance in receivables from affiliates related to 

outstanding interest rate swap settlements to us eliminating this payable amount. 

MSRs at fair value consist of servicing assets related to all existing forward residential mortgage loans transferred to a third 

party in a transfer that meets the requirements for sale accounting or through the acquisition of the right to service residential 

mortgage loans that do not relate to our assets. MSRs at fair value were $635.9 million at December 31, 2012, an increase of 

$384.9 million over December 31, 2011, primarily a result of the purchase of servicing portfolios for $394.4 million combined 

with capitalization of $58.6 million newly created MSRs, partially offset by a $68.2 million decrease in the fair value of our 

MSRs. 

MSRs at amortized cost consists of certain reverse mortgage MSRs acquired during 2012. The initial carrying amount of these 

MSRs is based on the relative fair value of the purchased assets and liabilities including reverse mortgage interests. These 

MSRs are subsequently accounted for using the amortization method. Amortization / accretion is recorded as service fee 

income on the statement of operations and comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2012, MSRs at amortized costs were 

carried at $11.0 million, with no balance as of December 31, 2011. 

Property and equipment, net is comprised of land, building, furniture, fixtures, leasehold improvements, computer software, 

computer hardware, and software in developm ent and other. These assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 

Property and equipment, net increased $50.9 million from December 31, 2011 to $75.0 million at December 31, 2012, as we 

invested in information technology systems to support volume growth in both our Servicing and Originations Segments, as well 

as the addition of certain property acquired during 2012. 

REO, net represents property we acquired as a result of foreclosures on delinquent mortgage loans. REO, net is recorded at 

estimated fair value, less costs to sell, at the date of foreclosure. Any subsequent operating activity and declines in value are 

charged to earnings. REO, net was $10.5 million at December 31, 2012, an increase of $6.8 million from December 31, 2011. 

This change was primarily due to the transfer of $4,3 million of mortgage loans held for investment to REO, offset by 

liquidations. 
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Other assets include deferred financing costs, derivative financial instruments, prepaid expenses, loans subject to repurchase 

rights from Ginnie Mae. Other assets increased $215.9 million from December 31, 2011 to $322.1 million at December 31, 

2012 primarily due to an increase of $140.9 million in derivative financial instruments, $36.5 million increase in loans subject 

to repurchase rights from Ginnie Mae, and an increase in deferred financing costs of $34.7 million (see Note 9- Other Assets). 

Other assets also increased due to a deferred tax asset of $23.7 million that was recognized in 2012 (see Note 15 - Income 

Taxes). There was no deferred tax asset in 2011. 

Liabilities and Stockholders 'Equity 

At December 31, 2012, total liabilities were $6,368.5 million, a $4,861.9 million increase from December 31, 2011. The 

increase was primarily due to a $2.73 billion increase in notes payable and our issuance of $775 million in unsecured senior 

notes in 2012. In addition, we had an increase in payables and accrued liabilities of $447.6 million, an increase in excess 

spread financing of $243.5 million, and participating interest financing which relates to our reverse mortgage activities of 

$580.8 million. The increases are generally the result of our acquisitions of MSR portfolios, including Aurora, the increase in 

our mortgage origination business and our entry into servicing reverse mortgages. 

Included in our payables and accrued liabilities caption on our balance sheet is our reserve for repurchases and 

indemnifications of $18.5 million and $10.0 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. This liability represents our 

(i) estimate of losses to be incurred on the repurchase of certain loans that we previously sold and (ii) estimate of losses to be 

incurred for indemnification of losses incurred by purchasers or insurers with respect to loans that we sold. Certain sale 

contracts include provisions requiring us to repurchase a loan or indemnify the purchaser or insurer for losses if a borrower 

fails to make certain initial loan payments due to the acquirer or if the accompanying mortgage loan fails to meet certain 

customary representations and warranties. These representations and warranties are made to the loan purchasers or insurers 

about various characteristics of the loans, such as the manner of origination, the nature and extent of underwriting standards 

applied and the types of documentation being provided and typically are in place for the life of the loan. Although the 

representations and warranties are in place for the life of the loan, we believe that most repurchase requests occur within the 

first five years of the loan. In the event of a breach of the representations and warranties, we may be required to either 

repurchase the loan or indemnify the purchaser for losses it sustains on the loan. In addition, an investor may request that we 

refund a portion of the premium paid on the sale of mortgage loans if a loan is prepaid within a certain amount of time from the 

date of sale. We record a provision for estimated repurchases, loss indemnification and premium recapture on loans sold, which 

is charged to gain on mortgage loans held for sale. 

The activity of our outstanding repurchase reserves were as follows for the periods indicated (dollars in thousands). 

The following table summarizes the changes in UPB and loan count related to unresolved repurchase and indemnification 

requests for the periods indicated (dollars in millions): 
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The following five year table details our loan sales by period (dollars in billions): 
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We increase the reserve by applying an estimated loss factor to the principal balance of loan sales. Secondarily, the reserve may 

be increased based on outstanding claims received. We have observed an increase in repurchase requests in the last several 

years. We believe that because of the increase in our loan originations since 2008, repurchase requests are likely to increase. 

Should home values decrease, our realized loan losses from loan repurchases and indemnifications in ay increase as well. As 

such, our reserve for repurchases may increase beyond our current expectations. While the ultimate amount of repurchases and 

premium recapture is an estimate, we consider the liability to be adequate at each balance sheet date. 

At December 31, 2012, outstanding equity was $757.7 million, a $476.4 million increase from December 31, 2011, which is 

primarily attributable to net income of $205.3 million in the 2012 period, $246.7 million in IPO proceeds, contributions of 

$12.8 million from FIF, and $13.3 million in share-based compensation. 

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices 

Our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto presented herein have been prepared in accordance with GAAP, which 

requires the measurement of financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollars without considering the 

changes in the relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation. The impact of inflation is reflected in the 

increased cost of our operations. Unlike most industrial companies, nearly all of our assets and liabilities are monetary in 

nature. As a result, interest rates have a greater impact on our performance than do the effects of general levels of inflation. 
Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or to the same extent as the prices of goods and services. 

Recent Accounting Developments 

See Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies in the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 Financial Statements and 

Supplementary Data herein for details of recently issued accounting pronouncements and their expected impact on our 

consolidated financial statements. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Liquidity measures our ability to meet potential cash requirements, including the funding of servicing advances, the payment of 

operating expenses, the originations of loans and the repayment of borrowings. Our cash balance increased from $62.4 million 

as of December 31, 2011 to $152.6 million as of December 31, 2012, due to cash inflows in our financing activities, partially 

offset by cash outflows from operating and investing activities. Our cash balance increased from $21.2 million as of 

December 31, 2010 to $62.4 million as of December 31, 2011, primarily due to greater cash inflows from our financing 

activities, partially offset by the outflow from operating and investing activities. 

We grew our servicing portfolio from $106.6 billion in UPB as of December 31, 2011 (including $7.8 billion of servicing under 

contract) to $207.8 billion inUPB as of December 31, 2012. We shifted our strategy after 2007 to leverage our industty-leading 

servicing capabilities and capitalize on the opportunities to grow our originations platform which has led to the strengthening of 

our liquidity position. As a part of our shift in strategy, we ceased originating non-prime loans in 2007, and new originations 

have been focused on loans that are eligible to be sold to GSEs. Since 2008, substantially all originated loans have either been 

sold or are pending sale. 

As part of the normal course of our business, we borrow money periodically to fund servicing advances and loan. originations. 

The loans we originate are financed through several warehouse lines on a short-term basis. We typically hold the loans for 

approximately 30 days and then sell the loans or place them in government securitizations and repay the borrowings under the 

warehouse lines. We rely upon several counterparties to provide us with financing facilities to fund a portion of our servicing 

advances and to fund our loan originations on a short-term basis. Our ability to fund current operations depends upon our 

ability to secure these types of short-term financings on acceptable terms and to renew or replace the financings as they expire. 

In 2012, we acquired the servicing rights of approximately $28.4 billion in unpaid principal balance in reverse mortgage loans. 
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As servicer for these reverse mortgage loans, among other things, we are required to make advances to borrowers as required. 

These advances are temporarily financed through our reverse participations and max claim buyouts financing facility We 
typically hold the loans for approximately 30 days and then pool the loans into a government securitization and repay the 

financing facility. At December 31, 2012 our maximum unfunded advance obligation related to these reverse mortgage loans 

was approximately $4.7 billion. 

From 2010 through 201.2, we have completed offerings of $1.1 billion of unsecured senior notes, with maturity dates ranging 

from April 2015 to October 2020. We pay interest semi-annually to the note holders or these notes at interest rates ranging from 

7.875% to 10.875%. In February 2013 we completed an additional offering of $400.0 million of unsecured senior notes. These 

notes also pay interest semi-annually at an interest rate of 6.5% and mature in July 2021. We use a significant portion of the 
proceeds from these offerings to fund newly originated loans until these funds are ultimately deployed towards the purchase of 

mortgage servicing rights or other purposes. 

At this time, we see no material negative trends that we believe would affect our access to long-term borrowings, short-term 

borrowings or bank credit lines sufficient to maintain our current operations, or would likely cause us to cease to be in 

compliance with any applicable covenants in our indebtedness or that would inhibit our ability to fund operations and capital 

commitments for the next 12 months. 

Our primary sources of funds for liquidity include: (i) lines of credit, other secured borrowings and the unsecured senior notes; 

(ii) servicing fees and ancillary fees; (iii) payments received from sale or securitization of loans; (iv) payments received from 

mortgage loans held for sale; and (v) payments from the liquidation or securitization of our outstanding participating interests 

in reverse mortgage loans. 

Our primary uses of funds for liquidity include: (i) funding of servicing advances; (ii) originations of loans; (iii) payment of 

interest expenses; (iv) payment of operating expenses; (v) repayment of borrowings; (vi) payments for acquisitions of MSRs; 

and (vii) scheduled and unscheduled draws on our serviced reverse residential mortgage loans. 

Our servicing agreements impose on us various rights and obligations that affect our liquidity. Among the most significant of 

these obligations is the requirement that we advance our own funds to meet contractual principal and interest payments for 

certain investors and to pay taxes, insurance, foreclosure costs and various other items that are required to preserve the assets 

being serviced. Delinquency rates and prepayment speed affect the size of servicing advance balances. As a result our 

purchases of the servicing rights to certain reverse mortgages in 2012, we are required to fund payments due to borrowers, 

which advances are typically greater than advances on forward residential mortgages. These advances are typically recovered 

Upon weekly or monthly reimbursement or from sale in the market. 

We intend to continue to seek opportunities to acquire loan servicing portfolios and/or businesses that engage in loan servicing 

and/or loan originations. Any future acquisitions could require substantial additional capital in excess of cash from operations. 

We would expect to finance the capital required for acquisitions through a combination of additional issuances of equity, 

corporate indebtedness, asset backed acquisition financing and/or cash from operations. 

Operating Activities 

Our operating activities used $1,958.1 million and $28.9 million of cash flow for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, 

respectively. The decrease of $1,929.2 million was primarily due to the net effect of the following: 

Operating cash decreased $4,491.9 million due to higher volume in our originations segment. We originated $7,904.1 

million in residential mortgage loans during 2012, compared to $3,412.2 million during 2011. This decrease was partially 

offset by an increase of $3,794.3 million in our cash inflows from proceeds received from the sale of our residential 

mortgage loans and payments received on mortgage loans. We received $7,197.7 million in cash proceeds from loan sales 

and principal collections during 2012, compared to $3,403.4 million during 2011. 

Decrease of $1,075.4 million in cash outflows used by working capital which used $1,097.1 million during 2012 compared 

to $21.7 million during 2011. 

Our operating activities used ($28.9) million of cash flow for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to ($101.7) million 

of cash flow for the same period in the prior year. The decrease in cash used in operating activities of $72.8 million during the 

2011 period was primarily due to higher volume sales of residential mortgage loans offset by higher cash outflows for working 

capital. The improvement was primarily due to the net effect of the following: 
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• 	$718.6 million improvement in proceeds received from sale of originated loans, which provided $3,339.9 million and 
$2,621.3 in illion for the years ending December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, partially offset by a $620.6 million 
increase in cash used to originate loans. Mortgage loans originated and purchased, net of fees, used $3,412.2 million and 
$2,791.6 million in the years ending December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

• 	$74.1 million decrease in cash outflows used for working capital, which used ($21.7) million cash for the year ended 
December 31, 2011 and provided $52.4 million during the same period in the prior year. 

Investing Activities 

Our investing activities used $2,157.3 million and $81.9 million of cash flow for the years ending December 31, 2012 and 
2011, respectively. The $2,075.4 million decrease in cash flows used by investing activities from the 2011 period to the 2012 
period was primarily a result of our two significant MSR acquisitions. In May 2012, we acquired the servicing rights of a $10.4 
billion forward residential servicing portfolio, which transferred in July 2012. Additionally in June 2012, we acquired the 
servicing rights of another $63 billion forward residential servicing portfolio, which primarily transferred in July 2012. Total 
cash used in the acquisition of our 2012 MSR acquisitions, which includes the related advances, was approximately $2.0 
billion. 

Our investing activities used $81.9 in illion and provided $101.2 million of cash flow for the years ended December 31, 2011 
and 2010, respectively. The $183.1 million decrease in cash flows used by investing activities from the 2010 period to the 2011 
period was primarily a result of a $78,7 million increase in total purchases and deposits on MSRs, a $26.9 million cash outflow 
for the purchase of reverse mortgage servicing rights, combined with a $46.3 million decrease in cash proceeds from sales of 
REO. Also, in March 2011, we acquired a 22% interest in ANC for an initial investment of $6.6 million. ANC is the parent 
company of National Real Estate Information Services, LP (NREIS) a real estate services company. 

Financing Activities 

Our financing activities provided $4,205.6 million and $152.0 million of cash flow during the years ended December 31, 2012 
and December 31, 2011, respectively. The increase in cash flow from financing activities of $4,053.6 million was primarily the 
result of a $2,565.0 million increase in notes payable related to additional borrowings to finance the growth in our servicing 
and originations business as well as the increase in senior notes of $735.5 million over the comparable period in 2011. 

Our financing activities provided $152.0 million of cash flow during the year ended December 31, 2011 and used $(20.0) 
million of cash flow for the years ended December 31, 2010. During the year ended December 31, 2011, we provided $172.0 
million more cash as a result of additional borrowings to finance the growth in our servicing and originations business 
compared to the 2010 period. During the year ended December 31, 2011, we used $58.1 million to repay ABS nonrecourse 
debt, used $3.5 million for debt financing costs and borrowed an additional $163.4 million from our existing warehouse and 
debt facilities as we expanded both our servicing and originations platfonns. The primary source of financing cash flow during 
the year ended December 31, 2010 was $243.0 million proceeds from offering the unsecured senior notes. During the year 
ended December 31, 2010, we used $103.5 million to repay ABS nonrecourse debt, used $14.9 million for debt financing costs 
and used $62.1 million to repay the outstanding notes payable. 
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Contractual Obligations 

The table below sets forth our contractual obligations, excluding our legacy asset securitized debt, our excess spread financing, 

and our participating interest financing at December 31, 2012 (in thousands): 

Less than 1 
Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years More than 5  Years Total 

In addition to the above contractual obligations, we have also been involved with several securitizations of ABS, which were 

structured as secured borrowings. These structures resulted in us carrying the securitized loans as mortgages on our 

consolidated balance sheet and recognizing the asset-backed certificates acquired by third parties as nonrecourse debt. The 

timing of the principal payments on this nonrecoursc debt is dependent on the payments received on the underlying mortgage 

loans and liquidation of REO. The outstanding principal balance on our Nonrecourse Debt—Legacy Assets and was $100.6 

million, at December 31, 2012. The repayment of our excess spread financing is based on amounts received on the underlying 

mortgage loans. As such, we have excluded the financing from the table above. The fair value of our excess spread financing 

was $288.1 million at December 31, 2012. The repayment of our participating interest financing is based on amounts received 

related to our reverse mortgage interests and as such we have excluded this financing from the table above. The recorded 

amount of our participating interest financing was $580.8 million at December 31, 2012. 

Description of Certain Indebtedness 

Unsecured Senior Notes 

In March 2010, Nationstar and Nationstar Capital Corporation, as co-issuer, completed the offering of $250.0 million of 

unsecured senior notes, which were issued with an issue discount of $7.0 million for net cash proceeds before issuance costs of 

$243.0 million, with a maturity date of April 2015. In December 2011, Nationstar and Nationstar Capital Corporation, as co-

issuer, completed an additional offering of $35.0 million of unsecured senior notes. The additional offering was issued with an 

issue discount of $0.3 million for net cash proceeds before issuance costs of $34.7 million, with a maturity date of April 2015. 

These unsecured senior notes pay interest, semi-annually at an interest rate of 10.875%. These unsecured senior notes were 

issued in a private placement and were subsequently exchanged for an equal principal amount of senior notes registered under 

the Securities Act of 1933, as amended with substantially identical terms. 

In April 2012, Nationstar and Nationstar Capital Corporation, as co-issuer, completed the offering of $275.0 million of 

unsecured senior notes at par for net cash proceeds before issuance costs of $275.0 million, with a maturity date of May 2019. 
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In July 2012, Nationstar and Nationstar Capital Corporation, as co-issuer, completed an additional offering of $100 million of 

unsecured senior notes. This additional offering was issued with. an  issue premium of $5.5 million for net cash proceeds before 

issuance costs of $105.5 million. These unsecured senior notes pay interest semi-annually at an interest rate of 9.625%. These 

unsecured senior notes were issued in a private placement and have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as 

am ended. 

In September 2012, Nationstar and Nationstar Capital Corporation, as co-issuer, completed the offering of $300.0 million of 

unsecured senior notes, with a maturity date of October 2020. The notes were issued at par, In September 2012, Nationstar and 

Nationstar Capital Corporation, as co-issuer, completed an additional offering of $100.0 million of unsecured senior notes. 

These notes were issued with an issue premium of $0.8 million for net cash proceeds before issuance costs of $100.8 million 

Under the terms of these unsecured senior notes, we pay interest semiannually to the note holders at an interest rate of 7,875%. 

These unsecured senior notes were issued in a private placement and have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, 

as amended. 

In February 2013, Nationstar and Nationstar Capital Corporation, as co-issuer, completed the offering of $400.0 million 

principal amount of unsecured senior notes, with a maturity date of July 2021. The notes were issued at par. Under the terms of 

these unsecured senior notes, we pay interest semiannually to the note holders at an interest rate of 6.500%. These unsecured 

senior notes were issued in a private placement and have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 

The indentures contain certain events of default, including (subject, in some cases, to customary cure periods and materiality 

thresholds) defaults based on (i) the failure to make payments under the indenture when due, (ii) breach of covenants, 

(iii) cross-defaults to certain other indebtedness, (iv) certain bankruptcy or insolvency events, (v) material judgments and 

(vi) invalidity of material guarantees. 

The ratios included in the indentures for the senior notes are incurrence based compared to the customary ratio covenants that 

are often found in credit agreements that require a company to maintain a certain ratio. 

Servicing 

Our Servicing Segment's debt consists of unsecured senior notes, advance financing facilities, MSR Note, participating interest 

financing, and excess spread financing at fair value. 

Advance Financing Facilities 

Our advance financing facilities are used to finance our obligations to pay advances as required by our servicing agreements. 

These servicing agreements may require us to advance certain payments to the owners of the mortgage loans we service, 

including P&I advances, T&I advances, legal fees, maintenance and preservation costs, or corporate advances. We draw on one 

or more of our advance financing facilities periodically throughout the month, as necessary, and we repay any facilities on 

which we have drawn when advances are recovered through liquidations, prepayments and reimbursement of advances from 

modifications. 

MBS advance financing facility - We have a one-year committed facility agreement with a USE, under which we may transfer 

to the USE certain servicing advance receivables against the transfer of funds by the GSE. This facility has the capacity to 

purchase up to $325,0 million in eligible servicing advance receivables, The interest rate is based on LIBOR plus a spread of 

2.50% to 4.00%. The maturity date of this facility is currently December 2013. As of December 31, 2012, this facility had an 

outstanding balance of $185.8 million. 

Securities' repurchase facility (2011) - In December 2011, we entered into a securities repurchase facility with a financial 

services company that was am ended to extend the expiration to March 2013. The master repurchase agreement (MRA) states 

that we may from time to time transfer to the financial services company eligible securities against the transfer of funds by the 

financial services company, with a simultaneous agreement by the financial services company to transfer such securities to us at 

a certain date, or on demand by us, against the transfer of funds by us. Additionally, the financial services company may elect to 

extend the transfer date for an additional 90 days at mutually agreed upon terms. The interest rate is based on LIBOR plus a 

margin of 3.50%. As of December 31, 2012, we have pledged the Company's $55.6 million outstanding retained interest in the 

outstanding Nonrecourse debt—Legacy Assets sectuitization, which was structured as a financing. As of December 31, 2012, 

this facility had an outstanding balance of $11.8 million. 

2010-ABS advance financing facility - ha December 2010, we executed the 2010-ABS Advance Financing Facility with a 

financial institution. This facility has the capacity to purchase up to $300.0 million of advance receivables and the interest rate 
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is based on LIBOR plus a spread of 3.00%. This facility matures in May 2014. This debt is nonrecourse to us. As of December 

31, 2012, this facility had an outstanding balance of $194.8 million. 

2011 - 1 Agency advance financing facility - In October 2011, we executed the 2011-1 Agency Advance Financing Facility with 

a financial institution. This facility has the capacity to borrow up to $600.0 million and the interest rate is based on LIBOR plus 

a spread of 2.50% to 6.50% depending upon class of the note. The maturity date of this facility is October 2013. This facility is 

secured by servicing advance receivables and is nonrecourse to us. As of December 31, 2012, this facility had an outstanding 

balance of $476.1 million. In January 2013, we amended this facility and issued an additional $300 million in asset backed 

term notes with a weighted average fixed interest rate of 1.46% and a weighted average term of 3 years. (See Note 29 - 

Subsequent Events). 

MSR note - In connection with an October 2009 MSR acquisition, we executed a four-year note agreement with a G SE. As 

collateral for this note, we have pledged our rights, title, and interest in the acquired servicing portfolio. The interest rate is 

based on LIBOR plus 2.50%. The maturity date of this facility is October 2013. As of December 31, 2012, the outstanding 

balance on this note was of $4.6 million. 

2012-AW agency advance .financing facility - In June 2012, we executed the 2012-AW Agency Advance Financing Facility with 

a financial institution. This facility has the capacity to borrow up to $100.0 million and the interest rate is based on LIBOR plus 

a spread of 2.50%. The maturity date of this facility is June 2013. This facility is secured by servicing advance receivables and 

is nonrecourse to us. As of December 31, 2012, this facility had an outstanding balance of $100.0 million. On January 31, 

2013, we terminated this revolving financing receivable and repaid all outstanding balances as of the termination date. 

2012-CABS advance financing facility - In June 2012, we executed the 2012-C ABS Advance Financing Facility with a 

financial institution. This facility, amended in November 2012, has the capacity to borrow up to $700.0 million and the interest 

rate is based on LIBOR plus a spread of 3.25% to 4.25%. The maturity date of this facility is November 2013. This facility is 

secured by servicing advance receivables and is nonrecourse to us. As of December 31, 2012, this facility had an outstanding 

balance of $657.0 million. 

2012-R ABS advance financing facility - In June 2012, we executed the 2012-R ABS Advance Financing Facility with a 

financial institution This facility, amended in December 2012, has a borrowing capacity of up to $400.0 million and the 

interest rate is based on LIBOR plus a spread of 3.37% to 8.00%. The maturity date of this facility is June 2014. This facility is 

secured by servicing advance receivables and is nonrecourse to us. As of December 31, 2012, this facility had an outstanding 

balance of $374.7 million. 

2012- W ABS advance financing facility  In June 2012, we executed the 2012-W ABS Advance Financing Facility with a 

financial institution. This facility, amended in December 2012, has the capacity to borrow up to $500.0 million and the interest 

rate is based on LIBOR plus a spread of 3.75%. The maturity date of this facility is June 2013. This facility is secured by 

servicing advance receivables and is nonrecourse to us. As of December 31, 2012, this facility had an outstanding balance of 

$492.2 million 

Reverse participations and max claim buyouts 'financing facility - In June 2012, we executed a reverse participations and max 

claim buyouts financing facility with a financial institution. This facility has capacity to borrow up to $150 million and the 

interest rate is based on LIBOR plus a spread of 4,00%. The maturity date of this facility is June 2014. This facility is partially 

secured by reverse mortgage loans. As of December 31, 2012, this facility had an outstanding balance of $65.9 million 

MBS advance financing facility (2012) - In December 2012, we executed a MBS Advance Financing Facility with a financial 

institution. This facility has the capacity to borrow up to $125.0 million through April 14, 2013, $100.0 million for the period 

April 15, 2013 through July 14, 2013 and $50.0 in illion for any date thereafter, The interest rate is LIBOR plus a spread of 

3.50%. The maturity date of this facility is January 2014. This facility is secured by servicing advance receivables and is 

nonrecourse to us. As of December 31, 2012, this facility had no outstanding balance. 

Participating Interest Financing 

Participating interest financing represent the issuance of pools of Home Equity Conversion Mortgage Backed Securities 

(HMI-3S) to third-party security holders which are guaranteed by certain GSEs. We have accounted for the transfer of these 

advances in the related Home Equity Conversion Mortgages (HECM) loans as secured borrowings, retaining the initial reverse 

mortgage interests on our consolidated balance sheet, and recording the pooled HIVIBS as participating interest financing 

liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet. Monthly cash flows generated from the BECM loans are used to service the 

The interest rate is based on the underlying HMBS rate with a range of 0.53% to 7.17%. The participating interest 

financing was $580.8 million at December 31, 2012. There were none outstanding at December 31, 2011. 
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Excess Spread Financing Debt at Fair Value 

In conjunction with Nationstar's acquisitions of certain mortgage servicing rights on various pools of residential mortgage loans 

(the Portfolios), we have entered into sale and assignment agreements which are treated as financings with certain entities 

formed by Newcastle, in which Newcastle. and/or certain funds managed by Fortress own an interest. We, in transactions 
accounted for as financing arrangements, sold to such entities the right to receive a specified percentage of the excess cash flow 

generated from the Portfolios after receipt of a fixed basic servicing fee per loan. 

We retain all ancillary income associated with servicing the Portfolios and the remaining portion of the excess cash flow after 

receipt of the fixed basic servicing fee. We continue to be the servicer of the Portfolios and provide all servicing and advancing 

functions. Such entities have no prior or ongoing obligations associated with the Portfolios. 

Contemporaneous with the above, we entered into refinanced loan agreements with such entities. Should we refinance any loan 

in the Portfolios, subject to certain limitations, we will be required to transfer the new loan or a replacement loan of similar 

economic characteristics into the Portfolios. The new or replacement loan will be governed by the same terms set forth in the 

sale and assignment agreement described above. 

The total carrying amount of the outstanding excess spread financing agreements was $288.1 million and $44.6 million at 

December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

OriRinations 

Our Originations Segment's debt consists of warehouse facilities and our ASAP+ Short-Tenn Financing Facility. 

Warehouse Facilities 
Our warehouse facilities are used to finance our loan originations on a short-tram basis. In the ordinary course, we originate 

mortgage loans on a near-daily basis, and we use a combination of our four warehouse facilities and cash to fund the loans. We 

agree to transfer to our counterparty certain mortgage loans against the transfer of funds by the countexparty, with a 

simultaneous agreement by the counterparty to transfer the loans back to us at a date certain, or on demand by us, against the 

transfer of funds from us. We typically renegotiate our warehouse facilities on an annual basis. We sell our newly originated 

mortgage loans to our counterparty to finance the originations of our mortgage loans and typically repurchase the loans within 

30 days of origination when we sell the loans to a GSE or into a government securitization. 

$375 million warehouse facility - In February 2010, we executed an MRA with a financial institution which will expire in 

January 2014. The mRA states that from time to time we may enter into transactions, for an aggregate amount of $375.0 

million, in which we agree to transfer to the same financial institution certain mortgage loans against the transfer of funds by 

the same financial institution, with a simultaneous agreement by the same financial institution to transfer such mortgage loans 

to us at a date certain, or on demand by us, against the transfer of funds by us. In January 2013, we amended the agreement to 

increase the borrowing capacity from $375.0 million to $750.0 million. The interest rate is based on LIBOR plus a spread 

ranging from 1.75% to 2.50%. As of December 31, 2012, this facility had an outstanding balance of $245.3 million. See Note 

29 - Subsequent Events. 

$150 million warehouse facility - We have an MRA with a financial services company, which was amended in February 2012 to 

expire in August 2013 and reduce the committed amount from $300.0 million to $150.0 million. The facility also has an 

uncommitted amount of $150 million that can be granted at the discretion of the financial institution. The MRA states that from 

time to time we may enter into transactions in which we agree to transfer to the financial services company certain mortgage 

loans or MBS against the transfer of funds by the financial services company, with a simultaneous agreement by the financial 

services company to transfer such mortgage loans or IVII3S to us at a certain date, or on demand by us, against the transfer of 

funds by us. The interest rate is based on LIBOR plus a margin of 3.25%. As of December 31, 2012, this facility had an 

outstanding balance of $224.8 million. 

$250 million warehouse facility (2011) - In March 2011, as amended, we executed an MRA with a financial institution, under 

which we may enter into transactions, for an aggregate amount of $750.0 million in which we agree to transfer to the same 
financial institution certain mortgage loans and certain securities against the transfer of funds by the same financial institution, 

with a simultaneous agreement by the same financial institution to transfer such mortgage loans and securities to us at a date 

certain, or on demand by us, against the transfer of funds by us. The maturity is August 2013 with the interest rate based on 

LIBOR plus a spread of 2.25% to 3.00%, which varies based on the underlying transferred collateral. As of December 31, 

2012, this facility had an outstanding balance of $356.1 million. 
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$100 million warehou.s.e facility (2009) - in October 2009, we executed a MRA with a financial institution. This MRA states 

that from time to time we may enter into transactions, for an aggregate amount of $100.0 million, in which we agree to transfer 

to the financial institution certain mortgage loans against the transfer of funds by the financial institution, with a simultaneous 

agreement by the financial institution to transfer such mortgage loans to us at a certain date, or on demand by us, against the 

transfer of funds by us. The interest rate is based on LIBOR plus a spread of 3.25%. The maturity date of this NA with the 

financial institution was extended to March 2013. As of December 31, 2012, this facility had an outstanding balance of $87.7 

million. 

ASAP •1. facility - During 2009, we began executing As Soon As Pooled Plus agreements with a GSE, under which we transfer 

to the GSE eligible mortgage loans that are to be pooled into the GSE MI3S against the transfer of funds by the GSE. The 

interest rate is based on LIBOR plus a spread of 1.50%. These agreements typically have a maturity of up to 45 days. As of 

December 31, 2012, this facility had an outstanding balance of $124.6 million. 

Legacy Assets and Other 

Legacy Asset Term-Funded Notes 

In November 2009, we completed the securitization of approximately $222.0 million of ABS, which was structured as a 

secured borrowing. This structure resulted in us carrying the securitized loans as mortgages on our consolidated balance sheet 

and recognizing the asset-backed certificates acquired by third parties as nonrecourse debt, totaling approximately $100.6 

million and $112.5 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, The principal and interest on these notes are paid 

using the cash flows from the underlying mortgage loans, which serve as collateral for the debt The interest rate paid on the 

outstanding securities is 7.50%, which is subject to an available funds cap. The total outstanding principal balance on the 

underlying mortgage loans serving as collateral for the debt was approximately $336.9 million and $373.1 million at 

December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Accordingly, the timing of the principal payments on this nonrecourse debt is 

dependent on the payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. The unpaid principal balance on the outstanding notes 

was $117.1 in illion and $130.8 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

Variable Interest Entities and Off Balance Sheet Arrangements 

See Note 3 - Variable Interest Entities and Securitizations, of the notes of the consolidated financial statements for a summary 

of Nationstar's transactions with VIEs and unconsolidated balances details of their impact on our consolidated financial 

statements. 

Derivatives 

See Note 111 - Derivative Financial Instruments, of the notes of the consolidated financial statements for a summary of 

Nationstar's derivative transactions. 

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 

We are exposed to a variety of market risks which include interest rate risk, consumer credit risk and counterparty credit risk. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Changes in interest rates affect our operations prim arily as follows: 

Servicing Segment 

an increase in interest rates would increase our costs of servicing our outstanding debt, including our ability to finance 

servicing advances; 

• a decrease (increase) in interest rates would generally increase (decrease) prepayment rates and may require us to report a 

decrease (increase) in the value of our MSRs; 

• a change in prevailing interest rates could impact our earnings from our custodial deposit accounts: and 

an increase in interest rates could generate an increase in delinquency, default and foreclosure rates resulting in an increase 

in both operating expenses and interest expense and could cause a reduction in the value of our assets, 

60 	 RFJN_EX 29_ 0000072 

1900 



Originations Segment 

a substantial and sustained increase in prevailing interest rates could adversely affect our loan originations volume because 

refinancing an existing loan would be less attractive and qualifying for a loan may be more difficult; and 

an increase in interest rates would increase our costs of servicing our outstanding debt, including our ability to finance loan 

originations; 

We actively manage the risk profiles of IRLCs and mortgage loans held for sale on a daily basis and enter into forward sales of 

1v113S in an amount equal to the portion of the IRLC expected to close, assuming no change in mortgage interest rates. In 

addition, to manage the interest rate risk associated with mortgage loans held for sale, we enter into forward sales of NIBS to 

deliver mortgage loan inventory to investors. 

Consumer Credit Risk 

We sell our loans on a nonrecourse basis. We also provide representations and warranties to purchasers and insurers of the loans 

sold that typically are in place for the life of the loan. In the event of a breach of these representations and warranties, we may 

be required to repurchase a mortgage loan or indemnify the purchaser, and any subsequent loss on the mortgage loan may be 

borne by us. If there is no breach of a representation and warranty provision, we have no obligation to repurchase the loan or 

indemnify the investor against loss. The outstanding UPE1 of loans sold by us represents the maximum potential exposure 

related to representation and warranty provisions. 

We maintain a reserve for losses on loans repurchased or indemnified as a result of breaches of representations and warranties 

on our sold loans. Our estimate is based on our most recent data regarding loan repurchases and indemnity payments, actual 

credit losses on repurchased loans, recovery history, am ong other factors. Our assumptions are affected by factors both internal 

and external in nature. Internal factors include, among other things, level of loan sales, as well as to whom the loans are sold, 

the expectation of credit loss on repurchases and indemnifications, our success rate at appealing repurchase demands and our 

ability to recover any losses from third parties. External factors that may affect our estimate include, among other things, the 

overall economic condition in the housing market, the economic condition of borrowers, the political environment at investor 

agencies and the overall U.S. and world economy. Many of the factors are beyond our control and may lead to judgments that 

are susceptible to change. 

Counterparty Credit Risk 

We are exposed to counterparty credit risk in the event of non-performance by counterparties to various agreements. We 

monitor the credit ratings of our counterparties and do not anticipate losses due to counterparty non-performance. 

Sensitivity Analysis 

We assess our market risk based on changes in interest rates utilizing a sensitivity analysis. The sensitivity analysis measures 

the potential impact on fair values based on hypothetical changes (increases and decreases) in interest rates. 

We use a duration-based model in determining the impact of interest rate shifts on our loan portfolio, certain other interest-

bearing liabilities measured at fair value and interest rate derivatives portfolios. The primary assumption used in these models 

is that an increase or decrease in the benchmark interest rate produces a parallel shift in the yield curve across all maturities. 

We utilize a discounted cash flow analysis to determine the fair value of MSRs and the impact of parallel interest rate shifts on 

MSRs. The primary assumptions in this model are prepayment speeds and market discount rates. However, this analysis 

ignores the impact of interest rate changes on certain material variables, such as the benefit or detriment on the value of future 

loan originations, non-parallel shifts in the spread relationships between IVIES, swaps and U.S. Treasury rates and changes in 

primary and secondary mortgage market spreads. For mortgage loans, IRLCs and forward delivery commitments on MIIS, we 

rely on a in odd l in determining the impact of interest rate shifts. In addition, for IRLCs, the borrower's propensity to close their 

mortgage loans under the commitment is used as a primary assumption. 

Our total market risk is influenced by a wide variety of factors including market volatility and the liquidity of the markets. 

There are certain limitations inherent in the sensitivity analysis presented, including the necessity to conduct the analysis based 

on a single point in time and the inability to include the complex market reactions that normally would arise from the market 

shifts modeled. 

We used December 31, 2012 market rates on our instruments to perform the sensitivity analysis. The estimates are based on the 

market risk sensitive portfolios described in the preceding paragraphs and assume instantaneous, parallel shifts in interest rate 
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Mortgage loans held for sale 

Other assets (derivatives) 

iitet.6416141•Ook omnutmnts 

Total change in assets 

Derivative financial instruments 

interea:ra 
Forward MBS trades 

yield curves. These sensitivities are hypothetical and presented for illustrative putposes only. Changes in fair value based on 
variations in assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in fair value may not be 

The following table summarizes the estimated change in the fair value of our assets and liabilities sensitive to interest rates as 
of December 31, 2012 given hypothetical instantaneous parallel shifts in the yield curve: 
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Management's Report 

Our management is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of the information contained in this document. Management is 

responsible for the consistency of reporting this information and for ensuring that accounting principles generally accepted in 

the United States of America are used. 

In discharging this responsibility, management maintains a comprehensive system of internal controls and supports an 

extensive program of internal audits, has made organizational arrangements providing appropriate divisions of responsibility 

and has established communication programs aimed at assuring that its policies, procedures and principles of business conduct 

are understood and practiced by its employees. 

The consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), stockholders' equity, and cash flow for the years 

ending December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, as well as the related balance sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 included 

in this document have been audited by Ernst and Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm. All audits were 

conducted using standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) and the independent registered 

public accounting firms' reports are included herein. 

/s/ Jay Bray 

Chief Executive Officer 

March 15, 2013 

Is/ David Hisey 

Chief Financial Officer 

March 15, 2013 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. and subsidiaries (the 
Company) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive 
income (loss), stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company's internal control over 
financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 
position of Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the consolidated results of 
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, in conformity with 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP 

Dallas, Texas 
March 15, 2013 
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December 31, December 31, 
2012 	2011 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Accounts receivable 

......................................... 

152,649 $ 

3,043,606 

62,445 

562,300 

158,61'6 

:1M:47:A tl,.e:t:•SeIriartgage. ,tratte 

Receivables from affiliates 4,609 12,604 

635860 

Preferred stock at $0.01 par value -300,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and 
outstanding 

Mexe.nt -ier3.1:i20 

Additional paid-in-capital 

RU inned cu mng 
Common shares held by subsidiary 

TotOtectuity .' . 	. : . ........... 
Total liabilities and equity 

556,056 . 	... . 
40,5::;78.7 

(4,566) 

'0,6A.414.400 

8"1',309 

7,126,143 $ 	1,787,931 

Mortgage servicing .rights amortized cost 

............................................ 

ely 
..Real estate owned (RE0), net 

Total assets 

10,973 

3,668 

(5; 

1,787,931 

75;026 

10,467 

22: (15V 

7,126,143 

Liabilities and equity 

gORW6k 
Unsecured senior notes 

3::;601 1:41136. 

1,062,635 

..• 

Derivative financial instruments 12,37C) 20,026 

112,490 Nontoccurse debt -Legacy Assets 

Participating infra est financing 

Commitments and contingencies --- See Note 21 

•uir 	tin' 

100,620 

288,089, 

580,836 

283.309". or ellf age  

Consolidated Financial S'Iatentents 

NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE HOLDINGS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(amounts in thousands) 

Mortgage loans held for investment, subject to nonrecourse debt - Legacy Assets, net a 
allowance for loan losses of $4,390 and $5,824, respectively 238,907 243,480 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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For the year ended December 31, 
2012 	2011 	2010 

Salaries, wages and benefits 

.:atI1jinistra1iK1;:;•.: 

Provision for loan losses 

Occupancy 

3,298 

• 
9,445 11,340 

358,455 

2,353 

16,7.86 
;79 

Other income (expense): 

Interest expense 

•!,.( ;of.itta0. t.reithrigtOri:10; 

Loss on equity method investments 
•'(lo,s't On thiereat tote  - : 

Fair value chances in ABS securitizations 

Total other 04:103A 
Income (loss) liefme taxes 

Net income / (loss 

Change in value of designated cash flow hedges 

Earnings (loss) per share: 
.. .. ....... . 	. 	. . 	.. .. .. 	. ..... ... . 	... : .. ... . 

Diluted earnings (loss) per share 

1-46d;r0:,,eragekiha) 

Basic 

..... .............. V . ' .  !!'S, e:•a at. 

Diluted 
, 

iDiv:keTehdS;::ddelat ,.e.d.per:/Shafe ,  

462,495 $ 233,411 $ 167,126 Servicing fee income 

ther,...fee'ineOin.6 

Total fee incom e 

Total revenues 

NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE HOLDINGS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 

(amounts in thousands, except earnings per share data) 

See accompanying notes to the consolidatedfinancial statements. 
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Cumulative effect of change in 
accounting principles as of 
January 1,2010 related to 
adoption of new accounting 
guidance on consolidation of 
variable interest entities 

itirelYaSedltiptnIAtiot 

Tax related share-based 
settlement of units by members 

(8,068) (8,068) 

Change in value of cash flow 
hedge 

.. .. 
JittlattO•latlkceiApe:r:;•4;:.20.10:.: 

Share-based compensation 

Dietributsont to ps out 

Tax related share-based 
settlement of units by members 

14,815 

;0*0i,C 
Change in value of cash flow 
hedge.  

•-•••-•—• 
contributions from parent. 
F11 1-117 

- 	- 

Common stock issuance 

Share-based compensation 

Withholding tax related to 
Mare based settlement of 
Como 00 stock by managem Olt 

90,460 $ 	$ 	905 $ 556,056 $ $ 205,287 $ 	(4,566) $ 	757,682 

ittirii0;titIlwe llitter:•: • • 0:09 

NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE HOLDINGS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

(amounts in thousands) 

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive Retained 
Loss 	Earnings 

See accompanying notes to the consolidatedfinancial statements. 
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For the year ended December 31, 
2012 	2011 	2010 

Net income / (loss) 

Oek:31:lcc.111:W 

Share-based compensation 

11W: OarM 

Provision for loan losses 

205,287 20,887 (9,914) 

13,342 

t0.4 
2,353 3,537 

• 

12,856 

14,571 
	

1.1 ■ 7 

NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE HOLDINGS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(amounts in thousands) 

Fair value changes in ABS sccuritizations 

Depreciation and amortization. 

.iii ifl .................. 	•• 
Amortization/accretion of mortgage servicing rights at amortized cost 

Amortization (accretion) of premiums/discounts 

Cost of loans sold. and principal payments and prepayments, arid other 
changes in mortgage loans originated as held for sale, net of fees 

1S 

,a set .  . 
Accounts receivable, net 

Receivables l'ruin affiliates 

Other assets 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Continued on following page. 

(752,50'7) 

-(2,46j 
1,350 

C9(93:,..9:6))  

29,0 

68 
	

RFJN_EX 29_ 0000080 

1908 



NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(Continued) 
(amounts in thousands) 

For the year ended December 31, 

2012 	2011 	2010 

Principal payments received and other changes on mortgage loans held for 
• investment, subject to ABS nonrecourse debt 

Acquisition of equity method in' cstce 

• P it Oh yet grit' 	 tie 

Deposits on / purchase of forward mortgage servicing rights, net at 
liabilities incurred 

Proccocls from sales of R.E0 

Financing activities 

Ote8 

Tit-Irish:Ts (to)/ from restricted cash, net 

ii in at common stock nct of IPt) issuance cci', 

Issuance of participating interest financing 

Increase in notes payable ........ : .. 	..... 	..... 	. : .. 	...... 	... : .. 	....... 

Reptlyntent of ABS nonrecourse debt 

ReaymO of g%'.POS:q;!:.§:ArVieilliki'Spreati ./.1:inangirigr 

Distributions to parent -- FIE 

'OnV. 
Debt financing costs .... 

Net cash provided by '(used in) financing activities 

11:',..b*.r..da10:,.. • ecre',13Q 	1,11n 	 ivown 

Cash anti cash equivalents at beginning of period 

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash activities 

Transfer of mortgage loans held for investment to REO at fair value 

Change in value of cash flow hedge—accumulated other comprehensive 
income 

eeft61  

40,000 
	

48,838 

0 4: 

((.600) 

2 893) 

4,205,612 

62,445 

(2,070,375) 

679 

(321,691) 

582,897 

Og611,  
2,728,407 

(23,213) 

(96,467) 

27,823 

UN) 

16,812 

163,421 
39,:433.11 

(58,091) 

21,223 

(4,348) 

(103,466) 

(17,812) 

(33,731) 

(62,099) 

74,107 

41,645 

4,295 18,928 

1,071 

‘1.1,1(iF iyi:vtgo 

Tax related share-based settlement of common stock 

......................................................................................................... 

See accompanying notes to the consohdatedfinancial statements. 
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..taiy ray 

Chief Executive Officer 

and Director 

Tra sfor ative Year — 
Strategically Positioned 
to Capitalize on 
Market Trends 

DEAR FELLOW S-TOCKHOLDERS, 

2012 was an exciting and historic year for Nationstar. 

Hard work and dedication from our employees gener-

ated strong operational and financial performance for 

the con) pany. ri addition to becom ing a publicly tr a ded 

company in March, we nearly doubled the size of our 

servicing portfolio, more than doubled our origination 

volume, and grew net income Over 9.F1 times to a r ecord 

$‘205 million, or $2.40 per share. Our return on aver age 

equity was 40 percent. 

Industry dynamics remained favorable through-

out 2012. The $10 trillion residential mortgage industry 

is undergoing major structural changes that impact the 

way mortgage loans are originated and serviced. As 

financial institutions re-evaluate <:apital priorities and 

core competencies, Nationstar is a strategic partner of 

choice that can both acquire assets and provide opera-

tional support across all facets of the mortgage business. 

Nationstar`s m ortgagesmioesplatform, desidned 

to denerate fee-based income across the entire eco-

nom i c cycle via servicing, originations a rd Sol uti onsta r.. 

benefited from the changing landscape. Nationstat 

raised over $1 billion in capital in 2012 and deployed it 

in accretive, high.return assets. These investments pro-

duoid significant income in 2012, with pretax inoDme up 

13.2 times year-over-yea:, and should cont inue to provide 

iono-term earnings growth. 

This success would not be possible without the 

unwavering commitment of our employees, strong rela-

tionships with our business partners, and the support of 

our stockholders. I would like to thank these vital con-

stituencies for their exceptional efforts and commitment 

to tsiationst a:. 

1CIN 	SF.:(1'W11.:.'.N I .4Cllk.V ts 
B51ANT1 . GROW '1' 

N Eitiontar took advantacie of the market dislocation by 

acouiring rriortdage servicing ricihts CIO SF '') epresent- 

irug more than $100 billion of unpaid principal balance 

('UPB"), including the ,T63 billion UPB Aurora portfo-

lio. We successfully integrated each of the acquired 

portfolios and remain focused on improving asset per-

formance... We ended 2012 with a servicing portfolio of 

nearly $2J0 billion, up 94 percent year-over-year. 

°RIG I NATIONS S 	Dk.:1.1V. ER S 

RECORD Rf.::=1.A..TS 

Nation:tars originations segment produced a record year 

with volum a of 1: 17.9 billion, up from $34 billion. in 2011. We 

capitalized on favorable market conditions by originat-

inc.) more than 34,000 loans. in March 2012, we entered 

into a prefer red lending relationship wd:11 KB Home, 

the fifth-largest horn ebuilder in the United States. Loan 

origination for this partnership began in May, and f und-

ings increased significantly as we progressed through 

the year 

'2013; VAST FM Mg.:. GROWTH OPPORTUNITU.::5, 

P R MA .4 ND PRO fi &f3LFTY 

Last year presented significant opportunities to expand 

our business, and we expect market dynamics to remain 

favorable, providing a long runway d growth. in J armor y 

7213, we a nnounc:ed the acquisition of a $213 bull mn UPB 

serocirid portfolio from Bank of America. This trans-

action builds upon a strong track re.:cord of portfolio 

acquisitions and will produce significant earnings growth 

for the company in 2013 and beyond. 

Vtia seek to drive future growth in three funda-

mental areas of our business: (1) growth in our residentiai 

mortgage servicing por tiolio with an increased focus 

on irn proving rJofit ability;  (2) expans;on of origina-

tion  channels to profitably create long-term sersdcing 

assets; and (3) build-out of Sclutionstar to deliver fee-

Pa sed mortgage services across the lifecycle of a mort-

gade loan. 
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RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE SERVICING —CRITICAL 	businesses are building out a mortgage factory that offe rs 

MASS, PATH TO IMPROVED PROFITABILITY 	 plug-in fimctionality to financial institutions that wish 

Over the last two years, financial institutions have 	to outsource all or part of the mortgage process to a 

completed a significant number of fv1SR sales and sub- 	proven credit and asset manager like Nationstar. 

servicing transfers. We expect this transformational shift 	 Our Solutionsw r business broadens our product 

to continuer over the next several years. Our successful 	offering by providing mortgage-related services that 

track record of improving the performance of acquired 	are complementary to our servicing and originations 

portfolios, supported by our proven infrastructure 	businesses. Solutionstar presents a significant oppor- 

designed to meet unique client requirements, has driven 	tunity to increase future earnings with minimal capital 

our success. In addition to bulk acquisitions, we also are 	investment as it grows into a premier provider of real 

focused on long-term flow servicing agreements with 	estate services. 

strategic partners in which we acquire newly originated 	 I am extremely proud of what we accomplished 

or,  delinquent loan servicing on a recurring basis. 	 in 2012, and there are significant opportunities ahead 

As We grow servicing assets under rrra nag em nt, 	of us. We took strategic steps to enable the company 

we are focused on improving servicing profitability. We 	to capitalize on market opportunities and perform in all 

implemented several strategic operational initiatives that 	environments. We remain steadfast in our objectives of 

will strengthen earnings over the course of 2013; we 	(1) increasing stockholder value, (2) providing exceptional 

expect the full benefit of these initiatives to materialize 	customer service and preserving homeownership, and 

in 2014 when our platform reaches its full earnings power. 	(3) improving port:161i° per fo r ma nce for credit investors. 

EXPAND ORIGINATIONS TO COMPLEMENT 

SERVICING THROUGH ORGANIC GROWTH 

Originations play an important role in driving the growth 

of our servicing business. In 2013, we are focused on ex-

panding our origination channels, capitalizing on strong 

margins, and forming strategic alliances to drive new 

business. 

Recapturing refinancings from our existing servic-

ing portfolio is the most efficient way to acquire servicing 

assets. As our servicing book grows via acquisition, 

originations volume should grow via recapture from a 

larger customer portfolio. Taking into account the Bank 

of America portfolio acquisition, Nationstar will have 

2.5 million customers in its servicing book, providing a 

large opportunity for our originations business. 

We will continue to develop relationships with 

homebuilders to provide us with greater access to high-

quality origination business, and we will selectively build 

out our wholesale and correspondent channels to enable 

the acquisition of servicing assets at attractive prices. 

Channel expansion provides improved access to the pur-

chase money origination market, increasingly important 

as the "green shoots" of the housing recovery become 

more sustainable. 

SOLUTIONSTAR MEETS THE EVOLVING NEEDS 

OF THE RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE INDUSTRY 

We plan to drive growth across all of our businesses by 

being an outsource solution-provider to financial institu-

tions as they look to partner with proven leaders in credit 

and asset management. Our servicing and origination 

While challenges are inevitable and the market 

is ever-changing, our strategically positioned business 

model, coupled with the dedication of our employees 

and performance-based culture, position Nationstar to 

deliver increased stockholder value. On behalf of every-

one at Nationstar, thank you for your continued support. 

Jay Bray 

Chief Executive Officer 
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Achieved Substantial Servicing 
Portfolio Growth 

Long Runway of Future Opportunities 

Focused on Growth and Profitability 

MORTGAGE SERVICING 
As of December 31, 2012, Nationstar was the largest non-bank servicer (based 

on total aggregate Unpaid Principal Balance) arid sixth-largest servicer in 

the United States with a ser4icing portfolio totaling $208 billion of 1.3PB and 

with 1.1 million customers. In 2012, we acquired over $100 billion of servicing 

assets, including the $63 billion Aurora portfolio. Our servicing segment 

generated pretax income of $35 million, an increase of 60 percent over 2011. 

We service mortgage loans in all 50 states, and our platform is 

equipped to service all product types. We utilize a flexible, customer-centric 

mortgage servicing model that focuses on asset performance through 

increased personal contact with borrowers and loss-mitigation tools 

designed to decrease borrower delinquencies and defaults. This strategy 

increases repayment performance, preserves homeownership, and improves 

credit performance. 

\Ale have a proven track record of reducing portfolio delinquency 

while expanding our servicing book, evidenced by the 28 percent reduction in 

60-plus-day delinquencies in our servicing portfolio since 2009. Since board-

ing the Aurora portfolio in July, we have reduced the 60-plus-day delinquency 

rate by 2.5 percent. Nationstar remains committed to helping customers 

preserve homeownership. We completed over 51,000 modifications and 

workouts in 2012, a 25 percent annual increase, 

In January 2013, Nationstar announced the acquisition of approximately 

$215 billion of servicing rights from Bank of America. Taking into account. 

this transaction, Nationstar's total servicing portfolio is $423 billion, consist-

ing of 2.5 million customers. This transaction further solidifies Nationstar as 

a leading mortgage servicer in the market. 

We expect the pipeline of servicing opportunities to rernain elevated 

as the secular shift in servicing assets continues. Our bulk acquisition pipe-- 

line at year-end was over $300 billion of UPB plus annual flow servicing from 

strategic partners targeted at $25--50 billion. 

We remain focused on improving the profitability of our servicing 

segment: through strategic initiatives that include lowering costs, reducing 

delinquencies, and decreasing the cost of servicing advances. We expect to 

start seeing the benefit or these initiatives through increased servicing prof-

itability in 2013, with the full impact by the second half of 20 -14. 

"I was impressed with the 
way Nationstar handled 
my claim and the diligent 
and persistent efforts 
Nations tar put forth to 
finalize my loan modifi-
cation. Nationstar took a 
hands-on approach to do 
whatever they could to 
get this accomplished in 
a timely manner." 
M. Brown, Pennsylvania 

After losing her job, Ms. Brown was 

struggling to :sifford her mortgage and 

to navigate a challenging divorce. As a 

single morn, the security of having a home 

vas very important to Ms. Brown and her 

off 	After contacting Nutionstar, 

Ms. SUOMI learned that she qualified for a 

Mri modification. With Nationstar's help, 

Ms. Brown was able to keep her horns and 

her mortgage payments are now lower. 
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Balanced Platform 
Strategically Positioned to Perform 
in All Environments 

Originations and Solutionstar 
Enhance Servicing 

Multiple Revenue Streams 
Throughout Mortgage Lifecycle 

ORIGINATIONS 

We had a strong year in 2012, with a favorable rate environment and con-

siderable demand for loan refinancing. Nationstar's ori g inations segment 

generated record pretax income of $262 million, an increase of more than 

1,000 percent from 2011, and loan origination volume of $7.9 billion, an 

increase of 130 percent over 2011. 

Our recapture strategy enables us to profitably create long-term 

servicing assets and replace portfolio run-off, We are also expanding into new 

origination channels to diversify our lead sources and strengthen our ability 

to produce attractive servicing assets. We expect to replicate our KB Home 

joint venture with other national homebuilders to provide improved access 

to the purchase mone y  market. 

Our application pipeline at year-end was $6.6 billion, providing a sig-

nificant runway of opportunities in 2013. As we seek to capitalize on and grow 

this pipeline, we are focused on originating more HARP loans, reducing our 

processing times, and increasing our productivity across all channels. 

SOLUTIONSTAR 

Solutionstar is designed to meet the changing needs of the mortgage indus-

try. Solutionstar broadens our product offerings by providing front-end and 

back-end mortgage-related services that complement our servicing and 

originations businesses and span the entire lifecycle of a mortgage loan. 

We offe r these services for loans in our current portfolio, as well as to 

third-party financial institutions. These adjacent services present an oppor-

tunity to increase future earnings with minimal capital investment. 

Through people, processes and technology, Solutionstar focuses on 

delivering quaky mortgage and default solutions to clients. Sol utionstar has 

three primary business lines: (1) real estate services, including asset manage-

ment and property preservation services, (2) default services, including REO 

disposition, and (3) title, settlement and valuation services. 

We intend to grow Solutionstar into the premier provider of vendor 

management solutions by delivering superior c.ustorner results through utili-

zation of world-class operational practices and technolog y . 

FRFJN_EX 29_ 000008 
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"I was really under pressure 

with my bills and had to 

take action. I didn't think 
I'd qualify, but I finally 
called, and I'm so glad 
I did. With Nationstar's 
help on my refinance, my 
mortgage is now more 
affordable and my bills 
are more manageable." 
C. Dillon, California 

Mn. Dillon vias forced to take unpaid 

leave when the economy stalled, and was 

nervous about responding to a timely letter 

from Notionstar about the government's 

Home Affordable Refinance. Program 

(HARP). In her first cal!, klationstar was 

able to confirm her HARP refinance 

qualification and provided a lower monthly 

payment estimate. Ms. Dillon's loan 

Modification has allowed her to live more 

:'omilortably on is smaller budget. 
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM 

El ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 
or 

0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

Commission file number: 001-35449 

Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

Delaware 

(State or other jurisdiction of 
incorporation or organization) 

350 Highland Drive 
Lewisville, TX 

(Address of principal executive offices) 

45-2156869 

(J.R.S. Employer Identification No.) 

75067 
(Zip Code) 

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: 
(469) 549-2000 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: 

Title of Each Class 
	 Name of each exchange on which registered 

Common Stock, $.01 par value per share 
	 New York Stock Exchange 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welt-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes 0 No 0. 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes 0 No 0 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), 

and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. 	 Yes 0 No 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive 

Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 

months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes .0] No 0 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (p229.405 of this chapter) is not 

contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements 

incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. 	0 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer or a non-accelerated filer. Sec definition of 

"accelerated filer" and "large accelerated filer" in Rule 12(b)-2 of the Exchange Act (check one) 

Large Accelerated Filer 0 Accelerated Filer 0 Non-Accelerated Filer 0 (Do not check if a Smaller reporting company 0 
smaller reporting company.) 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).Yes 0 No 0 

Number of shares of common stock, $0.01 par value, outstanding as of March 4, 2013: 90,449,140 
As of June 30, 2012, the aggregate market value of the registrant's common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant was 

approximately $441,408,900 based on the closing sale price of $21.52 as reported on the New York Stock Exchange. 

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

Portions of our definitive Proxy Statement, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 

120 days of the Company's fiscal year-end, are incorporated by reference into Part III, Items 10-14 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 
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CAUTIONS REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the U.S. federal securities laws. Forward-looking 
statements include, without limitation, statements concerning plans, objectives, goals, projections, strategies, future events or 
performance, and underlying assumptions and other statements, which are not statements of historical facts. When used in this 
discussion, the words "anticipate," "appears," "believe," "foresee," "intend," "should," "expect," "estimate," "project," "plan," 
"may," "could," "will," "are likely" and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These 
statements involve predictions of our future financial condition, performance, plans and strategies, and are thus dependent on a 
number of factors including, without limitation, assumptions and data that may be imprecise or incorrect. Specific factors that 
may impact performance or other predictions of future actions have, in many but not all cases, been identified in connection 
with specific forward-looking statements. 

There are a number of important factors that could cause future results to differ materially from historical performance and 
these forward-looking statements, Factors that might cause such a difference include, but are not limited to: 

the delay in our foreclosure proceedings due to inquiries by certain state Attorneys General, court 
administrators, and state and federal government agencies; 

the impact of the ongoing implementation of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection 
Act of 2010 (Dodd-Frank Act), including rules issued by the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (CFPB) 
relating to mortgage servicing and originations and the continuing examination of our business begun by the 
CFPB, on our business activities and practices, costs of operations and overall results of operations; 

the impact on our servicing practices of enforcement consent orders against, and agreements entered into by 
certain federal and state agencies with, the largest mortgage servicers and ongoing inquiries regarding other 
non-bank mortgage servicers; 

increased legal proceedings and related costs; 

the continued uncertainty of the residential mortgage market, increase in monthly payments on adjustable rate 
mortgage loans, adverse economic conditions, decrease in property values and increase in delinquencies and 
defaults; 

the deterioration of the market for reverse mortgages and increase in foreclosure rates for reverse mortgages; 

our ability to efficiently service higher risk loans; 

our ability to mitigate the increased risks related to servicing reverse mortgages; 

our ability to compete successfully in the mortgage loan servicing and mortgage loan originations industries; 

our ability to maintain or grow the size of our servicing portfolio and realize our significant investments in 
personnel and our technology platform by successfully identifying attractive acquisition opportunities, 
including mortgage servicing rights (MSRs), subservicing contracts, servicing platforms and originations 
platforms; 

our ability to scale-up appropriately and integrate our acquisitions to realize the anticipated benefits of any 
such potential future acquisitions, including potentially significant acquisitions; 

our substantial indebtedness may limit our financial and operating activities and our ability to incur additional 
debt to fund future needs; 

our ability to obtain sufficient capital to meet our financing requirements; 

our ability to grow our loan originations volume; 

the termination of our servicing rights and subservicing contracts; 
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changes to federal, state and local laws and regulations concerning loan servicing, loan origination, loan 
modification or the licensing of entities that engage in these activities; 

changes in state and federal laws that are adverse to mortgage servicers which increase costs and operational 
complexity and impose significant penalties for violation; 

loss of our licenses; 

our ability to meet certain criteria or characteristics under the indentures governing our securitized pools of 
loans; 

our ability to follow the specific guidelines of government-sponsored enterprises (GSEs) or a significant 
change in such guidelines; 

delays in our ability to collect or be reimbursed for servicing advances; 

changes to Home Affordable Modification Program (HAMP), Home Affordable Refinance Program, Making 
Home Affordable Plan or other similar government programs; 

changes in our business relationships with the Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae), the 
Federal I-Tome Loan Mortgage Corporation ("Freddie Mac"), the Government National Mortgage Association 
("Ginnie Mae") and others that facilitate the issuance of mortgage-backed securities (NIBS); 

changes to the nature of the guarantees of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and the market implications of such 
changes; 

errors in our financial models or changes in assumptions; 

requirements to write down the value of certain assets; 

changes in prevailing interest rates; 

our ability to successfully mitigate our risks through hedging strategies; 

changes to our servicer ratings; 

the accuracy and completeness of information about borrowers and counterparties; 

our ability to maintain our technology systems and our ability to adapt such systems for future operating 
environments; 

failure of our internal security in easures or breach of our privacy protections; 

failure of our vendors to comply with servicing criteria; 

the loss of the services of our senior managers; 

failure to attract and retain a highly skilled work force; 

changes in public opinion concerning mortgage originators or debt collectors; 

changes in accounting standards; and 

conflicts of interest with our principal stockholder, 
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All of the factors are difficult to predict, contain uncertainties that may materially affect actual results, and may be beyond our 
control. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for our management to predict all such factors or to assess 
the effect of each such new factor on our business. Although we believe that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking 
statements contained herein are reasonable, any of the assumptions could be inaccurate, and therefore any of these statements 
included herein may prove to be inaccurate. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements 
included herein, the inclusion of such information should not be regarded as a representation by us or any other person that the 
results or conditions described in such statements or our objectives and plans will be achieved. Please refer to Item IA. Risk 
Factors to Part I of this report for further information on these and other factors affecting us. 
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PART I. 
Item 1. Business 

General 
Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. (Nationstar Inc.) is a Delaware corporation formed in 2011. When we use the terms the 

"Company," "we," "us," and "our" we are referring to Nationstar Inc. and our consolidated subsidiaries, including Nationstar 

Mortgage LLC (blationstar). Through our subsidiaries, we are a real estate services company engaged primarily in the servicing 

of residential mortgage loans for others and the origination and selling or securitization of single-family conforming mortgage 

loans to government-sponsored entities (GSE) or other third-party investors in the secondary market. Nationstar, Nationstar 

Inc.'s principal operating subsidiary, is one of the largest high touch non-bank servicers in the United States. 

Nationstar's history began in 1994 in Denver, Colorado as Nova Credit Corporation, a Nevada corporation. In 1997, the 

executive offices and primary operations were moved to Dallas, Texas and the name was changed to Centex Credit 

Corporation. In 2001, Centex Credit Corporation was merged into Centex Home Equity Company, LLC (CHEC), a Delaware 

limited liability company. In 2006, FIF HE Holdings LLC (PIP), acquired all of the outstanding membership interests in 

CHEC, and changed the name to Nationstar Mortgage LLC. HP is a subsidiary of Fortress Private Equity Funds HI and IV 

(Fortress). 

On February 24, 2012, Nationstar Inc. filed a registration statement on Form S-1 for the offering of 19,166,667 shares of our 

common stock. The registration statement became effective on March 7, 2012. Under the terms of the offering, all of the 

equity interests in Nationstar transferred from PIP HE Holdings LLC to two direct, wholly-owned subsidiaries and Nationstar 

Inc. issued 19,166,667 shares of $0.01 par value common stock at an initial offering price of $14.00 per share. FIF contributed 

certain assets to Nationstar and also exchanged its equity in Nationstar for 70,000,000 shares of common stock in Nationstar 

Inc. The offering transformed Nationstar Inc. into a publicly-traded company. 

In conjunction with the initial public offering of Nationstar Inc., in March 2012 Nationstar became a wholly-owned indirect 

subsidiary of Nationstar Inc., which was formed solely for the purpose of reorganizing the structure of FIF and Nationstar so 

that the common stock issuer was a corporation rather than a limited liability company. As such, investors own common stock 

rather than equity interests in a limited liability company. 

As a result of our reorganization from the initial public offering, we continue to report the results of Nationstar prior to the 

initial public offering on a combined basis as a combination between entities under common control. Our financial results for 

2012 have been reported as though the transfer of net assets had occurred at the beginning of the period and include the results 

of operations of both Nationstar Inc. and Nationstar as if the combination had occurred as of January 1, 2012. Additionally, we 

have presented our operating results for periods prior to January 1, 2012 combining both Nationstar Inc. and Nationstar. 

Material 2012 Transaction 
On March 6, 2012, Nationstar entered into an asset purchase agreement with Aurora Bank FSB and Aurora Loan Services LLC 

(collectively, Aurora). Nationstar and Aurora closed the asset purchase in June 2012 (the Aurora Purchase). In connection with 

the transaction, Nationstar paid Aurora approximately $2.0 billion including approximately $271.5 million for mortgage 

servicing rights and approximately $1.7 billion for servicing advance receivables. As a part of the Aurora Purchase, certain 

other assets and liabilities were also acquired. The mortgage servicing rights related to approximately 300,000 residential 

mortgage loans with an unpaid principal balance of over $63 billion as of March 6, 2012. As of the closing date, Nationstar 

entered into certain financing arrangements amounting to approximately $1.3 billion for the servicing advance receivables. 

Nationstar also received co-investment proceeds of $176.5 million from Newcastle Investment Corp. (Newcastle) and certain 

funds managed by Fortress, The reminder of the purchase price was funded with Nationstar cash. 

Recent Developments 
On January 6, 2013, we entered into a mortgage servicing rights purchase and sale agreement (the Purchase Agreement) with 

Bank of America, National Association. Under the Purchase Agreement, we agreed to purchase the rights to service 

approximately 1.3 million residential mortgage loans with a total UPB of approximately $215 billion, and approximately $5.8 

billion of related servicing advance receivables. Approximately 47% of these loans (by UPB) are owned, insured or guaranteed 

by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae, and the remaining 53% of these loans are non-conforming loans in private label 

securitizations. 

The aggregate purchase price is approximately $7.1 billion, which we expect to fund. through a combination of investable cash, 

the proceeds of a co-investment by Newcastle Investment Corp., and certain funds managed by Fortress, the proceeds of 

advance financing facilities, and/or other issuances of debt. On January 31, 2013, we closed on the MSRs with respect to those 

loans owned, insured or guaranteed by Fannie Mae (Fannie MSRs) and Freddie Mac (Freddie MSRs). On February 1, 2013, we 

closed on the MSRs with respect to those loans owned, insured or guaranteed by Ginnie Mae (Ginnie IvISRs). Subject to 

customary closing conditions, we expect to close on the majority of the remaining MSRs in stages during the second quarter of 
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2013. On February 18, 2013, we boarded a portion of the Freddie IvISR,s. We expect to board the remaining Freddie MSRs, 

Fannie MSRs and Ginnie MSRs pursuant to an agreed upon schedule that begins in March and is to be completed in early June 

with the remaining private label securitization portfolios scheduled to board onto our servicing system through September 

2013. We will pay for the servicing advance receivables included with this transaction in accordance with an agreed upon 

schedule that follows the boarding of the associated MSRs. 

On January 28, 2013, the Company announced the pricing of $300 million in asset-backed term notes (Asset-Backed Notes) to 

be issued by Nationstar Agency Advance Funding Trust, one of our securitization subsidiaries. The issuance and sale of the 

Asset-Backed Notes closed on January 31, 2013. 

On February 7, 2013, Nationstar and Nationstar Capital Corporation, as co-issuers, completed the offering of $400 million 

aggregate principal amount of 6.5% senior notes due 2021 (2021 Notes) in a private placement transaction. The 2021 Notes 

were issued at par and pay interest semi-annually. The 2021 Notes are guaranteed on an unsecured senior basis by Nationstar's 

current and future domestic subsidiaries other than its securitization and certain finance subsidiaries, certain other restricted 

subsidiaries and subsidiaries that in the future Nationstar designates as excluded, restricted and unrestricted subsidiaries, and 

Nationstar Inc., Nationstar Sub 1 LLC and Nationstar Sub 2 LLC. 

We believe there are opportunities to grow our business through acquisitions, and we actively explore potential acquisition 

opportunities in the ordinary course of our business. Potential acquisitions may include MSRs relating to residential mortgage 

loans, subservicing contracts, servicing platforms and originations platforms, as well as other assets and liabilities or businesses 

in related lines of business. We may fund these potential acquisitions through a combination of cash on hand, the proceeds of a 

co-investment by Newcastle Investment Corp., and certain funds managed by Fortress, the proceeds of advance financing 

facilities, and/or other issuances of debt. 

Overview 
We are a leading residential mortgage loan servicer and one of the largest non-bank servicers in the United States as measured 

by aggregate unpaid principal balance of loans serviced. Our servicing portfolio consists of over 1.1 million loans with an 

aggregate unpaid principal balance of $207.8 billion as of December 31, 2012. We service mortgage loans in all 50 states, and 

we are licensed as a residential mortgage loan savicer/originator and debt collector in all states that require such licensing. In 

addition to our core servicing business, we currently originate primarily conventional agency (Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, 

collectively the government-sponsored enterprises or GSEs) and government (Federal Housing Administration and Department 

of Veterans Affairs) residential mortgage loans, and we are licensed to originate residential mortgage loans in 49 states and the 

District of Columbia. 

We offer a broad array of servicing capabilities across the residential mortgage spectrum including servicing, origination, and 

real estate services provided to financial institutions and consumers. Our integrated loan origination business mitigates 

servicing portfolio runoff and improves credit performance for investors. Additionally, our suite of ancillary businesses, which 

we call Solutionstar offers asset management, settlement, and processing services. 

Our headquarters and operations are based in Lewisville, Texas. As of December 31, 2012, we had a total of 4,672 employees. 

Our business primarily consists of our Servicing platform and adjacent businesses, and is complemented by our Originations 

segment. 

For financial information concerning our reportable segments see Note 24 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Loan Servicing 
We are one of the largest non-bank servicers in the United States (based on total aggregate unpaid principal balance), and we 

have established significant relationships with leading mortgage investors. These investors include the GSEs, regulatory 

agencies, major banks, private investment funds and other financial institutions and investors that expect to benefit from lower 

delinquencies and losses on portfolios that we service on their behalf. We believe that our demonstrated performance in 

servicing loans facilitated our acquisitions and transfers of mortgage servicing rights. These portfolios were previously serviced 

by other servicers. These acquisitions helped us grow our servicing portfolio from $12.7 billion as of December 31, 2007, to 

$207.8 billion as of December 31, 2012, representing a compound annual growth rate of 74.9%. We have diversified our 

portfolio as a result of these acquisitions and transfers. Additionally, our growth is the result of multiple transfers from our 

client base, which evidences our ability to exceed client performance expectations, We expect to continue to grow our 

Servicing portfolio and are currently pursuing opportunities to acquire mortgage servicing rights or enter into subservicing 

agreements. 

Loan servicing primarily involves the calculation, collection and remittance of principal and interest payments, the 

administration of mortgage escrow accounts, the collection of insurance claims, the administration of foreclosure procedures, 

the management of real estate owned (REO), and the disbursement of required protective advances. Loan servicers service on 
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behalf of the owners of the loans and are therefore exposed to minimal credit risk. We utilize a flexible, customer-centric 
mortgage servicing model that focuses on asset performance through increased personal contact with borrowers and loss 
mitigation tools designed to decrease borrower delinquencies and defaults and to increase borrower repayment performance 
with a goal of home ownership preservation. Our operating culture emphasizes individual default specialist accountability 
(what we refer to as credit loss ownership) for improved asset performance and cash flow and reduced credit losses. Our 
servicing model and operating culture have proven even more valuable in the current challenging residential mortgage market, 
and we have established an excellent track record servicing credit-sensitive loans. 

Our Servicing segm ant produces recurring, fee-based revenues based upon contractually established servicing fees. Servicing 
fees consist of an amount based on either the unpaid principal balance of the loans serviced or a per-loan fee amount and also 
include ancillary fees such as late fees. In addition, we earn interest income on amounts deposited in collection accounts and 
amounts held in escrow to pay property taxes and insurance, which we refer to as float income. We also generate incentive fees 
from owners of the loans that we service for meeting certain delinquency and loss goals and for arranging successful loss 
mitigation programs. Moreover, we earn incentive fees from the U.S. Treasury for loans that we successfully modify within the 
parameters of the HAMP and other assistance programs it sponsors. 

We service loans as the owner of mortgage servicing rights (MSRs), which we refer to as "primary servicing," and we also 
service loans on behalf of other MSR or mortgage owners, which we refer to as "subservicing." We also service reverse 
mortgages. As of December 31, 2012, our primary servicing and subservicing portfolios represented 64.7% and 21.6%, 
respectively, of our total servicing portfolio with 13.7% of our outstanding servicing portfolio consisting of reverse mortgages. 

Primary servicers act as senr icers on behalf of m ortgage owners and directly own the MSRs, which represent the contractual 
right to a stream of cash flows (expressed as a percentage of UPB) in exchange for performing specified mortgage servicing 
functions and temporarily advancing funds to cover payments on delinquent and defaulted mortgages. 

We have grown our primary servicing portfolio to $134.5 billion in UPB as of December 31, 2012 from $12.7 billion in UPB as 
of December 31, 2007, representing a compound annual growth rate of 60.3%. We plan to continue growing our primary 
senficing portfolio principally by acquiring MSRs from banks and other financial institutions under pressure to exit or reduce 
their exposure to the mortgage servicing business. As the servicing industry paradigm continues to shift from bank to non-bank 
senricers, we have capitalized on this significant opportunity and increased our market share of the servicing business. 

We acquire MSRs on a standalone basis and have also developed an innovative model for investing on a capital light basis by 
co-investing with financial partners in "excess MSRs." Excess MSRs are the servicing fee cash flows (excess fees) on a 
portfolio of mortgage loans after payment of a basic servicing fee. In these transactions, we provide all servicing functions in 
exchange for the basic servicing fee, then share the excess fee with our co-investment partner on a pro rata basis. Through 
December 31, 2012, we had $88.7 billion of loan servicing UPB through excess MSRs and expect to continue to deploy this 
co-investment strategy in the future. 

Subservicers act on behalf of MSR or mortgage owners that choose to outsource the loan servicing function. In our 
subservicing portfolio, we earn a contractual fee per loan we service. The loans we subservice often include pools of 
underperforming mortgage loans requiring high touch servicing capabilities. Many of our recent subservicing transfers have 
been facilitated by GSEs and other large mortgage owners that are seeking to improve loan perform mice through servicer 
upgrades. Subservicing represents another capital light means of growing our servicing business, as subservicing contracts are 
typically awarded on a no-cost basis and do not require substantial capital. 

Our subserv icing portfolio stands at $44.9 billion in UPB as of December 31, 2012. We expect to enter into additional 
subservicing arrangements as mortgage owners seek to transfer credit-stressed loans to high-touch subservicers with proven 
track records and the infrastructure and expertise to improve loan performance 

In 2012 we acquired the mortgage servicing rights related to several portfolios of reverse residential mortgage loans. At 
December 31, 2012, our reverse mortgage servicing portfolio amounted to $28.4 billion in unpaid principal balance. Reverse 
mortgages provide seniors (62 years and older) with a loan secured by their home. The majority of reverse mortgages are 
secured by the Federal Housing Administration (FHA) and are referred to as "HECIVIs" or Home Equity Conversion Mortgages. 
Like a typical home equity loan, reverse mortgages are designed to enable seniors to borrow against the value of their home. 
Unlike a typical home equity loan, no payment of principal or interest is required until the death of the borrower or sale of the 
home and the amount of the loan is dependent on the appraised value of the home at the time of origination, the interest rate on 
the loan, and the borrower's age. Reverse mortgages may be either fully funded (fixed rate loan) or can provide for a line of 
credit, that can be drawn periodically (adjustable rate "ARM" loan). 
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In addition to our core servicing business, we also operate a fully integrated suite of adjacent businesses, which we call 

Solutionstar, designed to meet the changing needs of the mortgage industry. These businesses offer an array of ancillary 

services, including providing services for delinquent loans, managing loans in the foreclosure/real estate owned (REO) process 

and providing title insurance agency, loan settlement and valuation services on newly originated and re-originated loans. We 

offer these adjacent services in connection with loans we currently service, as well as on a third-party basis in exchange for 

base and/or incentive fees. In February 2013 we announced the acquisition of Equifax Settlement Services, a provider of 

appraisal, title insurance and settlement services that serves a broad array of blue chip clients, including the largest financial 

institutions in the United States. Nationstar is rebranding the acquired entity as Solutionstar Settlement Services. Solutionstar 

broadens our product offerings by providing mortgage-related services spanning the life cycle of a mortgage loan. We believe 

our integrated approach, together with the strength and diversity of our servicing operations and our strategies for growing 

substantial portions of our business with minimal capital outlays (which we refer to as our "capital light" approach), position us 

to take advantage of the major structural changes currently occurring across the mortgage industry. 

Loan Originations 
In addition to our servicing and ancillary businesses, we operate a fully integrated loan originations platform which 

complements and enhances our servicing business by allowing us to replenish our servicing portfolio as loans pay off over 

time. We believe our integrated approach, together with the strength and diversity of our servicing operations and our strategies 

for growing substantial portions of our business with minimal capital outlays, position us to take advantage of the major 

structural changes currently occurring across the mortgage industry. Our originations business provides (i) a servicing portfolio 

retention source by providing refinancing services to our existing servicing customers; (ii) an organic source of servicing assets 

at attractive pricing; and (iii) a loss mitigation solution for our servicing clients and customers by offering refinancing options 

to borrowers allowing them to lower their monthly payments which may lower their risk of defaulting. 

We primarily originate conventional agency and government mortgage loans, and we are licensed to originate residential 

mortgage loans in 49 states and the District of Columbia. In the years ending December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we 

originated conventional loans in aggregate principal balance of $7.9 billion, $3.4 billion and $2.8 billion; respectively. 

As an additional component of our integrated approach, we have recently expanded our originations business by developing 

third-party correspondent relationships. These relationships will provide us with an additional source of organic servicing 

growth and originations revenue. In correspondent lending, there are two types of pricing. In what is known as "mandatory" 

correspondent pricing, we partner with another originator in an agreement to purchase a set portion of their monthly production 

at a predetermined price. In the other type of pricing, known as "best efforts", we can purchase loans at time of sale negotiated 

volumes and pricing. In both types of pricing, the purchased loans are closed by the originator prior to our purchase and follow 

an internal review process. The purchased loans are then sold or securitized by us in the same manner as production from our 

direct to consumer or wholesale business lines. 

Our originations strategy is predicated on creating loans that are readily sold into a liquid market either through securitizations 

backed by the GSEs on a servicing retained basis, or through servicing released whole loans sales to major conduit investors. 

Loans are typically securitized or sold within 30 days of origination and not intended to be held on our balance sheet on a long-

term basis. The interest rate risk inherent in the originations process is mitigated through a hedging program intended to 

minimize exposure to changes in underlying interest rates. 

Legacy Assets and Other 
We also have a legacy asset portfolio, which consists primarily of non-prime and nonconforming residential mortgage loans, 

most of which we originated from April to July 2007. In November 2009, we term-financed our legacy assets with nonrecourse 

debt that requires no additional capital or equity contributions. In conjunction with the transaction, we reclassified our legacy 

assets to "held for investment" on our consolidated balance sheet, which allowed us to eliminate further mark-to-market 

accounting exposure on these assets. We continue to service these loans using our high-touch servicing model. Additionally, we 

have in the past consolidated certain securitization trusts where it was determined that we had both the power to direct the 

activities that most significantly impact the Variable Interest Entity's (VIE's) economic performance and the obligation to 

absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be significant to the VIE pursuant to consolidation 

accounting guidance. 

In December 2011, Nationstar sold its remaining variable interest in a securitization trust that had been a consolidated VIE 

since January 1, 2010 and deconsolidated the variable interest. Upon deconsolidation of this VIE, we derecognized the 

securitized mortgage loans held for investment, subject to ABS nonrecourse debt, the related ABS nonrecourse debt, as well as 

certain other assets and liabilities of the securitization trust, and recognized any mortgage servicing rights on the consolidated 

balance sheet. 
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The analysis of our financial condition and results of operations as discussed herein is primarily focused on the combined 

results of our two Operating Segments: the Servicing Segment and the Originations Segment. 

Competition 
In our Servicing Segment, we compete with large financial institutions and with other non-bank senricers. Our ability to 

differentiate ourselves from other loan servicers through our high touch servicing model and culture of credit loss ownership 

largely detemiines our competitive position within the mortgage loan servicing industry. 

In our Originations Segment, we compete with large financial institutions and local and regional mortgage bankers and lenders. 

Our ability to differentiate the value of our financial products primarily through our customer service, mortgage loan offerings, 

rates, and fees determines our competitive position within the mortgage loan originations industry. 

Additional Information 
Our executive offices are located at 350 Highland Drive, Lewisville, Texas 75067, and our telephone number is 

(469) 549-2000. 

Our corporate website is located at www,nationstarholdings.com .  We make our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly 

Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 

13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act") available free of charge through our website as soon as 

reasonably practicable after we electronically file the reports with, or furnish them to, the Securities and Exchange Commission 

("SEC"). Our website also provides access to reports filed by our directors, executive officers and certain significant 

stockholders pursuant to Section 16 of the Exchange Act. In addition, our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Amended and 

Restated Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers, 

and charters for the standing committees of our Board of Directors are available on our website. The information on our 

website is not incorporated by reference into this report and is provided as an inactive textual reference only. In addition, the 

SEC maintains a website, www sec ,ov that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information that we 

file electronically with the SEC. 

Executive Officers of the Registrant 
The following is a list, as of March 7, 2013, of the names and ages of the executive officers of Nati onstar Inc. and of the offices 

held by each of these persons with Nationstar 

Name 

jay Bray 
David C. Hisey 
Harold Lewis 
Robert L. Appel 
Douglas Krueger 
Ramesh. Lak,shin inaray man 
Am ar R. Patel 
Lisa A. Rogers 
Anthony W 

J ay Bray 

Positions with the Company 

Chief Executive Officer 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
President and Chief Operating Officer 
Executive Vice President of Servicing 
Executive Vice President of Capital Markets 
Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Officer 
Executive Vice President of Portfolio Management 
Executive Vice President of Retail Production 
Executive Vice President and General Counsel 

46 
52 
52 
51 
44 
50 
41 
49 
56 

Mr. Bray has served as Nationstar Inc.'s Chief Executive Officer since 2012. He also served as Nationstar Inc.'s Executive Vice 

President and Chief Financial Officer from 1\day 2011 to February 2012. In addition he has served as the President of 
Nationstar Inc.'s wholly-owned subsidiary, Natioristar, since filly 2011, as the Chief Executive Officer of Nationstar since 

October 2011, as the. Chief Financial Officer of Nationstar from the time he joined Nationstar in May 2000 until September 

2012, as a Manager of Nationstar since October 2011, and as a Director of another subsidiary, Nationstar Capita] Corporation, 

since March 2010, Mr. Bray has over 22 years of experience in the mortgage servicing and originations industry. From 1988 to 

1994, Mr. Bray worked with Arthur Andersen, where he served as an. audit manager from 1992 to 1994. From 1994 to 2000, 

Mr. Bray held a variety of leadership roles at Bank ofAmeriea and predecessor entities, where he managed the Asset Backed 

Securitization process for mortgage related products, developed and implemented a secondary execution strategy and 

profitability plan and managed investment banking relationships, secondary marketing operations and investor relations. 

Additionally, Mr, Bray led the portfolio acquisition, pricing and modeling group. 
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David C. Hisey 

Hisey joined Nationstar Inc. in February 2012 as its Executive Vice President. and Chief Financial Officer. He also has held 

the same position at Nationstar since September 2012. Mr. Hisey was previously the Executive Vice President. and Deputy 

Chief Financial Officer for Fannie Mae, a role he held from 2008 to 2012. From 2005 to 2008 he served as Senior Vice 

President and Controller for Fannie Mae. Prior to his most recent. assignment at Fannie Mae, he also briefly served as Executive 

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Prior to joining Fannie Mae, Mr. Hisey was Corporate Vice President of Financial 

Services Consulting, Managing Director and practice leader of the Lending and Leasing Group of BearingPoint, Inc., a 

management consulting and systems integration company. Prior to joining BearinsPoint in 2001, Mr. Ilisey was an audit 

partner with KPMG, :LIP; his tenure at KPMG spanned 19 years from 1982 to 2001. 

Harold Lewis 

Lewis joined Nationstar inc. in February 2012 as its President and Chief Operating Officer. He also has held the same 

position at Nationstar since September 2012. Mr. Lewis was previously the Chief Operating Officer at CitiMortgage. Mr. 

Lewis joined CitiMortgage in April 2009 as head of the Citi Homeowner Assistance Program. Prior to CitiMortgage, Mr. Lewis 

held executive positions at Fannie Mac for seven years, in ost recently as Senior Vice President of National Servicing. Mr. 

Lewis has also held senior management roles with Resource Ban.cshares Mortgage Group, Nations Credit, Bank. of Am eriea/ 

Barnett Bank, Cardinal Bank Shares and Union Planter National Bank. 

Robert L. ,4ppel 

Mr. Appel has served as Nationstar Inc.'s Executive Vice President of Servicing since 2011. He holds the same position at 

Nationstar and has served in this capacity since joining Nationstar in February 2008, Mr. Appel has over 21 years of 

experience in the mortgage industry and five years of public accounting experience. From 1985 to 1989, he served as an audit 

manager with Ernst and Young LLP. From 1990 to 1992, he held a position as Vice President of Control for Tyler Cabot 

Mortgage Securities Fund, a NYSE listed bond fund. From 1992 to 1999, Mr. Appel held a position at Capstead Mortgage 

where he started a master servicing organization and later became Senior Vice President of Default Management for Capstead's 

primary servicer. From 1999 to 2003, he was Managing Director for GMAC's Master Servicing operation. From 2003 to 2005, 

Mr. Appel was Chief Executive Officer of GMACs United Kingdom mortgage lending business. From 2005 to 2008, he 

served as Servicing Manager of GMAC's $100 billion non-prime residential servicing platform. 

Douglas Krueger 

Mr. Krueger has served as Nationstar Inc.'s Executive Vice President of Capital Markets since 2011. He holds the same position 

at Nationstar and has served in this capacity since joining Nationstar in February 2009. Mr. Krueger has over 20 years of 

experience in. the mortgage industry. For five years, Mr. Krueger held various senior leadership roles with CitiMortgage 

managing the secondary marketing and master servicing areas. Mr. Krueger also sewed as Senior Vice President with Principal 

Residential Mortgage for 13 years. 

.Rantesh Lakshrninarayanurt 

Mr. Lakshminarayanan joined Nationstar Inc. in 2012 as its Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Officer. He also holds the 

same position at Nationstar. He has over 20 years of experience managing credit risk, with over 10 years of experience in risk 

management specific to the mortgage industry. Prior to joining Nationstar, Mr. Lakshminarayanan worked for JPMorgan Chase 

from 2006 to December 2011, where he served as Chief Risk Officer Retail/Chief Risk Officer of Chase Home Lending and 

from January 2012 to June 2012 as Head of Capital Market Operations for Mortgage Banking. From 2001 to 2004, Mr. 

Lakshminarayanan worked for CitiFinancial as Chief Risk Officer of CitiFinancial Mortgages and from 2004 to 2006 as Group 

Chief Risk Officer of Consumer Finance North Am erica. 

.4nrar R. Patel 

Mr. Patel has served as Nationstar Inc.'s Executive Vice President of Portfolio investments since 2011. Pc holds the same 

position at Nationstar and has served in this capacity since joining Nationstar in June 2006. Mit Patel has over 20 years of 

experience in the mortgage industry. From 1993 to 2106, Mr. Patel held various management roles at Capstead Mortgage 

Corporation, last serving as Senior Vice President of .Asset and Liability Management. 
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Lisa 4, Rogers 

Ms. Rogers has served as Nationstar Inc.'s Executive Vice President of Retail Production since 2012. She holds the same 

position at Nationstar. Ms. Rogers has over 20 years of leadership experience in the mortgage industry. Nor to joining 

INationstar in September 2011, Ms. Rogers was Senior Vice President, National Wholesale Operations and Support Manager for 

Wells Fargo Home Mortgage. Ms. Rogers had been with Wells Fargo since 1993 in a variety of roles including production risk 

management and strategic development. 

Anthony 11>: 

Mr. Villani has served as Nationstar Inc.'s Executive Vice President and General Counsel since 2012. He also holds the same 

position at -Nationstar, which he joined in October 20 .11 as an Executive Vice President. Mr. Villani also served as the 

Company's Secretary from February to August of 2012. Prior to joining Nationstar, Mr. Villani was Vice President and 

Associate General Counsel of Goldin an, Sachs & Co. where he served as the managing attorney for Litton Loan Servicing LP, a 

Goldman Sachs company, from Tune 2008 until September 2011. He has also served as Executive Vice President and General 

Counsel of HMG 'Mortgage Corponnion, a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Bear Steams Companies Inc. 

Item 1A. Risk Factors 

The following discussion sets forth some of the most important risk factors that could in aterially affect our financial condition 

and operations. However, factors besides those discussed below, in MD&A or elsewhere in this or other reports that we filed or 

furnished with the SEC, also could adversely affect us. Readers should not consider any descriptions of such factors to be a 

complete set of all potential risks that could affect us. Each of these factors could by itself, or together with one or more other 

factors, adversely affect our business, results of operations and /or financial condition. We are subject to other general risks 

that are not specifically enumerated which may have a material effect on our financial condition and operations. The following 

risk factors are not necessarily listed in order of importance. 

Our foreclosure proceedings in certain states have been delayed due to inquiries by certain state Attorneys General, court 

administrators mid state and federal government agencies, the outcome of which could have a negative effect on our 
operations, earnings or liquidity. 

Allegations of irregularities in foreclosure processes, including so-called "robo-signing" by mortgage loan servicers, have 

gained the attention of the Department of Justice, regulatory agencies, state Attorneys General and the media, among other 

parties. On December 1, 2011, the Massachusetts Attorney General filed a lawsuit against five large mortgage providers 
alleging unfair and deceptive business practices, including the use of so-called "robe-signers." In response, one of the mortgage 

providers temporarily halted most of its lending in Massachusetts. A$25 billion settlement among banks, federal agencies and 

the state attorneys general from 49 states and the District of Columbia settled the claims made as a part of the Massachusetts 

Attorney General's case and claims from other states' Attorneys General. Certain state Attorneys General, court administrators 

and government agencies, as well as representatives of the federal government, have issued letters of inquiry to mortgage 

servicers, including us, requesting written responses to questions regarding policies and procedures, especially with respect to 

notarization and affidavit procedures. These requests or any subsequent administrative, judicial or legislative actions taken by 

these regulators, court administrators or other government entities may subject us to fines and other sanctions, including a 

foreclosure moratorium or suspension. Additionally, because we do business in all fifty states, our operations may be affected 

by regulatory actions or court decisions that are taken at the individual state level. 

In addition to these inquiries, several state Attorneys General have requested that certain mortgage servicers, including us, 

suspend foreclosure proceedings pending internal review to ensure compliance with applicable law, and we have received 

requests from four such state Attorneys General. Pursuant to these requests and in light of industry-wide press coverage 

regarding mortgage foreclosure documentation practices, we, as a precaution, had already delayed foreclosure proceedings in 

23 states, so that we may evaluate our foreclosure practices and underlying documentation. Upon completion of our internal 

review and after responding to such inquiries, we resumed these previously delayed proceedings. Such inquiries, however,,as 

well as continued court backlog and emerging court processes may cause an extended delay in the foreclosure process in 

certain states. 

Even in states where we have not suspended foreclosure proceedings or where we have lifted or will soon lift any such delayed 

foreclosures, we have faced, and may continue to face, increased delays and costs in the foreclosure process. For example, we 

have incurred, and may continue to incur, additional costs related to the re-execution and re-filing of certain documents. We 

may also be required to take other action in our capacity as a mortgage servicer in connection with pending foreclosures. In 

addition, the current legislative and regulatory climate could lead borrowers to contest foreclosures that they would not 

otherwise have contested under ordinary circumstances, and we may incur increased litigation costs if the validity of a 

10 	 RFJN_EX 29_ 0000022 

1850 



foreclosure action is challenged by a borrower. Delays in foreclosure proceedings could also require us to make additional 
servicing advances by drawing on OUT servicing advance facilities, or delay the recovery of advances, all or any of which could 
materially affect our earnings and liquidity and increase our need for capital. 

The ongoing implementation of the Dodd-Frank Act will increase our regulatory compliance burden and associated costs 
and place restrictions on certain originations and servicing operations, all of which could adversely affect our business, 
financial condition and results of operations. 

The Dodd-Frank Act represents a comprehensive overhaul of the financial services industry in the United States. The Dodd-
Frank Act includes, among other things: (i) the creation of a Financial Stability Oversight Council to identify emerging 
systemic risks posed by financial firms, activities and practices, and to improve cooperation am ong federal agencies; (ii) the 
creation of a Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection (CFPB) authorized to promulgate and enforce consumer protection 
regulations relating to financial products; (iii) the establishment of strengthened capital and prudential standards for banks and 
bank holding companies; (iv) enhanced regulation of financial markets, including the derivatives and securitization markets; 
and (v) amendments to the Truth in Lending Act aimed at improving consumer protections with respect to mortgage 
originations, including originator compensation, minimum repayment standards and prepayment considerations. 

On January 10, 2013, the CFPB announced a rule to implement certain provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act relating to mortgage 
originations. Under the new originations rule, before originating a mortgage loan, lenders must determine on the basis of 
certain information and according to specified criteria that the prospective borrower has the ability to repay the loan. Lenders 
that issue loans meeting certain requirements will be presumed to comply with the new rule with respect to these loans. On 
January 17, 2013, the CUB announced rules to implement certain provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act relating to mortgage 
servicing. The new servicing rules require servicers to meet certain benchmarks for customer service. Servicers must provide 
periodic billing statements and certain required notices and acknowledgments, promptly credit borrowers accounts for 
payments received and promptly investigate complaints by borrowers and are required to take additional steps before 
purchasing insurance to protect the lender's interest in the property. The new servicing rules also call for additional notice, 
review and timing requirements with respect to delinquent borrowers, including early intervention, ongoing access to servicer 
personnel and specific loss mitigation and foreclosure procedures. Both the originations and servicing rules will take effect on 
January 10, 2014. The CFPB also issued guidelines on October 13, 2011 and January 11, 2012 indicating that it would send 
examiners to banks and other institutions that service and/or originate mortgages to assess whether consumers' interests are 
protected. The C`FPB is conducting an examination of our business pursuant to these guidelines. 

The ongoing implementation of the Dodd-Frank Act, including the implementation of the new originations and servicing rules 
by the CFPB and the CFPB's continuing examination of our business, will increase our regulatory compliance burden and 
associated costs and place restrictions on our servicing operations, which could in turn adversely affect our business, financial 
condition and results of operations. 

The enforcement consent orders by, agreements with, and settlements of certain federal and state agencies against the 
largest mortgage servicers related to foreclosure practices could impose additional compliance costs on our servicing 
business, which could materially and adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. 

On April 13, 2011, the federal agencies overseeing certain aspects of the mortgage market, the Federal Reserve, the Office of 
the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC) and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) entered into enforcement 
consent orders with 13 of the largest mortgage servicers in the United States regarding foreclosure practices. The enforcement 
consent orders require the servicers, among other things to: (i) promptly correct deficiencies in residential mortgage loan 
servicing and foreclosure practices; (ii) make significant modifications in practices for residential mortgage loan servicing and 
foreclosure processing, including communications with borrowers and limitations on dual-tracking, which occurs when 
servicers continue to pursue foreclosure during the loan modification process; (iii) ensure that foreclosures are not pursued once 
a mortgage has been approved for modification and establish a single point of contact for borrowers throughout the loan 
modification and foreclosure processes; and (iv) establish robust oversight and controls pertaining to their third party vendors, 
including outside legal counsel, that provide default management or foreclosure services. On January 7, 2013, ten of the 
mortgage servicers reached an agreement in principle with the OCC and the Federal Reserve to pay more than $8.5 billion in 
cash payments and other assistance to borrowers. While these enforcement consent orders are considered not to be preemptive 
of the state actions, it is currently unclear how state actions and proceedings will be affected by the federal consents. 

On February 9, 2012, federal and state agencies announced a $25 billion settlement with five large banks that resulted from 
investigations of foreclosure practices. As part of the settlement, the banks have ageed to comply with various servicing 
standards relating to foreclosure and bankruptcy proceedings, documentation of borrowers' account balances, chain of title, and 
evaluation of borrowers for loan modifications and short sales as well as servicing fees and the use of lender-placed insurance. 

11 	 RFJN_EX 29_ 0000023 

1851 



The settlement also provides for certain financial relief to homeowners. As a result, there have been $46 billion worth of loan 

modifications, short-sales, refinancings and forbearance, 

Although we are not a party to the above enforcement consent orders and settlements, we could become subject to the terms of 

the consent orders and settlements if (i) we subservice loans for the mortgage servicers that are parties to the enforcement 

consent orders and settlements; (ii) the agencies begin to enforce the consent orders and settlements by looking downstream to 

our arrangement with certain mortgage servicers; (iii) the mortgage servicers for which we subservice loans request that we 

comply with certain aspects of the consent orders and settlements, or (iv) we otherwise find it prudent to comply with certain 

aspects of the consent orders and settlements. In addition, the practices set forth in such consent orders and settlements may be 
adopted by the industry as a whole, forcing us to comply with them in order to follow standard industry practices, or may 

become required by our servicing agreements. While we have made and continue to make changes to our operating policies and 

procedures in light of the consent orders and settlements, further changes could be required and changes to our servicing 

practices will increase compliance costs for our servicing business, which could materially and adversely affect our financial 

condition or results of operations. 

On September 1, 2011, November 10, 2011, and December 2012, the New York State Department of Financial Services entered 

into agreements regarding mortgage servicing practices with seven financial institutions. The additional requirements provided 

for in these agreements will increase operational complexity and the cost of servicing loans in New York. Other servicers, 

including us, could be required to enter into similar agreements. In addition, other states may also require mortgage servicers to 

enter into similar agreements. These additional costs could also materially and adversely affect our financial condition and 

results of operations. 

Legal proceedings, state or federal governmental examinations or enforcement actions and related costs could have a 
material adverse effect on our liquidity, financial position and results of operations. 

We are routinely and currently involved in legal proceedings concerning matters that arise in the ordinary course of our 

business. These legal proceedings range from actions involving a single plaintiff to class action lawsuits with potentially tens of 

thousands of class members. These actions and proceedings are generally based on alleged violations of consumer protection, 

securities, employment, contract and other laws, including the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act. Additionally, along with 
others in our industry, we are subject to repurchase claims and may continue to receive claims in the future, including from our 

Legacy Portfolio. Our business in general exposes us to both formal and informal periodic inquiries, from various state and 

federal agencies as part of those agencies oversight of the mortgage servicing sector. Such inquiries may include those into 

servicer foreclosure processes and procedures and lender placed insurance. An adverse result in govermn ental investigations or 

examinations or private lawsuits, including purported class action lawsuits, may adversely affect our financial results. In 

addition, a number of participants in our industry, including us, have been the subject of purported class action lawsuits and 

regulatory actions by state regulators, and other industry participants have been the subject of actions by state Attorneys 

General. Although we believe we have meritorious legal and factual defenses to the lawsuits in which we are currently 

involved, the ultimate outcomes with respect to these matters remain uncertain. Litigation and other proceedings may require 

that we pay settlement costs, legal fees, damages, penalties or other charges, any or all of which could adversely affect our 

financial results. In particular, ongoing and other legal proceedings brought under state consumer protection statutes may result 

in a separate fine for each violation of the statute, which, particularly in the case of class action lawsuits, could result in 

damages substantially in excess of the amounts we earned from the underlying activities and that could have a material adverse 

effect on our liquidity, financial position and results of operations. 

Governmental investigations, both state and federal, can be either formal or informal. 'the costs of responding to the 

investigations can be substantial. In addition, government-mandated changes to servicing practices could lead to higher costs 

and additional administrative burdens, in particular regarding record retention and informational obligations. 

The continued deterioration of the residential mortgage market may adversely affect our business, financial condition and 
results of operations. 

Adverse economic conditions, including high unemployment, have impacted the residential mortgage market, resulting in 

unprecedented delinquency, default and foreclosure rates, all of which have led to increased loss severities on all types of 

residential mortgage loans due to sharp declines in residential real estate values. Falling home prices have resulted in higher 

loan-to-value ratios (LTVs), lower recoveries in foreclosure and an increase in loss severities above those that would have been 

realized had property values remained the same or continued to increase. As LIVs increase, borrowers are left with equity in 

their homes that is not sufficient to permit them to refinance their existing loans. This may also provide borrowers an incentive 

to default on their mortgage loan even if they have the ability to make principal and interest payments, which we refer to as 

strategic defaults. Increased mortgage defaults negatively impact our Servicing Segment because they increase the costs to 
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service the underlying loans and may ultimately reduce the number of mortgages we service. While home prices have 

increased in most parts of the country and the number of foreclosures has generally declined since 2007, the housing market 
has not fully recovered from the economic crisis. Any deterioration from its current state could adversely affect our business, 

financial condition and results of operations. 

Adverse economic conditions may also impact our Originations Segment. Declining home prices and increasing LTV's may 
preclude many potential borrowers, including borrowers whose existing loans we service, from refinancing their existing loans. 

An increase in prevailing interest rates could decrease our originations volume through our Consumer Direct Retail originations 

channel, our largest originations channel by volume from December 31, 2006 to December 31, 2012, because this channel 

focuses predominantly on refinancing existing mortgage loans. 

A continued deterioration or a delay in any recovery in the residential mortgage market may reduce the number of mortgages 

we service or new mortgages we originate, reduce the profitability of mortgages currently serviced by us, adversely affect our 

ability to sell mortgage loans originated by us or increase delinquency rates. Any of the foregoing could adversely affect our 

business, financial condition and results of operations. 

We nary experience serious financial difficulties as some mortgage servicers and originators have experienced, which could 
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Since late 2006, a number of mortgage servicers and originators of residential mortgage loans have experienced serious 

financial difficulties and, in some cases, have gone out of business. These difficulties have resulted, in part, from declining 

markets for their mortgage loans as well as from claims for repurchases of mortgage loans previously sold under provisions 

requiring repurchase in the event of early payment defaults or breaches of representations and warranties regarding loan quality 

and certain other loan characteristics. Higher delinquencies and defaults may contribute to these difficulties by reducing the 
value of mortgage loan portfolios and requiring originators to sell their portfolios at greater discounts to par. In addition, the 

cost of servicing an increasingly delinquent mortgage loan portfolio may rise without a corresponding increase in servicing 

compensation. The value of many residual interests retained by sellers of mortgage loans in the securitization market has also 

been declining. Overall originations volumes are down significantly in the current economic environment. According to Inside 

Mortgage Finance, total U.S. residential mortgage originations volume decreased from $3.0 trillion in 2006 to $1.8 trillion in 

2012. Any of the foregoing could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

We service reverse mortgages, which subjects us to additional risks and could have a material adverse effect on our 
business', liquidity, financial condition and results of operations. 

In 2012, we purchased the servicing rights to certain reverse mortgages. The reverse mortgage business is subject to substantial 

risks, including market, credit, interest rate, liquidity, operational, reputational and legal risks. A reverse mortgage is a loan 

available to seniors aged 62 or older that allows homeowners to borrow money against the value of their home. No repayment 

of the mortgage is required until the borrower dies or the home is sold. A deterioration of the market for reverse mortgages may 

reduce the number of reverse mortgages we service, reduce the profitability of reverse mortgages currently serviced by us and 

adversely affect our ability to sell reverse mortgages in the market. Although foreclosures involving reverse mortgages 

generally occur less frequently than forward mortgages, loan defaults on reverse mortgages leading to foreclosures may occur 

if borrowers fail to meet maintenance obligations, such as payment of taxes or home insurance premiums. An increase in 

foreclosure rates may increase our cost of servicing. As a reverse mortgage servicer, we will also be responsible for funding any 

payments due to borrowers in a timely manner, remitting to investors interest accrued, and paying for interest shortfalls. 

Advances on reverse mortgages are typically greater than advances on forward residential mortgages. They are typically 

recovered upon weekly or monthly reimbursement or from sale in the market. In the event we receive requests for advances in 

excess of amounts we are able to fund, we may not be able to fund these advance requests, which could materially and 

adversely affect our liquidity. Finally, we are subject to negative headline risk in the event that loan defaults on reverse 
mortgages lead to foreclosures or even evictions of elderly homeowners. All of the above factors could have a material adverse 

effect on our business, liquidity, financial condition and results of operations. 

Borrowers with adjustable rate mortgage loans are especially exposed to increases in monthly payments and they may not be 
able to refinance their loans, which could cause delinquency, default and foreclosure and therefore adversely affect our 

business'. 

Borrowers with adjustable rate mortgage loans are exposed to increased monthly paym ents when the related mortgage loan's 

interest rate adjusts upward from an initial fixed rate or a low introductory rate, as applicable, to the rate computed in 

accordance with the applicable index and margin. Borrowers with adjustable rate mortgage loans seeking to refinance their 

mortgage loans to avoid increased in onthly payments as a result of an upward adjustment of the mortgage loan's interest rate 

may no longer be able to find available replacement loans at comparably low interest rates. This increase in borrowers' monthly 
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payments, together with any increase in prevailing market interest rates, may result in significantly increased monthly 

payments for borrowers with adjustable rate mortgage loans, which may cause delinquency, default and foreclosure. Increased 

mortgage defaults and foreclosures may adversely affect our business as they reduce the number of mortgages we service. 

We principally service higher risk loans, which exposes us to a number of different risks. 

A significant percentage of the mortgage loans we service are higher risk loans, meaning that the loans are to less creditworthy 

borrowers or for properties the value of which has decreased. These loans are more expensive to service because they require 

more frequent interaction with customers and greater monitoring and oversight. As a result, these loans tend to have higher 

delinquency and default rates, which can have a significant impact on our revenues, expenses and the valuation of our 1VISRs. 

Private-label mortgage loans are at greater risk of such delinquency than GSE and government agency-insured mortgage loans. 

Therefore, as we increase the percentage of private-label mortgages in our servicing portfolio as measured by 1.11 3B our 

servicing portfolio may become increasingly delinquent. It may also be more difficult for us to recover advances we are 

required to make with respect to higher risk .  loans. In connection with the ongoing mortgage market reform and regulatory 

developments, servicers of higher risk loans may be subject to increased scrutiny by state and federal regulators or may 

experience higher compliance costs, which could result in higher servicing costs. We may not be able to pass along any 

incremental costs we incur to our servicing clients. All of the foregoing factors could therefore adversely affect our business, 

financial condition and results of operations. 

A significant change in delinquencies for the loans we service could adversely affect our business, financial condition and 

results of operations. 

Delinquency rates have a significant impact on our revenues, our expenses and on the valuation of our MSRs as follows: 

Revenue. An increase in delinquencies will result in lower revenue for loans we service for GSEs because we only collect 

servicing fees from GSEs for performing loans. Additionally, while increased delinquencies generate higher ancillary fees, 

including late fees, these fees are not likely to be recoverable in the event that the related loan is liquidated. In addition, an 

increase in delinquencies lowers the interest income we receive on cash held in collection and other accounts. 

• Expenses. An increase in delinquencies will result in a higher cost to service due to the increased time and effort required 

to collect payments from delinquent borrowers. It may also result in an increase in interest expense as a result of an increase 

in our advancing obligations. 

• Liquidity. An increase in delinquencies could also negatively impact our liquidity because of an increase in borrowing 

under our advance facilities. 

• Valuation of MSRs. We base the price we pay for MSRs on, among other things, our projections of the cash flows from the 

related pool of mortgage loans. Our expectation of delinquencies is a significant assumption underlying those cash flow 

projections. If delinquencies were significantly greater than expected, the estimated fair value of our MSRs could be 

diminished. If the estimated fair value of MSRs is reduced, we could suffer a loss, which has a negative impact on our 

financial results. 

A further increase in delinquency rates could therefore adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of 

operations. 

Decreases in property values have caused increases in LTV's, resulting in borrowers having little or negative equity in their 

properly, which may reduce new loan originations and provide incentive to borrowers to strategically default on their loans. 

We believe that borrowers with negative equity in their properties are more likely to strategically default on mortgage loans, 

which could materially affect our business. Also, with the exception of loans in odified under the Making Home Affordable plan 

(MITA), we are generally unable to refinance loans with high LTV& Increased LT Vs could reduce our ability to originate loans 

for borrowers with low or negative equity and could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

The industry in which we operate is highly competitive and our inability to compete successfully could adversely affect our 

business, financial condition and remits of operations. 

We operate in a highly competitive industry that could become even more competitive as a result of economic, legislative, 

regulatory and technological changes. In the servicing industry, we face competition in areas such as fees and performance in 

reducing delinquencies and entering successful modifications. Competition to service mortgage loans comes primarily from 

large commercial banks and savings institutions. These financial institutions generally have significantly greater resources and 

access to capital than we do, which gives them the benefit of a lower cost of funds. Additionally, our servicing competitors may 
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decide to modify their servicing model to compete more directly with our servicing model, or our servicing model may 

generate lower margins as a result of competition or as overall economic conditions improve. 

In the mortgage loan originations industry, we face competition in such areas as mortgage loan offerings, rates, fees and 

customer service. Competition to originate mortgage loans conies primarily from large commercial banks and savings 

institutions. These financial institutions generally have significantly greater resources and access to capital than we do, which 

gives them the benefit of a lower cost of funds. 

In addition, technological advances and heightened e-commerce activities have increased consumers' accessibility to products 

and services, This has intensified competition among banks and non-banks in offering mortgage loans and loan servicing. We 
may be unable to compete successfully in our industries and this could adversely affect our business, financial condition and 

results of operations. 

We may not be able to maintain or grow our business if we cannot identify and acquire MSKs or enter into additional 
subservicing agreements on favorable terms. 

Our servicing portfolio is subject to "run off," meaning that mortgage loans serviced by us may be prepaid prior to maturity, 
refinanced with a mortgage not serviced by us or liquidated through foreclosure, deed-in-lieu of foreclosure or other liquidation 

process or repaid through standard amortization of principal. As a result, our ability to maintain the size of our servicing 

portfolio depends on our ability to originate additional mortgages or to acquire the right to service additional pools of 

residential mortgages. We may not be able to acquire MSRs or enter into additional subservicing agreements on terms favorable 

to us or at all, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. In determining the 
purchase price for MSRs and subservicing agreements, management makes certain assumptions, many of which are beyond our 

control, including, among other things: 

the rates of prepayment and repayment within the underlying pools of mortgage loans; 

projected rates of delinquencies, defaults and liquidations; 

future interest rates; 

our cost to service the loans; 

ancillary fee income; and 

amounts of future servicing advances. 

We may not be able to recover our significant investments in personnel and our technology platform if we cannot identifY 
and acquire ilISRs or enter into additional subservicing agreements on favorable terms, which could adversely affect our 

business, financial condition and results of operations. 

We have made, and expect to continue to make, significant investments in personnel and our technology platform to allow us to 

service additional loans. In particular, prior to acquiring a large portfolio of MSRs or entering into a large subservicing contract, 

we invest significant resources in recruiting, training, technology and systems. We may not realize the expected benefits of 

these investments to the extent we are unable to increase the pool of residential mortgages serviced, we are delayed in obtaining 

the right to service such loans or we do not appropriately value the MSRs that we do purchase or the subservicing agreements 

we enter into. Any of the foregoing could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

We may not realize all of the anticipated benefits of potential future acquisitions, which could adversely affect our business, 

financial condition and results of operations. 

Our ability to realize the anticipated benefits of potential future acquisitions of servicing portfolios, originations platforms or 

companies will depend, in part, on our ability to scale-up to appropriately service any such assets, and integrate the businesses 

of such acquired companies with our business. The process of acquiring assets or companies may disrupt our business and may 

not result in the full benefits expected. The risks associated with acquisitions include, among others: 

uncoordinated market functions; 

unanticipated issues in integrating information, communications and other systems; 

unanticipated incompatibility of purchasing, logistics, marketing and administration methods; 

not retaining key employees; and 
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• 	the diversion of in anagement's attention from ongoing business concerns. 

In the event that we acquire a servicing or originations platform, we may elect to operate this platform in addition to our current 

platform for a period of time or indefinitely. These transactions could vary in size. Individually or collectively, these 

transactions could substantially increase the UP13, or alter the composition of the portfolio, of in ortgage loans that we service or 

have an otherwise significant impact on our business. We can provide no assurances that we will enter into any such agreement 

or as to the timing of any potential acquisition. Additionally, we may make or have made potentially significant acquisitions 

which could expose us to greater risks than we currently experience in servicing our current portfolio and adversely affect our 

business, financial condition and results of operations. We also may not realize all of the anticipated benefits of potential future 

acquisitions, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Any future acquisitions could require substantial additional capital in excess of cash from operations. Therefore, we may fund 

acquisitions with a combination of excess MSR co-investments, nonrecourse securitization debt, warehouse financing, servicer 

advance facilities, additional corporate indebtedness or equity financing. Where we can obtain such financing on attractive 

terms, we typically attempt to finance our acquisitions on a nonrecourse basis. In addition, we could enter into such acquisition 
arrangements on a standalone basis or on a co-investment or other basis with one or in ore of our affiliates. We can provide no 

assurances, however, as to the availability or terms of funding for future acquisitions or our ability to enter into such 

arrangements with our affiliates. If we fail to obtain adequate financing or otherwise enter into satisfactory arrangements with 

our affiliates, we could be exposed to significant risks, including risks that we may not be able to complete the acquisition on 

alternative terms or at all and risks that we may have to pay damages. 

Moreover, the success of any acquisition will depend upon our ability to effectively integrate the acquired servicing portfolios, 

originations platforms or businesses. The acquired servicing portfolios, originations platforms or businesses may not contribute 

to our revenues or earnings to any material extent, and cost savings and synergies we expect at the time of an acquisition may 

not be realized once the acquisition has been completed. If we inappropriately value the assets we acquire or the value of the 

assets we acquire declines after we acquire them, the resulting charges in ay negatively affect the carrying value of the assets on 

our balance sheet and our earnings. See "—We use financial models and estimates in determining the fair value of certain 

assets, such as MSRs and investments in debt securities. If our estimates or assumptions prove to be incorrect, we may be 

required to record impairment charges, which could adversely affect our earnings." Furthermore, if we incur additional 

indebtedness to finance an acquisition, the acquired business may not be able to generate sufficient cash flow to service that 
additional indebtedness. Unsuitable or unsuccessful acquisitions could adversely affect our business, financial condition and 

results of operations. 

Our ,substantial indebtedness may limit our financial and operating activities and our ability to incur additional debt to fund 

future needs. 

As of December 31, 2012, we and our guarantors for our unsecured senior notes had approximately $3.1 billion of total 

indebtedness and unfunded availability of approximately $1.4 billion under our various financing facilities. Our substantial 

indebtedness and any future indebtedness we incur could: 

• require us to dedicate a substantial portion of cash flow from operations to the payment of principal and interest on 

indebtedness, including indebtedness we may incur in the future, thereby reducing the funds available for other purposes; 

• make it more difficult for us to satisfy and comply with our obligations with respect to the unsecured senior notes; 

• subject us to increased sensitivity to increases in prevailing interest rates; 

• place us at a competitive disadvantage to competitors with relatively less debt in economic downturns, adverse industry 

conditions or catastrophic external events; or 

reduce our flexibility in planning for or responding to changing business, industry and economic conditions. 

In addition, our substantial level of indebtedness could limit our ability to obtain additional financing on acceptable terms or at 

all to fund future acquisitions, working capital, capital expenditures, debt service requirements, general corporate and other 

purposes, which would have a material effect on our business and financial condition. Our liquidity needs could vary 

significantly and may be affected by general economic conditions, industry trends, performance and many other factors not 

within our control. Our substantial obligations could have other important consequences. For example, our failure to comply 

with the restrictive covenants in the agreements governing our indebtedness, which limit our ability to incur liens, to incur debt 
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and to sell assets, could result in an event of default that, if not cured or waived, could harm our business or prospects and 
could result in our bankruptcy. 

We may incur more debt, which could limit our financial and operating activities. 

We and our subsidiaries are able to incur additional indebtedness in the future, subject to the limitations contained in the 
agreements governing our indebtedness. Although these agreements generally restrict us and our restricted subsidiaries from 
incurring additional indebtedness, these restrictions are subject to important exceptions and qualifications. If we or our 
subsidiaries incur additional debt, the related risks could be magnified and could limit our financial and operating activities. 

We may be unable to obtain sufficient capital to meet the financing requirements of our business. 

Our financing strategy includes the use of significant leverage. Accordingly, our ability to finance our operations and repay 
maturing obligations rests in large part on our ability to borrow money. We are generally required to renew our financing 
arrangements each year, which exposes us to refinancing and interest rate risks. See Note 12 - Indebtedness, to Consolidated 
Financial Statements. Our ability to refinance existing debt and borrow additional funds is affected by a variety of factors 
including: 

limitations imposed on us under the indentures governing our unsecured senior notes and other financing agreements that 
contain restrictive covenants and borrowing conditions that may limit our ability to raise additional debt; 

the decrease in liquidity in the credit markets; 

prevailing interest rates; 

the strength of the lenders from which we borrow; 

limitations on borrowings on advance facilities imposed by the amount of eligible collateral pledged, which may be less 
than the borrowing capacity of the advance facility; and 

accounting changes that may impact calculations of covenants in our debt agreements. 

In the ordinary course of our business, we periodically borrow money or sell newly-originated loans to fund our servicing and 
originations operations. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—
Liquidity and Capital Resources." Our ability to fund current operations and meet our service advance obligations depends on 
our ability to secure these types of financings on acceptable terms and to renew or replace existing financings as they expire. 
Such financings may not be available with the GSEs or other counterparties on acceptable terms or at all. 

An event of default, a negative ratings action by a rating agency, an adverse action by a regulatory authority or a general 
deterioration in the economy that constricts the availability of credit—similar to the market conditions that we have experienced 
during the last several years—may increase our cost of funds and make it difficult for us to renew existing credit facilities or 
obtain new lines of credit. We intend to continue to seek opportunities to acquire loan servicing portfolios and/or businesses 
that engage in loan servicing and/or loan originations. Our liquidity and capital resources may be diminished by any such 
transactions. Additionally, we believe that a significant acquisition may require us to raise additional capital to facilitate such a 
transaction, which may not be available on acceptable terms or at all. 

In June 2011, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision of the Bank of International Settlements announced the final 
framework for strengthening capital requirements, known as Basel III, which if implemented as proposed by U.S. bank 
regulatory agencies in their June 2012 notices of proposed rulemaking, is expected to materially increase the cost of funding for 
banking institutions that we rely on for financing. Such Basel III requirements on banking institutions could reduce our sources 
of funding and increase the costs of originating and servicing mortgage loans. If we are unable to obtain sufficient capital on 
acceptable terms for any of the foregoing reasons, this could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of 
operations. 

lfie may not be able to continue to grow our loan originations volume, which could adversely affect our business, financial 
condition and results of operations. 

Our loan originations business consists primarily of refinancing existing loans. While we intend to use sales lead aggregators 
and Internet marketing to reach new borrowers, our Consumer Direct Retail originations platform may not succeed because of 
the referral-driven nature of our industry. Further, our largest customer base consists of borrowers whose existing loans we 
service. Because we primarily service credit-sensitive loans, many of our existing servicing customers may not be able to 
qualify for conventional mortgage loans with us or may pose a higher credit risk than other consumers. Furthermore, our 
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Consumer Direct Retail originations platfomi focuses predominantly on refinancing existing mortgage loans. This type of 
originations activity is sensitive to increases in interest rates. 

Our loan originations business also consists of providing purchase money loans to homebuyers. The origination of purchase 
money mortgage loans is greatly influenced by traditional business clients in the home buying process such as realtors and 
builders. As a result, our ability to secure relationships with such traditional business clients will influence our ability to grow 
our purchase money mortgage loan volume and, thus, our loan originations business. 

Our wholesale originations business operates largely through third party mortgage brokers who are not contractually obligated 
to do business with us. Further, our competitors also have relationships with our brokers and actively compete with us in our 
efforts to expand our broker networks. Accordingly, we may not be successful in maintaining our existing relationships or 
expanding our broker networks. If we are unable to continue to grow our loan originations business, this could adversely affect 
our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Our counterparties may terminate our servicing rights and subservicing contracts, which could adversely affect our 
business, financial condition and results of operations. 

The owners of the loans we service and the primary servicers of the loans we subservice, may, under certain circumstances, 
terminate our 1VISRs or subservicing contracts, respectively. 

As is standard in the industry, under the terms of our master servicing agreement with GSEs, GSEs have the right to terminate 
us as servicer of the loans we service on their behalf at any time and also have the right to cause us to sell the MSRs to a third 
party. In addition, failure to comply with servicing standards could result in termination of our agreements with GSEs. Because 
we are required to follow the guidelines of the GSEs with which we do business and are not able to negotiate our fees with 
these entities for the purchase of our loans, our competitors may be able to sell their loans on more favorable terms. Some 
GSEs may also have the right to require us to assign the MSRs to a subsidiary and sell our equity interest in the subsidiary to a 
third party. Under our subservicing contracts, the primary servicers for which we conduct subservicing activities have the right 
to terminate our subservicing rights with or without cause, with little notice and little to no compensation. We expect to 
continue to acquire subserv icing rights, which could exacerbate these risks. 

If we were to have our servicing or subservicing rights terminated on a material portion of our servicing portfolio, this could 
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Federal, stale and local laws and regulations could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results 
of operations. 

Federal, state and local governments have recently proposed or enacted numerous laws, regulations and rules related to 
mortgage loans generally and foreclosure actions in particular. These laws, regulations and rules may result in delays in the 
foreclosure process, reduced payments by borrowers, modification of the original tenns of mortgage loans, permanent 
forgiveness of debt and increased servicing advances. In some cases, local governments have ordered moratoriums on 
foreclosure activity, which prevent a servicer or trustee, as applicable, from exercising any remedies they might have in respect 
of liquidating a severely delinquent mortgage loan. Several courts also have taken unprecedented steps to slow the foreclosure 
process or prevent foreclosure altogether. 

In addition, in January 2011, the Federal Housing Finance Agency (FHFA) proposed changes to mortgage servicing 
compensation structures, including cutting servicing fees and channeling funds toward reserve accounts for delinquent loans. 
Due to the highly regulated nature of the residential mortgage industry, we are required to comply with a wide array of federal, 
state and local laws and regulations that regulate, among other things, the manner in which we conduct our servicing and 
originations business and the fees we may charge. These regulations directly impact our business and require constant 
compliance, monitoring and internal and external audits. A material failure to comply with any of these laws or regulations 
could subject us to lawsuits or governmental actions, which could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition 
and results of operations. 

In addition, there continue to be changes in legislation and licensing in an effort to simplify the consumer mortgage experience, 
which require technology changes and additional implementation costs for loan originators. We expect legislative changes will 
continue in the foreseeable future, which may increase our operating expenses. 

Furthermore, there continue to be changes in state law that are adverse to mortgage servicers that increase costs and operational 
complexity of our business and impose significant penalties for violation. 
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Any of these changes in the law could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Unlike cotnpetitors that are banks, we are subject to state licensing and operational requirements that result in substantial 
compliance costs. 

Because we are not a depository institution, we do not benefit from a federal exemption to state mortgage banking, loan 
servicing or debt collection licensing and regulatory requirements. We must comply with state licensing requirements and 
varying compliance requirem ents in all fifty states and the District of Columbia, and we are sensitive to regulatory changes that 
may increase our costs through stricter licensing laws, disclosure laws or increased fees or that may impose conditions to 
licensing that we or our personnel are unable to meet. In addition, we are subject to periodic examinations by state regulators, 
which can result in refunds to borrowers of certain fees earned by us, and we may be required to pay substantial penalties 
imposed by state regulators due to compliance errors. Future state legislation and changes in existing regulation may 
significantly increase our compliance costs or reduce the amount of ancillary fees, including late fees, that we may charge to 
borrowers. This could make our business cost-prohibitive in the affected state or states and could materially affect our business. 

Federal and state legislative and agency initiatives in mortgage-backed securities (MSS) and securifization may adversely 
affect our financial condition and results of operations. 

There are federal and state legislative and agency initiatives that could, once fully implemented, adversely affect our business. 
For instance, the risk retention requirement under the Dodd-Frank Act requires securitizers to retain a minimum beneficial 
interest in MI3S they sell through a securitization, absent certain qualified residential mortgage (QRIVI) exemptions. Once 
implemented, the risk retention requirement may result in higher costs of certain originations operations and impose on us 
additional compliance requirements to meet servicing and originations criteria for QRMs. Additionally, the amendments to 
Regulation AB relating to the registration statement required to be filed by asset-backed securities (ABS) issuers adopted in 
March 2011 by the SEC pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Act would increase compliance costs for ABS issuers, which could in turn 
increase our cost of funding and operations. Lastly, certain proposed federal legislation would permit borrowers in bankruptcy 
to restructure mortgage loans secured by primary residences. Bankruptcy courts could, if this legislation is enacted, reduce the 
principal balance of a mortgage loan that is secured by a lien on mortgaged property, reduce the mortgage interest rate, extend 
the term to maturity or otherwise modify the terms of a bankrupt borrower's mortgage loan. Any of the foregoing could 
materially affect our financial condition and results of operations. 

Our business would be adversely affected if we lose our licenses. 

Our operations are subject to regulation, supervision and licensing under various federal, state and local statutes, ordinances 
and regulations. Inmost states in which we operate, a regulatory agency regulates and enforces laws relating to mortgage 
servicing companies and mortgage originations companies such as us. These rules and regulations generally provide for 
licensing as a mortgage servicing company, mortgage originations company or third party debt default specialist, requirements 
as to the form and content of contracts and other documentation, licensing of our employees and employee hiring background 
checks, licensing of independent contractors with which we contract, restrictions on collection practices, disclosure and record-
keeping requirements and enforcem ent of borrowers' rights. In certain states, we are subject to periodic examination by state 
regulatory authorities. Some states in which we operate require special licensing or provide extensive regulation of our 
business. 

We believe that we maintain all material licenses and permits required for our current operations and are in substantial 
compliance with all applicable federal, state and local regulations. We may not be able to maintain all requisite licenses and 
permits, and the failure to satisfy those and other regulatory requirements could result in a default under our servicing 
agreements and have a material adverse effect on our operations. The states that currently do not provide extensive regulation 
of our business may later choose to do so, and if such states so act, we may not be able to obtain or maintain all requisite 
licenses and permits. The failure to satisfy those and other regulatory requirements could result in a default under our servicing 
agreements and have a material adverse effect on our operations. Furthermore, the adoption of additional, or the revision of 
existing, rules and regulations could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

We may be required to indemnify or repurchase loans we originated, or will originate, if our loans fail to meet certain 
criteria or characteristics or under other circumstances. 

The indentures governing our securitized pools of loans and our contracts with purchasers of our whole loans contain 
provisions that require us to indemnify or repurchase the related loans under certain circumstances. While our contracts vary, 
they contain provisions that require us to repurchase loans if: 
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our representations and warranties concerning loan quality and loan circumstances are inaccurate, including representations 

concerning the licensing of a mortgage broker; 

we fail to secure adequate mortgage insurance within a certain period after closing; 

a mortgage insurance provider denies coverage; or 

we fail to comply, at the individual loan level or otherwise, with regulatory requirements in the current dynamic regulatory 

environment. 

We believe that, as a result of the current market environment, many purchasers of residential mortgage loans are particularly 

aware of the conditions under which originators must indemnify or repurchase loans and would benefit from enforcing any 

repurchase remedies they may have. Along with others in the industry, we are subject to repurchase claims and may continue to 

receive claims in the future. We believe that our exposure to repurchases under our representations and warranties includes the 

current unpaid balance of all loans we have sold. In the years ended December 31, 2008 through 2012, we sold an aggregate of 

$14.3 billion of loans. To recognize the potential loan repurchase or indemnification losses, we have recorded a reserve of 

$18.5 million as of December 31, 2012. Because of the increase in our loan originations since 2008, we expect that repurchase 

requests are likely to increase. Should home values continue to decrease, our realized loan losses from loan repurchases and 

indemnifications may increase as well. As such, our reserve for repurchases may increase beyond our current expectations. See 

"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Analysis of Items on Consolidated 

Balance Sheet—Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity". If we are required to indemnify or repurchase loans that we originate and 

sell or securitize that result in losses that exceed our reserve, this could adversely affect our business, financial condition and 

results of operations. 

We may incur increased litigation costs and related losses if a borrower challenges the validity of a foreclosure action or if a 

court overturns a foreclosure, which could adversely affect our liquidity, business,,financial condition and results of 

operations. 

We may incur costs if we are required to, or if we elect to, execute or re-file documents or take other action in our capacity as a 

servicer in connection with pending or completed foreclosures. We may incur litigation costs if the validity of a foreclosure 

action is challenged by a borrower. Ifs court overturns a foreclosure because of errors or deficiencies in the foreclosure 

process, we may have liability to a title insurer or the purchaser of the property sold in foreclosure, These costs and liabilities 

may not be legally or otherwise reimbursable to us, particularly to the extent they relate to securitized mortgage loans. In 

addition, if certain documents required for a foreclosure action are missing or defective, we could be obligated to cure the 

defect or repurchase the loan. A significant increase in litigation costs could adversely affect our liquidity, and our inability to 

be reimbursed for an advance could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Because we are required to follow the guidelines of the GSEs with which we do business and are not able to negotiate our 

fees with these entities for the purchase of our loans, our competitors may be able to sell their loans to GSEs on more 

favorable terms. 

Even though we currently originate conventional agency and government conforming loans, because we previously originated 

non-prime mortgage loans, we believe we are required to pay a higher fee to access the secondary market for selling our loans 

to GSEs. We believe that because many of our competitors have always originated conventional loans, they are able to sell 

newly originated loans on more favorable terms than us. As a result, these competitors are able to earn higher margins than we 

earn on originated loans, which could materially impact our business. 

In our transactions with the GSEs, we are required to follow specific guidelines that impact the way we service and originate 

mortgage loans including: 

• our staffing levels and other servicing practices; 

• the servicing and ancillary fees that we may charge; 

• our modification standards and procedures; and 

• the amount of non-reimbursable advances. 

In particular, the FHFA has directed GSEs to align their guidelines for servicing delinquent mortgages they own or guarantee, 

which can result in monetary incentives for servicers that perform well and penalties for those that do not. In addition, FHFA 

has directed Fannie Mae to assess compensatory fees against servicers in connection with delinquent loans, foreclosure delays, 

and other breaches of servicing obligations. 
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We cannot negotiate these terms with the GSEs and they are subject to change at any time. A significant change in these 
guidelines that has the effect of decreasing our fees or requires us to expend additional resources in providing mortgage 
services could decrease our revenues or increase our costs, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and 
results of operations. 

IVe are required to make servicing advances that can be subject to delays in recovery or may not be recoverable in certain 
circumstances, which could adversely affect our liquidity, business, financial condition and results of operations 

During any period in which a borrower is not making payments, we are required under most of our servicing agreements to 
advance our own funds to meet contractual principal and interest remittance requirements for investors, pay property taxes and 
insurance premiums, legal expenses and other protective advances. We also advance funds to maintain, repair and market real 
estate properties on behalf of investors. As home values change, we may have to reconsider certain of the assumptions 
underlying our decisions to make advances and, in certain situations, our contractual obligations may require us to make certain 
advances for which we may not be reimbursed. In addition, in the event a mortgage loan serviced by us defaults or becomes 
delinquent, the repayment to us of the advance may be delayed until the mortgage loan is repaid or refinanced or a liquidation 
occurs. As a reverse mortgage servicer, we will also be responsible for funding any payments due to borrowers in a timely 
manner, remitting to investors interest accrued and paying for interest shortfalls. Advances on reverse mortgages are typically 
greater than advances on forward residential mortgages. They are typically recovered upon weekly or monthly reimbursement 
or from sale in the market. In the event we receive requests for advances in excess of amounts we are able to fund, we may not 
be able to find these advance requests, which could materially and adversely affect our liquidity. A delay in our ability to 
collect an advance may adversely affect our liquidity, and our inability to be reimbursed for an advance could adversely affect 
our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Changes to government mortgage modification programs could adversely affect future incremental revenues. 

Under HAM and similar government programs, a participating servicer may be entitled to receive financial incentives in 
connection with any modification plans it enters into with eligible borrowers and subsequent success fees to the extent that a 
borrower remains current in any agreed upon loan modification. While we participate in and dedicate numerous resources to 
HAMP, we may not continue to participate in or realize future revenues from RAMP or any other government mortgage 
modification program. Changes in legislation or regulation regarding RAMP that result in the modification of outstanding 
mortgage loans and changes in the requirements necessary to qualify for refinancing mortgage loans may impact the extent to 
which we participate in and receive financial benefits from such programs, or may increase the expense of our participation in 
such programs. Changes in government loan modification programs could also result in an increase to our costs. 

HAMP is currently scheduled to expire on December 31, 2013. If HAMP is not extended, this could decrease our revenues, 
which would adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Under the MHA, a participating servicer may receive a financial incentive to modify qualifying loans, in accordance with the 
plan's guidelines and requirements. The MBA also allows us to refinance loans with a high LTV of up to 125%. This allows us 
to refinance loans to existing borrowers who have little or negative equity in their homes. Changes in legislation or regulations 
regarding the MBA could reduce our volume of refinancing originations to borrowers with little or negative equity in their 
homes. Changes to HAMP, the MI-IA and other similar programs could adversely affect future incremental revenues. 

We are highly dependent upon programs administered by GSEs such as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to generate revenues 
through mortgage loan sales to institutional investors. Any changes in existing U.S government-sponsored mortgage 
programs could materially and adversely affect our business, liquidity, financial position and results of operations. 

In February 2011, the Obama Administration delivered a report to Congress regarding a proposal to reform the housing finance 
markets in the United States. The report, among other things, outlined various potential proposals to wind down the GSEs and 
reduce or eliminate over time the role of the GSEs in guaranteeing mortgages and providing funding for mortgage loans, as 
well as proposals to implement reforms relating to borrowers, lenders and investors in the mortgage market, including reducing 
the maximum size of loans that the GSEs can guarantee, phasing in a minimum down payment requirement for borrowers, 
improving underwriting standards and increasing accountability and transparency in the securitization process. 

Our ability to generate revenues through mortgage loan sales to institutional investors depends to a significant degree on 
programs administered by the GSEs, such as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, a government agency, Ginnie Mae, and others that 
facilitate the issuance of MBS in the secondary market. These GSEs play a critical role in the residential mortgage industry and 
we have significant business relationships with many of them. Almost all of the conforming loans we originate qualify under 
existing standards for inclusion in guaranteed mortgage securities backed by G SEs. We also derive other material financial 
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benefits from these relationships, including the assumption of credit risk by these GSEs on loans included in such mortgage 

securities in exchange for our payment of guarantee fees and the ability to avoid certain loan inventory finance costs through 

streamlined loan funding and sale procedures. 

Any discontinuation of, or significant reduction in, the operation of these GSEs or any significant adverse change in the level of 

activity in the secondary mortgage market or the underwriting criteria of these GSEs could, m aterially and adversely affect our 

business, liquidity, financial position and results of operations. 

The conservatorship of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and related efforts, along with any changes in laws and regulations 

affecting the relationship between Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and the U.S federal government, could adversely affect 

our business and prospects. 

Due to increased market concerns about the ability of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to withstand future credit losses associated 

with securities held in their investment portfolios, and on which they provide guarantees without the direct support of the U.S. 

federal government, on July 30, 2008, the U.S. government passed the Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008. On 

September 7, 2008, the FHFA, placed Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac into conservatorship and, together with the U.S. Treasury, 

established a program designed to boost investor confidence in their respective debt and MBS. As the conservator of Fannie 

Mae and Freddie Mac, the FHFA controls and directs the operations of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and may (i) take over the 

assets and operations of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac with all the powers of the stockholders, the directors and the officers of 

Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and conduct all business of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; (ii) collect all obligations and money 

due to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; (iii) perform all functions of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac which are consistent with the 

conservator's appointment; (iv) preserve and conserve the assets and property of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; and (v) contract. 

for assistance in fulfilling any function, activity, action or duty of the conservator, 

In addition to the FHFA becoming the conservator of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, the U.S. Treasury and the FHFA have 

entered into preferred stock purchase agreements among the U. S. Treasury, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac pursuant to which the 

U.S. Treasury will ensure that each of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac maintains a positive net worth. 

Although the U.S. Treasury has committed capital to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, these actions may not be adequate for their 

needs. If these actions are inadequate, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac could continue to suffer losses and could fail to honor their 

guarantees and other obligations. The future roles of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac could be significantly reduced and the nature 

of their guarantees could be considerably limited relative to historical measurements. Any changes to the nature of the 

guarantees provided by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac could redefine what constitute agency and government conforming MBS 

and could have broad adverse market implications. Such market implications could adversely affect our business and prospects. 

The geographic concentration of our servicing portfolio may result in a. higher rate of delinquencies, which could adversely 

affect our business, ,financial condition and results of operations. 

As of December 31, 2012, approximately 23.5% and 10.4% of the aggregate outstanding loan balance in our forward servicing 

portfolio was secured by properties located in California and Florida, respectively. Some of these states have experienced 

severe declines in property values and are experiencing a disproportionately high rate of delinquencies and foreclosures relative 

to other states. To the extent these states continue to experience weaker economic conditions or greater rates of decline in real 

estate values than the United States generally, the concentration of loans we service in those regions may increase the effect of 

the risks listed in this "Risk Factors" section. The impact of property value declines may increase in magnitude and it may 

continue for a long period of time. Additionally, if states in which we have greater concentrations of business were to change 

their licensing or other regulatory requirements to make our business cost-prohibitive, we may be required to stop doing 

business in those states or may be subject to higher cost of doing business in those states, which could adversely affect our 

business, financial condition and results of operations. 

We use financial models and estimates in determining the fair value of certain assets, such as MSRs. If our estimates or 
assumptions prove to be incorrect, we may be required to record impairment charges, which could adversely affect our 

earnings. 

We use internal financial models that utilize, wherever possible, market participant data to value certain of our assets, including 

our IvISRs, newly originated loans held for sale and investments in debt securities for purposes of financial reporting. These 

models are complex and use asset-specific collateral data and market inputs for interest and discount rates. In addition, the 

modeling requirern ents of MSRs are complex because of the high number of variables that drive cash flows associated with 

MSRs. Even if the general accuracy of our valuation models is validated, valuations are highly dependent upon the 

reasonableness of our assumptions and the predictability of the relationships that drive the results of the models. If loan loss 
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levels are higher than anticipated, due to an increase in delinquencies or prepayment speeds, or financial market illiquidity 
continues beyond our estimate, the value of certain of our assets may decrease. We may be required to record impairment 
charges, which could impact our ability to satisfy minimum net worth covenants of $424.4 million and borrowing conditions in 
our debt agreements and adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations. Errors in our financial 
models or changes in assumptions could adversely affect our earnings. See "We may not realize all of the anticipated benefits 
of potential future acquisitions, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations." 

Our earnings may decrease because of changes in prevailing interest rates. 

Our profitability is directly affected by changes in prevailing interest rates. The following are the material risks we face related 
to changes in prevailing interest rates: 

an increase in prevailing interest rates could generate an increase in delinquency, default and foreclosure rates resulting in 
an increase in both operating expenses and interest expense and could cause a reduction in the value of our assets; 

• an increase in prevailing interest rates could adversely affect our loan originations volume because refinancing an existing 
loan would be less attractive for homeowners and qualifying for a loan may be more difficult for consumers; 

• an increase in prevailing interest rates would increase the cost of servicing our outstanding debt, including our ability to 
finance servicing advances and loan originations; 

• a decrease in prevailing interest rates may require us to record a decrease in the value of our MSRs; and 

a decrease in prevailing interest rates could reduce our earnings from our custodial deposit accounts. 

Our hedging strategies may not be successful in mitigating our risks associated with interest rates. 

From time to time, we have used various derivative financial instruments to provide a level of protection against interest rate 
risks, but no hedging strategy can protect us completely. The derivative financial instruments that we select may not have the 
effect of reducing our interest rate risks. In addition, the nature and timing of hedging transactions may influence the 
effectiveness of these strategies. Poorly designed strategies, improperly executed and documented transactions or inaccurate 
assumptions could actually increase our risks and losses. In addition, hedging strategies involve transaction and other costs. 
Our hedging strategies and the derivatives that we use may not be able to adequately offset the risks of interest rate volatility 
and our hedging transactions may result in or magnify losses. Furthermore, interest rate derivatives may not be available on 
favorable terms or at all, particularly during economic downturns. Any of the foregoing risks could adversely affect our 
business, financial condition and results of operations. 

A downgrade in our servicer ratings could have an adverse effect on our business, .financial condition and results of 
operations. 

Standard &Poor's and Fitch rate us as a residential loan servicer. Our current favorable ratings from the rating agencies are 
important to the conduct of our loan servicing business. These ratings may be downgraded in the future. Any such downgrade 
could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

We depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about borrowers and counterparties and any misrepresented 
information could adversely affect our business, ,financial condition and results of operations. 

In deciding whether to extend credit or to enter into other transactions with borrowers and counterparties, we may rely on 
information furnished to us by or on behalf of borrowers and counterparties, including financial statements and other financial 
information. We also may rely on representations of borrowers and counterparties as to the accuracy and completeness of that 
information and, with respect to financial statements, on reports of independent auditors. We additionally rely on 
representations from public officials concerning the licensing and good standing of the third party mortgage brokers through 
which we do business. While we have a practice of independently verifying the borrower information that we use in deciding 
whether to extend credit or to agree to a loan modification, including employment, assets, income and credit score, if any of 
this information is intentionally or negligently misrepresented and such misrepresentation is not detected prior to loan funding, 
the value of the loan may be significantly lower than expected. Whether a misrepresentation is made by the Joan applicant, the 
mortgage broker, another third party or one of our employees, we generally bear the risk of loss associated with the 
misrepresentation. We have controls and processes designed to help us identify misrepresented information in our loan 
originations operations. We, however, may not have detected or may not detect all misrepresented information in our loan 
originations or from our business clients. Any such misrepresented information could adversely affect our business, financial 
condition and results of operations. 
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Tethnology failures could damage our business operations and increase our costs, which could adversely affect our 

business, .financial condition and results of operations. 

The financial services industry as a whole is characterized by rapidly changing technologies, and system disruptions and 

failures caused by fire, power loss, telecommunications failures, unauthorized intrusion, computer viruses and disabling 

devices, natural disasters and other similar events may interrupt or delay our ability to provide services to our borrowers. 

Security breaches, acts of vandalism and developments in computer capabilities could result in a compromise or breach of the 

technology that we use to protect our borrowers' personal information and transaction data. 

Despite our efforts to ensure the integrity of our systems, it is possible that we may not be able to anticipate or implement 

effective preventive measures against all security breaches, especially because the techniques used change frequently or are not 

recognized until launched, and because security attacks can originate from a wide variety of sources, including third parties 

such as persons involved with organized crime or associated with external service providers. Those parties may also attempt to 

fraudulently induce employees, customers or other users of our systems to disclose sensitive information in order to gain access 

to our data or that of our customers or clients. These risks may increase in the future as we continuo to increase our reliance on 

the intemet and use of web-based product offerings and on the use of cybersecurity. 

A successful penetration or circumvention of the security of our systems or a defect in the integrity of our systems or 

cybersecurity could cause serious negative consequences for our business, including significant disruption of our operations, 

misappropriation of our confidential information or that of our customers, or damage to our computers or operating systems 

and to those of our customers and counterparties. Any of the foregoing events could result in violations of applicable privacy 

and other laws, financial loss to us or to our customers, loss of confidence in our security measures, customer dissatisfaction, 

significant litigation exposure and harm to our reputation, all of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition 

and results of operations. 

The success and growth of our business will depend upon our ability to adapt to and implement technological changes 

Our mortgage loan originations business is currently dependent upon our ability to effectively interface with our brokers, 

borrowers and other third parties and to efficiently process loan applications and closings. The originations process is becoming 

more dependent upon technological advancement, such as our continued ability to process applications over the Internet, accept 

electronic signatures, provide process status updates instantly and other borrower-expected conveniences. Maintaining and 

improving this new technology and becoming proficient with it may also require significant capital expenditures. As these 

requirements increase in the future, we will have to fully develop these technological capabilities to remain competitive and 

any failure to do so could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Any failure of our internal security measures or breach of our privacy protections could cause harm to our reputation and 

subject us to liability, any of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

In the ordinary course of our business, we receive and store certain confidential information concerning borrowers. 

Additionally, we enter into third party relationships to assist with various aspects of our business, some of which require the 

exchange of confidential borrower information. If a third party were to compromise or breach our security measures or those of 

the vendors, through electronic, physical or other means, and misappropriate such information, it could cause interruptions in 

our operations and expose us to significant liabilities, reporting obligations, rem ediation costs and damage to our reputation. 

Any of the foregoing risks could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. See also "-- 

Technology failures could damage our business operations and increase our costs, which could adversely affect our business, 

financial condition and results of operations." 

Our vendor relationships subject us to a variety of risks. 

We have significant vendors that, among other things, provide us with financial, technology and other services to support our 

servicing and originations businesses. With respect to vendors engaged to perform activities required by servicing criteria, we 

have elected to take responsibility for assessing compliance with the applicable servicing criteria for the applicable vendor and 

are required to have procedures in place to provide reasonable assurance that the vendor's activities comply in all material 

respects with servicing criteria applicable to the vendor. In the event that a vendor's activities do not comply with the servicing 

criteria, it could negatively impact our servicing agreements. In addition, if our current vendors were to stop providing services 

to us on acceptable terms, including as a result of one or more vendor bankruptcies due to poor economic conditions, we may 

be unable to procure alternatives from other vendors in a timely and efficient manner and on acceptable tenns, or at all. Further, 

we may incur significant costs to resolve any such disruptions in service and this could adversely affect our business, financial 

condition and results of operations. 
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The loss of the services of our senior managers could adversely affect our business. 

The experience of our senior managers is a valuable asset to us. Our management team has significant experience in the 

residential mortgage originations and servicing industry. We do not maintain key life insurance policies relating to our senior 

managers. The loss of the services of our senior in anagers could adversely affect our business. 

Our business could suffer if we fail to attract and retain a highly skilled workforce. 

Our future success will depend on our ability to identify, hire, develop, motivate and retain highly qualified personnel for all 

areas of our organization, in particular skilled managers, loan servicers, debt default specialists, loan officers and underwriters, 

Trained and experienced personnel are in high demand and may be in short supply in some areas. Many of the companies with 

which we compete for experienced employees have greater resources than we have and may be able to offer more attractive 

terms of employment. In addition, we invest significant time and expense in training our employees, which increases their 

value to competitors who may seek to recruit them. We may not be able to attract, develop and maintain an adequate skilled 

workforce necessary to operate our businesses and labor expenses may increase as a result of a shortage in the supply of 

qualified personnel. If we are unable to attract and retain such personnel, we may not be able to take advantage of acquisitions 

and other growth opportunities that may be presented to us and this could materially affect our business, financial condition and 

results of operations. 

Negative public opinion could damage our reputation and adversely affect our earnings. 

Reputation risk, or the risk to our business, earnings and capital from negative public opinion, is inherent in our business. 

Negative public opinion can result from our actual or alleged conduct in any number of activities, including lending and debt 

collection practices, technology failures, corporate governance, and actions taken by government regulators and community 

organizations in response to those activities. Negative public opinion can also result from media coverage, whether accurate or 

not. Negative public opinion can adversely affect our ability to attract and retain customers, trading counterparties and 

employees and can expose us to litigation and regulatory action. Although we take steps to minimize reputation risk in dealing 

with our customers and communities, this risk will always be present in our organization. 

If the ownership of our common stock continues to be highly concentrated, it may prevent new investors from influencing 

significant corporate decisions and may result in conflicts of interest. 

FIF HE Holdings LLC (FIF), which is primarily owned by certain private equity funds managed by an affiliate of Fortress 

Investment Group LLC (Fortress), owns approximately 75.3% of our outstanding common stock as of February 28, 2013. As a 

result, FIF owns shares sufficient for the majority vote over all matters requiring a stockholder vote, including: the election of 

directors; mergers, consolidations and acquisitions; the sale of all or substantially all of our assets and other decisions affecting 

our capital structure; the amendment of its certificate of incorporation and our bylaws; and its winding up and dissolution. This 

concentration of ownership may delay, deter or prevent acts that would be favored by other stockholders. The interests of FM 

may not always coincide with our interests or the interests of other stockholders. This concentration of ownership may also 

have the effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change in control of us. Also, F1F may seek to cause us to take courses of 

action that, in its judgment, could enhance its investment in us, but which might involve risks to other stockholders or adversely 

affect us or other stockholders. As a result, the market price of our common stock could decline or stockholders might not 

receive a premium over the then-current market price of our common stock upon a change in control. In addition, this 

concentration of share ownership may adversely affect the trading price of our common stock because investors may perceive 

disadvantages in owning shares in a company with significant stockholders. 

Nationstar Inc. is a holding company with no operations and will rely on its operating subsidiaries to provide it with funds 

necessaty to meet its financial obligations and to pay dividends. 

Nationstar Inc. is a holding company with no material direct operations. Our principal assets are the equity interests we directly 

or indirectly hold in our operating subsidiaries, which own our operating assets. As a result, we will be dependent on loans, 

dividends and other payments from our subsidiaries to generate the funds necessary to meet our financial obligations and to pay 

dividends on our common stock. Our subsidiaries are legally distinct from us and may be prohibited or restricted from paying 

dividends or otherwise making funds available to us under certain conditions. If we are unable to obtain funds from our 

subsidiaries, we may be unable to, or our board may exercise its discretion not to, pay dividends. 

We do not expect to declare or pay any cash or other dividends in the foreseeable future on our common stock because we 

intend to use cash flow generated by operations to grow our business. The indenture governing our senior notes restricts our 

25 	 RFJN_EX 29_ 0000037 

1865 


